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Profile of ICBC (Asia)

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited (“ICBC (Asia)” or the “Bank”) is a licensed bank incorporated in
Hong Kong. It is the flagship of overseas business of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBC”) - currently
the largest commercial bank in China, and it is one of the domestic systemically important banks (D-SIBs) in Hong Kong. It is
engaged in commercial banking, investment banking and other financial services, including those of securities, insurance and
funds, with a focus on commercial and retail banking as well as global market business.

ICBC (Asia), formerly known as Union Bank of Hong Kong Limited, was established in Hong Kong in 1964 and publicly listed
in 1973. Over the years, the Bank offered advanced and diversified banking services to its customers. The Bank changed its
name to “Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited” on 21 August 2000 following its becoming a member of
ICBC Group.

In July 2001, ICBC injected the corporate banking business of its Hong Kong Branch into ICBC (Asia). It expanded the
customer base of ICBC (Asia), improved its deposits and loans portfolio and also diversified its product mix. Such transfer of
business therefore led to a substantial enhancement of the competitive edge of ICBC (Asia).

ICBC (Asia) acquired Fortis Bank Asia HK’s retail and commercial banking operations on 30 April 2004. Fortis Bank Asia HK
was then renamed to Belgian Bank and became a wholly-owned subsidiary of ICBC (Asia). In October 2005, Belgian Bank,
Hong Kong Branch was formally merged with ICBC (Asia). In 2005, ICBC (Asia) acquired Chinese Mercantile Bank which
becomes its wholly-owned subsidiary and focuses on Renminbi banking business in Mainland China.

On 31 August 2008, ICBC (Asia) completed the acquisition of Worldsec Asset Management Limited and renamed it to
ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company Limited (officially changed the name to ICBC Asset Management (Global)
Company Limited in October 2017). Being a wholly-owned subsidiary of ICBC (Asia), ICBC Asset Management (Global)
Company Limited specialized in ICBC’s global asset management business.

On 21 December 2010, ICBC completed its privatisation process of ICBC (Asia), which was henceforth withdrawn from
listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and became a wholly-owned subsidiary of ICBC. The completion of
privatisation thus provides ICBC (Asia) with broader access to finance, allows greater flexibility in obtaining the support of
ICBC and achieving more effective business connection and integration within ICBC Group.

Upon the completion of the privatisation process, ICBC (Asia) accelerates its pace of development. Benefited from its
continuous enhancing profitability, innovation, risk management and control effectiveness and other driven forces, ICBC
(Asia) achieves a good momentum of steady growth in the client base and business development, resulting in continued
expanding of its total asset size and optimization of its asset structure.

By persisting in the business strategy of “Taking root in Hong Kong, Connecting with mainland China, Spanning across Asia
Pacific, Facing the World”, ICBC (Asia) seizes the favourable opportunities of Hong Kong being the offshore Renminbi centre
and keenly explores Renminbi businesses and cross-border banking services. ICBC (Asia) realized a number of pioneering
projects in offshore Renminbi financial products, and received various awards regarding quality cross-border services, such as

“Best Bank in Hong Kong (Chinese Financial Institutions)”, “Excellent Brand of Cross-border Banking Services”, “Excellent
Foreign Institutional Investor”, and “RMB Business Outstanding Award”, etc.

03



o R R SRAT () AR A

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

N E & #

# A 202013 H24H 1k

A
CLRE =S e

RAE (F T~ BT T )

ET Wi > sBs. > Kva - (| L Bor B THEH)
W (BT HE BT T AT T A )

W PEME (FFH 1T HE )

BB (FHITEF)

WA (J s BT HEH)

R4&W > KD (H7 F#H 778 F)

R B rESH)

PISRE > sBs. > Kbt (B, FHITEF)

oy w Al &
T

BREEG

Pl 588 > sB.s. . KA £ ()
WS PEME (AT )

by g

E T > sBs.» KoFah£*

3 e+

BB EEIRRE Y
(2L RE

R

b5 e

ETF Wi sBs. - KPah+*

R4AW > FHKID?

PR > SB.S. » KR Al L

HHRGREEELZEY
e (L)

R

|8

R4 > FHKID*

e 350

P55 B > s.B.S. - KT

WL HEHITHE S

04

M E B e
R4 > raxiod* (£/8)
bl g

% e e+

REZBE
B ()

I B

ET Wi > sBs.» KTapt*

[SIEK- £ VN
PG (2 A )

W (F T~ BT HEFE AT

SR UEAER
Annual Report 2019

WL (BT HE S FITT AR AEF (LT B %)

T 88 Gl (17 A A AL T A

J AW (7T
WF SR () 17 B A # A B R B
W (Gl 1T EC A #)

EAR W (G TTECA A BB E)

% (AT #)
ISR () 77 A #)

%t il
05 SR 7 il 25 B

A P BB AT 1058 K 5 KB/ M

G ¢ (852)2522 6022
] SC B ¢ (852) 2845 2588

w3 = i

s BRAE [ =98

R TP SR AT R R = =
FEHE ¢ (852)3510 8888

I SCH E : (852)2805 1166
TRAG © A v WS EUAR R 15 A 8729k

IRERERIT & M E (5 © UBHKHKHH

A AE AT i http://www.icbcasia.com T #§



CE VR
Annual Report 2019

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Gao Ming

(Chairman e Executive Director)

Wu Long
(Vice-Chairman, Executive Director & Chief
Executive Officer)

Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S., J.P.
(Vice-Chairman, Independent Non-executive
Director)

Lu Jian
(Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive ¢
Alternate Chief Executive)

Xi Deying (Non-executive Director)

Hong Guilu (Non-executive Director)

Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Wu Jie Si (Independent Non-executive Director)

Or Ching Fai, S.B.S.,].P.

(Independent Non-executive Director)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Yu Hong

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Or Ching Fai, S.B.S.,J.p.* (Chairman)

Xi Deying (Alternate Chairman)
Hong Guilu

Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $.BS.,J.P.*
Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec*

STRATEGY AND CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Gao Ming (Chairman)

Wu Long

Hong Guilu

Wong Yue Chim, Richard, sB.S.,J.p.*
Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD*
Wu Jie Si*

Or Ching Fai, sB.S., J.p.*

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec* (Chairman)

Wu Long

Lu Jian

Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD*
Wu Jie Si*

Or Ching Fai, S.B.S.,J.P.*

*  Independent Non-executive Director
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Corporate Information

As at 24 March 2020

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD* (Chairman)

Hong Guilu

Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec*

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Wu Jie Si* (Chairman)

Xi Deying

Wong Yue Chim, Richard, s.B.S.,J.p.*

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Gao Ming

(Chairman & Executive Director)

Wu Long

(Vice-Chairman, Executive Director ¢ Chief Executive Officer)

Lu Jian

(Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive & Alternate Chief

Executive)

Leung Ming Hym, Peter

(Deputy Chief Executive & Alternate Chief Executive)
Tong Hee Keung, Samuel (Deputy Chief Executive)
Xu Meng (Deputy Chief Executive & Chief Risk Officer)
Gu Xuan (Deputy Chief Executive)
Wang Chaoming

(Deputy Chief Executive & Chief Information Officer)
Li Dong (Deputy Chief Executive)
Chen Yinbin (Deputy Chief Executive)

AUDITORS

KPMG

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852)2522 6022
Facsimile: (852)2845 2588

REGISTERED OFFICE
33/F., ICBC Tower

3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852)3510 8888
Facsimile: (852)2805 1166

Post Box: GPO Box 872

SWIFT: UBHKHKHH

This Annual Report can be accessed through the internet at:

http://www.icbcasia.com
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B 7% 8
H ot
Sk 5 4l Financial Highlights
B E I
248 (H 8 0) For the Year (in HK$ million) 2019 2018 % Change
HAE A Net Interest Income 12,155 11,625 4.6%
T AR Al A Net Fee and Commission Income 2,204 2,396 -8.0%
HoA U A Other Operating Income 620 716 -13.4%
E S Operating Expenses 3,708 3,454 7.4%
SR B 2 R TR Net Impairment Losses on Financial Assets (1,831) (1,229) 49.0%
R Bt i 42 A Profit before Tax 9,980 10,392 -4.0%
B IH Tax 1,678 2,113 -20.6%
5 o AL 2 Profit Attributable to Shareholders 8,303 8,278 0.3%
BEE)H 4L
WAER R (T E s 0) At Year End (in HK$ million) 2019 2018 % Change
AR R H AR TE Advances and other accounts 474,986 475,789 -0.2%
W AL Total Assets 953,564 893,618 6.7%
oSk Total Deposits 543,923 558,480 -2.6%
W 25 48 Total Equity 133,855 117,317 14.1%
g Financial Ratios 2019 2018
GRS R Capital Adequacy Ratio 20.58% 19.75%
FHRBESEEILR Average Liquidity Coverage Ratio 192.16% 166.47%
A A Cost to Income 24.75% 23.44%
A BR AL R 2 2 A JBe 3 M A ik A
Operating Profit Before Impairment Losses Profit Attributable to Shareholders
[EE 3P T T
HKS$ million HKS million
12,000 {(1];;;62 1 11,%3 9,000 w3
11,000 . +9%
10,000 5(35:;7/; % 5000 7395 ew
9,000 8,776 7,000 6,784
8,000 6,000
7,000 5,000
6,000
5,000 4,000
4,000 3,000
3,000 2,000
2,000
1,000 1,000
0 0
2019 2018 2017 2015 2019 2018 2016 2015
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AR S 5 BB Five Year Summary
H H|
Restated Restated
ZAE (H B 0) For the Year (in HK$ million) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
AL A Net Interest Income 12,155 11,625 10,052 9,143 8,517
T M 4l A Net Fee and Commission Income 2,204 2,396 2,376 2,156 1,836
NN Other Operating Income 620 716 208 1,111 1,123
-f S Operating Expenses 3,708 3,454 3,064 2,791 2,700
G R E 2 W AR SR A Net Impairment Losses on Financial Assets (1,831) (1,229) (580) (812) (1,175)
o B i 2 Profit before Tax 9,980 10,392 9,481 9,069 8,392
BiIH Tax 1,678 2,113 1,713 1,673 1,608
JE SRR A1 22 ) Profit Attributable to Shareholders 8,303 8,278 7,767 7,395 6,784
£33 4 W Q7L ST Per Share (in HK$) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
g R e A 1 A Basic Earnings per Share 3.12 3.21 3.01 2.87 3.10
WRHAEEH (F Eior) At Year End (in HK$ million) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
A % LA R TH Advances and other accounts 474,986 475,789 459,830 419,655 385,734
W AA A Total Assets 953,564 893,618 898,109 798,675 733,551
RN Total Deposits 543,923 558,480 587,352 465,141 466,676
HE 4 HA 55 Total Equity 133,855 117,317 91,686 83,886 70,337
0B % Financial Ratios 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
AT R Capital Adequacy Ratio 20.58% 19.75% 16.57% 17.01% 16.74%
PRI E B S E R Average Liquidity Coverage Ratio 192.16% 166.47% 134.83% 128.80% 93.97%
B E R R Loans to Total Assets 49.81% 53.24% 51.20% 52.54% 52.88%
(B R LR Impaired Loan ratio 1.04% 0.81% 0.66% 0.74% 0.65%
A EA R EMIEHER Non credit-impaired ECL
VA 25 Coverage Ratio* 1.00% 1.13% 1.27% 1.41% 1.55%
A LR Cost to Income 24.75% 23.44% 24.25% 22.49% 23.53%
RRCh- VAL & Return on Average Assets 0.90% 0.90% 0.96% 1.01% 1.02%
RRCE il &N & Return on Average Common Equity 8.44% 9.56% 9.72% 9.82% 11.83%
AL [ E A * Including "Regulatory Reserve"
e i 17k B
Total Assets Total Deposits
ER Y5 H AT
HKS million HKS million 26%
LO00.000 o5y aes 0 sia% 600000 —— GBS, SN 58752
900,000 893,618 898,109
: +9% 0% 0%
800,000 798675 _417% 500,000 465,141 466,676
733,551
700,000 400,000
600,000
500,000 300,000
400,000
200,000

300,000
200,000
100,000

0

2019 2018

2017

2016 2015

100,000

2019

2018 2017

2016

2015
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% P Ak Customer Deposits
1. Heis s 1. By Type 2019 2018
1 0 Current 6.9% 8.2%
% Savings 21.4% 17.1%
7E Fixed 71.7% 74.7%
B Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. WHFGREN A 2. By Remaining Maturity 2019 2018
JE s SR IR BB 8 Repayable on Demand 30.5% 26.2%
AT Three Months or Less 22.2% 27.2%
—AEE LR H A = A One Year or Less, but Over Three Months 26.6% 21.0%
FAF B LA R AH A — AR Five Years or Less, but Over One Year 18.2% 23.6%
R A Over Five Years 2.5% 2.0%
al Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. HBHE s 3. By Currency 2019 2018
{ESTH HKD 44.3% 42.2%
ESSTH UsD 35.2% 37.2%
HoAts Others 20.5% 20.6%
aE Total 100.0% 100.0%
Jofb 2 WA Other Operating Income 2019 2018
T 22 G WA R A P A Net trading income and net (loss)/gain on financial assets and
A B R AR R E liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
B2 F () 30.8% 62.1%
LREEAEr S P 9N ON Dividend income from financial investments 5.7% 1.2%
B WA Management fee income 40.0% 34.6%
LE XN Rental income 2.2% 0.0%
BEWEMSIA Rental income from investment properties 0.6% 0.4%
Hote Others 20.7% 1.7%
aF Total 100.0% 100.0%
A8 48 A0 B L Al e I DAL 25K e R
Total Advances and Other Accounts Impaired Loan Ratio
[EE 3P 43 L
HKS$ million %
500000 474986 475789 o L2
450,000 4?99,2/055 +6% s
400,000 385,734
350,000 08 o81% T
300,000 0.66% 0.65%
250,000
200,000 04
150,000
100,000
50,000
0 0.0
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
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L 4RATEB 2y 1. By Industry Sectors * 2019 2018
17 i 2 B Loans for Use in Hong Kong
BN & Industry, Commercial and Financial
LUE 7S Property Development 9.7% 8.2%
WERE Property Investment 7.0% 6.4%
G A 2 Financial Concerns 6.6% 9.3%
I S R AL Stockbrokers 0.8% 0.9%
e f 2 2 Wholesale and Retail Trade 2.5% 3.0%
N Y Civil Engineering Works 0.3% 0.4%
Rk Manufacturing 2.1% 1.8%
R e T A Transport and Transport Equipment 4.9% 5.7%
EPIRRUE Electricity and Gas 0.3% 0.2%
I ilkE e Information Technology 1.1% 0.9%
g - AE1E AR Hotels, Boarding House and Catering 0.5% 0.4%
5% 4 3 ) Recreational Activities 0.1% 0.0%
HAty Others 6.0% 7.3%
(PN Individuals
R EEAHLES] - [F Loans for the purchases of flats in Home Ownership Scheme,
N s EG R K% E Private Sector Participation Scheme and Tenants Purchase
BRI T 2 K Schemes 0.1% 0.1%
W B A T B 2 2 B Loans for the purchase of Other Residential Properties 10.6% 8.8%
5 RER Credit Card Advances 0.1% 0.1%
HoAth Others 4.3% 3.0%
By mE Trade Finance 2.7% 3.2%
T s LAAME ) 2 K Loans for Use outside Hong Kong 40.3% 40.3%
aat Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. BB BB 5 2. By Remaining Maturity 2019 2018
JEUIF B SR IR RV IR 7 Repayable on Demand 1.7% 2.3%
—AEE LT One Year or Less 34.2% 30.5%
FAFEE LA R {H A — A Five Years or Less, but Over One Year 44.4% 43.2%
R AR Over Five Years 19.3% 24.0%
ifr 41 [ 34 Undated 0.4% 0.0%
&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. BB 3. By Currency 2019 2018
BT HKD 49.3% 47.0%
e USD 24.5% 24.0%
HoAl Others 26.2% 29.0%
Gl Total 100.0% 100.0%
ORISR R RRATRE ¢+ Excluding Trade Bills and Advances to Banks
Bk A —F L B —F—JusE
Loans Composition 2019 Income Composition 2019
e oAb
ﬁﬁmﬁi%% ._WA’EM TR B R Al A M(ﬁfafﬁg
Residential Mortgage 10.7% ‘ 44% Individuals - Others Net Fee and Income
Commission
RN EAES Income 15%

Industrial, Commercial & o~ dgp%mg
Financial 25.2% -7% Trade Finance

LB 9253

HoAta 2% T LS
Property Development & 1 Z 4K
Other Property Loans for use outside

Investment 16.7% 40.3% Hong Kong

S

AL A
Net Interest Income 81%
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Chairman’s Statement

The year 2019 was marked by extraordinary circumstances. Persistent turbulence in both external economy and financial
market subjected Hong Kong’s banking sector to mounting pressure. It was against this backdrop of the unprecedented
severe trial of the difficult business environment that the entire staff of ICBC (Asia) rose to the challenges, paid extra efforts,
remained proactive and worked together to overcome the adversity through following the Bank’s development plan under
ICBC Group’s strategic guidance. Development, prudence, innovation and capability were the watchwords whose essence
permeated all levels and aspects of the Bank’s business operations. It is encouraging that the united efforts have paid off,
yielding hard-earned operating results that indicate the momentum of steady progress in the Bank’s operations. As at the end
of 2019, the Bank’s total assets increased by HK$59.9 billion, or 6.71%, to HK$953.6 billion from that as at the end of 2018;
deposits from customers grew by HK$1.7 billion, or 0.33%, to HK$535.3 billion from that as at the end of 2018; the daily
average deposits placed with the Bank increased by 3.43%; net profit rose by 0.3% to HK$8.303 billion for 2019.

Profitability increased steadily. The Bank made good progress in developing both sizeable loans and projects of high credit
quality. During the year under review, it granted a loan of more than HK$1 billion to each of the more than 20 projects. Its
businesses such as retail lending and trade finance also achieved rapid growth, driving steady increment in both the interest-
earning assets and net interest income. Meanwhile, retail insurance, loan asset trading and asset management accounted
for significantly higher percentages of the Bank’s income than they did in the previous year. Growth in income from its fee-
charging intermediate business also gained momentum, thus optimizing the revenue mix of the intermediate business.

Lean management of liabilities was effectively conducted. While deposits from customers were growing consistently, the
source of liabilities was being diversified. For instance, ICBC (Asia) ranked second as an initial public offering (“IPO”)
receiving bank in Hong Kong in terms of the number of customers for two consecutive years. The Bank’s cash management
business also made a breakthrough in terms of the amount of deposits placed with it. Its business of capital financing
undertook a number of green bond issues. Meanwhile, the Bank was optimizing the structure of its liabilities: As to the
proportions of the Bank’s total liabilities, deposits from customers and debt securities in issue increased while certificates of
deposit issued and deposits from banks and other financial institutions decreased. Low interest-bearing deposits and deposits
from retail customers accounted for greater proportions of the Bank’s total liabilities. This shows the effective control and
management of the funding cost with regard to the Bank’s liabilities.

Credit fundamentals were strengthened. The Bank attached great importance to the control and management of risks.
Therefore, it strategically increased the scale of its investment in bonds. This resulted in steady growth in assets. It fully
leveraged ICBC Group’s strengths by stepping up the disposal of non-performing loans. Potentially problematic loans as at the
end of 2019 decreased by 70% compared with those at the end of 2018. In an all-out effort to stabilize the overall quality of its
loan assets, the Bank launched two initiatives, “Loan Asset Quality Control” and “Management of Credit Fundamentals”.

Expanded presence in difference regional markets with enhanced capability. To give full play to its role as ICBC Group’s
flagship in the overseas markets and as the hub of the coordination of all the business units of ICBC Group inside and outside
mainland China, the Bank furthered such coordination and its business development in different regions. For example, the
Bank actively developed the market for its services in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (the “Greater
Bay Area”). It succeeded in arranging for a number of syndicated loans for the clients in the area, thus steadily growing
its business of corporate lending there. It also fostered its business of personal banking in the area by launching multiple
innovative personal finance services, namely the “Outward Remittance Service of Payment”, the “Greater Bay Area Premier
Banking Services”, the “Greater Bay Area Loan - Mortgage”, etc. To expand its presence in the Asia-Pacific market, the Bank
leveraged its Asia-Pacific Syndicated Loan Center, which was established by ICBC Group, to enhance the mechanism for
unifying and coordinating the sales and marketing efforts of all its business units in Asia Pacific to provide the customers
with comprehensive solutions for financial service. Through the centre, the Bank has extended its business into more than 20
countries and regions in Asia Pacific. The Bank received affirmation from the market and won the title of the “Best Chinese
bank in Southeast Asia for Belt and Road Initiative” by Asiamoney.
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Business transformation gradually yielded results. The Bank’s “Mega Retail” strategy achieved good results: the retail banking
business recorded fast growth in deposits, loans, non-interest income and the business of mid-range and high-end customers,
thus becoming a new engine of steady growth in the Bank’s overall business. The Bank also furthered its “Mega Investment
Banking” strategy by acting as a global coordinator for a number of the transactions of bond underwriting, thus building up
its competitive advantage among the peers; the Bank also continued to rank among the top three in the markets of Hong Kong
and Macao for syndicated loans. Its businesses of financial advisory service and loan asset trade also recorded significant
growth in income. The Bank’s influence under its “Mega Asset Management” strategy also grew. It won many accolades,
including the title of the “Best Cross Border Business”, and the award of the “Fund with Best Total Return — Greater China
Fixed Income (1 Year)”. Additionally, the Bank won the “Bond Connect Best Custodians” award again for the outstanding
performance of its custody services. Its transaction banking business made steady progress as it optimized its customer mix
and recorded consistent growth in both the daily average deposits and the business of trade finance.

Driving business transformation with technology. The Bank used financial technology as the main driving force to speed up
its business transformation. This raised the standards of the Bank’s operation and management in the areas of innovation in
business, customer service and internal control. It succeeded in enhancing its operation and development with technology.
The Bank adopted the “distributed architecture” in its information technology system and established a more flexible model
for managing the research and development of products. As a result, the Bank was able to launch a number of innovative
services such as the “New Customer Account Opening”, the “Outward Remittance Service of Payment”, the “Greater Bay
Area Loan - Mortgage”, smart customer service, the application of robotic process automation, etc. This has enhanced the
Bank’s overall competitive strength. Attaching great importance to the customer experience, the Bank set up a committee
on optimizing the process of service and improving the mechanism for responding to customer requests in service. It
also continued building with efficiency the system for comprehensive back-office management, including the Easy Case
Management System (“ECS”), thus taking its capability to run its business with smart technology to the next level.

The Bank always takes a painstaking effort to manage and control risks so it adheres to a prudent approach while it actively
develops markets. It has strengthened its internal control and measures to prevent and control risks. In strict compliance
with the requirements of both the local regulatory authorities and ICBC Group’s risk control, the Bank has been ceaselessly
improving the structure of its internal model method, adopting the internal ratings-based approach and raising the capital
adequacy according to the regulatory requirements that apply to domestic systemically important authorized institutions
(D-SIBs) as stipulated by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority. All this ensures that the targets of the risk prevention and
control will be met. The Bank has committed more resources to the implementation of the full life-cycle internal management
and the reform of the closed-loop management in the key areas of risk control as it aims to build a comprehensive system for
internal control and regulatory compliance with emphasis on such crucial factors as the good execution of internal control,
the mitigation of operational risk and anti-money laundering. The Bank is also building its own corporate culture in which
employee care is enhanced and the staff is encouraged to work hard for their aspirations. It has taken measures to fully
optimize its operational mechanism and ensure safe and orderly operation in response to the social movement in Hong Kong.
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While pursuing excellence in its business, the Bank also fulfils its social responsibility and champions the cause of charity.
To help promote financial inclusion, the Bank has extended its branch network to provide banking services to more local
communities, thus filling the voids in the market. To answer the Hong Kong government’s call for environmental protection,
the Bank practiced what is promulgated in the Charter on External Lighting of Hong Kong’s Environment Bureau; it also
cooperated with the Hong Kong Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department and The Green Earth, a local green
group, in launching its five-year Plantation Enrichment Project to protect Hong Kong’s ecosystem and ensure the city’s
sustainable development. The Bank has joined hands with a number of Hong Kong’s well-known charitable organizations
in raising funds for charitable causes. Furthermore, it has given back to local communities and contributed to the society by
supporting the development of arts and culture, sports and volunteering services, community care services, by popularizing
financial education and by championing the environmental cause. In 2019, the Bank was awarded the logo of “Caring
Company” by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service for the seventeenth consecutive year in recognition of its unswerving
commitment to serving society. The Bank also actively recruits staff from the local economic and financial talent to meet
the needs of its business development, and has won the recognition of the regulatory authorities and society at large for the
provision of opportunities for internships and employment to university graduates.

In 2020, there is downward pressure on the global economy. The external environment in Hong Kong remains complicated
that the banking sector is faced with various uncertainties and risks that pose many challenges to its operation and
development. To cope with the situation, the Bank will persevere and remain proactive in strengthening the fundamentals of
its business. It will also continue to adapt itself to the changes in customer needs and the market so as to seize the opportunities
for business. With a view to sustaining its development for the long term, the Bank will forge ahead with its business
transformation and innovation. It will leverage mainland China’s enormous market as well as ICBC Group’s resources and
strengths to further develop its business in Hong Kong and actively expand its presence in the markets of the Greater Bay Area
and Asia Pacific. ICBC (Asia) will adhere to its customer-centric approach and continue to provide diverse and integrated
financial services, aiming to scale new heights in its businesses.

In the past year, the Bank achieved the hard-earned operating results despite the complicated and severe operating
environment. This was made possible thanks to the guidance of the parent bank and the board of director of the Bank, the

dedication of the management and the efficiency of the entire staff. I am most grateful to all of them. On behalf of the Bank, I
would also like to express my gratitude to the customers for their trust and all sections of society for their support.

Gao Ming
Chairman

24 March 2020
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group achieved a record high profit after tax of HK$8,303 million for the year 2019, representing an increase of HK$24
million as compared to the previous year.

The Group’s net interest income increased by HK$530 million, or 4.6%, to HK$12,155 million. Net fee and commission
income decreased by HK$192 million, or 8.0%, to HK$2,204 million. The ratio of non-interest income to total operating
income was 18.9%.

Total operating expenses were 7.4% higher than the previous year. The cost to income ratio slightly increased from 23.4% in
2018 to 24.8% in 2019.

Operating profit after impairment losses was HK$9,440 million, a decrease of HK$614 million, or 6.1%, as compared with
2018.

The Group recorded HK$550 million of net gain from disposal of investment securities as compared to HK$329 million in
2018.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2019, ICBC (Asia)’s total assets amounted to HK$953.6 billion, representing an increase of HK$59.9
billion, or 6.7%, as compared with the previous year-end position.

As at 31 December 2019, ICBC (Asia)’s loans amounted to HK$475.0 billion, representing a decrease of HK$0.8 billion, or
0.2%, as compared with the previous year-end position.

As at 31 December 2019, total outstanding customers’ deposits amounted to HK$535.3 billion, representing an increase of
0.3% as compared to the position as at 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, total outstanding certificates of deposit issued amounted to HK$8.6 billion, representing a decrease
of 65.3% as compared to the position as at 31 December 2018.

CAPITAL AND LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT

The capital adequacy ratio of the Bank was 20.58% as at the end of 2019 (the end of 2018: 19.75%) The average liquidity
coverage ratio for the year 2019 amounted to 192.2% (average of 2018: 166.5%).

ASSET QUALITY

Under the Bank’s prudent risk management policy, the asset quality remained continuously at a satisfactory level. As at the
end of 2019, impaired loans amounted to HK$4,984 million while the impaired loan ratio increased by 23 basis points to
1.04% as compared with 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the cumulative loan impairment allowances aggregated to HK$5,548 million (2018: HK$5,076
million). This included impairment allowances of HK$2,469 million (2018: HK$2,129 million) for credit-impaired exposures

and HK$3,079 million (2018: HK$2,947 million) for not credit-impaired exposures.

As at 31 December 2019, total overdue advances increased by HK$787 million, to HK$4,250 million, as compared to the
previous year-end position.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Corporate Banking

The year 2019 was characterized by the persistent volatility of the global economy which exerted downward pressure on
Hong Kong’s financial market. It was against this backdrop that the Bank continued to explore possibilities for business
development. The Bank further developed its businesses in Hong Kong and the regional markets elsewhere while enhancing
its customer service. In the meantime, it capitalized on China’s policy on fostering the development of the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (the “Greater Bay Area”) and the Belt and Road Initiative by participating in a number of
sizeable projects of investment and financing. As a result, the Bank’s corporate banking business recorded growth in loans and
deposits while the qualities of the assets were also elevated.

In its drive for market development, the Bank kept pace with the progress in China’s strategy for national development by
leveraging abundant resources and effective business connection and integration within ICBC Group. In 2019, the Bank
succeeded in underwriting and playing a leading role in its participation in multiple syndicated loans, which has greatly
enhanced the overall competitiveness of its business of investment and financing. The Bank also succeeded in assisting clients
in issuing bonds for a number of times despite the volatile market, and their bond issues met with overwhelming responses
from the investors. On the back of this achievement, the Bank’s brand influence kept growing.

In pursuit of excellence in its customer service, the Bank kept innovating its mode of operation to suit customer needs through
the provision of more diverse and personalized solutions for comprehensive financial service. It also applied the advanced
business management concept to its transaction banking. With these measures, the Bank was constantly improving its
corporate banking business. To support Hong Kong’s local small and medium-sized enterprises (“SME”), the Bank assisted
in the promotion of SME Financing Guarantee Scheme and cooperated with associations of the local small and medium-sized
businesses in providing professional and efficient financial services for their member companies on favourable terms. The
move has gained wide recognition and support from the market.

In developing the regional markets, the Bank actively took advantage of the state policy on promoting the development of the
Greater Bay Area and the Belt and Road Initiative in addition to its effort to foster Hong Kong’s financial service through the
consistent development of its local businesses in the city. For these purposes, the Bank established the Asia Pacific Syndicated
Loan Center in 2018 and the Greater Bay Area Corporate Banking Department in 2019, respectively. Such moves yielded good
results during the year under review as the Bank gave the advantage of its comprehensive, cross-border financial services full

play.

The Bank always regards its business in the Greater Bay Area as a regional operation of strategic importance. To seize
opportunities in the development of the Greater Bay Area, the Bank and the various institutions of ICBC Group in the area
have established a unified platform for coordinating their development. This has enabled the Bank and such institutions
to effectively coordinate their businesses and share their resources. The Bank has been closely monitoring the progress in
the implementation of the state policies on national development, and continued to step up its marketing and business
development efforts accordingly. With the strong support of ICBC Group, the Bank further consolidated its client base by
committing more resources to developing and maintaining customer relationships in the Greater Bay Area. The efforts paid
off as the Bank succeeded in arranging for a number of syndicated loans for the clients in the area, providing them with one-
stop, comprehensive financial services within and outside Mainland China.
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The Bank also made progress in the development of its business in the Asia-Pacific region. Since the establishment of its Asia
Pacific Syndicated Loan Center, the Bank has executed and followed up 98 major projects in total. It has also cooperated with
19 overseas institutions of ICBC Group, relevant business departments at the head office and a policy bank in underwriting
27 syndicated loans, of which more than HK$40 billion worth of loans were underwritten and granted by ICBC Group. The
loans were denominated in multiple currencies with the scope of business covering 23 countries and regions around the globe.
The companies that have taken out such syndicated loans included mainland Chinese and Hong Kong enterprises which are
“going global”, the connectivity projects of the Belt and Road Initiative, as well as well-known enterprises in Asia-Pacific
region. During the year, the Bank’s achievements in its business development in Southeast Asia were recognized by society
and the financial service sector. ICBC (Asia) won the title of the “Best Chinese bank in the region for BRI” in the “New Silk
Road Finance Awards 2019” organized by Asiamoney magazine.

In 2020, the Bank will forge ahead with its strategy of “Taking root in Hong Kong, Connecting with mainland China, Spanning
across Asia Pacific, Facing the World” to drive the growth in its corporate banking business. It will explore clients’ needs in
depth and consolidate its lending business. Meanwhile, the Bank will endeavor to provide comprehensive and integrated
services to its operations and leverage its advantage in business connection and integration. It will also aim to create value for
customers, and participate in the execution of major projects, making great efforts to provide better total solution for financial
service for customers and to foster the consistent and steady development of its commercial banking business.

Retail Banking

The Bank’s retail banking business fluctuated in 2019 as it was affected by the tighter supply of capital in the financial markets
and social unrest. It performed well in the first quarter but the operating environment has become challenging since the
second quarter. Nevertheless, with the converged efforts of all the staff members of the Bank, the retail banking business
continued to record growth in deposits, loans and the sales of investment and treasury products in 2019, while both the
customer scale and the number of high-net-worth clients of the Bank increased.

In its deposit business, the Bank conducted many promotional campaigns proactively to attract new funds from both new
and existing customers in the form of deposits. Notably, the Bank absorbed more low-interest deposits by promoting its two
flagship products, “Flexi Plus” and “Interest Plus”, thus ensuring growth in the size of its deposit business. In its loan business,
the Bank further diversified its clientele to expand the loan portfolio and ensure a healthy mix of income streams by providing
various types of loans. For instance, it extended loans to professionals through FlexiPro, offered secured financing through
Flexi Assets, provided mortgage and conducted SME lending.

Regarding its intermediary business, the Bank already anticipated significant fluctuations in non-interest income at the
beginning of 2019, judging by the macro-environment. Therefore, the Bank made timely adjustment to its strategy for
selling products by stepping up the sales of capital preservation products to tap the buying power of the market, and the
move resulted in satisfactory growth in non-interest income. At its securities and brokerage business, the Bank launched the
businesses of online trade in United States stocks and international placements of initial public offerings. It also provided
customized services for some important customers and offered exclusive promotions to them. Overall, the securities and
brokerage business came up with more diverse products and raised the efficiency of its service, thus improving the customer
experience.
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To capitalize on the development of the Greater Bay Area, the Bank’s cross-border banking business launched various
personal finance services successfully in 2019. In collaboration with ICBC Shenzhen Branch, ICBC Guangdong Branch and
ICBC (Macau), the Bank launched the exclusive “Greater Bay Area Premier Banking Services” for its VIP customers, allowing
them free access to VIP facilities and priority services at designated branches in the Greater Bay Area. Other innovative
personal finance services include the “Greater Bay Area Loan - Mortgage” that allows Hong Kong residents to take out
mortgages in Hong Kong for properties they have bought in the Greater Bay Area; the “Outward Remittance Service of
Payment” that allows mainland Chinese working in Hong Kong to remit their salaries and allowances for family in renminbi
from Hong Kong to their bank accounts in mainland China; and the “Cross-border Bill Payment Service” that allows exchange
students from both mainland China and Hong Kong to pay designated institutions of higher learning various fees online. All
these innovative personal finance services make life more convenient for the Bank’s customers in the Greater Bay Area. The
Bank has long been recognized by the market for its quality cross-border banking services. During the year, the Bank won
several awards, namely the titles of the “Excellent Brand of Greater Bay Area Personal Financial Service” from Metro Finance,
the “No. 1 Commercial Bank in Greater Bay Area” from Headline Daily and “Excellence Award for Personal Banking Service
(Greater Bay Area)” from Sky Post.

As for its retail banking network, the Bank kept on enhancing the networks of its branches and automated teller machines. As
of 31 December 2019, the Bank provided services through 57 retail outlets and 174 automated teller machines in areas with
high pedestrian traffic. The Bank has been improving the infrastructure of its physical branches. In the year under review, the
Central Branch was transformed into a more spacious, smart branch equipped with facilities which are enabled by the fifth
generation (5G) mobile telecommunication networks.

To support Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”)’s initiative in financial inclusion in local communities, the Bank
set up a new branch, Tsui Lam Branch, in Tseung Kwan O in 2019 to provide a full range of banking services for the locals.
The branch was equipped with various barrier-free facilities to serve customers with special needs. Furthermore, the Bank
waived the minimum balance requirements and service fees for general personal banking from early August 2019 onwards to
popularize its banking service for people from all walks of life.

In 2020, the Bank will continue to develop its retail banking business, make use of fintech and innovative products in its
deposit business, loan business and wealth management business to provide quality and comprehensive services that meet
customer needs. In the future, ICBC (Asia) will continue to improve both its retail banking network and its services so as to
offer quality and comprehensive banking services to customers.

Renminbi Business

To adapt itself to the internationalization of the renminbi, the Bank has been leveraging ICBC Group’s overall strength in the
renminbi business when pressing ahead with reform and innovation. Catering to the market demand, the Bank is dedicated to
promoting comprehensive development of its renminbi business.

In the business of trading in financial instruments, the Bank provides round-the-clock running quotations in 26 currencies
on the electronic trading platform FXall of Refinitiv (which was formerly the Financial & Risk unit of Thomson Reuters) and
the Deutsche Borse Group’s foreign exchange trading platform 360T. By virtue of its excellent services, the Bank maintained
its status as a major offshore renminbi (CNH) market maker and ranked among the leading players by trading volume on a
number of major electronic platforms for foreign exchange trading. As a key business partner of the Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited (“HKExX”) in the market for renminbi futures, the Bank cooperated with ICBC International Holdings
Limited and HKEx in upgrading the system for making market for foreign exchange futures during the year under review.
The move was expected to expand the Bank’s share of the market for the trade in renminbi futures and thus enhanced its
profitability.
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In its renminbi bond underwriting business, the Bank took full advantage of its capability to coordinate its operations inside
and outside of mainland China and of ICBC Group’s established brand for underwriting offshore bonds to help advance the
strategically important internationalization of the renminbi. The Bank successfully completed several offshore renminbi
bond issues for the Ministry of Finance of China and the Agricultural Development Bank of China. Meanwhile, the Bank also
actively assisted the ICBC head office in marketing Panda bonds to investors outside mainland China.

As to trade finance business, the Bank furthered its cooperation with financial institutions in free trade zones and the Greater
Bay Area in accordance with the Outline Development Plan for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area issued
by the State Council of the People’s Republic of China. The Bank also launched the new type of cross-border transfer of
the renminbi-denominated assets, and broadened both the channels for and the modes of cooperation in the cross-border
renminbi trade finance business.

In 2020, the Bank will remain committed to promoting the development of the cross-border renminbi business, strengthening
the connectivity between Hong Kong and the Greater Bay Area and even the rest of mainland China, enhancing Hong Kong’s
status as the Offshore Renminbi Center, and facilitating the internationalization of the renminbi.

Institutional Business

To cope with the complicated operating environment which was buffeted by macroeconomic headwinds in 2019, the Bank
promptly adjusted its strategy for institutional banking and sought to restructure its business mix and carried out innovation.
This ensured the stable operation of its institutional business and resulted in positive growth in loans extended to institutional
clients for the whole year.

During the year under review, it was against the backdrop of a volatile global economy that the Bank continued to actively
explore and reach out to institutional clients by marketing campaigns after thorough research. The efforts resulted in
growth in customer numbers and the optimization of the customer mix. In its drive for business development, the Bank
proactively engaged in bilateral financing, deals of syndicated loans and bond issues of institutional clients, thus advancing the
competitiveness of its investment and financing business. Meanwhile, the Bank grasped the opportunities for development in
the free trade zones and the Greater Bay Area by strengthening its cooperation with bank clients in trade finance. The Bank
also continued to gear its service innovation towards customer needs. For instance, it forged ahead with the diversification
of its institutional business products and services during the year, introducing a number of innovative products and services
including non-trade risk participation and inter-bank bond reverse repurchase.

The Bank actively improved the functions of its institutional business and manifested its advantage as ICBC Group’s flagship
in the overseas business. As a result, the institutional business has been functioning as a unit that coordinates the development
of the Bank and other business units within ICBC Group, especially those in the Greater Bay Area. In addition, the Bank
strengthened the system formulation, formalized the rules of internal operation and refined its workflow. All these measures
have helped enhance the Bank’s regulatory compliance and risk management.

In 2020, the Bank will continue to keep abreast of the economic development and trends on the financial market so that it
can meet the customer needs promptly and continue to expand the customer base of its institutional business. Meanwhile, it
will step up the coordination between its businesses of corporate banking and retail banking with adherence to the concept of
transaction banking, so as to provide a comprehensive range of financial services that can meet customer needs. The Bank will
strengthen the mechanism for closer cooperation with the domestic and overseas institutional clients in the Greater Bay Area,
the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, the Yangtze River Delta region and Southeast Asia. This can allow all the parties to advance
their development by complementing each other.
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Global Market Business

In 2019, the global economy slowed down and the situation was exacerbated by the uncertainties of trade conflicts and
escalating geopolitical tensions. Despite the unfavorable macro environment, the Bank’s global market business continued
to strengthen its risk management while actively seeking market expansion. As a result, both its revenue and profit increased
steadily.

The reinvestment yield declined as the United States shifted the monetary policy from interest rate hikes to interest rate
cuts during the year. In response to this change, the Bank promptly adjusted its bond portfolio, managed the related risks
prudently, and explored the opportunities for investing in the markets for US dollar- and renminbi-denominated bonds, thus
effectively increasing the size of its bond portfolio. By strengthening its dynamic approach to investment, the Bank maintained
the target level of the yield of the overall bond portfolio, which boosted substantially the interest income from its investment
portfolio. The investment team has adopted a professional and prudent credit analysis process for selecting the types of bonds
for investment in order to have the credit quality of its bond portfolio maintained at a comparatively high level.

In its business of foreign exchange trading on behalf of customers, the Bank persevered in diversifying its source of revenue
which had been mainly from the traditional foreign exchange business by coming up with innovative products and marketing
channels. The Bank consolidated its corporate clientele by actively expanding its customer base through increased marketing
efforts. The Bank also recorded growth in business with the customers from its retail and private banking sections. This
increased the contribution of the business of foreign exchange trading on behalf of customers to the Bank’s profit and the
competitiveness of its products. Furthermore, the Bank made a breakthrough in sales and marketing activities which were
targeted at institutional customers and thus recorded considerable revenue.

The Bank’s market-making business has proven to be a success by continuously providing competitive quotes in the offshore
markets for the renminbi and Hong Kong dollar. The Bank’s market share has been steadily increasing and it remained a top-
ranked market players in terms of trading volume on major electronic trading platforms. The Bank also received accolades
from its key business partners, including the title of the “Key Business Partner in FIC Market” from HKEx for the third
consecutive year, the title of the “Top CNH/HKD (SPOT) Entity” from Refinitiv and the title of the “OTC Derivatives Clearing
Member of the Year (CCS)” from HKEx for the first time. Additionally, the Bank’s online market-making business continued
to expand its market coverage with an increased proportion in the total transaction volume of the Bank’s market-making
business.

In 2020, the global economic outlook is expected to remain clouded with uncertainties. However, the Bank’s global market

business is dedicated to exploring opportunities for business by evaluation. The Bank aims for steady growth in business by
tapping its customers’ growing demand for wealth management and hedging and by enhancing its core competency.
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Asset Management

In 2019, ICBC Asset Management (Global) Company Limited (“ICBC AMG”), the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank,
maintained its steady growth. As of 31 December 2019, total assets under its management and advisory business reached
HK$128.2 billion, up by 5% compared with that in 2018.

In spite of the volatile market conditions and challenging business environment throughout the year, ICBC AMG continued
its proactive and prudent strategies, and made great efforts in investment research and management, product innovation,
the collaboration between different operations in sales and marketing and risk control with multiple measures and thus
ensured consistent and steady business development. By adjusting investment strategies and trading tactics tailored to the
circumstances, ICBC AMG achieved outstanding performance and was recognized by the industry. It was the winner of the
“Best Cross Border Business” and one of its managed fixed income funds was awarded the “Best Total Return — Greater China
Fixed Income (1 Year)” from Chinese Asset Management Association of Hong Kong in 2019. Bloomberg also ranked ICBC
AMG’s mutual fund among the top performers. A fund manager of ICBC AMG was also highly commended by The Asset
Benchmark Research as “The Most Astute Investor in Asian Local Currency Bonds” for 2019 being the only fund manager
of a Chinese fund house in Hong Kong to have made it on the list. ICBC AMG also developed its alternative investment and
achieved initial results during the year by successfully conducting private equity investment in Megvii Technology Limited,
launching an education sector investment fund and making a breakthrough in private debt projects.

ICBC AMG endeavored to develop innovative products and launched the US Dollar Debt Fund, the US Dollar Money
Market ETF and the Belt and Road Bond Fund in 2019 to further enrich its core product lines. In addition, ICBC AMG
actively expanded its customer base through both retail and institutional channels, and cooperated with other business
entities of ICBC Group regarding the design, operation and distribution of asset management products for domestic and
overseas markets in order to expand its platform and network for sustainable business development. ICBC AMG completed
the first round of capital injection during the year to enhance its capability to withstand risks associated with rapid business
development. It also successfully passed the internal audit on risk control by the ICBC head office, thus laying a solid
foundation for its long-term development.

ICBC (Asia) Investment Management (Shenzhen) Company Limited, ICBC AMG’s wholly-owned subsidiary in Shenzhen,
leveraged its advantage in private equity investment by cooperating with the ICBC head office and other branches of ICBC
in mainland China in completing major projects such as Science and Technology Innovation Fund, which enhanced its
capabilities of project investment and fund operation.

In 2020, ICBC AMG will continue to forge ahead with its current business in line with the development strategy of ICBC
Group and ICBC (Asia). On one hand, it will continue to cultivate its capabilities for effective investment management,
product design, business development, sales channel expansion and ensuring steady operation. On the other hand, it will fully
utilise the resources of both ICBC Group and the Bank to enhance the coordination of the business units within ICBC Group
and to cooperate with the market participants with the aim of promoting sustainable asset management business.
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Global Capital Financing

Leveraging the ICBC Group’s tremendous sources of funding, broad customer base and extensive sales channels and network,
the Bank consistently developed various traditional commercial banking businesses. At the same time, it also kept exploring
the potential of its investment and financing services. The Bank’s bond underwriting, syndicated loans and loan asset trade
businesses have been growing over the years, and play an important role in the development of Asia Pacific’s capital markets.

The Bank’s bond underwriting business continued its momentum of positive growth in 2019. It remained active in mainland
Chinese enterprises’ offshore bonds market, and lead-arranged a number of offshore bond issues for various central and
regional government owned enterprises. Engagement in financial institutions’ bond issuance has also seen significant
growth. During the year, the Bank made breakthroughs in diversifying the types of bonds issued, which included green
bonds, perpetual bonds, capital replenishment bonds and multi-tenor and multi-currency bonds, etc. The Bank continued
to play the global coordinator role in many bond underwriting transactions. All these had enhanced the Bank’s market
status and helped improve the quality of deals. As one of the most prominent and influential bond underwriters in the
market, the Bank underwrote a total of 65 deals, which in aggregate amounting to HK$37.5 billion during the year, including
bonds denominated in local and foreign currencies, medium-term notes and certificates of deposits. Some of those bonds
underwritten were rated as the “Best High-Yield Bond”, the “Best FIG Bond (China)” and the “Best FIG Bond (Hong Kong)”
by The Asset magazine.

The Bank continued to develop its loan syndication business and arranged for HK$34.1 billion worth of syndicated loans in
2019, thus assisting ICBC Group in maintaining its third position in the 2019 Hong Kong and Macau Mandated Arranger
League Table'. During the year, the Bank acted as the lead arranger of the syndicated loans for China Overseas Land &
Investment Limited, Country Garden Holdings Company Limited, Haitong International Securities Group Limited, CGNPC
International Limited, CALC PDP 5 Limited, China Lesso Finance limited, Tencent Asset Management Limited and INARI
S.A.R.L. (which is a subsidiary of Tencent Holdings Limited), etc. The syndicated loans for Tencent Asset Management
Limited and China Overseas Land & Investment Limited were among the most notable syndication transactions in the market
in 2019.

Furthermore, the Bank actively traded in loan assets in the secondary loan market, and thus improved its asset turnover and
liquidity. Its loan asset trading business maintained a major share in the market. The Bank further extended its network for
loan asset trade in Asia-Pacific in tandem with the Bank’s business development in the region.

To diversify its business, the Bank has been actively developing its structured finance and advisory services and expanding its
businesses of cross-border mergers and acquisitions, privatization, project finance, and equity investment and financing, etc.
The Bank also applies its financial expertise in advising on the ownership restructuring of state-owned enterprises and other
projects in the areas of public utilities, manufacturing, internet, entertainment and media.

In 2020, the Bank will actively seize opportunities presented by the development of the Greater Bay Area, the
internationalization of renminbi and the Belt and Road Initiative. It will provide customers with comprehensive solutions for
capital financing, thus reinforcing its status as a well-established bank in the Asia Pacific capital market.

'Source: Refinitiv/LOANCONNECTOR
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Development of Financial Technology and Internet Finance Business

In 2019, the Bank upheld the concept of “Powered by Technology, Creating Value” and facilitated the deeper integration of
financial technology and Internet finance. As a result, the Bank thoroughly adopted financial technology in its operation and
development which enhanced the customer experience.

In the year under review, the Bank furthered the transformation of its information technology (“IT”) architecture and
pressed on with propelled digital transformation. To transform its IT architecture, the Bank fully adopted the “distributed
architecture” to make system more practical and expandable; it also finished constructing the DevOps system in which
the Bank’s work on research and development, operation and maintenance are integrated, thus ensuring the stability of its
production and operation. As a result, the Bank is also able to carry out the research and development of its platforms and
products with enhanced agility and higher efficiency in service delivery; it also established a diversified mode of research and
development, leading to the improvement of quality and efficiency in research, development and management.

Driving business development with financial technology, the Bank built a series of fintech application platforms such as
biometric features recognition platform and open application programming interface (API) platform. It also adopted a big
data cloud platform, an Al machine learning platform and mastered the skill in researching and developing the application
of such technologies as blockchain and Internet of Things (“IoT”). Meanwhile, the Bank continued to develop its platform
for Internet finance which can facilitate the development of its retail and corporate banking. In its retail banking, the
Bank successfully launched the version 4.0 of its mobile banking, thus extending the scope of the application of financial
technology. The new version of the mobile banking enabled transactions through an authentication system that can recognize
the fingerprint. It has also launched the “New Customer Account Opening” service. In its corporate banking, the Bank
launched an application for mobile corporate banking which facilitated many optimized functions and enabled the upgrading
of many online corporate banking services. To better support the strategic transformation of its own business, ICBC (Asia) has
developed multiple advanced and innovative applications for the banking sector with the help of financial technology. They
include ATM cardless cash withdrawal, mobile corporate banking, smart customer service, intelligent terminals, “e-Loan” and
a platform for integrated marketing management. All this is aimed at providing convenient and speedy online banking service
for the customers. Furthermore, the Bank has also put the new version of its mobile web portal into operation and finalized the
revision of its WeChat official account to improve its channels for communication with the customers.

In its drive for digital transformation, ICBC (Asia) focuses on customer service, internal control and regulatory compliance on
the basis of the Bank’s actual needs on transformative development. It developed a batch of financial products and platforms
for administration and management which are highly compatible with the strategic transformation of the Bank’s business and
its future development. It has effectively supported the Bank’s business development and significantly raised the efficiency of
its operation.

In regard to the construction of a smart bank, the Bank cooperated with large enterprises, including Tencent Group, and
was successfully granted a virtual banking license by HKMA. The Bank aims to leverage its advanced technology and the
innovative application of financial technology to promote financial inclusion in Hong Kong and to bring individual and
corporate clients a brand-new, efficient and secure virtual banking experience, enabling users to enjoy better and more
convenient financial services in the future.

In 2020, ICBC (Asia) will persist in applying financial technology to enhance its business. By taking multiple measures, it
will study advanced technologies with the aim of establishing an open, interconnected, efficient and flexible ecosystem of its
financial services. In addition to its digital transformation, the Bank will keep improving its technological capability and the
competitive strength of its businesses, so as to let the customers enjoy the convenience of the most advanced and innovative
financial services.
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Cash Management Business

ICBC (Asia) leverages ICBC Group’s Asia-Pacific Cash Management Center to actively engage in payments and cash
management business. After nine years of development, the Bank’s four major comprehensive product lines of payments and
cash management business have been well established. They are account management and information service, receivables
and payment solutions, liquidity management and interest optimization products for short-term investment. As at the end of
2019, the Bank provided cash management services for over 4,200 local and cross-border customers.

Continuous product innovation and enhancement by the payments and cash management business helped the Bank develop
its business and improve both its competitiveness and service capability. The successful launch of “Host-to-Host Service”
(API model) provided more efficient, safe and direct one-stop financial solutions for conglomerates. “Cross-Border Two-
way e-Bill Payment”, which allows e-payment from mainland China to Hong Kong and vice versa, together with the newly
launched “Local e-Bill Payment”, further facilitated the interaction between Hong Kong and Mainland residents, and boosted
the economic and trade flows between the two places. The newly launched “Two-way Transfer Service” offered customized
clearing services for securities firms, insurance companies and other financial institutions. Account aggregation service
for account enquiry function has been greatly refined after the Bank integrated the core system platform and expanded the
clearing network, offering customers with a quick and easy way to manage their cash management business. The enhanced
“Smart Account” enables the users to receive payment in multiple currencies and has been widely recognized in the market.

ICBC (Asia) achieved rapid growth in the payments and cash management business as it continued to capitalize on the
Hong Kong government’s preferential policies towards treasury centers by cooperating with both the domestic and overseas
business units of ICBC Group in developing further the markets of Hong Kong, mainland China and the rest of Asia Pacific.
The Bank became a major partner of many corporations in setting up their treasury centers in Hong Kong. This led to
growth in the number of customers of its cross-border and local cash management businesses. ICBC (Asia) extended the
scope of its services by undertaking the projects of its key customers. This, in turn, helped some branches and subsidiaries
of ICBC Group to expand the cash management business that encompassed account management, receivables and payment
solutions and liquidity management. ICBC (Asia) and its a key customer jointly won the “Taozhu Gong Award” for the “Best
Cash Management Services” from EuroFinance. The accolade has shown an internationally renowned financial research
institution’s recognition of the excellence of ICBC (Asia) in its cash management services. It has also further enhanced the
Bank’s brand image. For the IPO receiving bank services, through working closely with the ICBC head office and sponsors, the
Bank completed 27 projects as an IPO receiving bank and continued to maintain its leading position in the industry.

In 2020, ICBC (Asia) will continue to capitalize on the government’s preferential policies, focus on expanding its business of
assisting its customers in setting up treasury centres in Hong Kong. It will also continue to strive for product innovation with
the aim of meeting business needs of the clients. For instance, the Bank will develop more distinctive products and step up
its campaigns for marketing its products. This will enable it to build up an ecosystem of its cash management business, thus
improving its competitiveness and paving the way for the steady development of its payments and cash management business.
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Private Banking

In 2019, the Bank’s private banking business achieved pleasing growth in business as it was continuously optimizing its client
base and the asset structure and quality. As the flagship operation for ICBC’s private banking business, the Bank has been
proactively cooperating with the ICBC head office, and ICBC Group’s vast network of branches inside China and in overseas
countries, and third-party institutions in providing high-net-worth clients with professional and personalized financial
services which include an integrated, safe and reliable solution for investment and financing and wealth management.

During the year, the Bank’s private banking enhanced its capabilities for internal management and business development by
stepping up the coordination of its business with those of ICBC Group’s other business units inside and outside mainland
China, enriching its product portfolio, optimizing the business processes, strengthening its non-financial value-added
services and overall service capability, making greater efforts to build its team and enhancing its internal control.

To expand its customer base, the Bank carried out market segmentation when promoting its services and products. It
continued to recruit more traditional high-net-worth individuals to its clientele and, at the same time, sought to attract a new
emerging class of wealthy individuals, who can be best represented by some senior executives engaging in new economy. On
the other hand, the Bank leveraged ICBC Group’s global network and connections to tap the local high net worth individuals’
demand for retail banking, thus adding impetus to its development for the long term. To improve its products and services, the
Bank has taken a client-centric approach to enriching its portfolio of products and services. It provides such select and high-
quality services as diverse and personalized solutions for investment and wealth appreciation services.

In the middle of 2019, the Bank opened ICBC (Asia) Private Bank Central Centre, which can help the Bank develop the market
of high-end customers. This has marked a milestone in the evolution of the Bank ’s “Mega Retail” strategy for expanding and
diversifying its retail banking. Furthermore, the Bank grasped the opportunities for expanding its private banking business,
capitalized on the rapid development of the Greater Bay Area, and strived to recruit more members to its high-end clientele
and enhance its customer relationship management in the area, as an effort to help the Bank’s private banking business scale

new heights.

In 2020, the Bank will forge ahead with the “Mega Retail” strategy and adhere to the “ONE ICBC” concept for business
transformation and development by fully utilizing ICBC Group’s plentiful resources and well-established platform for services
and capitalizing on Hong Kong’s status as an international financial center adjacent to mainland China. The Bank will
continue to strengthen its capabilities for customer relationship management and market development, enrich its portfolio
of products and services, apply financial technology to drive growth in business, boost customers’ satisfaction with its private
banking services and enhance its brand competitiveness. All this can pave the way for the Bank’s steady growth for the long

term.
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Credit Card Business

In 2019, the transformation of Hong Kong’s credit card market accelerated in response to the emergence and growing
popularity of various innovative payment methods such as online, mobile payment and e-wallets. The increasing popularity
of contactless payment with mobile phone and code-scanning payment also sped up the integration of the online and offline
merchant acquiring services. To strive for more innovation in the credit card business, the Bank introduced and rolled out
a number of new products and services, and developed new modes of cooperation in business to provide more secure and
convenient financial services for local customers.

During the year, there were a number of innovative products and services launched by the Bank, including the new generation
of aggregated acquiring terminals, virtual digital credit cards, the “ICBC eLife (Hong Kong)” platform, a new type of online
system for merchant acquiring service, Apple Pay, and enhanced credit card functions in mobile banking. All these new
products and services drove the digital transformation of and the adoption of internet in the Bank’s credit card business. The
Bank also applied the most advanced financial technology to improve the workflow of its product design and service. For
instance, it used the financial technology to speed up the launch of new types of loans mix and facilitate the online application
for credit cards and personal loans so as to enable customers to obtain online products and services from the Bank more
smoothly.

To expand its customer base and promote its services and products, the Bank kept on introducing credit cards under various
themes for different target customer groups, including “ICBC | LINE FRIENDS Credit Cards”, “ICBC Greater Bay Area Credit
Cards” and “ICBC Horoscope Credit Cards”, which are highly welcome by its customers. It also promoted personal unsecured
loans, credit card cash installment plan, spending and card statement installment plan through various channels. In addition,
the Bank continued to strengthen its cooperation with leading local companies, such as large retail chains, shopping malls and
those engaging in transportation and other industries to reach out to a broader group of customers. The Bank has joined hands
with The Kowloon Motor Bus Co. (1933) Ltd, to launch the “ICBCeKMB UnionPay Dual Currency Card” to offer concessions
on local travel and consumption; and cooperated with WeChat Pay HK in launching an online platform for application for
credit cards, offering concessions upon spending and e-wallet bundling for spending and in running the online acquiring
and repayment services. The Bank has also cooperated with Alipay HK in launching the e-wallet bundling for spending and
the promotional campaign of giving rewards to credit card users for their spending during the festivals of “Double 11” and
“Double 127, and other joint promotional activities which met with enthusiastic responses from customers.

In its merchant acquiring business, the Bank continued to fine-tune its marketing strategies targeted at merchants, broaden
the scope of merchant categories, seize opportunities for the expansion of the local online market for merchant acquiring
service and promote the integration of online and offline merchant acquiring services. It also proactively explored new
business models for the merchant acquiring service. For instance, it succeeded in cooperating with local e-wallet companies
in merchant acquiring service through its credit card business and in extending their service to clubs of certain estates, the
medical insurance sector and some clinics in the year. The Bank also continued to broaden the channel for its merchant
acquiring service by launching such new payment methods as mobile phone-enabled code-scanning payment and contactless
payment and a new merchant service platform. All this provides merchants with more convenient and faster online
reconciliation services that can facilitate the local merchants’ business transformation and the integration of their online and
offline operations.
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Looking ahead to 2020, the Bank will press on with the digital transformation of its credit card business, fine-tune its plan
for market expansion and strategy of promotion. It will continue to step up the effort in product innovation, with improved
service quality. The Bank will also focus on the development of its cross-border business, especially that in the Greater
Bay Area, actively build a cross-border platform for payment that serves mainland China and Hong Kong, and promote
connectivity between the two places. The Bank will also strengthen its risk control, ensure the regulatory compliance at its
operation and further enhance both its brand influence and competitiveness as it makes more diverse and innovative payment
methods and consumer financing programmes available to the Hong Kong residents.

Chinese Mercantile Bank

In 2019, Chinese Mercantile Bank (“CMB”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of ICBC (Asia), reached the pre-provision profit of
HK$1.780 billion, a net profit of HK$1.279 billion and a non-performing loan ratio of 0.82%. CMB has achieved the goals of
stabilizing profit levels, the quality of assets and scale of operation, thus enhancing its own capacity for sustaining business
development.

During the year, CMB maintained its prudent approach to making steady progress. CMB strengthened its risk management
and ensured the regulatory compliance at its operation. CMB enhanced its credit risk management and audit of the credit
quality of the new customers at its loan business to minimize potential risks. It also accelerated the disposal of non-performing
loans and put effort into building up a sound system for credit management. CMB took multiple approaches, aiming at laying
a solid foundation for the firm operation and management of its business and at ensuring the sound quality of the assets. In
addition, CMB continued to strengthen its compliance management by building up a mechanism for regulatory compliance.
In 2019, it started a campaign titled “The Year of Well-regulated Business Management” and has thus significantly improved
its internal risk control.

On the premise that risks should be made manageable, CMB made flexible adjustments and controls on the scope of its
assets and liabilities, and managed its balance sheet in a way that ensured the optimization and stability of both the assets
and liabilities. With regard to the assets, CMB expanded the scale of credit assets and stepped up the development of the
businesses of enterprises loans of high credit quality, personal mortgage loans and bond investment business. It also increased
the percentages of general loans, individual loans and credit service in the Greater Bay Area in its total loans. Regarding the
liabilities, CMB innovated deposit products and successfully issued RMB7 billion worth of bank debentures. It also diversified
the sources of liabilities and refined the maturity of its liabilities to maintain the indicators of its liquidity at optimal levels.

CMB accelerated the reform and innovation and strived to build a diverse, balanced and sustainable business mix. This
characterized the direction of its development. Firstly, CMB sought to deepen its strategic cooperation with ICBC Group and
propelled the development of their businesses. Secondly, CMB fostered the development of its personal banking business
and made it a new growth driver: In 2019, it established a personal loan management department, which specially handles
the applications for personal loan, with the aim of raising the efficiency of managing this line of business; CMB also actively
expanded the business of personal mortgage loans in cities adjacent to Shenzhen and Guangzhou as part of its drive to develop
that business in the Greater Bay Area. Thirdly, CMB innovated the way of earning income from its intermediary business, and
started the business of separate letter of guarantee (73 B X & B 2 75) and the agent fund transaction business as new drivers
of profit growth. Fourthly, CMB explored ways to develop technology-enabled banking. Therefore, it has started providing
mobile comprehensive financial services and allowing customers to open corporate accounts with the bank in the Greater Bay
Area. CMB aimed at enriching the scope of application of its services. It also sought to adopt financial technology to boost its
business development and raise the standards of management.
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In addition, CMB has been building steadily its brand image and stepping up branding and marketing. CMB has been granted
the “AAA”, which is the highest credit rating by China Chengxin International Credit Rating Co. Ltd. It has also won many
prizes, including the titles of “Excellent Self-operated Organization” and “Excellent Financial Bond Issuer” from China
Central Depositary & Clearing Co. Ltd., the “X-Reop Active Dealer” from China Foreign Exchange Trade System, as well as
the Bronze Award for Charitable Enterprise from Futian Charity in Shenzhen. The accolades have testified to CMB’s enhanced
market position and increased brand influence.

In 2020, the CMB will stick to the principles of “improving ability, strengthening advantage, controlling risks, promoting
transformation and ensuring growth”. CMB will ensure effective risk control and regulatory compliance while exploring
possibilities for business development. It will also seize opportunities for development and further enhance its advantages of
the coordination and the resources of ICBC Group and regional development. In addition, CMB will keep improving its credit
management, risk control, regulatory compliance, technology for operation and the capability of teams. It will also refine its
strategic planning for business, aiming for steady development of its businesses.

Human Resources

The Bank always regards its staff as the most valuable asset. Therefore, it applies the “people-oriented” management
philosophy and adopts advanced practices of human resources management to drive the development of both the Bank and its
employees.

In 2019, the Bank proactively recruited various talents through diverse recruitment channels. As of December 31, 2019,
the total number of employees of ICBC (Asia) and its subsidiaries was 3,187. The Bank continued to invest resources in the
development of its employees, optimize its policy on career development and strengthen the capabilities of the staff members
at different levels in order to enhance its overall organization capability. During the year, the Bank also established diverse
career paths and ladders for employee career development after reviewing the relevant policies. It enriched the resources
of staff training by organizing customized leadership development programs for certain key talents at different levels and
launching a systematic and business-oriented training curriculum. This has enhanced both the staff’s abilities to fulfil their
duties and career development.

The Bank is committed to implementing a sound bank culture based on the three pillars developed and promulgated by
HKMA. During the year, the Bank enhanced its risk management capabilities by improving internal processes, raising the
staff’s awareness and optimizing the mechanisms for collecting the employees’ feedback. The Bank also continued to enhance
its performance management and incentive measures to motivate the staff and steer their behaviors, thus contributing to the
overall strategic development of the Bank.

The Bank cares for and provides its employees with diverse benefits. During the year, the Bank optimized annual leave,
maternity leave and birthday leave entitlements and offered preferential deposit and loan rates and group life insurance
protection for its employees. The employee care measures manifested the Bank’s people-oriented management approach to
improving the employees’ life and working environment.

During the year, the Bank received the industry’s recognition for its efforts and achievements in employee caring and talent
development. For instance, the Bank was awarded the “HKIB Talent Development Award” by the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers in recognition of the Bank’s efforts to promote continuous learning and education for professional qualifications
among its employees. It also won the “Good MPF Employer Award”, “e-Contribution Award” and “MPF Support Award”
from the Mandatory Provident Fund Authority.

In 2020, the Bank’s human resources management will focus its efforts on the development of regional operations, the

enhancement of performance effectiveness and the cultivation of team capability. All this is aimed at contributing to the
harmonious progress and development of both the Bank and its employees.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

The Bank always believes in fulfilling its corporate social responsibility by giving back to society. It actively applied the
principle of showing care through diverse development to its daily operation and activities in society. In 2019, the Bank was
awarded the logo of “Caring Company” by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service for the seventeenth consecutive year in
recognition of its unswerving commitment to serving society.

As the Chairman of Caritas Hong Kong Fund Raising Committee for 21 consecutive years, the Bank remains committed
to fully supporting Caritas Hong Kong in its fund-raising activities, including organizing the Charity Golf Day, making
donations to the Caritas charity events, sponsoring Caritas’s charity sales of cookies, and participating in the sales of Caritas
raffle tickets, etc. During the year, the Bank’s staff participated again in “Caritas X ICBC (Asia)” volunteers program, as a way
to serve society and spread the Bank’s love and care to people at the grass-root level and from the underprivileged groups.
Besides, in order to add a green meaning to the activities, the Bank strived to include green elements into the events and
sponsored a series of training workshops for 30 local schools and Caritas’ Centres to promote environmental protection for
the second year. In 2019, the Bank helped Caritas Hong Kong raise more than HK$3.5 million, benefitting the grassroots and

families in need.
The Bank was also dedicated to participating in many other types of charity projects:

In the field of the arts and sport, the Bank solely sponsored the finale performance of the Hong Kong Arts Festival for the
seventh consecutive year to promote the development of the international arts and culture in Hong Kong. It also participated
in the Walk for Millions for the eighth consecutive year in which a number of its employees joined the walk to contribute to
the charity.

To popularize wealth management education, the Bank is dedicated to promoting financial knowledge and the concept of
wealth management to the public. Under the concept of “Banks and the Community, We Care, We Share” promulgated by
The Hong Kong Association of Banks (“HKAB”) and to practice financial inclusion, the Bank participated in multiple events
to fulfil its corporate social responsibility, including the 2019 community education campaign “Smart Use of Online Banking”
launched by HKAB. The Bank also hosted the “Together We Serve The Community” scheme, conducting lessons about
the basics of investment and financial management for the grassroots communities. Furthermore, it held the ICBC (Asia)
Financial Innovation Competition, encouraging young students to come up with innovative financial ideas, and offering the
winners with training in knowledge and skills of the banking business.

To support environmental protection, the Bank continued to practice what is promulgated in A Waste Reduction Guidebook
for Large-scale Event Organisers by Hong Kong’s Environmental Protection Department, and won the platinum award
of Charter on External Lighting of Hong Kong’s Environment Bureau for its contributions to mitigating the problems of
light nuisance and energy wastage. The Bank also cooperated with the Hong Kong Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation
Department and The Green Earth, a local green group, in launching its five-year Plantation Enrichment Programme in 2019.
The activity is aimed at increasing the ecological value and biodiversity of exotic plantations in Hong Kong, and promoting the
sustainable development in natural environment. In the meantime, the Bank actively promoted the concept of “Green Office”
at its own office by implementing measures to reduce waste, save energy and reuse materials.

In 2020, the Bank will continue to regard sustainable development as an important part of its long-term development and

operation, while fulfilling its corporate social responsibility and championing Hong Kong’s charitable causes by organizing or
participating in various charitable events. All this is aimed at helping build a harmonious and caring society.
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As at 24 March 2020

Ms. Gao Ming (Chairman & Executive Director)

Ms. Gao, aged 54, was appointed as the Chairman and Executive Director of the Bank in February 2017. She is the Chairman
of Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee of the Bank. Ms. Gao holds two Master’s Degrees, one in Applied Finance
from Macquarie University and another in English from Jilin University of Technology. She has over 30 years of banking
business experience and served in several positions including the Chairman of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Europe) S.A., the General Manager of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Luxembourg Branch and the General
Manager of the International Business Department of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited.

Mr. Wu Long (Vice-Chairman, Executive Director ¢ Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Wu, aged 48, was appointed as the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank in August 2018 and
was appointed as the Vice-Chairman of the Bank in January 2019. He is a Member of Strategy and Corporate Governance
Committee and Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors of the Bank. Mr. Wu holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
National Economic Management from Henan University of Finance and Economics (Now known as “Henan University of
Economics and Law”), a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Sun Yat-sen University and an Executive Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from China Europe International Business School. Mr. Wu has over 24 years of banking
experience and served in several positions including Vice Chairman, Executive Director and General Manager of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited, Vice President of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, Anhui
Provincial Branch and President of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, Guangdong Jiangmen Branch.

Mr. Lu Jian (Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive ¢ Alternate Chief Executive)

Mr. Lu, aged 43, joined the Bank in February 2017 as the Assistant Chief Executive. He was appointed as the Deputy Chief
Executive of the Bank in August 2017 and was appointed as the Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of the
Bank in October 2017. Mr. Lu is a Member of Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors of the Bank. Mr. Lu holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in International Finance from Dongbei University of Finance & Economics and a Master’s Degree in
Financial Analysis from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst
Charterholder. Mr. Lu has over 19 years of banking experience. He had served in the Bank for over 8 years from April 2007 to
July 2015 and once served as the Executive Director and Chief Executive of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Thai)
Public Company Limited.

Mr. Xi Deying (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Xi, aged 59, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Bank in May 2017, he is the Alternate Chairman of Audit
Committee and a Member of Nomination Committee of the Bank. Mr. Xi holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from Murdoch University, Australia and a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics from Xi’an Jiaotong University. Mr. Xi has over
37 years of banking experience and is the Senior Expert and Accredited Director of Administration Office of Directors and
Supervisors to Subsidiaries of Corporate Strategy and Investor Relations Department of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China Limited. Mr. Xi is currently the Chairman of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Argentina) S.A. and Non-
executive Director of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Brasil) S.A..
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As at 24 March 2020

Mr. Hong Guilu (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Hong, aged 53, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Bank in December 2016. He is a Member of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee of the Bank. Mr. Hong holds a
Master’s Degree in Accounting from George Washington University. Mr. Hong has over 19 years of banking experience and is
the Senior Expert and Accredited Director of Administration Office of Directors and Supervisors to Subsidiaries of Corporate
Strategy and Investor Relations Department of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited. He is currently the Non-
executive Director of Chinese Mercantile Bank.

Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, s.85.,].p. (Vice-Chairman, Independent Non-executive Director)

Professor Wong, aged 67, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in July 2000 and was
appointed as the Vice-Chairman of the Bank in January 2019. He is a Member of Strategy and Corporate Governance
Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Bank. Professor Wong holds a PhD in Economics from
the University of Chicago. He is Professor of Economics at The University of Hong Kong. He has been active in advancing
economic research on policy issues in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China through his work as founding Director
of both the Hong Kong Centre for Economic Research and Hong Kong Institute of Economics and Business Strategy.
Professor Wong was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star in 1999 by the Government of the HKSAR for his contributions in
education, housing, industry and technology development. Professor Wong is currently an Independent Non-executive
Director of Great Eagle Holdings Limited, Pacific Century Premium Developments Limited, and Sun Hung Kai Properties
Limited, all of them are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Tsui, aged 70, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in August 2000. He is the Chairman
of Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors and also a Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
of the Bank. He holds a Bachelor of Science Degree and a Master of Engineering Degree in Industrial Engineering from
University of Tennessee. He has completed the Program for Senior Managers in Government at the John F. Kennedy School
of Government at Harvard University. Mr. Tsui was the Adviser and Council Member of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange from
July 2001 to June 2002 and was the Chief Executive of Regent Pacific Group Limited, a Hong Kong listed investment company,
from August 2000 to February 2001. He was also the Chairman of Hong Kong Securities Institute from December 2001 to
December 2004. He joined The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 1994 as an Executive Director of the Finance and
Operations Services Division and became the Chief Executive from 1997 to 2000. He was also the Chief Operating Officer of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited from March 2000 to July 2000 and the General Manager (Finance, Technology &
Human Resources), and then Assistant Director (Licensing), and at the same time the General Manager (Human Resources)
of the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong from 1989 to 1993. Mr. Tsui also involved in numerous government
and community activities, including being a former Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of Tracker Fund of Hong Kong
and the Organizing Committee of Independent Commission Against Corruption Professional Ethics Programme for the
Securities, Futures and Investments Sectors, a former member of the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council Financial Services Advisory Committee, The Community Chest of Hong Kong
Corporate and Employee Contribution Programme Organizing Committee(Banking and Finance Group), the Banking and
Finance Industry Training Board of the Vocational Training Council and the Investment Sub-Committee of the Government
Committee of the Beat Drugs Fund Association. Mr. Tsui is currently an independent non-executive director of COSCO
SHIPPING International (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd., Pacific Online Limited, DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company
Limited and Hua Medicine, all of them are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and Melco Resorts & Entertainment
Limited, a company listed on the NASDAQ and an independent director of ATA Creativity Global, a company listed on
NASDAQ and Melco Resorts and Entertainment (Philippines) Corporation, a company listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange and withdrawal from listing effective on 11 June 2019.
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Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Yuen, aged 75, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in April 2003. He is the Chairman
of Remuneration Committee and also serves as a Member of Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors and Strategy
and Corporate Governance Committee of the Bank. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree (Honors) in Economics and Political
Science from The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Yuen had attended post-graduate studies in marketing management at the
International Marketing Institute, Cambridge, Massachusetts, U.S.A. and had completed the Hong Kong Administrators
Course (commissioned by the Hong Kong Government) in public administration and international relations at Oxford
University, the United Kingdom, and the International Executive Program in INSEAD, France respectively. In June 2003,
Mr. Yuen was admitted to the Leadership in Development Program organised by Kennedy School of Government, Harvard
University. In June 2004, Stanford University, California, U.S.A. had also invited Mr. Yuen to participate in its “Corporate
Governance” forum and in early 2006 the University awarded a fellowship to Mr. Yuen as a non-profit leader at its Centre for
Social Innovation. Mr. Yuen had been Chief Executive of The Better Hong Kong Foundation for nine years since September
1997. Prior to his joining the Foundation, he was the Assistant Director/Acting Deputy Director of the Information Services
Department of the Hong Kong Government. Mr. Yuen plays an active role in organising international business conferences
in Hong Kong and also takes part in numerous government and community activities, including being a board member of
the East-West Strategic Development Commission, and he is currently a board member of the Hong Kong Society for the
Aged. Mr. Yuen was the Panel member of the Central Policy Unit of the Government of the HKSAR on the Pan-Pear] River
Delta between 2003-2007. From January 2006 to January 2013, Mr. Yuen had been a member of The Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, Guangxi Autonomous Region, China; an advisor of the Institute of Finance and Trade Economics,
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences, China; an advisor of The Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences, China and an advisor
of The Board of International Investment of Guangzhou Municipality, China. At present, Mr. Yuen is a member of the
Court of The University of Hong Kong and a member of Business Advisory Council of United Nations Economic and Social
Commission for Asia and the Pacific. Mr. Yuen is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a member of the British
Institute of Management and the Institute of Marketing, United Kingdom, and was also commended by the former U.S.
President, George W. Bush for his efforts in support of coalition’s campaign against global terrorism.

Dr. Wu Jie Si (Independent Non-executive Director)

Dr. Wu, aged 68, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in March 2013. He is the Chairman
of Nomination Committee and also a Member of Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee and Risk Management
Committee of Board of Directors of the Bank. Dr. Wu holds a Doctorate Degree in Economics from Graduate School of
the People’s Bank of China and has got a Professor’s Qualification at Tianjin Nankai University. Dr. Wu has over 32 years
corporate management and investment experience and was previously the President of Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China Limited, Shenzhen Branch, the Deputy Mayor of the Shenzhen Municipal Government and the Assistant to the
Governor of Guangdong Province. Dr. Wu is currently the Chairman of the Shenzhen Fuhaiyintao Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. and he is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited and China Taiping
Insurance Holdings Company Limited, an Non-executive Director of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited and Shenzhen
Investment Limited, all of them are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Dr. Wu is also an Independent Non-executive
Director of China Citic Bank International Limited.
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Dr. Or Ching-Fai, s, J.p. (Independent Non-executive Director)

Dr. Or, aged 70, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in December 2018. He is the Chairman
of Audit Committee and also serves as a Member of Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors and Strategy and
Corporate Governance Committee of the Bank. Dr. Or holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics and Psychology from the
University of Hong Kong. He was conferred an Honorary Doctor of Social Science by the City University of Hong Kong in
2014 and Honorary Fellow by Hang Seng Management College in May 2017. He was awarded a Silver Bauhinia Star from
the Government of HKSAR and Honorary University Fellow from The University of Hong Kong in 2009. Dr. Or is very
experienced in Insurance, Banking and Financial Industries, he was the General Manager and Director of The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, Chairman of HSBC Insurance Limited, Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive
of Hang Seng Bank, Chairman of Hang Seng Insurance Comapny Limited and Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited and
Independent Non-executive Director of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited. He was also a Director of Cathay
Pacific Airways Limited, Hutchison Whampoa Limited and a Vice Chairman and an independent non-executive director of
G-Resources Group Limited, an independent non-executive director of Television Broadcast Limited, the Deputy Chairman
and a non-executive director of Aquis Entertainment Limited (a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange). Dr.
Or takes part in numerous government and community activities, he is currently a Vice Patron of the Board of the Community
Chest of Hong Kong and a Justice of the Peace. Dr. Or was previously the Chairman of Executive and Campaign Committee
of the Community Chest of Hong Kong, the Chairman of the Hong Kong Association of Banks in 2000 and 2003 and was
Vice-Chairman of Hong Kong Association of Banks in 2001, 2002, 2004 and 2005, a Director of the Hong Kong Interbank
Clearing Limited, a Vice President and a Council Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. Dr. Or has also been
Chairman of the Financial Services Advisory Committee and a Member of the Services Promotion Programme Committee
of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council. He has been a Member of the Risk Management Committee of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited, a Member of the Aviation Development Advisory Committee, Deputy Council Chairman
of the Council of City University of Hong Kong, a Council Member of the University of Hong Kong, an Adviser of the
Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong, a member of the 5th East Asian Games Planning Committee and Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference Beijing Committee and a Director of 2009 East Asian Games (Hong Kong) Limited. Dr. Or
is currently the Executive Chairman of the Board and Executive Director of Esprit Holdings Limited, he is also the Chairman
and Non-executive Director of China Strategic Holdings Limited, and an independent non-executive director of Chow Tai
Fook Jewellery Group Limited and Regina Miracle International (Holdings) Limited, all of them are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Leung Ming Hym, Peter (Deputy Chief Executive & Alternate Chief Executive)

Mr. Leung, aged 57, joined the Bank in July 2001 and was appointed as the Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank in August
2011. He was appointed as the Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank in April 2016. Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Accounting and Financial Analysis from Newcastle University, UK and a Bachelor’s Degree in Laws from University of
London, UK. Mr. Leung is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (UK).

Mr. Tong Hee Keung, Samuel (Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr. Tong, aged 63, was appointed as the Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank in August 2011. He is currently responsible for
the Bank’s Greater Bay Area corporate banking business and Asia Pacific banking business. Mr. Tong holds a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration from the University of Brunel, United Kingdom. An associate member of the Chartered Institute
of Bankers, Mr. Tong is also a graduate of the executive programme at Le Centre Europeen d’Education Permanente (CEDEP)
in Fontainebleau, France. Mr. Tong has over 31 years of corporate and commercial banking experience.
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Ms. Xu Meng (Deputy Chief Executive ¢ Chief Risk Officer)

Ms. Xu, aged 51, joined the Bank in September 2017 as the Deputy Chief Executive and Chief Risk Officer. She is currently
responsible for the Banks’ credit approval, risk management, loans administration and credit and investment management.
She holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics in Beijing Technology and Business University and a Master’s Degree in
International Business Administration from Fudan University and The University of Hong Kong. Ms. Xu has over 28 years
banking management experience.

Mr. Gu Xuan (Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr. Gu, aged 46, joined the Bank in March 2018 as the Deputy Chief Executive. Mr. Gu is currently responsible for the Bank’s
retail banking business, channel management, private banking business, credit card business, internet finance business and
securities brokerage business. Mr. Gu holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Chinese from Soochow University and a Master’s Degree
in International Trade from Nanjing University. He has over 21 years of banking experiences.

Mr. Wang Chaoming (Deputy Chief Executive ¢ Chief Information Officer)

Mr. Wang, aged 50, joined the Bank in May 2011 and was appointed as the Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Information
Officer in July 2015. He was appointed as the Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank in October 2017. He is currently responsible
for the Bank’s financial technology, operations management, management information and general administration. Mr.
Wang holds a Bachelor’s Degree and a Master’s Degree in Electrical Engineering from Zhejiang University and a Master’s
Degree in International Business Administration from Fudan University and The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Wang has
over 25 years of banking experience.

Mr. Li Dong (Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr. Li, aged 44, joined the Bank in May 2016 and was appointed as the Assistant Chief Executive in November 2016. He
was appointed as the Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank in February 2018. He is currently responsible for the Bank’s
corporate banking business, Greater Bay Area corporate banking business, Asia Pacific banking business, global capital
financing business and payment and cash management. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor’s Degree in engineering (industrial and civil
engineering) from Nanjing Institute of Architectural and Civil Engineering (Now known as “Nanjing Tech University”) and a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from SouthEast University. Mr. Li has over 22 years banking experience.

Mr. Chen Yinbin (Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr. Chen, aged 49, was appointed as the Assistant Chief Executive of the Bank in October 2017. He was appointed as the
Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank in January 2019. He is currently responsible for overseeing the business of Chinese
Mercantile Bank, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank,. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Physics from Wuhan
University, a Master’s Degree in International Trade from Nanjing University and a Master’s Degree in International Business
Administration from Fudan University and The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chen has over 20 years banking experience.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China (Asia) Limited (the “Bank”) have pleasure in
submitting its annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group (the Bank together with its subsidiaries
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking,
financial and other financial related services. The principal activities
of the subsidiaries are shown in Note 33 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 83.

The Board has not recommended the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders of HK$8,302,598,000 (2018:
HK$8,278,163,000) has been transferred to reserves. Details of
movements in the reserves of the Bank and the Group during the
year are set out in Note 41 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$2,558,000.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in investment properties and property,
plant and equipment of the Group and the Bank during the year are
set out in Notes 30 and 31 to the financial statements respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Bank are set out in
Note 39 to the financial statements. Details about the issuance of
shares are also set out in Note 39 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR’S FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out below.

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
T#x T Tt Tt T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
X4 Results
I SR A i Profit attributable to shareholders 8,302,598 8,278,163 7,767,358 7,395,366 6,783,664
B R AR Assets and liabilities
BEAH Total assets 953,563,756 893,618,387 898,109,027 798,674,517 733,551,025
A A Total liabilities 819,708,662 776,300,898 806,422,987 714,788,371 663,213,567
B 2 B Total equity 133,855,094 117,317,489 91,686,040 83,886,146 70,337,458
HHE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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The Board of the Bank during the year and up to the date of the
Report of the Directors of this Annual Report was:

Executive Director
Ms. Gao Ming

Mr. Wu Long

Mr. Lu Jian

Non-executive Director

Mr. Xi Deying

Mr. Hong Guilu

Mr. Shang Jun (resigned on 16 October 2019)

Independent Non-executive Director
Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, s.B.S.,J.P.
Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec

Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD

Dr. Wu Jie Si

Dr. Or Ching Fai, S.B.S., J.P.
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Mr. Shang Jun resigned as Non-executive Director with effect from
16 October 2019.

In accordance with Article 93 of the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed by the Board during the year shall hold office
only until the next annual general meeting of the Bank, and shall
then be eligible for re-election at such meeting. For any person who
have been appointed as the director of the Bank during the period
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and will offer
themselves for re-election, if any.

The Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Bank are not appointed for specific term but subject
to the retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Articles 94(1) and 94(2) of the Articles of Association. Accordingly,
Ms. Gao Ming, Mr. Lu Jian and Mr. Hong Guilu will retire by
rotation and, all being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with the Articles
of Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding
company, or its subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank
or any other body corporate.

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Bank, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries, or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of the Bank had
a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.



AU
Annual Report 2019

Fof Jeg 2> ) o 44 B

AR GRAT O A SRAT W B 2> W) 4% 7 S IR 4 TSR
AN SRAT Al > 2 AT A AT A ol g 4 A R
i :
http://www.icbcasia.com/ICBC/¥# 4} 43 17/ L.
B/ TC/ B A A A SRR 2 F 3R B
directorpart3.htm

HHEH

AF P Slf 4 BTS2 BCRT A AR AT AR SRAT AR R
TRy s B RATELA 4 -

o8 A8 10 S

o DR R A SR AT 45 28 55 9 JE M F 2 R A R S (AR
A 2% ml R 1 S 469 M) W AR AR K H TSR 2R
R o A GRAT M E R 2 SRR SC > R ST AR AR i
[ SEE R I -

R E IR

ARSRATEOHERF AN AL R A 2 AR -
EBE—F - UET A =+ — B I B4
BETA > AERAT OB ST A v B AV LR EE 2 (O
b TR B A SR ) R EUR T I P
ZAE5] o AMATREE R W Z RN —F
— U HRCEROI Z73H Z R EE IR IE A -

o R SRAT () AR

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

LIST OF DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Bank posted a full list of the names of the Directors of the
Bank’s subsidiaries on the Bank’s website and the public can access
the list in the website address listed below:

http://www.icbcasia.com/ICBC/1 #1347/ AR M /EN/About_
Us/Corporate_News/Corporate_Governance/directorpart3.htm

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were
entered into or existed during the year.

INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors
of the Bank is currently in force and was in force during the year.
Details of the Bank’s permitted indemnity provision are set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank is committed to maintaining and upholding high
standards of corporate governance practices. Throughout the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Bank has complied with the
guidelines set out in the Supervisory Policy Manual entitled
“Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized
Institutions” issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority. Details
of the Bank’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 61 to 73 of its 2019 Annual
Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE BANKING (DISCLOSURE)
RULES

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
comply fully with the applicable disclosure provisions as set out in
the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Bank is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ms. Gao Ming
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 March 2020
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The Bank is committed to maintaining and upholding high
standards of corporate governance practices. Throughout the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Bank has followed the guidelines
set out in the Supervisory Policy Manual entitled “Corporate
Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized Institutions”
issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”).

In order to show its continuous commitment in the development of
sound corporate governance, the Bank has adopted its “Corporate
Governance Manual” since 24 March 2009 and keeps reviewing
according to market trend as well as guidelines and requirements
issued by regulatory authorities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE OF THE
BANK

Board of Directors

g

A A A -

Members:

H 5 RS L > sBs.
KT ()

Dr. Or Ching Fai, sB5.].p#
(Chairman)

ST S (BRAT )
Mr. Xi Deying
(Alternate Chairman)

L B Sk
Mr. Hong Guilu

ET WL > sBs.» KEaL*
Professor Wong Yue Chim,
Richard, B, J.p.*

PRI A S
Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec*

L HRITEF

Members:

At ()
Ms. Gao Ming (Chairman)

S
Mr. Wu Long

LR B Sk
Mr. Hong Guilu

ETWHAR - ss. - kT#L?
Professor Wong Yue Chim,
Richard, sBs. 1.p.#

ISk o paKiop
Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George,
FHKIoD*

AR
Dr. Wu Jie Si*

FEMEE L > sBs. - kopaL?
Dr. Or Ching Fai, sB5.,Jp.*

#  Independent Non-executive Directors

WA : WA :
Members: Members: Members:
RAERE A () H&W A o koD ? HRNBHE ST (/)
Dr. Wu Jie Si* (Chairman) (FE) Mr. TSUi Yiu Wa, Alec*
Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George, (Chairman)
i 22 S A FHKIoD? (Chairman) e
R e Mr. Wu Long
L e
ETWAR - sBs. kr#it*  Mr. Hong Guilu -8 e
Professor Wong Yue Chim, Mr. Lu Jian
Richard, sBS. J.p.# R e S e

Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec*

AN SEE o pHKoD
Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George,
FHKIoD*

AR
Dr. Wu Jie Si*

I RE L - sBs.» KPALF
Dr. Or Ching Fai, sB5., J.p.#
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board has responsibility for leadership and control of the Bank
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Bank by directing and supervising the Bank’s affairs. The Board sets
strategies for the Bank and monitors the performance and activities
of the senior management. The Board ensures prudent management
of the Bank with high degree of honesty and within the legal
and regulatory framework, and the Board takes into account the
legitimate interests of shareholders, depositors and other relevant
stakeholders.

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are segregated.
The Bank benefits from the segregation in which the Chairman
is responsible for ensuring that the Board properly discharges its
responsibilities, conforms to good corporate governance practices
and procedures and all key and appropriate issues are discussed
by the Board timely, and the Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for leading the Senior Management and implementing important
policies adopted by the Board, managing the Bank’s operations and
relevant issues.

To achieve greater independence in board decision-making, the
Bank appointed two Vice-Chairmen of the Board of Directors in
2019, one Executive Director and one Independent Non-executive
Director.

The Board reviews and evaluates its work process and effectiveness
annually, with a view to identifying areas for improvement and
further enhancement.

Board Structure

As at the date of this report, the Board consisted of ten Directors
comprising three Executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors
and five Independent Non-executive Directors (INED”). Both
the number and percentage of the INED are well above the
requirements set by relevant rules and regulations. The Bank
benefits from the substantial business, banking and professional
experience of its Directors. Biography of the Directors is set out in
the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
section under the Bank’s 2019 Annual Report.
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Board Meetings

Board meetings are held at least once every quarter. Such regular
Board meetings will normally involve the active participation, either
in person or through other electronic means of communication, of
a majority of Board members. Special Board meetings will be held
when necessary.

Directors are consulted on matters to be included in the agenda
of regular Board meetings. Directors may seek independent
professional advice or request pre-meetings ahead of Board or
Board Committees meetings with the consent of the Chairman
and/or Chief Executive Officer when appropriate to assist him
in discharging his duties to the Bank. Besides, all Directors
have been given rights on fully and timely access to all relevant
information of the Bank and have separate and independent
access to the management of the Bank so that they can make an
informed decision in discharging their duties and responsibilities
as Directors. All Directors have access to advice and services of
the Company Secretary to ensure due compliance with the Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations.

Board meeting dates of each year are normally determined before
the end of the previous year in consultation with the Directors.
Formal notice of meeting shall be given to all Directors by the
Company Secretary at least two weeks before the date of the meeting
to provide sufficient notice to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. Under special circumstances, the Company Secretary
will promptly contact all Directors by way of telephone. Agenda
and accompanying papers containing analysis and background
information are circulated to all Directors not less than 7 days
before the intended date of Board meeting.

Minutes of the meetings of the Board and the Board Committees
have been recorded in sufficient detail including the matters
considered by the Board and the Board Committees, decisions
reached, and concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views (if
any) expressed. Draft and final versions of the minutes of the Board
and the Board Committees are sent to all Directors or members of
the Board Committees (as the case may be) for their comments and
records respectively.
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Minutes and papers of the meetings of the Board and all the Board
Committees, and relevant materials are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter (including
material transaction with connected persons) which the Board has
determined to be material, the relevant matter will be dealt with at a
Board meeting in accordance with the requirements as set out in the
Companies Ordinance and the Articles of Association of the Bank.

Appointments and Re-election of the Board

The Bank uses a set of formal, prudent and transparent procedures
for the appointment of new Directors to ensure the Directors have
the necessary competencies and skills to support the development
and growth of the Bank. The suitability of new Directors will be
evaluated in various aspects and the appointment of new Directors
will be discussed by NC before recommending to the Board for
consideration and approval after due deliberation. A candidate
who is to be appointed as an INED should ensure he/she meets
the independence requirements and also the requirements of
the guidance on “Empowerment of Independent Non-Executive
Directors in the Banking Industry in Hong Kong” issued by the
HKMA. In accordance with the requirement under the Banking
Ordinance, approval from HKMA shall also be obtained for any
appointment of new Directors. According to the Bank’s Articles
of Association, all new Directors are subject to election by
shareholder(s) of the Bank at the next scheduled annual general
meeting after their appointments have become effective, and shall
then be entitled for re-election. The Non-executive Directors
and the INEDs of the Bank are not appointed for specific term
but subject to the retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting in accordance with the Bank’s Articles of
Association. The NC conducts review of the independence of the
INED, additional assessment will be conducted for those INED who
have been serving on the Board for more than 9 years, NC will make
recommendations based on the results of the assessment on the
suitability of the INED to continue to act as director to the Board for
approval.
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At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not exceeding one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation. All the retiring Directors are eligible for re-
election. Ms. Gao Ming, Mr. Lu Jian and Mr. Hong Guilu will offer
themselves for retirement and being eligible, will be entitled for re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Bank.

The newly appointed director of the Bank will retire at the next
following annual general meeting and will offer themselves for re-
election, if any.

Save for the above-mentioned retiring Directors, who will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Bank, as at the date of this report, no Director held
office for over three years since last re-election.

Directors’ Liability Insurance Policy

The Bank has put in force an appropriate insurance cover for its
Directors’ liabilities against risk exposure arising from operating
businesses of the Bank.

Further, the Bank’s Articles of Association provide that Directors

are entitled to be indemnified out of the Bank’s assets against claims
from third parties in respect of certain liabilities.
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development

To ensure that the newly appointed Directors have adequate
understanding of the Bank’s business operations and to enable
Directors to update their knowledge regularly so as to provide
informed recommendation and advice and make contribution to
the Bank, the Board establishes a set of written policy specifying
guidelines on Directors’ induction and training upon appointment.

The Bank also provides regular updates to Board members on
material changes to regulatory requirements applicable to the
Directors and the Bank on a timely basis. In addition, Board
members are encouraged to participate actively in continuous
training programmes and the Bank also arranges relevant
professional training programmes for Board members. In 2019, all
Directors have attended continuous training programmes to update
their knowledge and technique.

Disclosure on remuneration

According to HKMA’s Supervisory Policy Manual CG-5 “Guideline
on a Sound Remuneration System”, authorized institutions are
required to make disclosures in relation to their remuneration
systems as appropriate. The Bank has fully complied with HKMA’s
disclosure requirements set out in Part 3 of the said Guideline.
Disclosure on remuneration of the Bank will be included in the
Annual Banking Disclosure Statement posted on the Bank’s website.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up five committees which are delegated with
different responsibilities to assist the Board in performing its duties.
They are Audit Committee, Strategy and Corporate Governance
Committee, Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. Each of
these Board Committees has specific written Terms of Reference
which state clearly its objectives, functions and responsibilities.

All Board Committees are comprised mainly of Non-executive
Directors and INED. All Board Committees report to the Board on
their decisions or recommendations on a regular basis. Material
matters are reserved for the approval of the Board according to
the terms of reference of such committees. The Board will conduct
regular review and update on the terms of reference of such
committees.

Audit Committee

AC assists the Board in monitoring the Bank’s financial reporting
process independently and external audit function, ensuring an
effective system of internal control and compliance (including risk
management system), and supervising the internal audit function.
Meanwhile, the committee is also responsible for reviewing the
Bank’s compliance with applicable rules, including but not limited
to the requirements and guidelines of regulators, businesses or laws.
AC comprises five members and three of them are INEDs.

AC held four meetings during the year 2019 and all the meetings
were with the participation of the relevant senior management,
internal audit officers of the Bank and representatives from the
external auditors of the Bank. Major works performed by AC were
summarised as follows:

- Reviewed external auditor’s management letter and
management response;

- Reviewed the external auditor’s 2019 audit plan and work
scope;

- Approved the internal audit plan for the year of 2020;
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Reviewed the internal audit reports covering the evaluation of
internal control;

- Approved the audited financial statements for financial year
ended 31 December 2018; and

- Approved the Interim Financial Disclosure Statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2019;

AC is also responsible for making recommendations on the
appointment, re-appointment, removal and remuneration of the
Bank’s external auditor. KPMG is the external auditors of the
Bank. A statement by the external auditor with respect to their
responsibilities is included in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 74 to 82 of the Bank’s 2019 Annual Report.

Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee

SCG aims to enhance the strategic development and planning of
the Bank and to strengthen the corporate governance framework
of the Bank, including but not limited to reviewing the Bank’s
strategic development plan, strategic capital deployment and
major institutional restructuring and adjustment plans, and makes
recommendation to the Board. Meanwhile, the committee is
also responsible for reviewing the Bank’s compliance with legal,
regulatory and corporate governance standards, providing advice
on corporate governance practice, enhancing the transparency and
quality of information disclosure of the Bank and keeping abreast
of changes in regulations, with the aim to maximise sustainable
corporate values and shareholder’s interests. SCG comprises seven
members and four of them are INEDs.
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In 2019, SCG held one meeting. The major works performed by
SCG during the year included:

- Reviewed the revised “Corporate Governance Manual” of the
Bank;

- Reviewed the Digital transformation development of the Bank;

Reviewed the 2019 Fin-Tech innovation report of the Bank;

- Reviewed the strategic development plan of Chinese
Mercantile Bank; and

- Reviewed the “Directors’ conflict of interest policy” of the
Bank.

Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors

BRMC reviews the Bank’s position in various risks and approves
risk management principles, major policies, guidelines and risk
appetite of the Bank. It also monitors and reviews the effectiveness
of the risk management system of the Bank, including its ability to
withstand stress conditions. The key risks it oversees include credit,
market, operational, interest rate, legal and compliance, liquidity,
reputation and strategic risks. Senior Management is delegated
by the BRMC to establish Policy related to risk appetite including
risk appetite monitoring and management process. The Group’s
risk appetite framework covers three aspects, namely profit, capital
and risk. The risk appetite consists of quantitative and qualitative
description of types and level of risks that the Group is willing and
able to accept in pursuit of its strategic and business goals. The
Policy is reviewed at least annually and approved by the BRMC
to ensure the Group operates within the risk appetite. BRMC
comprises six members and four of them are INEDs.

In 2019, BRMC held six meetings. The major works performed by

BRMC during the year included:

- Reviewed the risk management reports of the Bank regularly,
including the bank-wide stress-testing results etc;

- Approved the annual review of Recovery Plan of the Bank;

- Reviewed the risk culture of the Bank, the risk appetite and
credit preference;
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Reviewed and approved the major risk management policies,
limits and measures of the Bank including the stress testing
policy, market risk manual and risk management measures etc;

and

- Oversaw the implementation of risk management policies of
the Bank and compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

Remuneration Committee

RC is responsible for overseeing the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Bank to ensure their remuneration is
appropriate for their duties and consistent with the Bank’s culture,
strategy, market condition and control environment. RC is also
responsible for advising and assisting the Board in discharging
its responsibilities for the Bank’s culture-related matters and
recommending to the Board on the Bank’s remuneration policy
framework. RC comprises three members and two of them are
INEDs.

In 2019, RC held two meetings. The major works performed by RC
during the year included:

- Considered the allocation of performance bonus of the Bank
(including that distributed to the Executive Directors) and
made recommendation to the Board;

- Considered the performance bonus of senior management for
the year ended 31 December 2018 and made recommendation
to the Board;

- Considered the Directors’ fee of the Non-executive Directors
and INEDs for the year ended 31 December 2018 and made
recommendation to the Board;

- Considered the remuneration policy on distribution of
performance bonus of the Bank for the year ended 31

December 2019 and made recommendation to the Board;

- Reviewed the remuneration policy and planning of the Bank;
and

- Reviewed the bank culture development of the Bank.

Information relating to the remuneration of each Director for 2019
is set out in Note 42 to the financial statements of the Bank.
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Nomination Committee

NC is responsible for assessing the suitability of the candidates and
recommending to the Board all new appointments of Directors
and senior management executives. NC also reviews the structure
and composition of the Board on a regular basis, and assesses the
efficiency of the Board. NC comprises three members and two of
them are INEDs.

In 2019, NC held two meetings. Major works performed by NC
during the year included:

- Reviewed and assessed the evaluation of the performance and
effectiveness of the Directors and the Board as well as the size,
structure and composition of the Board and Board Committees
of the Bank;

- Considered the changes to the composition of the Board and
Board Committees and made recommendation to the Board;

- Reviewed the appointment and succession planning policy for
Directors and Senior Management of the Bank; and

- Performed annual review of the independence of the INEDs of
the Bank.
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DELEGATION OF THE BOARD
Management Functions

The Board assumes the responsibility for leadership and governance
of the Bank and delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the senior management. The Board sets
up clear guidelines governing the powers delegated to the senior
management, in particular, with respect to reporting mechanism
and the matters that are subject to the approval of the Board (such
as substantial changes in the management structure, the business
objectives, strategies and business plans, the policies and manuals
which may have a material impact on the financial and risk
management of the Bank).

Apart from the Board Committees, the Board has also established
the Executive Committee, which reports to the Board. The
Executive Committee has specific written Terms of Reference
which state clearly its functions and responsibilities. The Board will
conduct regular review and update on the terms of reference of the
Executive Committee. The Executive Committee was established
to supervise the overall operation of the Bank. The Executive
Committee is chaired by the Chairman of the Board of Directors
and consists of Executive Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Deputy
Chief Executives and Assistant Chief Executives, as members.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing the internal control of the
Bank and for reviewing its effectiveness through well-established
organizational structure and comprehensive procedures, policies
and standards.

Systems, policies and procedures are in place to identify, measure,
control and monitor the major types of risks the Bank faces.
Business units are responsible for the assessment of individual types
of risk arising from their area of operations where risks are managed
and reported in accordance with risk management procedures and
arrangements.
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The senior management, Senior Executive Risk Management
Committee and Risk Management Department review and revise
the risk management policies and procedures on a regular basis.
Details of the policies and procedures for management of each of the
major types of risks, including credit, market, liquidity, interest rate,
operational, legal and compliance, reputation and strategic risks, are
included in Note 4 to the financial statements of the Bank.

All individual departments of the Bank, as the first line of defence
of internal control framework, are primarily responsible for
monitoring compliance in their respective areas. The Internal
Control and Compliance Department, as the second line of
defence of internal control framework, is primarily responsible
for overseeing the Bank’s compliance risk and providing guidance
to individual departments to ensure compliance with applicable
regulatory requirement.

The Internal Audit Department plays an important role in the
Bank’s third line of defence of internal control framework, regular
audits will be conducted to ensure compliance with relevant policies
and procedures. It supervised and assessed the quality and effect
of the compliance with regulatory requirements, management of
major risks and intensified internal control in main business areas
of the Bank. It also reports to the Audit Committee at least four
times each year on significant findings on internal control. The
Head of Internal Audit Department of the Bank reports to the AC
and the Chairman of the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Bank and has prepared the financial
statements of the Bank on a going concern basis. As at 31 December
2019, the Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt
upon the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF INDUSTRIAL AND
COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (ASIA)
LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 274, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment allowances of advances to customers

Refer to notes 2.7.1(vii), 4.2(h) and 26 to the consolidated financial statements

and the accounting policies respectively.

Key audit matter

Impairment of loans and
advances to customers is a
subjective area due to the
degree of judgment applied by
management in determining
impairment allowances. From
the Group’s perspective, the
determination of the loss
allowances for loans and
advances to customers is
heavily dependent on the
external macro environment
and the Group’s internal credit
risk management strategy, and
the judgments in determining
the loss given default or the
assessment of recoverable cash
flows relating to individual
loans and advances to
customers, where loans and
advances to customers were
unsecured or were subject to
potential collateral shortfalls.

The Group classifies financial
instruments into three
stages and recognizes an
impairment allowance based
on the expected credit loss
for the next 12 months or the
entire lifetime of the financial
asset, depending on whether
credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased
significantly since initial
recognition and whether an
asset is considered to be credit-
impaired respectively.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess loss
allowance for expected credit losses
included the following:

evaluating the effectiveness of
internal control operations related to
provision for expected credit losses:

assessing the key design and
operational effectiveness
of internal controls of the
financial reporting process,
including credit approval,
recording, monitoring, re-
evaluation of periodic credit
grading, and the accrual of
loss allowance; In particular,
we assessed the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of the key
internal controls over the
classification of loans by credit
quality across all stages and
credit monitoring process;

involving our information
technology specialists to assess
the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness
of general information
technology controls and
automated controls of key
information system critical
to the credit grading process
and transaction process,
including controls over access
to systems, controls over data
and change management,
data transmission between
systems, compilation of the
overdue reports for advances
to customers, mapping of
parameters of expected
credit loss model and system
calculation of loss allowance
for expected credit loss;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment allowances of advances to customers

Refer to notes 2.7.1(vii), 4.2(h) and 26 to the consolidated financial statements

and the accounting policies respectively.

Key audit matter

The loss allowance for loans  *
and advances to customers,
other than those corporate
loans and advances which are
credit-impaired, is measured
using the risk parameters
method. The key parameters
include probability of default
(PD), loss given default
(LGD) and exposure at default
(EAD), which are derived
from considerations including
the historical overdue data,
historical loss ratio, internal
credit grading and other
adjustment factors.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

evaluating the accuracy of the
classification of financial instruments.
We obtained information on how
management applied the classification
requirements of the financial
instruments standards and the
classification results. On a sample
basis we assessed the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the advances to
customers and relevant documents in
relation to the business model;

assessing the methodology used for
compliance with the requirements
of HKFRS 9 and the reliability of
expected credit loss models and
parameters used with the assistance
of our internal specialists, evaluating
probability of default, loss given
default, exposure at default, discount
rate, forward-looking adjustment
and other adjustment factors, and
evaluating the reasonableness of key
management judgments involved;

assessing the completeness and
accuracy of data used for the key
parameters in the expected credit
loss model, by selecting samples
and comparing individual loan
information with the underlying
agreements and other related
documentation to assess the
accuracy of the loan information
in the expected credit loss model.
For key parameters derived from
external data, we selected samples
to inspect the accuracy of such data
by comparing them with public
sources;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment allowances of advances to customers

Refer to notes 2.7.1(vii), 4.2(h) and 26 to the consolidated financial statements

and the accounting policies respectively.

Key audit matter

Loss allowances for the credit- o
impaired corporate loans and
advances are measured using
the discounted cash flow
method. Management exercises
judgment in determining
recoverable cash flow based on
a range of factors. These factors
include available remedies for
recovery, the financial situation
of the borrowers, collateral
valuation, the seniority of
the claim and the existence
and cooperativeness of other
creditors. Whilst the Group
appoints an external appraiser
for the valuation of certain
property and other illiquid .
collateral, enforceability,
timing and means of realization
also affect the ultimate
collectability and thereby the
amount of expected credit loss
allowances as at the reporting
date.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

assessing key parameters involving
judgments by seeking evidence from
external sources and comparing
it with internal records including
historical loss experience. As part
of these procedures, we inquired
management for the reasons of
modifications of estimates and
model parameters, and considered
the consistency of management
judgments;

comparing the economic factors
used in the models with market
information to assess whether
they were aligned with market and
economic development;

selecting samples to assess the
reasonableness of management
judgments on whether the credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition and whether
credit impairment has occurred. We
analysed the portfolio by industry
sector to select samples in industries
more vulnerable to the current
economic situation with reference
to other borrowers with potential
credit risk. We checked loan overdue
information, making enquiries
of the credit managers about the
borrowers’ business operations,
checking borrowers’ financial
information and researching market
information about borrowers’
businesses;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment allowances of advances to customers

Refer to notes 2.7.1(vii), 4.2(h) and 26 to the consolidated financial statements

4.2(h) %26 - and the accounting policies respectively.
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reporting period, and to assess
the audit impact of the results of
the retrospective review. We also
involved our internal specialists to
inspect results of management’s
sensitivity analysis and assess the
audit impact of the results.

performing credit assessments
for the selected credit impaired
corporate loans and advances by
assessing the forecast of recoverable
cash flows through inquiry, applying
judgment and our own research, and
evaluating the timing and means
of realization of collateral, forecast
cash flows, challenging the viability
of the Group’s recovery plans
and considering other sources of
repayment asserted by management.
We also evaluated the consistency
of management’s application of key
assumptions and compared them
with our own data sources; and

evaluating whether the presentations
and disclosures on advances to
customers and impairment of loans
and advances to customers meet
the disclosure requirements in the
prevailing accounting standards.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessment of the fair value of financial instruments

Refer to notes 2.7.1(vi), 2.10, 4.6, 23, 24, 25 and 27 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 111, 127, 190, 225, 226 and 238 respectively.

Key audit matter

Financial instruments carried
at fair value accounted for
a significant portion of the
Group’s assets. At 31 December
2019, the fair value of the
Group’s financial assets was
HKD182,022 million of
which HKD107,632 million,
HKD72,152 million and
HKD2,238 million were
classified under the fair value
hierarchy as level 1, 2 and 3
financial assets respectively.
At 31 December 2019, the fair
value of the Group’s financial
liabilities was HKD16,193
million which were all classified
under the fair value hierarchy
as level 2 financial liabilities.

The valuation of the Group’s
financial instruments, held
at fair value, is based on a
combination of market data
and valuation models which
often require a considerable
number of inputs. Many of
these inputs are obtained
from readily available data for
liquid markets. Where such
observable data is not readily
available, as in the case of
level 3 financial instruments,
estimates need to be developed
which can involve significant
management judgement.

The Group has developed
its own models to value
certain level 2 and level 3
financial instruments, which
also involves significant
management judgement.

We identified the assessment
of the fair value of financial
instruments as a key audit
matter because of the degree of
complexity involved in valuing
certain financial instruments
and the degree of judgement
exercised by management in
determining the inputs used in
the valuation models.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the fair
value of financial instruments included the
following:

. assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over the valuation
and independent price verification of
financial instruments;

. comparing the fair values of a
sample of level 1 and level 2 financial
instruments applied by the Group
with publicly available market data;

. engaging our internal valuation
specialists to assist us in performing,
on a sample basis, independent
valuations of financial instruments
and comparing these valuations
with the Group’s valuations. Our
independent valuation included
developing models, obtaining inputs
independently and verifying the
inputs;

. assessing whether the disclosures
in the consolidated financial
statements appropriately reflected
the Group’s exposure to financial
instrument valuation risk with
reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;
and

. for the key underlying systems used
for the processing of transactions in
relation to financial instruments we
utilised our information technology
specialists to assess the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of a selection of
relevant automated controls within
these systems. We also assessed
the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the
key internal controls over these
underlying systems, including
controls over access to these systems
and controls over data and change
management.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit.

We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ms. Wong Po Shan.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2020
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— A LI& 2 2
l&L | ﬁﬁ:%E
HBEZFZ-NWF+_H=T—HILFEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
2019 2018
! T#x T
Notes HK$’000 HKS$’000
FLE A Interest income (6) 27,701,708 27,771,325
FIE 3 Interest expense (6) (15,546,374) (16,146,057)
A Net interest income (6) 12,155,334 11,625,268
YT EEATON Fee and commission income (7) 2,535,693 2,768,364
Wi AR 43 Fee and commission expense (7) (331,518) (372,638)
W 2 2% 0 4 W N ¥ Net fee and commission income (7) 2,204,175 2,395,726
R T N Net trading income (8) 696,828 129,453
AT EEASE 45 RA MRS RIUAE ) Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
Bz E UEiE) ik value through profit or loss 9) (506,198) 314,355
A E & RBE 2 R IRA Dividend income from financial investments (10) 35,566 8,835
HoAths A Other operating income (11) 393,937 263,302
BEBA Operating income 14,979,642 14,736,939
(e S Operating expenses (12) (3,707,874) (3,453,626)
R HBRWALIE R 2 R A Operating profit before impairment losses 11,271,768 11,283,313
4 RlE E 2 AR TR AR Net impairment losses on financial assets (14) (1,831,474) (1,228,791)
BRI R 2 8 Rl A Operating profit after impairment losses 9,440,294 10,054,522
HEEREWE BIR) ikt Revaluation (loss)/gain on investment properties (30) (4,200) 700
B W 3 R R 2 e TR R AR Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (15) (952) (5,088)
EE A DA AP (286 b 4 T i 4 Net gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value
N R4 il 7 2 TR IR AR through other comprehensive income 549,819 329,085
BREA Operating profit 9,984,961 10,379,219
FEAEER S AR (1) R Share of (loss)/profit of associates (4,696) 12,390
I B i 6k A Profit before tax 9,980,265 10,391,609
TS B S Income tax expense (16) (1,677,667) (2,113,446)
AR Y 7S BT B SR HE AN i A Profit for the year attributable to shareholders of
the Bank 8,302,598 8,278,163
BB TR - B A % i Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (19) 312890 321% 7T
HK$3.12 HK$3.21
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2019 2018
T#x TH#ETT
HK$°000 HKS$’000
AE % A Profit for the year 8,302,598 8,278,163
A EH AR ERREFZHH - Items that will not be reclassified to income statement:
DA~ A6 L Al 4 T WA 25 A B Change in fair value reserve of
RE 2 B8 2 AR E) equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income 412,867 (331,604)
FIT A5 5 2 Income tax effect (50,290) 50,290
362,577 (281,314)
SRAT e B AL A R Revaluation surplus on bank premises (1,474) 20,958
FIr A5 5 288 Income tax effect 1,240 (4,691)
(234) 16,267
WHBR AR A BB AR Z HH ¢ Items that may be reclassified subsequently to income
statement:
B4 Vi 2 S T 2 B (R A ) Change of fair value of hedging instruments
under cash flow hedges (250,567) (35,286)
RGN Income tax effect 33,786 5,822
(216,781) (29,464)
DA A5 (6 5 H At 2 i i e A B Change in fair value reserve of financial asset measured
S RE FE 2 N A B e 5 ) at fair value through other comprehensive income 2,192,323 (1,082,010)
TS Bl R 2 Income tax effect (372,231) 247,195
1,820,092 (834,815)
HROA G S B A m SE AR AR 2 W S B Exchange differences arising from translation
of results of a foreign subsidiary (231,634) (542,220)
AR A B B8 4% A 4 i e 2% Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,734,020 (1,671,546)
AE I BRBE AR 2 i I A AR Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 10,036,618 6,606,617
Attributable to:
7 SRAT B ROME 5 2 2 i 2 A 7 Shareholders of the Bank 10,036,618 6,606,617
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e AR R &
T N == 2 /.
MR-FE—FE+H=+—H
As at 31 December 2019
ZE -0 ZF— )\
+ZA=+—H +ZHA=+—H
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
(i T#L T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
<423 ) Assets
4 K AESRATIR) 2 K oA 4 Rl % M5 2 Cash and balances with banks and other financial
R - institutions (21) 138,338,758 151,374,532
E@Eﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬂé Rl A 2 A7k Placements with banks and other financial institutions (22) 104,951,872 74,217,313
FrEC o) s & RlE B Financial assets held for trading (23) 492,484 -
LWAW?JE%@EE%&AEEZ%M ¥  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (24) 5,047,582 525,689
e &M T A Derivative financial instruments (25) 10,190,659 9,144,877
AR S At MR TH Advances and other accounts (26) 474,986,476 475,789,393
LRRE Financial investments: 198,972,985 167,280,719
— DLOATA i (e A At 2 T i 2 AR - Measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income 27) 152,374,354 101,065,910
— DAEES B AS AR — Measured at amortised cost 27) 46,598,631 66,214,809
WA R 2 & Investments in associates (28) 170,244 97,984
T N LA e T Goodwill and other intangible assets (29) 1,016,481 1,017,797
EVS-CVES Investment properties (30) 135,234 140,135
LEIE i Property, plant and equipment (31) 1,896,067 901,251
o BT Deferred income tax assets (36) 379,507 749,768
HAbEE Other assets (32) 16,985,407 12,378,929
¥ R Total assets 953,563,756 893,618,387
£ifi B Liabilities
SRATIF] 5 B A 5 M A A7 3 Deposits from banks and other financial institutions (34) 207,074,805 161,433,060
fiiE&m TR Derivative financial instruments (25) 7,768,074 6,920,387
gﬁﬁ%ﬁ Deposits from customers (35) 535,277,097 533,531,808
B AT Certificates of deposit issued 8,645,518 24,948,381
CE TR Debt securities in issue 30,872,769 22,908,370
— 35 E U T EERSIR G RAR - Designated at fair value through profit or loss 8,425,301 2,642,190
— DAESH A AR — Measured at amortised cost 22,447,468 20,266,180
BT el Bk Current income tax liabilities 1,697,004 663,190
DA AR AR 2 5 AE i TE Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost (37) 3,889,974 7,825,543
HoAth & 1 Other liabilities (38) 24,483,421 18,070,159
£ fig Total liabilities 819,708,662 776,300,898
HE 2 Equity
A Share capital (39) 44,187,631 36,379,331
PR B i 7 Retained earnings 58,162,741 51,287,301
HoAth £ Other reserves 3,869,015 2,015,150
it o A AN SR AT A RO fi AR Total equity attributable to shareholders of the Bank 106,219,387 89,681,782
MR LA Additional equity instruments (40) 27,635,707 27,635,707
il iz B8 Total equity 133,855,094 117,317,489
2% B A G Total equity and liabilities 953,563,756 893,618,387
[ B Gao Ming Wu Long
LI B~ H T H Chairman Vice Chairman,
HAITHESH TTIB# & Executive Executive Director &
Director Chief Executive Officer
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MEeERB Bk
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BEEZ-NET+ A=+ —HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

AV
RiTRE  APHE fi
B Wil R i) EER L)
Bank  (W#M)  Fairvale G R —# R ERLR
Bk premises  Fair value reserve  Cashflow i it WA Additional
Share  revaluation reserve (non- hedge  Exchange General Retained equity izt
capital reserve  (recycling)  recycling) reserve reserve reserve earnings  instrument Total

sk T T T#x TEx TR 0 T#x 0 X T#x  T#x TR
Note HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000

REZ-NE—A—H  Atl January 2019 36,379,331 608,756 (1,570,996) (271,708) 79,009 (437,823) 3607912 51,287,301 27,635,707 117,317,489
R Profit for the year - - - - - - - 830259 - 830,59
LR - Other comprehensive income for

the year:

DAFEESAMAR  Change in fair value of financial
ki A SR A asset measured at fair value

ZATEESY through other comprehensive
income - - 1,859,367 412,867 - - - - - 2,272,234
HEUAPEELIME  Reserve realised on disposal of
2HlEAREEES  Iovestment securities measured
LBEHGl atfair value through other
comprehensive income - - 292,497 - - - - - - 292,497
R Changesin fair value of cash flow
JATERES hedge - - - - (250567) - - - - (250,567)
BERBRERZE  Change in provision for ECL - - 40,459 - - - - - - 40,459
RIREEE Revaluation surplus on bank
premises - (1,474) - - - - - - - (1,474)
EEREEY Change in deferred tax (36) - 140 (372,231) (50,290) 33,786 - - - - (387,499)
EiER Exchange differences - - - - - (231,634) - - - (231,634)
e R Total comprehensive income
for the period - (234) 1,820,092 362,577 (216,781) (231,634) - 8,302,598 - 10,036,618
ik Issuance of share capital 7,808,300 - - - - - - - - 7,808300
BRI REER Partial transfer of retained
F— MR earnings to general reserve - - - - - - 119,845 (119,843) - -
HAbREIER Other adjustments - - - - - - - (1,307,313) - (1307313)
REZF-NE At31 December 2019
+-A=1-H 44,187,631 608,522 249,096 90,869 (137,772) (669,457) 3,727,757 58,162,741 27,635,707 133,855,094
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BE_ZX—-NFE+ZA=Z+—HIEFEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
AR
#EE  ATEE ]
Bkl Bl AR EEA #5
Bk (THE)  Fairvae  HR Ex —f i EEIR
s premises  Fair value reserve  Cashflow ] Bl iifl  Additional
Share  revaluation reserve (non- hedge  Exchange General Retained equity 5l
capital reserve  (recycling) recycling) reserve reserve reserve earnings  instrument Total
Wit T TiEx T T Tt Tt T T T Tt
Note HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
REF-\E At1January 2018
—i-H 36,379,331 592,489 (1,077,383) 87,747 108,473 104,397 3451012 44,301,642 7738332 91,686,040
i (i p Impact of adopting HKFRS 9
HRETERD
RO R - - Mmoo (M - - - (38) - (548)
36,379,331 592,489 (736,181) 9,606 108,473 104,397 3451012 43,984,297 773833 91,631,756
Al Profit for the year - - - - - - - 8816 - 8818
ERATE : Other comprehensive income for
the year:
DAFEESRD  Changein fair value of financial
2GR asset measured at fair value
SHEE through other comprehensive
ZAYEERS income - - (097 (331604) - - - - - (1313
HEDATERES  Reserve realised on disposal of
FRmEAR Investment securities measured
REE S atfair value through other
bt 311 comprehensive income - - (90,536) - - - - - - (90,536)
S Changes in fair value of cash flow
LATRESRS hedge - - - - (35,286) - - - - (35,286)
FUMERERER  Changein provision for ECL
258 - - 2825 - - - - - - 28253
PAREENRS  Revaluation surplus on bank
premises = 20,958 = = = = = = = 20,958
BERERY Change in deferred tax (36) - (469) 247195 5090 582 - - - - 298,616
EiEH Exchange differences - - - - - (542,220 - - - (542,200)
MRARIGEAE  Total comprehensive income
for the period - 16,267 (834,815) (281,314) (29,464) (542,220) - 8,278,163 - 6,606,617
BRMER TR Issuance of additional equity
instruments - - - - - - - - 19,897,375 19,897,375
HEBAREEA  Partial transfer of retained
Z— MRk earnings to general reserve - - - - - - 156900 (156900) - -
B Other adjustments - - - - - - - (818259) - (818259)
REF— N At31 December 2018
TZA=1-A 36,379,331 608,756 (1,570,99) (271,708) 79,009 (437.823) 3607912 51287301 27,635,707 117,317,489
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GEHRETRER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

WE_E-NEF A=+ —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Bt 5 T T
Notes HK$’000 HKS$’000
BETHZHGRE Cash flows from operating activities:
B Ao T Vi Profit before tax 9,980,265 10,391,609
S RE E 2 W AR SR AR Net impairment losses on financial assets (14) 1,831,474 1,228,791
DAHESH RS A BR 2 B 85T R i Amortisation of debt securities in issue measured
at amortised cost (50,946) 416,611
D JHE B B AR AR 22 7% 5 i TEL S B Amortisation of subordinated debts measured at
amortised cost - 10,813
HETY 6 Amortisation of intangible assets (29) 9,772 10,795
& G A Depreciation of fixed assets (31) 98,190 98,466
il P HE A AT Depreciation on right-of-use assets (31) 499,313 -
D)4 85 A A J\EEZ Interest expenses on subordinated debts measured
% A8 E A S S at amortised cost (6) 290,459 530,507
BB TS5 AE Interest expenses on debt securities in issue (6) 538,161 141,643
& & A i H Interest expenses on lease liabilities 39,851 -
Wiz [e] B 4% 8 B R B At R TH Recoveries of loans and advances written off 2,836 1,897
EN &L P E@ Eis Ry Net loss from property, plant and equipment (15) 952 5,088
B EYERER (K ﬁJ:i Revaluation loss/(gain) on investment properties (30) 4,200 (700)
B DA P15 R4S F At 2 Net gain on disposal of financial assets measured at
Wi g A R4 Tl 2 R W T fair value through other comprehensive income (549,819) (329,085)
DA T8 (B 28 48 i 6 A IR 4 il Net loss/(gain) on financial asset and liabilities
KA E 2 F R (ki) at fair value through profit or loss 9) 506,198 (314,355)
JE Ak B l&?fﬁ/ Y F)) Share of loss/(profit) of associates (28) 4,696 (12,390)
AT EE RS RAR Dividend income from listed financial assets
T A LA B Z Hﬁ‘m Y A at fair value through profit or loss (10) (22,191) =
EHATEESHM 2RI AR Dividend income from unlisted equity securities
I b T HE £ R I 2 B IRA measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (10) (13,375) (8,835)
BEE 50, 725 1 B HC A JF B 42 TH B 2 K8 Elimination of exchange difference and other
non-cash items 127,515 (6,263,552)
13,297,551 5,907,303
mEEEE () (Increase)/decrease in operating assets:
JREIHH 2 =M H MU B> Placements with banks and other financial
SRAT [ 5 B Al 4 B A 2 A7 K institutions with original maturity beyond
three months (56,165,054) 19,985,499
FRVEAC 7 Rl 4 il & Financial assets held for trading (492,484) -
DL E (5848 45 R AR Financial assets at fair value through
2 & profit or loss (4,483,167) 519,823
DA P18 (B A8 FCAth 4 T Wi 4 AR Financial assets (non-equity) measured at fair value
Z &M E GERERE) through other comprehensive income (48,216,709) (20,303,539)
DA 6 1A A B 4 i Financial assets measured at amortised cost 19,634,568 28,978,212
P~ AT IR) 3 B H A <5 R A Loans and advances to customers, banks and
AN e A R T DA % EL At other financial institutions and other assets (5,732,575) (22,517,705)
i 4 i T 2 Derivative financial instruments (1,130,637) 6,234,974
SEA MM, (WD) ¢ Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
SRAT ] 2 Ko HoAth 4 Rl AR A A7 2K Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 45,641,745 (16,198,051)
HFE AR Deposits from customers 1,745,289 37,220,025
173 Certificates of deposit (16,476,208) (60,175,499)
HoAth & 15 Other liabilities 5,595,736 5,286,162
AT A 4 i TR Derivative financial instruments 728,632 (1,717,608)
TR & 2 Bla & Cash flows used in operations (46,053,313) (16,780,404)
O A 5 ¥ A A5 B Hong Kong profits tax paid (30,885) (1,510,764)
B A5 it S0 B 3 Overseas tax paid (634,249) (355,499)
FAR TG B 2 B4 U T Net cash flows used in operating activities (46,718,447) (18,646,667)
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HBEZFZ-NWF+_H=T—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
2019 2018
Wi T i T
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
BETEE) 2 Bl & Cash flows from investing activities:
8 5 JF 52 5 1 4 w6 07 Purchase of non-trading equity securities - (4,284,787)
i Y Purchase of intangible assets (29) (7,858) (12,244)
il S ) 2 R AR Purchase of property, plant and equipment (31) (294,716) (102,185)
th 5 W 2 B A T A5 5K00E Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 15,762 5,326
NI P &< Investment in associates (75,450) -
B 5 S 7 B 2 S e A Dividend income received from associates - 288,928
A H AT A AR 4R 15 ?’% N Dividend income from listed financial assets
T AR E 2 BB A at fair value through profit or loss (10) 22,191 -
A H PR E A 2 W et AR Dividend income from unlisted equity securities
I L TR A R S 2 I R A measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (10) 13,375 8,835
P 8 16 B 2 B O Net cash flows used in investing activities (326,696) (4,096,127)
il B 2 fﬂﬁ% Vi Cash flows from financing activities:
BATRESME R T H Issuance of additional equity instruments - 19,897,375
# ﬁ‘ BE 25 T H 2 7 R A 3k Distribution paid on additional equity instruments (1,307,313) (818,259)
BEAT ARG AR AR 2 BB AT R Issuance of debt securities in issue measured at
amortised cost 7,721,705 18,767,697
LEENVE: 3200 N e X e Redemption of subordinated debts measured at
amortised cost (3,892,875) (3,918,575)
DI &5 AR AR 2 B 84T (R 5 2 Mature of debt securities in issue measured at
amortised cost - (448,820)
16 78 DA B (4S8 46 ] AR Mature of debt securities in issue designated at
2 OB E SR I fair value through profit or loss (251,283) (3,548,818)
AT RA Issuance of share capital (39) 7,808,300 -
DE 370 % N L Interest paid on subordinated debts measured at
B AT ALE amortised cost (287,914) (570,026)
BT 2 B AT FLE Interest paid on debt securities in issue (512,135) (86,546)
F AT A Payment of lease liabilities (480,758) -
U1 il I B B U TR Net cash flows from financing activities 8,797,727 29,274,028
e 5, 25 B 2 5 248 Effects of foreign exchange differences (239,032) (520,369)
B % Aﬁ 4[] B 4 IE E a Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
30 B (38,486,448) 6,010,865
ﬁ/\* H HZHa kERBE4SEA Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 179,252,517 173,241,652
N H=+—HZHER Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
S5 (7] Bl TH H 140,766,069 179,252,517

MG EHEREERNS » Iﬁjz‘&fﬁj%%‘} [7] 78 H 4% T 51 For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
JREI M H 2 =8 A 8L R : equivalents comprises the following balances with original maturity of three
months or less:
2019 2018
T L T
HK$°000 HK$’000
B4z [ e 4RAT [7] 26 J Ho A Cash and balances with banks and other financial
< R A 2 5 i institutions 59,777,227 50,252,861
TE SR AT [F] 2E Ko HAth 4 Rl A% M 2 17 2K Placements with banks and other financial institutions 80,988,842 128,999,656

140,766,069 179,252,517

R ﬁ ﬁé&’ EBE B BLE M :© Cash flows from operating activities included:
Sl A Interest received 36,338,621 27,482,778
*J B Interest paid 26,016,930 14,705,692
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Notes to the Financial Statements

WE_E-NEF A=+ —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

1.1

1.2
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking, financial
and other related services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are
shown in Note 33 to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Bank is a licensed bank incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business at 33/F, ICBC
Tower, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for certain buildings modified
by the revaluation, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI), financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading, financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and derivative financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKEFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Details of judgement made by the management in the application of

HKEFRS that have significant effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of new/revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards (“HKFRSs”) and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”)

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16, Leases, and a
number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Except for HKFRS 16,
Leases, none of the developments have had a material effect on how
the Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented. The Group has not applied
any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKERS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the related interpretations,
HK(IFRIC) 4, Determining whether an arrangement contains a
lease, HK(SIC) 15, Operating leases incentives, and HK(SIC) 27,
Evaluating the substance of transactions involving the legal form of
a lease. It introduces a single accounting model for lessees, which
requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
for all leases, except for leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less (“short-term leases”) and leases of low value assets. The
lessor accounting requirements are brought forward from HKAS 17
substantially unchanged.

HKEFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1 January 2019.
The Group has elected to use the modified retrospective approach
and has therefore recognised the cumulative effect of initial
application as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1
January 2019. Comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 17. Further details of the
nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies and
the transition options applied are set out below:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of new/revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASS”) (continued)

HKEFRS 16, Leases (continued)
Changes in the accounting policies

(a)

@

(ii)

New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates
to the concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease
on the basis of whether a customer controls the use
of an identified asset for a period of time, which may
be determined by a defined amount of use. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct
the use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of a lease in
HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered into
or changed on or after 1 January 2019. For contracts
entered into before 1 January 2019, the Group has used
the transitional practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements
are or contain leases. Accordingly, contracts that were
previously assessed as leases under HKAS 17 continue
to be accounted for as leases under HKFRS 16 and
contracts previously assessed as non-lease service
arrangements continue to be accounted for as executory
contracts.

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance leases,
as was previously required by HKAS 17. Instead, the
Group is required to capitalise all leases when it is the
lessee, including leases previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17, other than those short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. As far as the Group
is concerned, these newly capitalized leases are primarily
in relation to property, plant and equipment as disclosed
in note 31. For an explanation of how the Group applies
lessee accounting, see note 2.21.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of new/revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASS”) (continued)

HKEFRS 16, Leases (continued)

(a)
(iii)

(iv)

Changes in the accounting policies (continued)

Leasehold investment property

Under HKERS 16, the Group is required to account for all
leasehold properties as investment properties when these
properties are held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation (“leasehold investment properties”). The
adoption of HKFRS 16 does not have a significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements as the Group previously
elected to apply HKAS 40, Investment properties, to account
for all of its leasehold properties that were held for investment
purposes as at 31 December 2018. Consequentially, these
leasehold investment properties continue to be carried at fair
value.

Lessor accounting

In addition to leasing out a number of items of properties
as the lessor of operating leases. The accounting policies
applicable to the Group as a lessor remain substantially
unchanged from those under HKAS 17. Under HKFRS 16,
when the Group acts as an intermediate lessor in a sublease
arrangement, the Group is required to classify the sublease as a
finance lease or an operating lease by reference to the right-of-
use asset arising from the head lease, instead of by reference to
the underlying asset. The adoption of HKFRS 16 does not have
a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements in this
regard.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of new/revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASS”) (continued)

HKEFRS 16, Leases (continued)

Transitional impact

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. 1 January 2019), the
Group determined the length of the remaining lease terms and

(b)

measured the lease liabilities for the leases previously classified

as operating leases at the present value of the remaining

lease payments, discounted using the relevant incremental

borrowing rates at 1 January 2019.

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group applied the
following recognition exemption and practical expedients at
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16:

)

(ii)

(iii)

the Group elected not to apply the requirements of
HKERS 16 in respect of the recognition of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets to leases for which the remaining
lease term ends within 12 months from the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, i.e. where the lease term ends
on or before 31 December 2019;

when measuring the lease liabilities at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the Group applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics (such as leases with a similar
remaining lease term for a similar class of underlying
asset in a similar economic environment); and

when measuring the right-of-use assets at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group relied on the
previous assessment for onerous contract provisions as
at 31 December 2018 as an alternative to performing an
impairment review.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of new/revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASS”) (continued)

HKEFRS 16, Leases (continued)

(b)

Transitional impact (continued)

The following table reconciles the operating lease
commitments as disclosed as at 31 December 2018 to the
opening balance for lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January

R 2019:

it 2 I 3

—H—H

1 January 2019

T#L

R NAEF T HE T H BB R Operating lease commitment at 31 December 2018 1,040,071

T+ AL AR I ﬁ?*ﬂ%@ AZir12f0 A 2 Less: recognition exemption for leases with no more

& R R than 12 months of remaining lease term at transition (21,755)
W R B 5 e A 3 D) 565 16955 8 [ 4 2 FL B Less: leases that are outside the scope of HKFRS 16 (62,516)
Wk AT & Less: rental prepayments (18,148)
G B SE AT AT 2 S R AR Add: extension options reasonably certain to be exercised 437,576
1,375,228
W RARFE S AR Less: total future interest expenses (84,104)
REF—JE—H BB S AMMEH Total lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019 1,291,124

BRI AR EHE 2 HERRZ M
Jﬂ%gﬁa?‘%ﬂéfﬁwﬁﬁ%Tﬁhﬁﬁﬁﬁ
W BRER > WR R —F— \F =
H T — H 2 BAHS R L3R i R B 5 A
54 B 2 AT AT T A SR8 AR B A 3k 4
AE i % o
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The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously
classified as operating leases have been recognised at an
amount equal to the amount recognised for the remaining
lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the
statement of financial position at 31 December 2018.



TR JUEER
Annual Report 2019
2 EEEEBORBAR @) 2

2.2 BT SR T R i B 2 i 1)
(T ot S 2 R D) ) D (7 o8 i o
D (TCEFw et ) ) Z 588 @

(ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ”%mﬁrﬁﬁj(ﬁ)

(b) VR
T%%’fﬁifih:iM%W%Hﬁ%i& HEHI >>§E-16
TR AL B AR S AR UL R 2

T B TR SR AT

() A A W

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WE_F—

NEFTZA=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of new/revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASS”) (continued)

HKEFRS 16, Leases (continued)

(b)  Transitional impact (continued)
The following table summarises the impacts of the adoption of
HKEFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial

position:
R F— N\
+=H R F LA
=+—H2 WAL  A-HZ
WRwifE HERMEAH I i
Carrying amount  Capitalization of
at 31 December operatinglease  Carrying amount
2018 contracts  at1January 2019
Tt T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
PR AN CF Vs B 3 5 HE JU)) 5516%%  Line items in the consolidated statement of financial position
BELEAMHRIRAHA impacted by the adoption of HKFRS 16:
EIE i Property, plant and equipment 901,251 1,309,616 2,210,867
Hph & e Other assets 12,378,929 (15,292) 12,363,637
i Y Total assets 893,618,387 1,294,324 894,912,711
HAot A5 Other liabilities
—HE AR - Lease liabilities 1,291,124 1,291,124
— HAth - Others 18,070,159 3,200 18,073,359
R Total liabilities 776,300,898 1,294,324 777,595,222
i Net assets 117,317,489 = 117,317,489
A R R R I A R s TS i e The analysis of the net book value of the Group’s right-of-use
RIS 1698 5 H > A58 B 4% A0 BH & 2 0 8 assets by class of underlying asset at the end of the reporting
B4 2 o P HE O R T S E S period and at the date of transition to HKFRS 16 is as follows:
g Sy 1K 3
+=H O REZFA
=1—H —H—H
At 31 December At 1 January
2019 2019
T# T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EWNE/E V&L Included in “Property, plant and equipment”:
o FARE B E - 7 Right-of-use asset - Premises 1,007,877 1,308,753
e PR - LA R AR Right-of-use asset - Other equipment 420 863
il P HE B - A Right-of-use asset - Others 13,724 -
s Total 1,022,021 1,309,616
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of new/revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASS”) (continued)

HKEFRS 16, Leases (continued)

(c)  Lease liabilities
The remaining contractual maturities of the Group’s lease
liabilities at the end of the reporting period and at the date of

GHRFARE DA ¢ transition to HKFRS 16 are as follows:
REZ—ETFA=1T—H R —E—~H—H
At 31 December 2019 At 1 January 2019
N A 1% J5 A 1% I UG 1% I A0 L 1%
A wk BUH A % B8 7 A w3k BUH Ak 48 7
Present value of Present value of
the minimum Total minimum the minimum Total minimum
lease payments lease payments lease payments lease payments
T Tt Tt Tt
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TN Not later than 1 year 74,962 75,997 - -
V4% BOE AR Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years 185,455 189,946 182,376 187,219
2447 RS LA Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years 789,505 831,838 1,019,592 1,090,243
SEER More than 5 years - - 89,156 97,766
Nt Subtotal 974,960 1,021,784 1,291,124 1,375,228
st Total 1,049,922 1,097,781 1,291,124 1,375,228
B R AR B S A Less: total future interest expenses (47,859) (84,104)
HEE EBE Present value of lease liabilities
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2019

A number of amendments and new standards are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2019 and earlier application is
permitted. The Group has not early adopted any new or amended
standards in preparing this financial report. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

AT H K 2 4% B 4 2 8w R A 2
Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

A6 T R s B 5 i o 48 ) M 2 A 4895 5 1 —F_FHE—H—H
Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards 1st Jannuary, 2020

(i o 25 et M ) B398 2 A T [ 2675 2 2 26

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a business

S EAH
1st Jannuary, 2020

(FHEHEND 1 RCRE g EN) Feit 2 B[R R 2w —F_FHE—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of material

A4 P TETE AT Al % S5 B AT~ 07 e JU) B e
0 42 B R TR R A 2 B o RS PTG
il A2 A PR AN % SR AERT BT ML R s B AR A
B 5 S 3R AN O T RE M K

1st Jannuary, 2020

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries and attributable share

of results and reserves of its associate (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

All intra-group transactions and balances are eliminated on
consolidation.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKFRS 9 is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit
or loss or as change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKFRS 9,
it is measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Bank’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Bank’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

Associate

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-
controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and
over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s interests in associate are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results and reserves of associate is included
in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associate
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
associate, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associate is included as part of the
Group’s interests in associate and is not individually tested for
impairment.

The results of associate are included in the Bank’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Bank’s investments in associate are treated as non-current
assets and are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

For regulatory reporting, the basis of consolidation for
calculation of consolidated capital adequacy ratio of the
Group is set out in Note 1 of the “Supplementary Financial
Information” section.

101



o R R SRAT () A R4

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

BE-EZ-NFE+ A=+ —HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2

102

T2 FBOR BE AR (50

2.5

2.6

BN Je 32

I A BB < b R 2 B A B s s T 4R
TR AR TR i A KRR o

P 2 0 R — MR B 4 A < £
RS RAS > DA R B 399 ] 23 BRSO A B
B 32 H 22 T35 o BT R R 25 R T e A 5 T
LA T AR 0 A0 A 2 R AR B A R ik
AR R BAE > B (s ) A5 B W i
Ry w4 T A < B A R TR 9 (L A o
R BRI R A% S B R B < U 2R
B JE A T (TR AR ) Z B A A
R o (EARELAE R AR RS o TTREAFI A A
W 2w RS B A A KT 2 TR P S A B
e B 2 e R M RS B 5 TR B CH: At i
A i AB AT o

4 7 LRI 2 e L E 2 A
S (A4 2 T 0 - 3 B0 A ) B
S 3502 W T DA 97 3o S B 4 B 2 2
ERE -

FER B WA

H BB AR

B e A < — s i I A B R 5 R 2
HERRE SR o A7 B AR T BE W ER R 2 AR Ak 2 R ARUK
W M T AR SE 7] A B B4 A ) - Sif i
TE SR P £ 358 AR - T A 42 [ 3 AT 20 7 B AR
AT % &k Al > BOPT (R B 2 30 00 S B
HAb 2 87 2 FHEA A R - R A A -

AL B H A B ) B Wi 5 2 — M A Ry ] B
o e v AR T AR 5 5 AR RE o

2

R NLEFER
Annual Report 2019

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all interest-bearing financial instruments using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or
received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums
or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, an interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Non-interest income

Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Commitment fees for loans that
are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together with related direct
costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate
on the loan. Loan syndication fees are recognised as revenue when
the syndication has been completed and the Group retained no part
of the loan package for itself or retained a part at the same effective
interest rate as the other participants.

Portfolio and other management advisory and service fees are
recognised based on the applicable service contracts, usually on a
time-apportionate basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2]

Non-interest income (continued)

Net trading income

Net trading income comprises all gains and losses from changes in
the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as
held for trading and available for sale. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of derivatives to the extent as described in the
accounting policy set out in Note 2.7 are reported as “Net trading
income”.

Gains and losses on foreign exchange trading and other transactions
are also reported as “Net trading income” except for those gains and
losses on translation of foreign currencies recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2.12.

Dividend income
Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities

i. Recognition and initial measurement
The Group initially recognises loans and advances,
deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated
liabilities on the date on which they are originated. All
other financial instruments (including regular-way
purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognised
on the trade date, which is the date on which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured
initially at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.
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2 EEGEBURME AR @) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

27 HMEE - SWMEEWM  SRAME -
1A A ih T H R & 5 (s

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 A ¥ A & 4 ik A 0 (50 2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
i. M ii.
IR TERRIRE - 4 AlE 2 /0 BT 4%« DA
B H A AR ~ DA THE (A H A
A T i A IR B DA P (B AR 4R A
RAME -

Classification
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
measured at: amortised cost, FEVTOCI or FVTPL.

ik < il BT A 5 LT MR IR o LA
HESH AR AR B SE AT (H

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated as

A RANR at FVTPL:

. FHAEENEBHES . B o the asset is held within a business model whose
B G E DR EUA K B 4 objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
WE K cash flows; and

. G A E W A K 6O . the contractual terms of the financial asset give

F 303 A 1Y B 4 U e AR
ROVRA A A S RFIB -

rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

PEEAUH LEAF S LU mIERRAT
DA {3 468 T Ath 4 T A i A MR
MAEASHE & PLA-PEERE R RA
i -

A debt instrument is measured at FVTOCI only if
it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

. THEEMEBER BE .
75 A AT I A B O L

the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

o EHLVEEE S AR R E .
F 0 A 1 B 4 O e AR 2y
RARRA S A R A o

the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

TR e B 455 1 52 5 T 2 H e
A B I > ASAR I AT DL RE AR B
PR T At 4 T Wi i B2 ) HAR 2
BB B o Hige 48 5 122 0 3l B8 1)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI). This election is made on

104
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an investment-by-investment basis.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at

FVTPL.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

ii.

Classification (continued)

In addition, on initial recognition, the Group may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised
cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.

Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a
business model in which an asset is held at a portfolio
level because this best reflects the way the business is
managed and information is provided to management.
The information considered includes:

. the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio
and the operation of those policies in practice.
In particular, whether management’s strategy
focuses on earning contractual interest revenue,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of the liabilities that are funding those
assets or realising cash flows through the sale of
the assets;

. how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated
and reported to the Group’s management;

. the risks that affect the performance of the
business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks
are managed;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

ii.

Classification (continued)

Business model assessment (continued)

. how managers of the business are compensated
- e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash
flows collected; and

. the frequency, volume and timing of sales in
prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity. However,
information about sales activity is not considered
in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of
how the Group’s stated objective for managing the
financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are
realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed
and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis
are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held
to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to collect
contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely
payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is
defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the
time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period of time and for other basic lending
risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative
costs), as well as profit margin. In assessing whether the
contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest, the Group considers the contractual terms
of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition. In making the
assessment, the Group considers:
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2 EEEEBORBAR @) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
27 EWERE - &g EWNME - A 2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
hga kT & < Pk E ) liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)
2.7.1 A ¥ A & 4 ik A 0 (50 2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
ii. IMH () ii. Classification (continued)

AN G #9 B 2 i 482 7 A S AR Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely

= RFIE (4) payments of principal and interest (continued)

o FFEr R B A U R I . contingent events that would change the amount
BEECA S and timing of cash flows;

. TR . leverage features;

. 2 7 K % A K s . prepayment and extension terms;

. PR 1l A £ 1) FR 2R 9 8 B2 (A . terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows
B RRE A R Bl & from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse asset
B M arrangements); and

. 16 B 3 £ ey [ (B (EL % PR 1Y . features that modify consideration of the time
R — 0 A R R o value of money - e.g. periodical reset of interest

rates.

E R Reclassifications

45 T T TR ) AR AR AR A E T Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their

B BRAAREEE A B S RE initial recognition, except in the period after the Group

JEE W) SE B AR AZ 1 1] o changes its business model for managing financial

assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

ii.

iii.

Classification (continued)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, other
than financial guarantees and loan commitments, as
measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire (see also (iv)), or it transfers the rights
to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset
derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new
liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in profit
or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

iii.

Derecognition (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Any cumulative gain/loss recognised in OCI in respect of
equity investment securities designated as at FVTOCI is
not recognised in profit or loss on derecognition of such
securities. Any interest in transferred financial assets
that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained
by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers
assets recognised on its statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. In
such cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised.
Examples of such transactions are securities lending and
sale-and-repurchase transactions.

When assets are sold to a third party with a concurrent
total rate of return swap on the transferred assets, the
transaction is accounted for as a secured financing
transaction similar to sale-and-repurchase transactions,
because the Group retains all or substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of such assets.

In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor
transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by
the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value
of the transferred asset.

In certain transactions, the Group retains the obligation
to service the transferred financial asset for a fee.
The transferred asset is derecognised if it meets the
derecognition criteria. An asset or liability is recognised
for the servicing contract if the servicing fee is more than
adequate (asset) or is less than adequate (liability) for
performing the servicing.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

iii.

Derecognition (continued)

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or

cancelled, or expire.

Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group
evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified
asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are
substantially different, then the contractual rights to
cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed
to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset
is derecognised (see (iii)) and a new financial asset is
recognised at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at
amortised cost are not substantially different, then
the modification does not result in derecognition of
the financial asset. In this case, the Group recalculates
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and
recognises the amount arising from adjusting the gross
carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit
or loss. If such a modification is carried out because of
financial difficulties of the borrower (see (vii)), then
the gain or loss is presented together with impairment
losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified
liability are substantially different. In this case, a
new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished
and the new financial liability with modified terms is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

V.

Vi.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only
when permitted under HKFRS, or for gains and losses
arising from a group of similar transactions such as in
the Group’s trading activity.

Fair value measurement

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Group has
access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its
non-performance risk.

When one is available, the Group measures the fair value
of an instrument using the quoted price in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as
active if transactions for the asset or liability take place
with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the
Group uses valuation techniques that maximise the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique
incorporates all of the factors that market participants
would take into account in pricing a transaction.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Vi.

Fair value measurement (continued)

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial
instrument on initial recognition is normally the
transaction price - i.e. the fair value of the consideration
given or received. If the Group determines that the fair
value on initial recognition differs from the transaction
price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted
price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability nor based on a valuation technique for which
any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant
in relation to the measurement, then the financial
instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted
to defer the difference between the fair value on initial
recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently,
that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an
appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no
later than when the valuation is wholly supported by
observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid
price and an ask price, then the Group measures assets
and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short
positions at an ask price.

Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are exposed to market risk and credit risk that are
managed by the Group on the basis of the net exposure
to either market or credit risk are measured on the
basis of a price that would be received to sell a net long
position (or paid to transfer a net short position) for the
particular risk exposure. Portfolio-level adjustments —
e.g. bid-ask adjustment or credit risk adjustments that
reflect the measurement on the basis of the net exposure
- are allocated to the individual assets and liabilities on
the basis of the relative risk adjustment of each of the
individual instruments in the portfolio.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Vi.

Vii.

Fair value measurement (continued)

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand
feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the
amount payable on demand, discounted from the first
date on which the amount could be required to be paid.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the
fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.

Impairment

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on the
following financial instruments that are not measured at
FVTPL:

. financial assets that are debt instruments;
. lease receivables;

. financial guarantee contracts issued; and
. loan commitments issued.

No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL, except for the following, for which they
are measured as 12-month ECL:

. debt investment securities that are determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

. other financial instruments (other than lease
receivables) on which credit risk has not increased

significantly since their initial recognition.

Loss allowances for lease receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Vii.

Impairment (continued)

The Group considers a debt security to have low credit
risk when their credit risk rating is equivalent to the
globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’.
12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Measurement of ECL
ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
They are measured as follows:

. financial assets that are not credit-impaired at
the reporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive);

. financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date: as the difference between the
gross carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows;

. undrawn loan commitments: as the present value
of the difference between the contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group if the commitment
is drawn down and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive; and

. financial guarantee contracts: the expected
payments to reimburse the holder less any
amounts that the Group expects to recover.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Vii.

Impairment (continued)

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or
modified or an existing financial asset is replaced with
a new one due to financial difficulties of the borrower,
then an assessment is made of whether the financial
asset should be derecognised and ECL are measured as
follows:

. If the expected restructuring will not result in
derecognition of the existing asset, then the
expected cash flows arising from the modified
financial asset are included in calculating the cash
shortfalls from the existing asset.

. If the expected restructuring will result in
derecognition of the existing asset, then the
expected fair value of the new asset is treated as
the final cash flow from the existing financial asset
at the time of its derecognition. This amount is
included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the
existing financial asset that are discounted from
the expected date of derecognition to the reporting
date using the original effective interest rate of the
existing financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
financial assets carried at FVTOCI are credit-impaired.
A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge

accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Vii.

Impairment (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable data:

. significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer;

. a breach of contract such as a default or past due
event;

. the restructuring of a loan or advance by the

Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

. it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration
in the borrower’s condition is usually considered to be
credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk
of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced
significantly and there are no other indicators of
impairment. In addition, a retail loan that is overdue for
90 days or more is considered impaired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 A ¥ A & 4 ik A 0 (50 2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
vii. I 1E (48) vii.  Impairment (continued)
FlEHEA R ER @)
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Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

In making an assessment of whether an investment in
sovereign debt is credit-impaired, the Group considers
the following factors:
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The market’s assessment of creditworthiness as
reflected in the bond yields.

The rating agencies’ assessments of
creditworthiness.

The country’s ability to access the capital markets
for new debt issuance.

The probability of debt being restructured,
resulting in holders suffering losses through
voluntary or mandatory debt forgiveness.

The international support mechanisms in place
to provide the necessary support as ‘lender of last
resort’ to that country, as well as the intention,
reflected in public statements, of governments and
agencies to use those mechanisms. This includes
an assessment of the depth of those mechanisms
and, irrespective of the political intent, whether
there is the capacity to fulfil the required criteria.
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2 B BORBEE s 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
27 EWERE - &g EWNME - A 2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
hga kT & < Pk E ) liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)
2.7.1 & ﬂﬁ%&ﬁ ik £ A (40) 2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
vii. I 1H (4 vii.  Impairment (continued)
ﬁﬁ’ﬁ{;ﬂq TR B A i BB R DL R Y Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of
251 financial position
TE A5 18 5% 10 Jes 18 188 A 7 B 5 51K Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement
WREH AT of financial position as follows:
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. financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a
deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets;

. loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts: generally, as a provision;

. where a financial instrument includes both a
drawn and an undrawn component, and the
Group cannot identify the ECL on the loan
commitment component separately from those
on the drawn component: the Group presents a
combined loss allowance for both components.
The combined amount is presented as a deduction
from the gross carrying amount of the drawn
component. Any excess of the loss allowance over
the gross amount of the drawn component is
presented as a provision; and

. debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: no
loss allowance is recognised in the statement of
financial position because the carrying amount of
these assets is their fair value. However, the loss
allowance is disclosed and is recognised in the fair
value reserve.

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially
or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the borrower does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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2 B BORBEE @0 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
27 ZWMEE-EMEEWE - &AL 2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
hga kT & < Pk E ) liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)
2.7.1 A ¥ A & 4 ik A 0 (50 2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
viii, 15 Ao (H A5 1R i 76 viii. Designation at fair value through profit or loss
A E Financial assets
AR HERR IS » REFEEA T At initial recognition, the Group has designated certain
B E AP AR 2 R A financial assets as at FVTPL because this designation
e > B A e 2 TR B D ' eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
whEFEC > 5 I & i e gk A o mismatch, which would otherwise rise.
e =4 Financial liabilities
AL E AR T B AU T The Group has designated certain financial liabilities as
AR RANR » WL H at FVTPL in either of the following circumstances:
— ML
. %5 B AR PR (SR HE AR . the liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported
AR L~ B R 2 s 5] internally on a fair value basis; or
o BRAEE I BR EUBE W & Rt o the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
SE e o 5 HI B A% B B A o an accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.
272 B RSB &BH 2.7.2 Cash and cash equivalents
[ 4 K%EFRHSTEB | 440 & ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ include notes and coins on hand,
e A RAT R I AS 7 BR A B SR ) unrestricted balances held with central banks and highly liquid
TR I 4B L A (B O O A R financial assets with original maturities of three months or less
Z5 = A8 B CAE HAR S A (B A ) 1Y from the date of acquisition that are subject to an insignificant
JEBE IR SR 3E) > K A AR E [ A AR B risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Group in
Fi KR the management of its short-term commitments.
B4 I 55 [ B4 TEH TG DA B A4S AR Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the
WBIR PR o statement of financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge

accounting (continued)

2.7.3 Trading assets and liabilities

‘Trading assets and liabilities” are those assets and liabilities
that the Group acquires or incurs principally for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part of
a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit or
position taking.

Trading assets and liabilities are initially recognised and
subsequently measured at fair value in the statement of
financial position, with transaction costs recognised in profit
or loss. All changes in fair value are recognised as part of net
trading income in profit or loss.

2.7.4 Derivatives held for risk management purposes and hedge

accounting

Derivatives held for risk management purposes include all
derivative assets and liabilities that are not classified as trading
assets or liabilities. Derivatives held for risk management
purposes are measured at fair value in the statement of
financial position.

The Group designates certain derivatives held for risk
management as well as certain non-derivative financial
instruments as hedging instruments in qualifying hedging
relationships. On initial designation of the hedge, the
Group formally documents the relationship between the
hedging instrument(s) and hedged item(s), including the
risk management objective and strategy in undertaking the
hedge, together with the method that will be used to assess the
effectiveness of the hedging relationship. The Group makes an
assessment, both at inception of the hedge relationship and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the hedging instrument(s) is(are)
expected to be highly effective in offsetting the changes in the
fair value or cash flows of the respective hedged item(s) during
the period for which the hedge is designated, and whether the
actual results of each hedge are within a range of 80-125%. The
Group makes an assessment for a cash flow hedge of a forecast
transaction, of whether the forecast transaction is highly
probable to occur and presents an exposure to variations in
cash flows that could ultimately affect profit or loss. These
hedging relationships are discussed below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.4 Derivatives held for risk management purposes and hedge

accounting (continued)

s

Fair value hedges

When a derivative is designated as the hedging
instrument in a hedge of the change in fair value of a
recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment that
could affect profit or loss, changes in the fair value of
the derivative are recognised immediately in profit or
loss together with changes in the fair value of the hedged
item that are attributable to the hedged risk (in the same
line item in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as the hedged item).

If the hedging derivative expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the hedge no longer meets the criteria
for fair value hedge accounting, or the hedge designation
is revoked, then hedge accounting is discontinued
prospectively. However, if the derivative is novated to
a central clearing counterparties by both parties as a
consequence of laws or regulations without changes
in its terms except for those that are necessary for the
novation, then the derivative is not considered expired
or terminated. Any adjustment up to the point of
discontinuation to a hedged item for which the effective
interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss as
part of the recalculated effective interest rate of the item
over its remaining life.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.4 Derivatives held for risk management purposes and hedge

accounting (continued)

ii.

iii.

Cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as the hedging
instrument in a hedge of the variability in cash flows
attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability that could affect profit or
loss, the effective portion of changes in the fair value
of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive
income and presented in the hedging reserve within
equity. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair
value of the derivative is recognised immediately
in profit or loss. The amount recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
as a reclassification adjustment in the same period
as the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss, and in
the same line item in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. If the hedging
derivative expires or is sold, terminated or exercised,
or the hedge no longer meets the criteria for cash flow
hedge accounting, or the hedge designation is revoked,
then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively.
However, if the derivative is novated to a central clearing
counterparties by both parties as a consequence of
laws or regulations without changes in its terms except
for those that are necessary for the novation, then the
derivative is not considered expired or terminated.

Net investment hedges

When a derivative instrument or a non-derivative
financial liability is designated as the hedging
instrument in a hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation, the effective portion of changes in the fair
value of the hedging instrument is recognised in other
comprehensive income and presented in the translation
reserve within equity. Any ineffective portion of the
changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The amount recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss as a reclassification adjustment on disposal of the
foreign operation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.4 Derivatives held for risk management purposes and hedge

accounting (continued)

iv.

Other non-trading derivatives

If a derivative is not held for trading, and is not
designated in a qualifying hedge relationship, then all
changes in its fair value are recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a component of net income from other
financial instruments at FVTPL.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives may be embedded in another contractual
arrangement (a host contract). The Group accounts
for an embedded derivative separately from the host
contract when:

. the host contract is not an asset in the scope of
HKEFRS 9;

. the host contract is not itself carried at FVTPL;

. the terms of the embedded derivative would meet
the definition of a derivative if they were contained
in a separate contract; and

. the economic characteristics and risks of the
embedded derivative are not closely related to
the economic characteristics and risks of the host
contract.

Separated embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value, with all changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss unless they form part of a qualifying cash flow
or net investment hedging relationship. Separated
embedded derivatives are presented in the statement of
financial position together with the host contract.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.5 Loans and advances

2.7.6

‘Loans and advances’ captions in the statement of financial
position include:

loans and advances measured at amortised cost (see
2.7.1(ii)); they are initially measured at fair value plus
incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently at
their amortised cost using the effective interest method;

loans and advances mandatorily measured at FVTPL or
designated as at FVTPL; these are measured at fair value
with changes recognised immediately in profit or loss;
and

lease receivables.

When the Group purchases a financial asset and
simultaneously enters into an agreement to resell the asset
(or a substantially similar asset) at a fixed price on a future
date (reverse repo or stock borrowing), the arrangement is
accounted for as a loan or advance, and the underlying asset is
not recognised in the Group’s financial statements.

Investment securities
The ‘investment securities’ caption in the statement of
financial position includes:

debt investment securities measured at amortised
cost (see 2.7.1(ii)); these are initially measured at fair
value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and
subsequently at their amortised cost using the effective
interest method;

debt and equity investment securities mandatorily
measured at FVTPL or designated as at FVTPL; these
are at fair value with changes recognised immediately in

profit or loss;

debt securities measured at FVTOCI; and

equity investment securities designated as at FVTOCL
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.6 Investment securities (continued)
For debt securities measured at FVTOCI, gains and losses
are recognised in OCI, except for the following, which are
recognised in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost:

. interest revenue using the effective interest method;
. ECL and reversals; and
. foreign exchange gains and losses.

When debt security measured at FVTOCI is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

The Group elects to present in OCI changes in the fair value of
certain investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading. The election is made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

Gains and losses on such equity instruments are never
reclassified to profit or loss and no impairment is recognised
in profit or loss. Dividends are recognised in profit or loss
unless they clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment, in which case they are recognised in OCI.
Cumulative gains and losses recognised in OCI are transferred
to retained earnings on disposal of an investment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there
is currently enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (“repos”) are
reclassified in the financial statements as pledged assets when the
transferee has the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge
the collateral; the counterparty liability is included in deposits from
banks and other financial institutions or deposits from customers,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to customers
and banks or placements with banks and other financial institutions,
as appropriate.

The difference between sale and repurchase prices is treated as
an interest and accrued over the life of the agreements using the
effective interest method. Securities lent to counterparties are also
retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchase
and sale are recorded with the gain or loss included in the trading
income. The obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a
trading liability.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are reported as off balance-sheet items
and are stated at fair value. In the recovery of impaired loans and
advances, the Group may take possession of the collateral assets
through court proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by
the borrowers. In accordance with the Group’s accounting policy set
out in Note 2.7.1(vii), impairment allowances for impaired loans and
advances are maintained after taking into account the net realisable
value of the collateral assets. On a sale transaction of repossessed
assets, the amount received will be used to offset the loans and
advances first until they are fully recovered, and any remaining
amount will be released to the borrowers.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of an entity: (a) that engages
in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions
with other components of the same entity), (b) whose operating
results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision
maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and assess its performance, and (c) for which discrete
financial information is available.

2.12 Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Bank’s functional and presentation currency.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translations at year- end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in
other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items that are
measured at fair value whose fair value changes recognised in
the income statement, such as equity held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items that are
measured at fair value whose fair value changes recognised in
the equity, such as equity investments in respect of which an
election has been made to present subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income are recorded as other
comprehensive income and included in the fair value reserve
in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group entities
(none of which has a functional currency which is the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities of these entities are translated at the
closing rate at the end of the reporting period;

. their income statements are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions); and

. all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate
component of equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

22

2.13

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)  Group companies (continued)

On consolidation, the exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are included in a separate
component of equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

(d)  Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

Property, plant and equipment

Bank premises and properties comprise mainly branches and offices.
Bank premises and properties are shown at fair value, based on
periodic, but at least triennial, valuations by external independent
valuers, less subsequent depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation
at the date of revaluation is restated proportionately with the change
in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying amount
of the asset after revaluation equals its revalued amount. All other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or
losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases
of property, plant and equipment.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of
bank premises and properties are credited to other reserves in
shareholders’ equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the
same asset are charged against bank premises revaluation reserve
directly in equity; all other decreases are expensed in the income
statement. Each year the difference between the depreciation
amount based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset expensed
in the income statement and the depreciation amount based on
the asset’s original cost is transferred from the bank premises
revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued amounts to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Bank premises and properties Over the remaining lease period of
the land on which the properties
are situated or their estimated
useful lives of 50 years, whichever
is shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term of the leased

premises or their estimated useful
lives of 10 years whichever is
shorter

Furniture and equipment 4 to 10 years

Others 2 to 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount, with the amount charged directly to
the income statement.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained
earnings as a movement in reserves.
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2.14 REY#E 2.14 Investment properties

R A WS HR AR 0 i i B A 8 (BT A I AT T
T AL ARG 2 W2 R E Y -

B ) b 5 A (BLHE AH B 22 5 A ) =t
o AR TERRAZ o B W DAA T E (5
MR o PR (E TO AR B T S5 AR RH A > A%
R G EE 2 VR A B BUIR L 2 AR A 22 AR
Wb o NIRRT > AR SR B
RSB TT 35 - 1] G0 A 35 B T 35 2 3 B 32 5
M B Y B B 4 U R TR o R SR AR
I % A (L e U 2= B A 2 4 51 AT o i
B Gl B 4 T AR A o P 8% R AR AT
BOEY) M & 2 LG > BT 8 1 R R
iaEiagyE ¥ ¥ DA I-Ee-

B 2 NP R e CH b e 4%) B AR
B 2 FH S oA DL B AR 4 B IR 7 LB 4 A B R
A EH WA Z Bk -

O S T 492 AR 0L 56 HE i ) 3 T T AR
AR B U o AR U i 2 o T R 0 Tl R
AR AR EY L LA B
R A B s ELE BUR R & AT B HoAl
B 4 gt AN R B S R T AR -

LR S H R 5 BLOE A B 2 R AR R A
AR A AT RE B P A RS B - T2 H RS BE 4 AT
SEMLETAR > J7 B EE 2 MR AN ER o BT A H:
b A A B AR AR I T AR 2 B B [H] 1 k4
FATFR S

ST (B B M 2 R R

gy Em A A AEH 28R Y
2R A o AL Er R IR 5 H R
W O AR AR B 2 A o R op R
LR AR AR I W 2 2 WS SR I W 26
Lot o DU IAR - B 2 AR AR
ST 1k o I TR BT 40 S BB W) 36 K H AR
AR o

Property that is held for long-term yields or for capital appreciation
or both and that is not occupied by the companies in the Group is
classified as investment property.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including
related transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If this information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods such as
recent transaction prices on less active markets or discounted cash
flow projections. These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by external
valuers. Investment properties that are being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment properties, or for which the market has
become less active, continue to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment properties reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in light of current market conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the properties. Some of those
outflows are recognised as liabilities, including finance lease
liabilities in respect of land classified as investment properties; other
outflows including contingent rent payments, are not recognised in
the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. Properties
that are being constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment and
stated at cost until construction or development is completed, at
which time they are reclassified and subsequently accounted for as
investment properties.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Investment properties (continued)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property,
plant and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed of the acquired
subsidiaries at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition
. The
carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or

of an associate is included in “Investments in associate”

more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. Goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. Each of those cash-generating units is
represented by each primary reporting segment.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Gains or losses from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income
statement when the assets are derecognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

(a)

(b)

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful life of four years.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer
software programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the production
of identifiable and unique software products controlled by
the Group, and that will probably generate economic benefits
exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible
assets. Direct costs include the software development
employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.

Computer software development costs recognised as
intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life
(not exceeding four years).

Trading rights

Trading rights represent eligibility rights with indefinite useful
lives to trade on or through The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and are tested for impairment annually. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life is reviewed
annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable, if not, the change in the useful
life assessment from indefinite to infinite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17

2.18

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, but are tested annually for impairment. Assets that
are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation),
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, if the deferred income tax arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for
as deferred income tax. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.
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2 EEGEBURME AR @) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Fif3Ht () 2.18 Income tax (continued)
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Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associate, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-
sale investments and cash flow hedges, which are charged or credited
directly to equity, is also credited or charged directly to equity and is
subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the
deferred gain or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of the reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

2.19 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19

Employee benefits (continued)

(b)  Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement scheme
under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the
“ORSO Scheme”) and another defined contribution retirement
scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for those employees of the
Group who are eligible and have elected to participate in the
schemes. The Group’s contributions to the ORSO Scheme are
made based on a percentage of the eligible employees’ basic
salaries and those made to the MPF Scheme are made based
on a percentage of the eligible employees’ relevant income as
defined in the MPF Scheme. These contributions are expensed
as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees of the Group who leave the schemes prior
to the contributions vesting fully. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

2.20 Provisions

2.21

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when (i) the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events; (ii) it is more likely than not that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
(iii) the amount can be reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there is a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow of resources will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow of resources with
respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Leased assets (continued)

(i)  Asalessee

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. For the Group, low-
value assets are typically copiers. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-
use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2.13),
except for the following types of right-of-use asset:

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment property carried at fair value in
accordance with note 2.14;

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold land and
buildings where the Group is the registered owner
of the leasehold interest are carried at fair value in
accordance with note 2.13.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

(A)

(B)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment property in ‘Property, plant
and equipment’, and presents lease liabilities in “Other
liabilities”.

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019

In the comparative period, leases that transfer
substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted
for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded
together with the obligation, excluding the interest
element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets
held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid
land lease payments under finance leases, are included in
property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives
of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged
to the income statement so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on
the straight-line basis over the period of the lease. The
Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights
are also accounted as operating leases.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

222

2.23

Leased assets (continued)

(i)  Asalessee (continued)
(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019 (continued)

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases,
assets leased out are included in property, plant and
equipment in the statement of financial position. They
are depreciated over their expected useful lives on a
basis consistent with similar owned property, plant and
equipment. Rental income (net of any incentives given to
lessees) is recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’
maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash and balances
with banks and other financial institutions and placements with
banks and other financial institutions.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
Group’s control.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the Group’s control, or a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised either because an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation but is not probable or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as
an asset.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(®)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

@

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent. Key management
personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Bank and its holding companies, directly
or indirectly, including any directors (whether executive
or otherwise), executive committee members and senior
management (as defined under the remuneration policy)
of the Group.

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

®

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group.

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity).

The entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by that person in their dealings with the entity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

S

2.26

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained earnings within the equity section of the
statement of financial position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Bank’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of
individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions.
These assets and income arising thereon are excluded from these
financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates

and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical

experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

3.1

Credit loss

The Group reviews its portfolios to assess lifetime ECL credit
impaired on a monthly basis. In determining whether a credit
impaired lifetime ECL should be recorded in the income statement,
the Group makes judgements as to whether there is any observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio before the decrease can be
identified with an individual in that portfolio. This evidence may
include observable data indicating that there has been an adverse
change in the payment status of borrowers in a group, or in the
national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
assets in the group of borrowers. Management uses estimates based
on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing
of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

3.2

3.3

3.4

353

Fair value of derivatives

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using various valuation techniques
according to the nature of the financial instruments. These include
third party price quotation, a discounted cash flow and option
pricing models. These models are built by reputable system suppliers
and are widely used in the market. They are reviewed and calibrated
by qualified personnel independent of the area that created them.
Valuation outputs are generated from these systems using relevant
current observable market parameters and are verified before they
are used for financial reporting purposes.

Fair value of bank premises and properties

The fair value of the leasehold building is estimated based on the
valuation made by an independent professionally qualified valuer on
an open market basis.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined
based on the value-in-use calculations. These calculations require
the use of estimates of discount rate and long-term growth rate.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

3.6 Leases

®

(ii)

Classification of interest in leasehold land and buildings held
for own use

In accordance with HKAS 16, Property, plant and equipment,
the Group chooses to apply either the cost model or the
revaluation model as its accounting policy for items of
property, plant and equipment held for own use on a class-by-
class basis. In applying this policy, the Group has concluded
that its registered ownership interests in leasehold properties
and the right to use other properties leased under tenancy
agreements are two separate groupings of assets which differ
significantly in their nature and use. Accordingly, they
are regarded by the Group as separate classes of asset for
subsequent measurement policies in accordance with the
above accounting policies. Specifically, registered ownership
interests are carried under the revaluation model, while rights
to use properties under tenancy agreements are carried at
depreciated cost.

In making this judgment, the Group has taken into account
that, as the registered owner of a leasehold property, the
Group is able to benefit fully from any changes in the
valuation of these properties whether as holding gains or by
selling the property interest to others, as well as being able
to use the properties in its operation free of paying market
rents. In contrast, the shorter term tenancy agreements
are typically for periods of no more than 10 years and are
subject to other restrictions, in particular on transferability
of the Group’s tenancy rights to others. These shorter terms
tenancy agreements are executed in order to retain operational
flexibility and to reduce the Group’s exposure to the property
market fluctuation. They may contain termination or
extension clauses, and/or variable rental payment clauses
linked to the level of sales generated by the Group’s use of
premises, and are typically subject to market rent reviews
every 2 to 5 years.

Determining the lease term

As explained in the above accounting policies, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term. In determining
the lease term at the commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable by the Group, the Group
evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal options
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the
option, including favorable terms, leasehold improvements
undertaken and the importance of that underlying asset to the
Group’s operation. The lease term is reassessed when there
is a significant event or significant change in circumstance
that is within the Group’s control. Any increase or decrease in
the lease term would affect the amount of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets recognised in future years.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1

Overall risk management

Pursuant to the implementation of the New Capital Accord since
January 2007, the Group has been practising sound risk management
in congruence with the principles and requirements of the New
Accord. Increased attention to corporate governance, Board
oversight and a top-down approach permeated through the Group’s
risk management structure, processes, policies and internal control.
In particular, following the establishment of the Basel III framework
which promotes the resilience of banks’ liquidity risk profile, the
Group has been sufficiently upgrading its liquidity risk management
standards. For its business plan and activities, the Group identifies,
assesses, monitors, controls, reports and reviews the major risks to
ensure capital adequacy, compliance with regulatory guidelines, and
adherence to the Board’s risk appetite, including during times of
stress.

Risk management structure and principles

The Group has established policies and procedures for the
identification, measurement, control and monitoring of risk factors
(including credit, liquidity, market, interest rate, operational,
reputation, strategic, legal and compliance risks). Central to the
Group’s risk management is the Board’s oversight, which ultimately
endorses all core risk management policies and their subsequent
amendments. Two Risk Management Committees, one at Board
level and the other at senior executive level, reinforce the Board and
management’s oversight in the risk management structure, process
and policies. The management of the Group, the relevant functional
committees and the Risk Management Department review and
revise these policies and procedures on a regular basis. The Group’s
Internal Audit Department also performs regular independent
review on compliance with policies and procedures.

Launch of new products and services

The launch of new banking products and services has to go
through the essential steps of a development and approval process
to ensure their commercial viability, ethical suitability and
statutory compliance. The Product Development and Management
Department or other relevant business unit is responsible to prepare
a proposal for any new product or service to the New Product &
Business Committee (chaired by a Deputy Chief Executive of the
Bank) for approval. The main objective of the process is to identify
and assess the risks associated with the product, and to implement
steps to mitigate or control these risks.

In accordance with New Basel Accord, the Group adopts the
following approaches for its credit, market and operational risk
exposure in the calculation of its capital adequacy ratio (“CAR”):

Credit risk
Market risk
Operational risk

- Standardized approach
- Standardized approach
- Basic indicator approach
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a borrower or counterparty of the Group
will be unable or unwilling to honour a repayment obligation.
The Group has standards, policies and procedures and designated
functional departments in place to control and monitor these risks.

The Group devotes considerable resources to maintaining sound
credit risk management. Management has set credit policies and
systems to identify, measure, monitor and control risks inherent
in various lending businesses. This process ensures prudence,
minimises operational omissions in credit matters, and aims at early
detection of potential problems, thereby minimising business loss.

High-level credit policies of the Group are set, reviewed and
constantly updated by the relevant functional departments and
committees, and for prominent issues, by the management or even
the Board to take balanced account of dynamic market situations,
regulatory requirements, the Group’s usual prudent lending
practices and its latest business strategies. All these credit policies,
processes and practices, as they are developed, updated, reviewed
and revised, are written from time to time into Credit Manuals and
supplementary lending product manuals for internal control and
compliance purposes. Given the Bank’s privatisation in late 2010
and its subsequently more intimate alignment with the policies and
risk appetite of ICBC (the “Parent Bank”), the Bank’s credit risk
management have been increasingly taking into account the Parent
Bank’s credit process, policies and information. This is with an
ultimate goal to fit constructively into the Parent Bank’s unified and
consolidated credit risk policy.

Credit authorities are delegated to individual approvers for
efficiency and productivity purposes. Except for taxi/public light
bus loans, and consumer loans with small amount, no business
originating units can singly approve any loan. Loans approved by
business originating units are subject to approval criteria pre-set
by the Credit Function or Credit Committee. Otherwise, the Group
requires a “dual” approval whereby loan proposals shall require
joint approval by the Business Line and Credit Function. The Bank’s
Credit Committee, which deliberates all credit policies and large
loans, within its credit authority approved by the Parent Bank, shall
not pass any credit-related proposal if its Credit Function approvers
disagree. Only the sizable loan proposals deliberated by the Credit
Committee would be submitted to final approver for signature if and
where it is needed.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2

Credit risk (continued)

The Credit Approval Department (CAD) and the Loans
Administration Department (LAD) are the centralised departments
in the Bank mandated to carry out credit assessment and credit
administration respectively. They perform independent credit
assessment, post-approval credit administration and other credit
control functions to ensure that the credit process complies with
credit policies and guidelines laid down by the management.
Apart from the independent credit assessment and matrix
approval process, regular post-approval inspection by the Credit
and Investment Management Department (CMD) and audits are
conducted on specific loan portfolios or operating units in the credit
process. To maintain their independence, the Credit Approval
Department, Loans Administration Department and Credit and
Investment Management Department of the Bank have direct
reporting lines to a Deputy Chief Executive who is independent of
business. The same control, supplemented by system support and
regular mark-to-market by the Risk Management Department, also
applies to the counterparty credit risk of all derivative products.

The Group employs RAROC techniques to help ensure that its loan
assets are commensurately priced on a credit risk-adjusted basis
according to Basel Internal Rating principles.

Management spares no efforts in monitoring the quality and
behavior of the loan portfolio. The Group’s internal credit
risk grading system consisting of 21 grades built on Basel
Internal Rating-Compliant Attributes is adopted for credit risk
differentiation purposes. With internal data to be constantly
enriched through years of experience, it is expected that the Group
can make further use of the credit statistics to profile and track down
credit risk migration, to measure loan default probabilities and to
practise other credit risk management processes, of which the new
credit rating model is and will substantially be an integral part.

The Group’s credit risk appetite is spelt out, disseminated and
referred to in daily credit decisions. The purpose is to limit the range
of credit proposals presented in the credit approval process to those
that fit the Group’s risk appetite developed out of the Group’s past
experience, the Board’s preference and risk/reward evaluation.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

The Bank is vigilant about risk concentration and has therefore been
practising credit risk exposure limits to individual customers in
absolute amount and as a percentage of the Bank’s equity, to industry
sectors and to geographical markets.

The Group’s quarterly credit guidelines and loan portfolio review
have been implemented for years. In economic bad times, it is
basic to the mechanism for initiating pre-emptive measures to help
stabilise the quality of the Group’s loan asset portfolio. These have by
now been supplemented by the Parent Bank’s credit risk appetites,
industry and common customer credit policies. The credit resources
of the Parent Bank have been significantly useful to the Group in its
loan business, in customer selection, screening, credit review and
decision.

The Group attaches increasing importance to post-approval risk
monitoring. This is performed by the Credit and Investment
Management Department which reviews for potentially problematic
borrowing accounts and performs group review of special mention
accounts and customers in high risk portfolios. It is also performed
by Business Line relationship managers and Credit Approval
Department who identify and review Early Warning List customers.
(a)  Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other
credit enhancements

2019 2018
Tt Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEEAMENZAE MBS A ¢ Credit risk exposures relating to on-balance
sheet assets are as follows:
B4 K AE $R 47 [R] 2 B Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions
At 4 Rl AR 2 5 R 138,338,758 151,374,532
TESRAT [ 2 S Al 6 il 4 A Placements with and advances to banks and other financial
ZAE R BB institutions 104,951,872 74,217,313
FRE 22 5 i 4 & Financial assets held for trading 492,484 -
DLAEE A R Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A B4 Pl 5,047,582 525,689
e TR Derivative financial instruments 10,190,659 9,144,877
A 3 B A R IH Advances and other accounts 474,986,476 475,789,393
DA T8 (B 58 5 Ath 4 17 i 4 Financial investments measured at fair value through other
A W4 Rl % comprehensive income 152,374,354 101,065,910
D B R AR AR & R S Financial investments measured at amortised cost 46,598,631 66,214,809
H Al B Other assets 16,985,407 12,378,929
4 B B AL R DA AR 2 45 BB #E A5 ¢ Credit risk exposures relating to off-balance
sheet items are as follows:
B K aE N HoAAS SR B R G Loan commitments and other credit related commitments 220,787,301 216,915,331
PRSI R S HAm A SEAHBH 5 A 4 8 Financial guarantees and other credit related
contingent liabilities 12,582,858 20,572,950

At the end of the reporting period

1,183,336,382 1,128,199,733
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(b)

Credit quality

Gross loans and advances

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances at the
end of the reporting periods can be assessed by reference to the
internal rating system adopted by the Group.

The Credit Function and Credit Committee decide an
individual borrower’s credit rating. Credit rating is a function
of quantitative and management attributes that include
economic outlook, account conduct and industry risk. The
Group has a different rating scale for large corporates and
SMEs. The external ratings of S&P, Moody’s and Fitch will be
referenced, if available.

The following table gives a mapping of the internal rating of
the portfolio of loans and advances that were neither past due
nor impaired to the loan classification framework adopted by
the HKMA.

Pass Grades Ato]
Special Mention Grades KtoL
Grades A - J: Loans where borrowers are currently meeting
commitment and full repayment of interest and principal
is not in doubt. There are 10 grades within the performing
category from A to J.

Grades K - L: All pass grade borrowers which have overdue
loans for a period exceeding one month are downgraded
to special mention rating or below, unless with strong
justification irrespective of the internal ratings. Borrowers
exhibiting one or more of the characteristics per the HKMA’s
special mention or non-performing grades definition or as
the general economic environment deteriorates, may also be
graded K & L, notwithstanding the absence of overdue loan
or default record. This is a stringent credit rating approach to
raise the Group’s credit risk alertness.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(b)

Credit quality (continued)

Gross loans and advances (continued)

Loans and advances individually impaired

The Group has a policy to govern customers downgraded to
the NPL grades when their unsecured loans are overdue over
90 days. It is very seldom that a borrower with an unsecured
loan outstanding due for over 90 days would be retained in
performing loan instead of impaired. Impaired borrowing
accounts are typically transferred to management by the
Credit and Investment Management Department, so that the
prospect and means of recovery can be more independently
evaluated, decided and implemented. The Special Assets
Section under Credit and Investment Management
Department may not take any immediate recovery action.
It may even help in circumstances where the customer in
question is deemed to be able to be rehabilitated and the
collateral is important to the customer’s continued business
operation. The Group may at times join or seek agreement
with other creditor banks to stand still in concert. Otherwise,
the Group will take appropriate measures to preserve the
customer’s assets, to maximise recovery and to quickly realise
property collateral in a timely manner either by private sale or
by public auction at prices that are in acceptable proximity to
the average of several external valuations.

The Group adopts an objective individual impairment policy
in compliance with the requirement of HKFRS 9. Impairment
requirement, if any, can always be traceable back to reasonably
expected discounted repayment cash flows and/or the assessed
net realisable value of the collateral.

Renegotiated loans that would otherwise be past due or
impaired

Restructuring activities include extended payment
arrangements, approved external management plans,
modification and deferral of payments. Following
restructuring, a previously overdue customer account is reset
to a normal status and managed together with other similar
restructured debts by the Special Assets Section under Credit
and Investment Management Department. Restructuring
policies and practices are based on indicators or criteria which,
in the judgement of management, indicate that payment will
most likely continue. These policies are kept under continual
review. Renegotiated loans that would otherwise be past due
or impaired totalled HK$190 million as at 31 December 2019
(2018: HK$239 million). They are retained in non-performing
loans as long as there is no sufficiently good reason to believe
that the obligor will be able to sustainably meet the re-
scheduled loan repayment terms.
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4 E?J‘%EL Fﬁ%ﬁ (%) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 'f% Pﬂ EL Fﬁi (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(b) [FEHF (#) (b)  Credit quality (continued)
EEA N H A AR I A B () Gross loans and advances (continued)

BB R PN

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 2019
B EFER AT FS T Ak T T T#1L T#L
Credit rating Internal rating HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EH SR Pass grade A-E 119,265,306 23,327,283 - 142,592,589
F-H 227,080,077 6,146,531 - 233,226,608
1] 85,337,519 1,960,748 - 87,298,267
I 1 A Special mention grade K-L 1,586,915 5,171,042 - 6,757,957
AR ~ mI5E ~ R R A Substandard, Doubtful,

Loss grade M-O - - 4,983,758 4,983,758
M5t Total 433,269,817 36,605,604 4,983,758 474,859,179

R B 5P E BB
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 2018
B HFER A % T T T T T
Credit rating Internal rating HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
EH# Pass grade A-E 135,790,250 11,708,930 - 147,499,180
F-H 189,691,709 10,302,530 - 199,994,239
I-J 90,759,458 22,209,342 = 112,968,800
R o AR Special mention grade K-L 1,724,760 13,771,172 = 15,495,932

WAR ~ Al 5E ~ R AL Substandard, Doubtful,
Loss grade M-O - - 3,895,829 3,895,829
i Total 417,966,177 57,991,974 3,895,829 479,853,980
TREH ARSI E — R =FEL The following table sets out information about the overdue
i 151K B 1 R o status of loans and in Stages 1, 2 and 3.

B—RE B B REB BERR
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 2019
T#x T#xT T#T T# T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Hi 41 Current 433,179,099 35,446,980 637,179 469,263,258
1A B 30 H Past due up to 30 days 90,718 274,342 1,903 366,963
imi31-60 H Past due 31-60 days - 414,944 15,567 430,511
i #61-90 H Past due 61-90 days - 469,338 79,909 549,247
9o H Lk |k Past due over 90 days - - 4,249,200 4,249,200
5t Total 433,269,817 36,605,604 4,983,758 474,859,179
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4 E?J‘%EL Fﬁ%ﬁ (%) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 'f% Pﬂ EL Fﬁi (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(b) [FEHF (#) (b)  Credit quality (continued)
BT H A R TE A B (4) Gross loans and advances (continued)
FME HME HEMEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 2018
T Tt T T#T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
34 Current 417,818,142 57,209,683 254,243 475,282,068
i ) A 30 H Past due up to 30 days 147,389 52,797 4,387 204,573
i #31-60H Past due 31-60 days 646 482,501 146,694 629,841
#niH61-90 H Past due 61-90 days - 246,993 43,468 290,461
0 H Lk | Past due over 90 days - = 3,447,037 3,447,037
Hat Total 417,966,177 57,991,974 3,895,829 479,853,980
R B e A MR IH A Ah > IR = F— L Other than gross loans and advances, no financial assets were
A Jp T — AR 2 il A R I > 3l past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting periods of
AT AT <5 Pl T 2 A L J 1 1E R Bl (E 2019 & 2018.
127 K 7 a8 57 Debt and equity securities
TEIRR T+ ZH =1 — H e g s The table below presents an analysis of financial investments
I8 EF 2 WAL G AT > TR A e by rating agency designation at 31 December, based on S&P’s
W2 R AR AR R R A B 2 ratings or their equivalent to the respective categories of
EREAT o FERA ZF BT RN financial investments. In the absence of such issue ratings, the
LR o HIER A B AT N8R Al 2 BF 56 rating scale adopted by the issuers is used.
T8 2 T 3 4 i B Financial assets held for trading
2019 2018
At Rt
Total Total
T#T TH#TT
ZE 2019 HK$°000 HK$000
AAA AAA - _
AA-FEAA+ AA- to AA+ 148,268 -
A-FA+ A-to A+ 194,668 -
i A - Lower than A- 71,659 -
A ¥ A% Unrated 77,889 -
A5k Total 492,484 -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(b)  Credit quality (continued)

Debt and equity securities (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2019 2018

Mk st

Total Total

T T IT

e Sy ¥ 3 2019 HK$’000 HK$°000
AAA AAA - -
AA-FEAA+ AA- to AA+ - -
A-FA+ A-to A+ - -
&R A- Lower than A— - _
KEAK Unrated 5,047,582 525,689
st Total 5,047,582 525,689

VL TR 408 b 2 i MK i A I 5 7

Financial investments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

2019

R B MR B BEREB st

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

T T T#HL T#HL

ot S 3 2019 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
AAA AAA 5,941,467 - - 5,941,467
AA-FAA+ AA-to AA+ 51,811,437 - - 51,811,437
A-EA+ A-to A+ 62,998,479 2,820,900 - 65,819,379
Kt A- Lower than A- 17,374,421 707,832 - 18,082,253
Rk Unrated 10,719,818 - - 10,719,818
Mt Total 148,845,622 3,528,732 - 152,374,354

DA TR 408 Al 2 i 25 A S < b B

Financial investments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

2018

P B 5 BB o =B Mt

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

T RS RS T 0

—%F— 2018 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
AAA AAA 12,040,602 = = 12,040,602
AA-BAA+ AA-to AA+ 7,886,070 = = 7,886,070
A-ZEA+ A-to A+ 46,971,695 = = 46,971,695
&R A- Lower than A- 18,314,191 805,980 = 19,120,171
FNLE Unrated 14,976,104 71,268 = 15,047,372
Mgt Total 100,188,662 877,248 = 101,065,910
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4 B E| B A B (an) 4

42 17 HEBE (80

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(b) [FEHF (#) (b)  Credit quality (continued)
155 R 13 55 (40

Debt and equity securities (continued)

DL B 8 AN A\ W 4 ik B Financial investments measured at amortized cost
2019

BRB R BB A
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
T# T T T
e S 2019 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
AAA AAA 8,999,878 - - 8,999,878
AA-BAA+ AA-to AA+ 1,807,123 - - 1,807,123
A-ZEA+ A-to A+ 23,918,154 60,572 - 23,978,726
& A- Lower than A- 3,152,846 - - 3,152,846
KRk Unrated 8,318,188 341,870 - 8,660,058
M5t Total 46,196,189 402,442 - 46,598,631

A A AR £ b 5 Financial investments measured at amortized cost

2018
BB 5 BB 5= B Mgt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
TsTT TG Tt 0 T
—F— 2018 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
AAA AAA 9,612,159 = - 9,612,159
AA-ZEAA+ AA-to AA+ 20,391,326 = = 20,391,326
A-EA+ A-to A+ 17,134,123 = = 17,134,123
EHAA- Lower than A- 3,814,578 109,032 = 3,923,610
PR Unrated 14,708,486 445,105 = 15,153,591
Mt Total 65,660,672 554,137 = 66,214,809
KEHES Investment portfolio

RoE—NEFH=Z+—H > AEE
ZAEHFAA B1,970 T > B F— )\
T H = — H 21,6291 W oo 38 i
21% > 958048 W ot B AL A 2 30% 4% 7t
SR CEREY M EZ KIS LE
I~ W IC R N R EHE - AR LR T
B ot HAh B W EHE - ZAAMEE
76%J1> LA 43 -5 {8 48 HoAth 2 T Wi 35 A R
BIHITEE - M & 2 81%E N B &
A A A o A 42 B 2 {8 2 AL A MR R AR
MRE 2 R AR R A > WA S
HHGEE 2 NG > %% N Eb
&R Rk EEZE B G &G E A H
IR BT — YOI -
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s debt securities portfolio
amounted to HK$197.0 billion, a 21% increase over the
HK$162.9 billion as at 31 December 2018. HK$58 billion or
30% of the portfolio will mature in 2020. The majority of the
portfolio is denominated in USD, HKD and CNY whereas the
rest are in other currencies, such as AUD and EUR. 76% of the
portfolio is kept in the measured at FVTOCI book category,
81% of the portfolio falls within the investment grade category.
The Group’s debt securities portfolio operates under a strict
and prudent risk management framework and is in compliance
with all pre-determined internal investment guidelines, which
are reviewed and approved annually by the Credit Committee
and ALCO.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(c)

(d)

Derivatives

The Group maintains strict control of counterparty credit risk
limits, which subject to pre-settlement risk and settlement
risk, on open derivative positions. The pre-settlement risk is
measured using Current Exposure Method, which included
the current fair value of the instruments that are favorable
to the Group (i.e., assets where their fair values are positive)
and the potential future exposure depending on the type of
the instrument and the remaining maturity. Settlement risk is
controlled and minimized through delivery versus payment
or such delivery is via central clearing house, and otherwise,
a daily settlement limit to the counterparty is required and
subjected to daily monitoring. The counterparty credit risk
exposure is managed as part of the overall lending limits
with counterparties on nominal amounts, Collateral or other
security is obtained for credit risk exposures either in the form
of margin deposits or when the accrued mark to market loss
exceeds a predetermined threshold.

Master netting arrangements

The Group further restricts its exposure to credit risk by
entering into master netting arrangements with counterparties
with which it undertakes a significant volume of transactions.
Master netting arrangements do not generally result in an
offset of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial
position, as transactions are usually settled on a gross basis.
However, the credit risk is reduced by a master netting
arrangement to the extent that if an event of default occurs, all
amounts with the counterparty are terminated and settled on a
net basis.

Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that
funds are available to a customer to settle his obligations
as required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit which
represent irrevocable assurances that the Group will make
payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its
obligations to third parties carry the same credit risk as loans.
Documentary and commercial letters of credit which are
written undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer
authorising a third party to draw drafts on the Group up to
a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions are
collateralised by the underlying shipments of goods to which
they relate and therefore carry less risk than direct lending.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees
or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments
to extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to loss in an
amount equal to the total unused commitments.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(e)

(0]

(g)

Credit-related commitments (continued)

However, even in the worst scenario, loss is likely to be less
than the total unused commitments, as most commitments
to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining
specific credit standards. The Group monitors the term
to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term
commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk
than shorter-term commitments.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group holds collateral against loans and advances to
customers in the forms of mortgages over property, other
registered securities over assets, cash deposits and guarantees.
Collateral generally is not held over loans and advances to
banks, except when securities are held as part of reverse
repurchase and securities borrowing activity. Collateral held
as security for financial assets other than loans and advances is
determined by the nature of the instrument.

Credit risk stress test

In accordance with the HKMA’s supervisory policy guidelines,
the Group runs the credit risk stress test periodically in
estimation of the probable credit loss in mild, moderate and
severe crisis scenarios. The Group performs the credit risk
stress test on the basis of the empirical data gathered during
the Asian financial crisis spanning 1998 and 2004 (including
the 2003 SARS epidemic and the 2008 financial tsunami).
The Senior Executive Risk Management Committee reviews
the stress test, its parameters and their impact on the Group’s
regulatory capital adequacy ratio. Contingency measures will
be devised to control possible adversities, if deemed necessary.

Based on the stage transition of credit exposures estimated
under the stress scenarios, expected credit loss of exposure are
calculated leveraging on existing IFRS9 models. For credit risk
risk-weighted asset (RWA), credit risk stress test takes into
account the projected migration of ratings of credit exposures
to estimate the impact to RWA. Past due exposure is subject to
150% risk weight.

All the above credit risk reports are reviewed quarterly by
the Senior Executive Risk Management Committee and the
Risk Management Committee of the Board of Directors.
Warning signals or breach of stress-testing triggers, if any,
will be investigated, discussed, rectified or dealt with, and, if
necessary, be reported to the Risk Management Committee
of the Board of Directors in due course for information,
instruction or approval.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(h)

Amounts arising from ECL

Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and expert credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred for an exposure
by comparing:

- the remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at
the reporting date; with

- the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that
was estimated at the time of initial recognition of
the exposure (adjusted where relevant for changes in
prepayment expectations).

The Group uses three criteria for determining whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk:

- quantitative test based on movement in PD;
- qualitative indicators; and
- a backstop of 30 days past due

Credit risk grades

The Group allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade
based on a variety of data that is determined to be predictive
of the risk of default and applying experienced credit
judgement. Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and
quantitative factors that are indicative of risk of default. These
factors vary depending on the nature of the exposure and the
type of borrower. Credit risk grades are defined and calibrated
such that the risk of default occurring increases exponentially
as the credit risk deteriorates so, for example, the difference
in risk of default between credit risk grades 1 and 2 is smaller
than the difference between credit risk grades 2 and 3.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(h)

Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Credit risk grades (continued)

Each exposure is allocated to a credit risk grade on initial
recognition based on available information about the
borrower. Exposures are subject to ongoing monitoring, which
may result in an exposure being moved to a different credit
risk grade.

The table below provides an indicative mapping of how the
Group’s internal credit risk grades relate to PD and, for the
loan portfolio.

TNHEF £
15 T 8 1A 78 ¥ 8 Weighted
Credit rating Internal rating average PD
1EH A Pass grade A-E 0.48%
F-H 0.94%
1-J 1.13%
[ RE & Special mention grade K-L 1.35%
WAL~ TEE ~ R A Substandard, Doubtful, Loss grade M-O 100%
B 1 A SR AE 4 Generating the term structure of PD
{5 P JL g & 31 T e S JaRL g 1 9 40 R A Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination

SIS R I T B A\ B o AR A
I L £ T Ja B ) A B 7 ) R - LA
TR 1 i [ DA % i B A KON TR L
B A7 P Ja B SR At 23 o i T LA
& - IR e 00 I 3 555 225
HO R o AR AR B AT R R AR T 0 A
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JE AL o
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of the term structure of PD for exposures. The Group collects
performance and default information about its credit risk
exposures analysed by jurisdiction or region and by type of
product and borrower as well as by credit risk grading. For
some portfolios, information purchased from external credit
reference agencies is also used. The Group employs statistical
models to analyse the data collected and generate estimates of
the remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are
expected to change as a result of the passage of time.

Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly
The Group assesses whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition at each reporting date.
Determining whether an increase in credit risk is significant
depends on the characteristics of the financial instrument and
the borrower, and the geographical region. What is considered
significant differs for different types of lending, in particular
between wholesale and retail.

The credit risk may be deemed to have increased significantly
since initial recognition based on qualitative factors linked
to the Group’s credit risk management processes that may
not otherwise be fully reflected in its quantitative analysis on
a timely basis. This will be the case for exposures that meet
certain heightened risk criteria, such as exposure on a watch
list. Such qualitative factors are based on its expert judgment
and relevant historical experiences.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(h)

Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly
(continued)

As a backstop, the Group considers that a significant increase
in credit risk occurs no later than when an asset is more than
30 days past due. Days past due are determined by counting the
number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect
of which full payment has not been received. Due dates are
determined without considering any grace period that might
be available to the borrower.

If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk relative to initial recognition, then the
loss allowance on an instrument returns to being measured
as 12-month ECL. Some qualitative indicators of an increase
in credit risk, such as delinquency or forbearance, may be
indicative of an increased risk of default that persists after the
indicator itself has ceased to exist. In these cases, the Group
determines a probation period during which the financial
asset is required to demonstrate good behaviour to provide
evidence that its credit risk has declined sufficiently. When
contractual terms of a loan have been modified, evidence that
the criteria for recognising lifetime ECL are no longer met
includes a history of up-to-date payment performance against
the modified contractual terms.

The Group monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify significant increases in credit risk by regular reviews
to confirm that:

- the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increases in credit risk before an exposure is in default;

- the criteria do not align with the point in time when an
asset becomes 30 days past due;

- the average time between the identification of a
significant increase in credit risk and default appears
reasonable;

- exposures are not generally transferred directly from

12-month ECL measurement to credit impaired; and

- there is no unwarranted volatility in loss allowance from
transfers between 12-month PD (Stage 1) and lifetime
PD (Stage 2).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(h)

Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
Definition of default
The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held);

- the borrower is more than 90 days past due on any
material credit obligation to the Group. Overdrafts are
considered as being past due once the customer has
breached an advised limit or been advised of a limit
smaller than the current amount outstanding; or

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will
restructure the asset as a result of bankruptcy due to the
borrower’s inability to pay its credit obligations.

In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Group
considers indicators that are:

- qualitative: e.g. breaches of covenant;

- quantitative: e.g. overdue status and non-payment on
another obligation of the same issuer to the Group; and

- based on data developed internally and obtained from
external sources.

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is
in default and their significance may vary over time to reflect
changes in circumstances. The definition of default largely
aligns with that applied by the Group for regulatory capital
purposes.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group incorporates forward-looking information into
both the assessment of whether the credit risk of an instrument
has increased significantly since its initial recognition and the
measurement of ECL.

The Group formulates three economic scenarios: a base case,
which is the median scenario assigned a 50% probability
of occurring, and two less likely scenarios, one upside and
one downside, assigned a 13.75% and 36.25% probability of
occurring respectively.

The Group has identified and documented key drivers of
credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial
instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has
estimated relationships between macro-economic variables
and credit risk and credit losses.
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4 E?J‘%EL Fﬁ%ﬁ (%) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 'f% Pﬂ EL Fﬁi (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(h) EHBEHEHREZS 25 (41 (h)  Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
TIA B g 1 EHS (4#) Incorporation of forward-looking information (continued)
S A 5 R Y B S R R A B The key drivers for credit risk for loan portfolios are: Hong
HEYEIEE - PERERRFBTE Kong CPI, China unemployment rates and Hong Kong Retail
L/E SRR Property Price Index.
Mo E—NET+ZHA=+—HFEHK The economic scenarios used as at 31 December 2019 included
BPEEWERHU T ERE - F_FFEE the following key indicators for the years ending 31 December
FoNESF A=+ B IERAEENR 2020 to 2024.
RGHE -
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
i TH 22 ) 5 4 Hong Kong CPI HE e Base 2.60% 2.60% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%
(BB L) (Percentage change) ik Upside 2.01% 2.03% 4.30% 0.58% 2.31%
m R Downside -1.61% -3.05% -2.60% -0.36% 0.92%
B 2k China unemployment rates 3% Base 3.80% 3.80% 3.80% 3.80% 3.80%
(%8 [ 4 Lb) (Percentage change) ] b Upside 4.10% 4.00% 4.20% 4.30% 4.14%
N Downside 3.60% 4.00% 4.30% 4.20% 4.20%
FEEYEMEIEIEE Hong Kong Retail HE U Base 2.60% 2.91% 3.17% 3.22% 3.23%
(88 [ 51 k) Property Price Index ] b Upside 27.26% 28.46% 20.51% 2.85% 7.30%
(Percentage change) ] Downside -22.08% -6.34% -7.33% -2.02% 0.54%

I SR 5 A5 L < il 7 A AL S A S
1R 25 2 [ B9 T A BR AR ) 2R 0 20 A 10
ZE 1S54RI IR S MR R A5 i

R T A5 T 48 5 1Y B i A B oy DA
4 GhEs i
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Predicted relationships between the key indicators and default
and loss rates on various portfolios of financial assets have
been developed based on analysing historical data over the past
10 to 15 years.

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term
structure of the following variables:

- probability of default (PD);
- loss given default (LGD); and
- exposure at default (EAD).

ECL for exposures in Stage 1 is calculated by multiplying the
12-month PD by LGD and EAD. Lifetime ECL is calculated
by multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD and EAD. The
methodology of estimating PDs is discussed above under the
heading ‘Generating the term structure of PD’.

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default.
The Group estimates LGD parameters based on the history
of recovery rates of claims against defaulted counterparties.
The LGD models consider the structure, collateral, seniority
of the claim, counterparty industry and recovery costs of any
collateral that is integral to the financial asset.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(h)

Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Incorporation of forward-looking information (continued)

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default.
The Group derives the EAD from the current exposure to the
counterparty and potential changes to the current amount
allowed under the contract and arising from amortisation.
The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying amount
at the time of default. For lending commitments, the EADs
are potential future amounts that may be drawn under the
contract, which are estimated based on historical observations
and forward-looking forecasts. For financial guarantees, the
EAD represents the amount of the guaranteed exposure when
the financial guarantee becomes payable. For some financial
assets, EAD is determined by modelling the range of possible
exposure outcomes at various points in time using scenario
and statistical techniques.

As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a
12-month PD for Stage 1 financial assets, the Group measures
ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum
contractual period (including any borrower’s extension
options) over which it is exposed to credit risk, even if, for
credit risk management purposes, the Group considers a
longer period. The maximum contractual period extends to
the date at which the Group has the right to require repayment
of an advance or terminate a loan commitment or guarantee.

However, for credit card facilities that include both a loan and
an undrawn commitment component, the Group measures
ECL over a period longer than the maximum contractual
period if the Group’s contractual ability to demand repayment
and cancel the undrawn commitment does not limit the
Group’s exposure to credit losses to the contractual notice
period. These facilities do not have a fixed term or repayment
structure and are managed on a collective basis. The Group
can cancel them with immediate effect but this contractual
right is not enforced in the normal day-to-day management,
but only when the Group becomes aware of an increase in
credit risk at the facility level. This longer period is estimated
taking into account the credit risk management actions that
the Group expects to take, and that serve to mitigate ECL.
These include a reduction in limits, cancellation of the facility
and/or turning the outstanding balance into a loan with fixed
repayment terms.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(h)  Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to
the closing balance of the loss allowance by class of financial

instrument.

Loans and advances to customers, banks and trade bills

[E3-3 308 31, % YN measured at amortised cost
A AR
HRWAZ fo S A By
REAAAN  BHGEAER HRBMAZ
TOW A 4K Lifetime ECL /45 M %
12-month not credit- Lifetime ECL A5t
ECL impaired  credit-impaired Total
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
it Sy 2 2019 Tl Tl T#xL T#x
WA S Movement in impairment allowances:
R-FE—NE-H—H At 1 January 2019 2,279,440 667,189 2,129,299 5,075,928
B 2 1000 H LN G5 AL Transfer to 12-month ECL 215,559 (215,559) - -
EHEEEEARM Transfer to Lifetime ECL
G RN Z G K not credit-impaired (125,021) 125,021 - -
WEgEEEARKNSAMA Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-impaired
Z FEIE Rk (29,071) (24,430) 53,501 -
s B 1S i 1) EE T = TR AR Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(0 455 E 50, 8 %) (including exchange adjustments) (287,938) 357,733 1,667,393 1,737,188
T8 AR SO 2 < New financial assets originated or
purchased 1,066,695 75,196 - 1,141,891
ERIHERZ EMEE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (839,390) (187,178) (46,674) (1,073,242)
1% 8 Write off - - (1,337,075) (1,337,075)
e 1] 5h i A% 5 ) <5 Recoveries of amount previously
written off - - 2,836 2,836
R-F—-NEFZH=+—H At 31 December 2019 2,280,274 797,972 2,469,280 5,547,526
EZ=S Deducted from:
&K Advances to customers 2,259,966 797,923 2,469,280 5,527,169
SRATIA] 2 H K Advances to banks 16,322 - - 16,322
[EE%) Trade bills 3,986 49 - 4,035
2,280,274 797,972 2,469,280 5,547,526
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4 E?J‘%EL Fﬁ%ﬁ (%) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 'f% Pﬂ EL Fﬁi (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(h) EHBEHEHREZS 25 (41 (h)  Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
%P > AT REZ % R IIRED K Loans and advances to customers, banks and trade bills
CES-318 1% YN JE )] measured at amortised cost (continued)
FEERARE

HHMNZ FERARM
128 A LA HMEREE HHMKZ
FHE A HE Lifetime ECL HHE HEE

12-month not credit- Lifetime ECL At
ECL impaired  credit-impaired Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E A 2018 T T T T T T
U B A ) Movement in impairment allowances:
A= F— NFE—H—H & Restated at 1 January 2018 2,447,088 107,646 2,107,457 4,662,191
O A 1040 H LR TE (S B8 Transfer to 12-month ECL 15,041 (15,041) - -
R FEEARD Transfer to Lifetime ECL
A HIN 2 EIE FAR K not credit-impaired (8,427) 8,427 - -
EEEERARN AN Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-impaired
Z MG REE (1,914) (523) 2,437 S
N 45 188 M 1) 2 M T T AR Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(/B 45 B 50, 74 5% ) (including exchange adjustments) (189,704) 565,418 (54,376) 321,338
TR S 2 8 & New financial assets originated or
purchased 554,029 356,971 851,765 1,762,765
B AR 2 & E Financial assets that have been
derecognised (536,673) (355,709) (170,057) (1,062,439)
A Write off - - (609,824) (609,824)
W I 5 A 4 Y 46 B Recoveries of amount previously
written off - - 1,897 1,897
REF—NEFZH=+—H At 31 December 2018 2,279,440 667,189 2,129,299 5,075,928
kA : Deducted from:
R Advances to customers 2,266,469 666,696 2,129,299 5,062,464
RAT R EE Advances to banks 8,966 - - 8,966
[EEET 1 Trade bills 4,005 493 = 4,498
2,279,440 667,189 2,129,299 5,075,928

164



SEJUEER
Annual Report 2019

4 B E| B A B (an)

4

o T SRAT (W) AR

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WEF—JUE+ A = IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 'f% Pﬂ EL Fﬁi (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(h) EHBEHEHIERS 5 () (h)  Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
DL -0 408 Al 2 i VG i A M 4 il ¢ Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Tl AR
FHMAHZ RERRY
REAVK B R fFHBNZ
LEEEE RS Lifetime ECL  HUME M #H%
12-month not credit- Lifetime ECL Mk
ECL impaired  credit-impaired Total
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
it Sy 2 2019 T T Tl T#L
WA E) Movement in impairment allowances:
RE-F—NE—-H—H At 1 January 2019 83,606 2,539 - 86,145
128 H VNS F482%  Transfer to 12-month ECL 280 (280) - -
W2 R EEARKGHHN Transfer to Lifetime ECL
2 VMR R K not credit-impaired (1,702) 1,702 - -
EEEERARMNAHMA Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-impaired
P VILEVIEEPS - - - -
e BR S A8  EE R R A Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(45 M SL A ) (including exchange adjustments) (8,316) 1,168 - (7,148)
T8 AR SO 2 < New financial assets originated or
purchased 66,482 1,067 - 67,549
O A IR HERR 2 4 Pl Financial assets that have been
derecognised (19,474) (468) - (19,942)
R_F—JFEF_A=+—H  At31 December 2019 120,876 5,728 - 126,604
G R R
BHMAZ fa BEA R
121 7 LL A LEEEENHEEPS aRBNZ
FEHIE HEK Lifetime ECL I HEE
12-month not credit- Lifetime ECL Mgt
ECL impaired  credit-impaired Total
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
ZFE )\ 2018 T THIT THIT TH# T
WA ) Movement in impairment allowances:
A= F—/)\F—H—HHJ Restated at 1 January 2018 57,892 - - 57,892
g 2 12 H LAA EE F#EB2E Transfer to 12-month ECL - - = -
2 R EEARKG LN Transfer to Lifetime ECL
2 FEI(E ARk not credit-impaired (2,539) 2,539 - -
EEEERA R AN Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-impaired
Z BEHE R EE - - - -
T AR B A 1 FE R R R A Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(6456 HEE 5, 8 ) (including exchange adjustments) 1,010 - - 1,010
U5 A= SR 2 0 4 New financial assets originated or
purchased 37,263 - - 37,263
O 4 IR HERR 2 4 il Financial assets that have been
derecognised (10,020) - - (10,020)
MEFE—/EFZH="+—H  At31December2018 83,606 2,539 - 86,145
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4 BBl B A B () 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 & W B 0 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(h) EHEHIEHIERZ &8 (#) (h)  Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
VR 310 % N30 Financial investment measured at amortised cost
Tl AR R

AHWMAZ fo 2R R
REAUK  FEHBR HHMEZ
B HBR Lifetime ECL M5 AR K

12-month not credit- Lifetime ECL M5k
ECL impaired  credit-impaired Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
ZER 2019 T T TH#T T#x
WS Movement in impairment allowances:
R_FE—NE-H—H At 1 January 2019 34,649 14,498 - 49,147
WO E 1208 H LANTEIAE AR Transfer to 12-month ECL 324 (324) - -
HEBEEEEARN AR Transfer to Lifetime ECL
2 FEME R K not credit-impaired (44) 44 - -
EHEERARE AN Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-impaired
Z EHfE HEE - - - -
s SR HB A 1 F T S R VR Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(45 I 509 %) (including exchange adjustments) (8,513) (9,257) - (17,770)
TR AR SO 2 New financial assets originated or
purchased 3,865 - - 3,865
EAILTER SR EE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (4,667) - - (4,667)
REF—NETFZH=1T—H At 31 December 2019 25,614 4,961 - 30,575
A5 B R
FHRMNZ FRARM
AR EHEREL GHRBNZ
TG HEE Lifetime ECL FHE %
12-month not credit- Lifetime ECL M5t
B(CIL, impaired  credit-impaired Total
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E— )\ 2018 T T T T#ET
B - Movement in impairment allowances:

A% — \FE—H—HEF| Restated at 1 January 2018 43,531 7,438 - 50,969
1208 H LN TE IS AR Transfer to 12-month ECL (89) 89 = =
EEEFEEEARMAAMA Transfer to Lifetime ECL

P VIEVIEEPS not credit-impaired - = . _
WEREGERARN AN Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-impaired
Z TEIE R - - - -
s AR A 1 EE R R R R A Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(£ 45 [ 5L %) (including exchange adjustments) (16,520) 6,971 - (9,549)
TR A S 2 4 R New financial assets originated or
purchased 18,578 - - 18,578
B A LR 2 4Rl g Financial assets that have been
derecognised (10,851) - - (10,851)
AZFE—NEFZH=+—H At 31 December 2018 34,649 14,498 - 49,147
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4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(h)  Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

B4 B ACHUT I 38 B 30 A NG 2 A2k Cash, placement with banks and other financial institutions
A5 AR
HRBAZ f A R
REAYN  BHEHER HRBAZ
BN 4R Lifetime ECL T 145 4 2%
12-month not credit- Lifetime ECL A5k
ECL impaired  credit-impaired Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
it Sy 2 2019 T Tl Tl T
W) Movement in impairment allowances:
REFE—FE—H—H At 1 January 2019 25,991 - - 25,991
e AR T8 A 1 E R R R A Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(/B 45 B 50, 74 5% ) (including exchange adjustments) (944) - - (944)
TR S 2 8 & R New financial assets originated or
purchased 33,568 - - 33,568
B AR 2 4 E Financial assets that have been
derecognised (23,818) - - (23,818)
REF—NFETFH=1T—H At 31 December 2019 34,797 - - 34,797
SRR
GHRMAZ ERERARM
REAUK  BEHEREEL aHRMRZ
FHIE K Lifetime ECL TN A%
12-month not credit- Lifetime ECL o
ECL impaired  credit-impaired Total
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
—E )N\ 2018 T T RS T
WA ) : Movement in impairment allowances:
A= F—\F—H — H HEJ Restated at 1 January 2018 19,178 39 - 19,217
e AR BB A 1 B R R A Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(£ 45 [ L9 %) (including exchange adjustments) (358) (39) - (397)
TR AL B 2 58 & Tl New financial assets originated or
purchased 23,191 - - 23,191
BRI R 2 S EE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (16,020) - - (16,020)
R-F—-NEFZH=+—H At 31 December 2018 25,991 = = 25,991
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4 BBl B A B () 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 & W B 0 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(h) EHEHIEHIERZ &8 (#) (h)  Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
£k Rk X mE R S8 Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
Tl SE A R

AHMAZ 8RR
REAAYR B AHMAZ
BONAGE B K Lifetime ECL B3 M E %

12-month not credit- Lifetime ECL A5k
ECL impaired  credit-impaired Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
it Sy 2 2019 T Tl Tl T
W) Movement in impairment allowances:
R-F—-NFE-H—H At 1 January 2019 133,889 2,596 - 136,485
B 2 108 H DL TEWI(E FAF8KL  Transfer to 12-month ECL 7 (7) - -
EHEFEEARMEHMA Transfer to Lifetime ECL
2 FERIfE Rk not credit-impaired (2) 2 - -
WEREERARNEHMN Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-impaired
Z EHfE fEE - - - _
T AR A 0 FE R R R A Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(£ 45 T L %) (including exchange adjustments) (9,953) 26 - (9,927)
TR B 2 5 4 Tl New financial assets originated or
purchased 42,597 3,454 - 46,051
BRI 2 W E Financial assets that have been
derecognised (94,863) (2,559) - (97,422)
REF—NETFZH=1T—H At 31 December 2019 71,675 3,512 - 75,187
FREERRE
BHRAZ EREARM
124 H LK FEHE HEE HHRMRZ
FHIE FHE Lifetime ECL M5 A A%
12-month not credit- Lifetime ECL o
ECL impaired  credit-impaired Total
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
xRN\ 2018 T T T T
WA ) Movement in impairment allowances:
W=F—/)\FE—H—HE Restated at 1 January 2018 88,769 1,054 = 89,823
WO 21200 A LN E M A% Transfer to 12-month ECL 24 (24) - -
EHEEEEEARMAHA Transfer to Lifetime ECL
ZEME RER not credit-impaired (74) 74 = =
HMEBESEEARNELAMHA Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-impaired
Z TG Rk - - - -
Tl 5 38 M 1) T U A Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(6045 T 5 7 ) (including exchange adjustments) (23,213) (25) - (23,238)
T8 AR SO 2 < New financial assets originated or
purchased 97,555 2,548 - 100,103
ERIEHERZ EMEE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (29,172) (1,031) - (30,203)
AZFE—NEFZH=+—H At 31 December 2018 133,889 2,596 - 136,485
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that market rates and prices on assets,
liabilities and off-balance sheet positions change, thus causing
profits or losses. Generally, the Group’s market risk is associated
with its positions in foreign exchange, the money market, debt
securities and derivatives. Most off-balance sheet derivative
positions arise from the execution of customer-related orders and
positions taken for hedging purposes. Structured products are
basically offered to customers in most cases on a back-to-back basis
to maintain the Bank’s market competitiveness at minimal market
risk, commensurate with the Group’s risk appetite.

The objective of the Group’s market risk management is to optimise
return and control market risk in ways consistent with the Group’s
risk appetite and its status as a premier provider of financial
products and services.

The Group categorises market risk exposures into either trading or
non-trading portfolios. Trading portfolios include those positions
arising from market-making and proprietary trading positions.
Non-trading portfolios primarily arise from the effective foreign
exchange and interest rate management of the Group’s retail,
corporate and commercial banking assets and liabilities.

(a)  Market risk management framework

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions
is managed within risk limits and guidelines approved by
the Board RMC, the Senior Executive Risk Management
Committee (the “SERMC”) and Market Risk Committee (the
“MRC”). Exposures are measured and monitored against
limits on Value-at-Risk (“VaR”), sensitivities (FX NOP,
IR DVO01, CSO01, Option Greeks) and Stop-loss. Daily risk
monitoring is carried out independently by Market Risk
Section of the Risk Management Department, which ensures
all dealing activities are conducted in a proper manner and
within approved limits. The Group’s market risk exposures are
periodically reviewed by the Board RMC, SERMC and MRC.
Stress tests are performed regularly to estimate the possible
losses under extreme circumstances. The Group’s Internal
Audit Department also performs regular review and testing
on dealing activities to ensure compliance with all internal
guidelines.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(b)

(c)

Measurement of market risk

Measurement techniques used to quantify the market risk
arising from the Bank’s trading and non-trading activities
include VaR metrics, sensitivity analysis and stress testing.
Sensitivity measures, concentration and stop-loss limits are
also used as the risk management tools. Limits are set for each
portfolio, product and risk type. Stress tests are performed
regularly (at least monthly) to assess the potential losses under
extreme circumstances. The Board RMC, SERMC and RMC
review stress test results on a regular basis.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Group’s position may
be adversely affected by a change in market interest rates.
Interest rate risk arises mainly from the mismatch of repricing
tenors of interest-bearing assets and liabilities and yield curve
movements. Interest rate risk exposures are managed within
risk limits approved and monitored by the ALCO. Interest rate
risk exposures in the non-trading portfolio are measured on a
daily basis and the results are reported to the ALCO monthly
and SERMC and the Board RMC quarterly.

The Group manages its interest rate risk by way of entering
into on- or off-balance sheet interest rate risk hedging
instruments. The effectiveness of the hedging activities is
assessed regularly in accordance with HKFRS 9.

The Group will use and count on stop-loss limits,
management trigger limits, stress testing and a software system
in installation to manage its interest rate risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Trading portfolio

The Group’s control of interest rate risk is based on restricting
individual operations to trading within the market risk limits,
and a list of permissible instruments authorised by the Board
RMC, and MRC where authority delegated. In particular,
trading in the derivative products is supported by robust
control systems whereas more complicated derivatives are
basically undertaken on a back-to-back basis. VaR, sensitivity
measures, concentration and stop-loss limits are used as risk
management tools. Risk limits are independently monitored
by Market Risk Section of Risk Management Department on a
daily basis.

Non-trading portfolio

The principal objective of interest rate risk management of
non-trading portfolios (also known as “banking book”) is to
optimise net interest income but without exposure to excessive
risk. This is done on a daily basis by the Global Markets and
Trading Department (“GMT”) taking over the interest rate
risk management under the supervision of the ALCO. When
the behavioural characteristics of a product differ from its
contractual characteristics or for products with no defined
maturity or re-pricing characteristics, the behavioural
characteristics are assessed to determine their actual
underlying interest rate risk profile. The ALCO monitors all
such behavioural assumptions and interest rate risk positions
to ensure they comply with the prevailing interest rate risk
limits which are set for the purpose of governing the interest
rate risk arising from the non-trading portfolio. The limits are
measured and independently monitored on a regular basis.

There are three primary forms of interest rate risk faced by
the Group with regard to its banking book: gap risk, basis risk
and option risk. Interest rate risk is measured in relation to the
impact of changes in interest rates on earnings or economic
values assuming all other factors remained constant, e.g., no
action taken by GMT or other business units to mitigate the
impact of this interest rate risk and interest rates at all term
points move by the same amount. Other assumptions include
contractually fixed term positions run to maturity where the
customers’ prepayment or early withdrawal not incur fees,
non-interest bearing balances, such as interest-free current
accounts, are subject to interest rate risk behaviouralisation.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(c) FIZFE Sz (4) (c) Interest rate risk (continued)
FRITHR T 2 FI % I iz Interest rate exposures in banking book
AR SR AT R R SR A B ([SRATHR The Group defines interest rate risk in the banking book
22 LB 1) 5 5E A DR R 22 A A T vl B (“IRRBB”) as the potential for a reduction in future earnings
D2 R AT ) KRR M o A A A or economic value due to changes in interest rates. The Group
R CEAE BUR T 5 IR- 1% [ R 22 & B monitors such in line with the HKMA Supervisory Policy
B ETEE R —LFETZH Manual module IR-1 “Interest Rate Risk Management”. As
= H o SRATHRF R R R R AR at 31 December 2019, the IRRBB metric remained within the
TR EREZ A o regulatory threshold.
LK 737 Sensitivity analysis
TR BURA BARSRAT 0 Bk & — U4 The tables below show the last stress tests on the Bank’s trading
K _F— )\F+AHZGRELRE and investment portfolios conducted in December 2019 and
A ETRAE R Z B - $E s 2018 respectively. For trading portfolio, it sets out the effect
HRIEAH &1 5 - 3R 81 ] 2% P v B 4 on Bank’s income statement of a reasonable possible change
BB A SRAT I 5 R 2B o B RGR A in interest rates. Key assumptions include no management
35 7 3L i Slf7 A PR AT 8l DA Y S ] R Jl B actions taken to mitigate the impact of interest rate risk and all
255 )% AT H At I ) 2R B 5 A R other non-interest rate risk variables remain constant:
ES X Py ES YR Interest rate stress test for interest rate trading
(T#x) i 5
(HK$°000) Scenario
30 A Jie T
Light Moderate Extreme
W ¢ i 244 5 ) Yield curve shift -100fH3E M +100fHA M 200f M 200N -300MEME  +300fHAR M
-100 bps +100 bps -200 bps +200 bps -300 bps +300 bps
“E-ETTNA December 2019 (8,732) 8,732 (17,941) 17,941 (27,149) 27,149
328 By 2 ) 3 g 0k Interest rate stress test for interest rate trading
(T#58) i 3
(HK$’000) Scenario
L3 A i T
Light Moderate Extreme
Wi ¢ 24 5 ) Yield curve shift -100fH3E 4 +100fHAE  200f M 200N -300EME  +300fHAR M
-100 bps +100 bps -200 bps +200 bps -300 bps +300 bps
“Z-NEFTNA December 2018 (8,118) 8,118 (14,892) 14,892 (21,667) 21,667

172



SEJUEER
Annual Report 2019

4 B E| B A B (an)
4.3 T35 RS B ()

(d) EWmEkE
R e T 4 L TR 2 AR (TR A MR
111 46 £ B 3 By 22 JL By

A 4R [ 22 A T JEL o T 22 4 < il Tl 355 T
AT 2 AN TEZE B B TR A 4 P AT 26
B BWEm B - B IR o B 2 |
W JEL B 7 i < T 3 > DA i
W 2z B g T Atk e 2 A B B KR AR AT 4R
AL A o L 1 B W S R

R o JE B L A AR 4 A A o R R U
EATIZ B S A o

T AR A A T T AP ME LB o 545
R ASE B MR T (5 e 2 7 K
i (TR Sl THEBRAN) - 3% 8 AT
JrH o

o T SRAT (W) AR

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WEZLT-NUFEH A=t —HIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group’s foreign exchange exposures mainly comprise
foreign exchange dealing by GMT, and currency exposures
originated from the Group’s banking business. Currency
exposures arising from non-trading businesses are transferred
to GMT for centralised management within foreign exchange
position limits approved by the MRC. Management has set
limits on positions by currency. Positions are independently
monitored by Risk Management Department against the
approved limits on a daily basis.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency exchange risk. Included in the tables are the Group’s
assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, excluding derivative
financial instruments, categorised by currency.
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4 E?J‘%EL Fﬁ%ﬁ (%) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 T % E B B (80

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(d) BB 4 (d)  Currency risk (continued)
&t EH N A Bk
HKS$ US$ CNY Other Total
T#L T#x T#L T#L T#x
“Z—JEFTHA=1—H 31 December2019 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
243 Assets
B4 KA SRAT IR 26 ]2 Cash and balances with banks and other
A <55 RS A 2 &5 B financial institutions 39,967,989 55,852,823 23,217,886 19,300,060 138,338,758
FESRATIA 26 T HiAh 4 @i HE#E  Placements with banks and other
ZHEH financial institutions 6,959,274 81,236,516 16,756,082 - 104,951,872
FER S R & g Financial assets held for trading 130 492,354 - - 492,484
DA HE (A8 48 42 R Financial assets at fair value through
N EA S Y profit or loss 4,430,914 453,604 163,064 - 5,047,582
B H AR TE Advances and other accounts 234,072,498 116,494,548 100,522,748 23,896,682 474,986,476
DL B (48 HoAth 2 T It 48 Financial investments measured at FVTOCI
N e 28,502,540 88,147,587 27,537,998 8,186,229 152,374,354
LR B AR AR 4 A% Financial investments measured
at amortised cost 3,070,789 17,427,027 25,257,693 843,122 46,598,631
iy k- t/NEIPaE 4y Investments in associates 63,010 - - 107,234 170,244
[k P ER R FIA Goodwill and other intangible assets 1,012,391 - 4,090 - 1,016,481
[ig-C/E 3 Investment properties 98,600 - 36,634 - 135,234
VENEL Property, plant and equipment 1,657,053 - 239,014 - 1,896,067
HAE E > @IEBAT R Other assets, including current and
R AL BT deferred tax assets 3,773,223 11,347,657 1,936,280 307,754 17,364,914
¥ B Total assets (excluding derivative
AEFHELBTR) financial instruments) 323,608,411 371,452,116 195,671,489 52,641,081 943,373,097
£ 4% Liabilities
SRAT IR] 3 B At < Pl B Deposits from banks and other
ZAER financial institutions 39,623,705 85,437,473 67,228,204 14,785,423 207,074,805
HFIE Deposits from customers 237,108,738 188,343,694 79,077,478 30,747,187 535,277,097
BB AT G Certificates of deposit issued - 8,368,974 276,544 - 8,645,518
TBEUATEELHER Debt securities in issue designated
A2 B 81T 5 at fair value through profit or loss - 7,015,178 1,410,123 - 8,425,301
DL 61 RO AR 2 EL BB AT Debt securities in issue at amortised
5% cost 3,543,680 5,059,939 13,407,743 436,106 22,447,468
DIBESS AR AR 2 A HETH  Subordinated debts measured at
amortised cost - 3,889,974 - - 3,889,974
HAtv &6 mFEsaT Rk Other liabilities, including current and
IR HE A TH £ deferred tax liabilities 12,995,923 6,477,926 2,292,951 4,413,625 26,180,425
£ Total liabilities (excluding derivative
(AEFMELBTR) financial instruments) 293,272,046 304,593,158 163,693,043 50,382,341 811,940,588
HEAMENA BT Net on-balance sheet position 30,336,365 66,858,958 31,978,446 2,258,740 131,432,509
15 SRk Credit commitments 104,137,557 93,533,829 27,742,082 7,956,691 233,370,159
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4 E?J‘%EL Fﬁ%ﬁ (%) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 T 5 A B () 4.3 Market risk management (continued)
(d) BB 4 (d)  Currency risk (continued)
T E NG HAt M5t
HK$ US$ CNY Other Total
T T Tt Tt ot T 0 Tt ot
ZF—NFEFZH=Z+—H 31December2018 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
¢ Assets
B4 B AE SRAT [R] 2 R Cash and balances with banks and other
ot 4 A 2 55 R financial institutions 40,560,299 76,275,026 24,473,237 10,065,970 151,374,532
TESRAT A 2 K HoAh 4 MR Placements with banks and other
2R financial institutions 6,774,381 62,792,525 2,709,483 1,940,924 74,217,313
DIAFEEAHEER Financial assets at fair value through
AR Bl profit or loss = 386,067 139,622 = 525,689
B R HABHRIR Advances and other accounts 223,684,257 114,084,603 109,894,630 28,125,903 475,789,393
DL B (48 Hofth 2 i e %5 Financial investments measured at FEVTOCI
ARSI E 4,560,554 78,775,561 11,698,782 6,031,013 101,065,910
DRSS AR AR & Rl i Financial investments measured
at amortised cost 12,970,083 17,615,376 35,539,916 89,434 66,214,809
A A 2 B Investments in associates 97,984 - - - 97,984
[k P ER LR FIA Goodwill and other intangible assets 1,017,797 - - - 1,017,797
Eia-L/ES Investment properties 102,800 = 37,335 - 140,135
VENE L] Property, plant and equipment 721,905 = 179,346 = 901,251
HAt R > waEsAT R Other assets, including current and
IR SR T deferred tax assets 2,434,843 8,157,542 2,228,268 308,044 13,128,697
W e Total assets (excluding derivative
AEFEMELBTR) financial instruments) 292,924,903 358,086,700 186,900,619 46,561,288 884,473,510
£ Liabilities
SRAT IR S % A <5 A Deposits from banks and other
2R financial institutions 15,749,747 77,614,422 58,195,883 9,873,008 161,433,060
EF R Deposits from customers 224,956,837 198,423,896 92,672,897 17,478,178 533,531,808
O 847 Certificates of deposit issued 1,091,564 23,477,800 379,017 - 24,948,381
TEE AT HEMLHER Debt securities in issue designated
AMRZ B #1725 at fair value through profit or loss - 2,533,396 108,794 - 2,642,190
DL 3 88 R AR AR 2 B BB AT Debt securities in issue at amortised
5 cost 3,547,967 9,527,247 6,743,146 447,820 20,266,180
DIBESS AR AR 2 %8 5TE  Subordinated debts measured at
amortised cost - 7,825,543 - - 7,825,543
HA AR > IHBIAT & Other liabilities, including current and
R HE B IH A R deferred tax liabilities 5,378,139 5,430,706 7,307,110 617,394 18,733,349
£ 0 M Total liabilities (excluding derivative
AEFHMELBTR) financial instruments) 250,724,254 324,833,010 165,406,847 28,416,400 769,380,511
BEARRNARTH Net on-balance sheet position 42,200,649 33,253,690 21,493,772 18,144,888 115,092,999
15 Be Rk Credit commitments 86,805,398 108,548,109 7,278,435 34,856,339 237,488,281
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

Stress test

The tables below show the last stress tests conducted in
December which calculated the change in dollar term of
a reasonably possible movement of spot rates and foreign
exchange volatility for 2019 and 2018, with all other variables

W LE B 2 AL o held constant.
ZE U 2019
A HE 47 ¢ Bl B JE )y 05 Risk stress testing for foreign exchange position
(T#1) W
(HK$°000) Scenario
LT it A1 Jik T
Light Moderate Extreme
W1 (10%) W49 (12%) W (15%)
Spot (10%) Spot (12%) Spot (15%)
el (4%) Pt 1 (6%) e W (10%)
Volatility (4%) Volatility (6%)  Volatility (10%)
S A B K e i g B (N RRBEBRAP)  Worst of spot and volatility change
(excluding CNY) (42,497) (150,390) (486,534)
(T#1L) 5
(HK$’000) Scenario
g kA1 Jik T
Light Moderate Extreme
381 (3%) 38 (5%) W81 (7%)
Spot (3%) Spot (5%) Spot (7%)
P (3%) W i (4%) Wi (6%)
Volatility (3%) Volatility (4%) Volatility (6%)
5 1% BRIV e i 42 ) (N R H) Worst of spot and volatility change (CNY) (363,263) (608,852) (839,178)
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)
Stress test (continued)

2018

Risk stress testing for foreign exchange position

(F#T) 1% 5%
(HK$°000) Scenario
K i £ fige B
Light Moderate Extreme
BP9 (10%) B30 (129%) BP9 (15%)
Spot (10%) Spot (12%) Spot (15%)
W (4%) P (6%) P (10%)
Volatility (4%) Volatility (6%) Volatility (10%)
S AR B K P e A2 B (N IR HEFRAP)  Worst of spot and volatility change
(excluding CNY) (58,080) (90,757) (95,018)
(T 0) 1% 5t
(HK$’000) Scenario
HEHR AN fige H
Light Moderate Extreme
R 1A (3%) R (5%) HIHA(7%)
Spot (3%) Spot (5%) Spot (7%)
P (3%) P (4%) P (6%)
Volatility (3%) Volatility (4%) Volatility (6%)
5 A1 BRIV e i i 4 ) (N R Worst of spot and volatility change (CNY) (329,523) (537,890) (739,683)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(e)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of the equity
portfolio decrease as the result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual stocks. Market risk
positions on equity are relatively not sizeable at this stage.

The Group’s equity exposures in 2019 and 2018 are mainly
long-term strategic equity investments which are reported as
“measured at FVTOCI financial investments” set out in Note
27. Equities held for trading purposes are included under
“Financial assets held for trading” set out in Note 27. These are
subject to risk management control procedures.

The Group takes into account its equity exposure as part of
risk-weighted assets for the purpose of calculating the capital
adequacy ratios.

Valuation and technique methodologies applied on equity
investments are detailed in Note 2 of the financial statements.

2019 2018
T#L T
HK$’000 HK$°000
A B B s B A IR Cumulative realized gains arising from sales and
AR B liquidations of equity exposure - (8)
TE 74 [ B A 0 BERD, - B A Total unrealized gains recognised in the Group’s
AR 5 T A MR R B B A 1Y 48T reserve but not through the income statement (22,752) (17,209)
Byt AR R T A A5 /E A 4E ] Unrealised gains included in the Group’s supplementary
AT RS 0 A A ) R B B U A capital for capital adequacy ratio purpose (22,752) (17,209)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group cannot meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. A sound liquidity risk
management framework is therefore essential to ensure there is
adequate cash flow to meet all financial obligations, including
matured borrowings, deposits withdrawal either on demand or
at contractual maturity, etc. under both normal and contingency
circumstances in a cost-effective manner. The Group must
comply with the statutory LCR, net stable funding ratio (NSFR)
and regulatory liquidity-related ratio. To ensure this, the Group
maintains a stable and diversified funding base of retail and
corporate customer deposits and a strong portfolio of highly liquid
assets.

To manage liquidity risk, the Group has established liquidity risk
management policies that are reviewed and approved by ALCO,
SERMC and Board RMC. Liquidity is managed and forecasted
on a daily basis to enable ALCO and relevant departments to act
proactively in view of changing market conditions and to implement
contingency plans on a timely basis. Also, liquidity risk management
reports are prepared and reported to ALCO on a monthly basis; to
SERMC and Board RMC on a quarterly basis for effective liquidity
risk management oversight. Stress tests, with various crisis scenarios
covering bank-specific, general market and a combination of both,
are regularly conducted for both internal and regulatory purposes
in order to assess the adequacy of the Group’s liquidity to meet
any contingent funding needs under severe conditions. ALCO
examines and discusses the stress test results to consider the need
for preventive and mitigating actions. These actions include but are
not limited to limit the Bank’s exposures, build up more liquidity
cushion, and/or adjust the structural maturity profile of the Bank’s
assets and liabilities. Stress tests are conducted for all currencies in
aggregate and separately for positions in significant currencies (e.g.
HKD, USD, CNY).

Management information systems are in place to extract data from
various sources and produce the essential management information
reports, including statutory LCR, NSER, other regulatory liquidity-
related ratios and cash flow positions on a daily basis for timely
monitoring by relevant parties and reporting to management.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

The Bank maintains a diversified portfolio of liquidity cushion
that is largely made up of the most liquid and readily marketable
assets (“tier 1 assets”), such as cash, EF debt securities and other
high quality government debt securities or similar instruments,
that can be easily or immediately monetized with little or no loss
or discount at all times. The Bank also widens the composition of
the liquidity cushion by holding other liquid and marketable assets
(“tier 2 assets”) which can be used to cater for the longer end of the
stress period without resulting in excessive losses or discounts. The
Bank calculates the required liquidity cushion, which is compared
to the liquidity cushion held by the Bank to ensure that the latter is
sufficient in all circumstances.

The ALCO, constituted by CEO, is delegated by CEO and appointed
by SERMC to manage liquidity risk. This includes but is not limited
to:

Asset and Liability Management
. monitor and manage the Bank’s assets and liabilities

. review the assets and liabilities mix and formulate appropriate
assets and liabilities management policies and strategies

. review and discuss items or matters that have significant
impact on assets and liabilities as well as capital

Liquidity Management

. identify, assess, monitor and control the liquidity risk

. formulate, review and update the liquidity risk management
policy

. strengthen the Bank’s liquidity and monitor the liquidity risk
indicators, cash flow and intraday liquidity
. review the liquidity stress testing on a regular basis

. build up contingency plan on liquidity, including but is not
limited to solicit customer deposits, issue CDs, sell bonds, etc.

Funding Management

. review the funding needs and enhance the sources and uses of
funds

. review the internal FTP policy and plan
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

To ensure an effective liquidity risk management, frontline business
units:

. report the customer fund in/out flow in time and monitor the
trend of deposits withdrawal

. attract relatively stable deposits at reasonable rate (e.g. longer
tenor, larger depositor base, etc.)

. fulfill the deposit growth targets set by senior management

. simultaneously comply with the deposit growth target when
developing assets business which consumes liquidity

. implement liquidity management plans as agreed in ALCO or
CEO when the liquidity is relatively tight

. price lending properly, taking into account the Bank’s liquidity
cost and availability

. slow down or cease committing to new loans, and/or defer or
regulate loan drawdown, and/or work together on loan sale
during times of liquidity stress

The Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) has updated
the Banking (Liquidity) Rules (“BLR”) in 2018, detailing the
implementation of the LCR and NSFR in Hong Kong. The BLR
stipulates the minimum LCR and NSFR with which all Category 1
authorised institutions (“Als”) need to comply. Also, new versions of
Supervisory Policy Manual LM-1 and LM-2 have been issued by the
HKMA in 2016 to provide guidance to the Als on the application of
the BLR and the key elements of a sound liquidity risk management
framework respectively.

The Group continues to seek to diversify its funding channels
to control excessive concentration on funding sources. Funding
support from the Parent Bank, ICBC, has also proven to be efficient
in strengthening the Group’s liquidity capability.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

The matching and controlled mismatching of assets and liabilities
are fundamental to the liquidity management of the Group. It is
unusual for bank’s assets and liabilities to be completely matched
in tenors, as transactions often entail uncertain terms and are
frequently of different types. While an unmatched position
potentially enhances profitability, it increases the liquidity risk (as
well as the interest rate risk) of an entity.

A substantial portion of our assets is funded by customer deposits.
Of total customer deposits, 7% consist of demand and current
account deposits, 21% of savings deposits, and 72% of time, call and
notice deposits (2018: demand and current account 8%, savings
17%, time, call and notice 75%). These customer deposits, which
are widely diversified by type and maturity, represent a stable
source of funds. The Group places great emphasis on the stability
of these deposits, which are sustained through the Group’s retail
banking activities and by maintaining depositor confidence in the
Group’s capital strength. Although many customer accounts are
contractually due for repayment on demand or at short notice, in
practice inflows and outflows are broadly matched, keeping short-
term deposit balances stable.

As the financial investments held for trading and financial
investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income may be sold before maturity, or deposits from customers
may mature without being comprehensive income or sold before
maturity, or deposits from customers may mature without being
cash flows.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitments because the Group does not generally expect its third
parties to draw funds concurrently under the agreements. The total
outstanding contractual amount of commitments to extend credit
does not necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many
of these commitments will expire or be terminated without being
funded.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

The Bank’s Asset and Liability Management Department manages
the liquidity risk according to established policies and supports
ALCO by implementing liquidity risk monitoring and control. The
Group has always maintained high vigilance with regard to liquidity
risk management, relying much more significantly on customer
deposits than on inter-bank funding, particularly at volatile
times. The Group will continue to take the necessary measures
commensurate with its scale and complexity of operation to
strengthen its liquidity capability, including meeting various stress
scenarios and any new liquidity risk requirements.

The contingency funding plan (“CFP”) is reviewed and approved
by ALCO, SERMC and the Board RMC at least annually with the
objective of ensuring that the Group has practical and operational
plans in place to enable it to cope with a liquidity crisis. The CFP
is a practical tool for managing liquidity during a crisis event. It
sets out the options available to the Group for garnering liquidity
and funding, and an agreed course of action in the event of an
unexpected crisis. The CFP includes detailed action steps as well
as roles and responsibilities of relevant parties. As a practical set of
guidelines for the crisis management team and its support team to
evaluate the liquidity crisis situation and execute action steps during
any crisis, the CFP also consists of a sound balance sheet maturity
analysis, and spells out all potential funding sources giving due
consideration to their reliability, priority and the lead time during a
crisis.
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4 B B A B () 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 {ﬁyj ﬁﬁlﬂ Fﬁ (%) 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
T 2% 3 R A A R R = A AR ) H 2 R iR The tables below analyse assets and liabilities of the Group and the
WA 2 A S [ AR SRR+ = H =+ —H Bank as at 31 December into relevant maturing groupings based
ZEE R EES A E D - on the remaining period at the end of reporting period to the
contractual maturity date.
ORI
CUL L — =3
Repayable Upto  —E=MHA T2 &1k TERE SN it
ondemand  onemonth  1-3months  3-12months 1-5years  Over 5 years Undated Total
T Ti#x Ti#x Tix Ti#x Ti#x Ti#x Ti#x
A B 31 December 2019 HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HK$G00  HKS000  HKS00  HKS000
il Assets
R RERTFERLMER R Cash and balances with banks and
B bR other financial institutions 59,775,935 78,562,823 - - - - - 138,338,758
ERNRER LM ERER R Placements with banks and other financial
institutions - - 50,444,537 54,507,335 - - - 104,951,872
RELH ARG HERE Financial assets held for trading
Eﬁﬁtﬁ# - other debt securites - - 1,530 46,758 444,176 - - 492,484
WATRESRERARZEMEE  Financial assetsat fair value through profitorloss
- % - investment funds - - - - - - 4,575,365 4,575,365
—Jifh - other - - - - - 453,604 18,613 nar
fiEEMTE Derivative financial instruments 306,449 965,049 896,137 2,059,089 4,516,179 1,447,756 - 10,190,659
BRI MIRE Advances and other accounts 7,838,569 33,846,445 37,546,994 91,261,990 210,843,220 91,770,006 1,879,252 474,986,476
DA \gf? LA TREARSHE  Pinancial investments measured at EVTOCI
5
’ﬁ T% T% - treasury bills - 12,491,337 12,937,178 2,983,890 2,639,320 3,022,425 - 34,074,150
&S - equity securities - - - - - - 406 2470611
kLA - centificates of deposit held - - - 147,606 - - - 147,606
— % - other debt securities - 1,873,389 5,359,199 10,232,895 41,823,355 56,393,149 - 115,681,987
bh @E HRAARE R Financial investments measured at amortised cost
— R - treasury bills - - - - 10075753 4819383 - 14895136
—FFiEA 2 fE o - certificates of deposit held - 998,422 499,675 - - - - 1,498,097
— % - other debt securities - 578,875 1,940,561 8,132,905 12,263,201 7,289,856 - 30,205,398
s % AAZEE Investments in associates - - - - - - 170,244 170,244
I’Sﬁmﬁﬁ AR & Goodwill and other intangible assets - - - - - - 1,016,481 1,016,481
RamE Investment properties - - - - - - 135,234 135,234
Bt Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 186067 1,896,067
AER A5 REEFEHR Other assets, including current and deferred
B income tax assets 33,578 2,539,947 1,164,858 6,914,306 2,382,400 436,839 3,892,986 17,364,914
g Total assets 67,954,531 131,856,287 110,790,689 176,286,774 284,987,604 165,633,018 16,054,853 953,563,756
fifl Liabilities
ROFERADERERZ R Deposits from banks and other financial
institutions 80,864,208 44,408,346 32,279,205 23,547,657 25,975,389 - - 207,074,805
fEEMTR Derivative financial instruments 68,329 875,276 826,112 1,512,898 2,727,763 1,757,696 - 7,768,074
R Deposits from customers 163,001,298 118,816,541 142,406,974 97,516,392 13,535,892 - - 535,277,097
REGE G Certificates of deposit issued - 2,332,596 6,036,378 276,544 - - - 8,645,518
ERTRA Debt securities in issue
~HEUATFREZEERAR - Designated at fair value through profitor loss - - - 1410123 7,015,178 - - 8425301
s T IN - Atamortised cost - - S 1696513 - - DTS
DI RA AR SRR Subordinated debt measured at amortised cost - - - 3,889,974 - - - 3,889,974
K& GRRGRELERH Other liabilities, including current and deferred
ffk income tax liabilities 1,987,229 13,435,402 1,935,502 7,194,240 574,753 - 1,053,299 26,180,425
AR Total liabilities 245,921,064 179,868,161 183,484,171 140,830,163 66,794,108 1,757,696 1,053,299 819,708,662
oyt kg Net liquidity gap (177,966,533)  (48,011,874)  (72,693,482) 35436611 21819349 163875322 15,001,554 133,855,094
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4 B R B e 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 {ﬁyj ﬁﬁlﬂ Fﬁ (%) 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

kK
ANEHEE  —EAR =z
Repayable Upto  —Z=fiN A Sk TENE  EENES a5t
ondemand ~ onemonth  1-3months  3-12months 1-5years  Over5 years Undated Total
Fib T i Fibr i Fibx i Fi
ZE-NELZREA-H 31 December 2018 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
% Assets
RERERTALRLMABBEZ  Cashand balances with banks and
33 other financial institutions 50,252,489 101,122,043 - - - - - 151,374,532
ERTAER LS REEZ T Placements with banks and other financial
institutions = - B6057 10586741 s s - TT3B
WATERSRERARZSMEE  Financial assets atfair value through profit or loss
~HibfEk - other deb securites = = = = = 525,689 = 525,689
fit2BTH Derivative financial instruments 27,548 784736 §58874 2078651 436,853 958215 = 9,144,877
BRI IR Advances and other accounts 10705007 1543306 25037054 104805533 205738792 114069781 - 475789393
DATEEEEMATREARSE  Financial investments measured at FVTOCI
f&
~RHRR - treasury bil 1,565,389 S LIS LS00 3435 - R
~RE# - equity securities - - - - - 1748449 2786700 4535051
R AT - certificates of deposit held = = = - 149,291 - - 149,291
— {5 - other debt securities - 1,163,332 1,317,069 6753685 49902692 2951200 - B8
~MEERER - Wealth management product - - - - - - - -
DI S AR A TR 2 A Financial investments measured at amortised cost
— RS - treasury bills = 2,510,861 8,926,081 995,045 6,874918 733,080 S 2003998
— B 2R - centificates of deposit held S QT8 6797249 562,400 - - - 10,100,067
- Rk - other debt securities = 107,826 604,272 648087 19731341 7,983,031 - 3607475
REEATZHE Investments in associates - - - - - - 97,984 97,984
T8 R T g Goodwill and other intangible assets = = = = - - 1,017,797 1,017,797
BEmE Investment properties = = = - = - 140,135 140,135
VEIET | Property, plant and equipment - - - - - 901,251 901,251
KR @RRTRELHEH Other assets, including current and deferred
BE income tax assets 298,548 3,678,836 1,336,240 435,554 3,032,867 124679 BB 13108697
it k| Total assets 61483592 129106667 108507411 138923782 291202774 159098319 5075840 893618387
i Liabilities
RIFEREMERBREZ Deposits from banks and other financial
institutions 618050 37408489 15685605 41250888 27470008 5 - 161433060
ik EMIR Derivative financial instruments 32,807 883,170 1,003,093 2,207,693 2,100,567 691,057 - 6,920,387
KRR Deposits from customers 139899280 145373608 11879440 12563679 10,722,682 = - SB53L808
E#fEN#E Certificates of depositissued S Q56806 1853 ILLIGMI - - - 4948381
REL b Debt securities in issue
~HEUAFREZEERAR - Designated at fai value through profitor loss - - - 108,794 2,533,396 - - 2,642,190
~DHRRE AR - Atamortised cost L35 4660270 4438807 999359 - - N6
DI A AR B Subordinated debt measured at amortised cost = s = . 3,909,718 3,915,825 s 7,825,543
Kfug s @RERTRELHR Other liabilities, including current and deferred
ffk income tax liabilities 2,699,136 8,013,534 1,208,061 5,097,200 469,846 293163 952409 18733349
AR Total liabilities 182049275 195399120 145719003 189879219 57,201,827 4,900,045 952409 776,300,898
OO A0 Net liquidity gap (120765,683)  (66292453)  (37211592)  (50.955437) 234020947 154198274 3343 117317489
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that
will be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at
the balance sheet date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages
the inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash
inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a net basis include:

- Foreign exchange derivatives: over-the-counter currency
options; and

- Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements and OTC interest rate options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

- Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency
swaps; and

= Interest rate derivatives: cross currency interest rate swaps.
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4 B L B B (a0 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 {ﬁyj ﬁﬁ’-ﬁ Fﬁ (%) 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
ZER ZMA =%
AR 7% S et ) B 6 X S X 3 W
Repayable on 3 months 3-12 1-5 Over5 W HIY it
demand or less months years years Undated Total
T T T Tl Tl Ti#x T
B
+ZA=+—H As at 31 December 2019 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EA L Financial liabilities
SRAT IR 3 B A 45 B Deposits from banks and other
2R financial institutions 85,354,194 81,723,961 24,344,405 22,923,152 - - 214,345,712
EEIEH Deposits from customers 152,859,729 272,714,757 107,676,767 15,952,852 - - 549,204,105
BEATIE R Certificates of deposit issued - 8,368,974 299,617 - - - 8,668,591
PIATEESIBHERAIRLZ  Debt securities in issue at fair value
EET S through profit or loss - - 1,071,686 7,384,017 - - 8455703
DA S R A TR 22 B 8847 6% Debt securities in issue at amortised
cost - - 5,576,235 17,208,542 - - 22,784,777
DV AR A B 2 SR fE PR Subordinated debts measured at
amortised cost 4,092,809 - - - 4,092,809

oA 4 A 15 Other financial liabilities 1,975,287 12,659,596 5,009,542 -

- 1,053,299 20,697,724
SRR Total financial liabilities 240,189,210 375,467,288 148,071,061 63,468,563 - 1,053,299 828,249,421
RAB 40 Derivative cash flow
DR EMESMTH Derivative financial instruments

settled on net basis (1,985) 240,900 (38,185)  (497,123) (68,575) - (364,968)
AL Total inflows 606,873 91,623,326 109,443,483 139,097,433 81,801,490 - 422,572,605
it i 4 Total outflows (608,858)  (91,382,426) (109,481,668) (139,594,556) (81,870,065) - (422,937,573)

=

MEEATESBTA Derivative financial instruments

settled on gross basis
A SR Total inflows 43,889,921 403,256,527 218,389,905 48,115,124 47,396 - 713,698,873
it 4 Total outflows (43,843,420) (403,073,087) (218,286,144)  (48,143,465) (45,132) - (713,391,248)
HREANRMEH Off-balance sheet items
—AEE AT
No later — 2 A HAED L Bt
than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
REF-WEFZAZ+—H At 31 December 2019 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
KR Loan commitments 157,913,997 19,882,036 38,991,268 216,787,301
IR - BRA5 LI B AE Guarantees, acceptances and other
financial facilities 12,582,858 - - 12,582,858
A A Forward deposits placed 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000
it Total 174,496,855 19,882,036 38,991,268 233,370,159
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4 W B B a0 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 ﬁ@lﬁﬁlﬂ Fﬁ (%) 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
ORI =M@ A =%
JE It R T +-MA —ZBH4E HAERL |
Repayable on 3 months 3-12 1-5 Over5 MEGEHIH M st
demand or less months years years Undated Total
THTT Tt T T T T T
BRF N
+ZA=+—H As at 31 December 2018 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SR Financial liabilities
SRAT IR 3 B A 45 B Deposits from banks and other
I financial institutions 46,188,455 59,214,859 57,291,880 22,693,462 - - 185,388,656
B Deposits from customers 119,290,583 277,447,823 130,001,477 16,578,034 521 - 543,318,438
ST IR Certificates of deposit issued - 13345413 10,690,318 376,789 4,370,351 - 28,782,871
DIATEES R L EAR Debt securities in issue at fair value
BB EE through profit or loss - - - - - - -
DA AR A BR 2 Debt securities in issue at amortised
SRS cost - 51,099 344,614 17,527,137 - - 17,922,850
DIVBRGY AR ABR 2 % (7B Subordinated debts measured at
amortised cost - 659,420 1,047,447 9,535,216 5,873,738 - 17,115,821
o 4 £ 5 Other financial liabilities 2,798,724 11,310,565 4,744,890 295,451 1,597,136 90,541 20,837,307
SRAGHH Total financial liabilities 168,277,762 362,029,179 204,120,626 67,006,089 11,841,746 90,541 813,365,943
ik B4 i Derivative cash flow
DRSS EMESM T H Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis 943 169 617,713 415,317 194,192 - 1,228,334
A S Total inflows 7,287 1,690,159 7,191,212 73,334,079 150,004,189 - 232,226,926
it 4R Total outflows (6344)  (1,689,990)  (6,573,499)  (72,918,762) (149,809,997) ~(230,998,592)
DA AT SR TR Derivative financial instruments
settled on gross basis
A SR Total inflows 1,276 183,406,276 73,691,765 198,566,073 55,634,114 - 511,299,504
it 4 Total outflows (857) (183,440,028) (73,662,063) (198,784,374)  (55,760,032) ~ (511,647,354)
HREANRMEH Off-balance sheet items
—EHUT
No later =2 e AR =t
than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
REF-NEFZHAZ—H At 31 December 2018 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Loan commitments 168,194,627 14,220,287 34,500,417 216,915,331
IR - BRA5 LI BB AE Guarantees, acceptances and other
financial facilities 20,572,950 - - 20,572,950
G Total 188,767,577 14,220,287 34,500,417 237,488,281
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.5 Strategy in using financial instruments

By their nature, the Group’s activities are principally related to
the use of financial instruments including derivatives. The Group
accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating rates,
and for various periods, and seeks to optimise the interest margins
by investing these funds in high-quality assets. The Group seeks to
increase these margins generally by consolidating short-term funds
and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while maintaining
sufficient liquidity in the process to meet all claims that might fall
due.

The Group also seeks to raise its interest margins, net of allowances,
through lending to commercial and retail borrowers with a range of
credit standings. Such exposures involve not just on-balance sheet
loans and advances but also guarantees and other commitments such
as letters of credit and performance and other bonds.

The Group also manages the risk of financial instruments by
taking positions in OTC instruments to take advantage of short-
term market movements in currencies, interest rates and securities
prices. The management places risk limits on the level of exposure to
financial products.

(a)  Fair value hedges
The Group hedges part of the existing Hong Kong dollar and
foreign currency interest rate risk in its fixed rate assets by
means of interest rate swaps. The net fair value of these swaps
as at 31 December 2019 was HK$777 million negative (2018:
HK$25 million negative).

(b)  Cash flow hedges
The Group uses interest rate swaps to protect against
exposures to variability in future cash flows on non-trading
assets and liabilities which bear interest at variable rates.
The net fair value of these swaps as at 31 December 2019 was
HK$110 million negative (2018: HK$95 million positive).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments measured at fair value using a valuation
technique

Fair values of standardized financial assets and financial liabilities
that are traded in active market are based on quoted market prices.
For all other financial instruments, the Group determines fair
values using valuation techniques. In general, quoted prices in
active market will be used if available. When quoted prices in active
markets are not available, an appropriate valuation technique will be
employed.

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash
flow models, comparison to similar instruments for which market
observable prices exist, Black-Scholes and polynomial option pricing
models and other valuation models. Assumptions and inputs used in
valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates,
credit spreads and other premia used in estimating discount rates,
bond and equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity and
equity index prices and expected price volatilities and correlations.
The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value
measurement that reflects the price of the financial instrument that
would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the reporting
date.

The Group uses widely recognised valuation models for determining
the fair value of the common financial instruments. The market
data inputs are independent and observable in the market which
avoids any manipulation of the fair values. The Group has also an
established Valuation Committee to set up control framework with
respect to the measurement of fair values. Valuation Committee is
responsible for review of all market prices and rate sources used as
well as curves, methodology and models for valuation of financial
instruments.

A Credit Valuation Adjustment (CVA) is applied to the Group’s
over-the-counter derivative exposures to take into account the
counterparty’s risk of default when measuring the fair value of
the derivatives. CVA is the mark-to-market adjustment to the fair
value to reflect potential credit risk from counterparties in the
Group’s over-the-counter derivative portfolio. CVA is calculated
by multiplying the expected loss rates and the exposure value of the
instruments at deal level.

The Group estimates the expected loss rates by referencing the
historical loss rates of the counterparties at similar internal credit
grading level. A Debit Valuation Adjustment (DVA) is applied
to incorporate the Group’s own credit risk in the fair value of
derivatives, using same methodology as for CVA.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Determination of fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial

instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a

recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy

as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into

which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with

reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations:

Level 2 valuations:

Level 3 valuations:

Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
inputs other than quoted market prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Fair value measured using unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are used to measure fair
value to the extent that relevant observable
inputs are not available.
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4 B R B A BE om0 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
46 SRVEEKABRZATFEE G 4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
JEE 25T (3 (4#) Determination of fair value hierarchy (continued)
FH— FH BH= HE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Tk T T Tk
= L B | 31 December 2019 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
R0 P A T A R Recurring fair value measurements
SRHEE Financial assets
/T A Derivative financial instruments
HIHIME S K Forward foreign exchange contracts - 3,173,094 - 3,173,094
S RRIESME 5 4 Structured foreign exchange contracts - 667 - 667
g R Currency swaps - 1,317,977 - 1,317,977
41 IEE 1 HE FX options - 92,000 - 92,000
1] 2 451 141 Interest rate swaps - 2,363,090 - 2,363,090
i Commodity forward - - - -
2 & Interest rate futures - 932 - 932
B 5 45 14 Equity swaps - 3,242,673 - 3,242,673
e S 07 Equity options - 226 - 226
- 10,190,659 - 10,190,659
PIA B [EA H AL 2k 42 ABR%  Loans and advances to customers, banks
Fo 8T IR 22 B R AR IE and trade bills measured at fair value
DYTES L through other comprehensive income
v 95 B Advances to customers - 1,091,074 - 1,091,074
e Trade bills - 7,450,101 - 7,450,101
- 8,541,175 - 8,541,175
IATEHEEERAIREF 2835 Loans and advances to customers and
BRI DL J 73K placement measured at fair value through
profit and loss
%P Advances to customers - 4,258,209 - 4,258,209
TESRATIR 2 Jo LAt 4 M A 22 173K Placements with banks and
other financial institutions - 1,117,999 - 1,117,999
- 5,376,208 - 5,376,208
FRERC o) i 4 Tl Financial assets held for trading
(e Debts securities 492,484 - - 492,484
Jhe R Equities - - - -
492,484 - - 492,484
DAV BRI R AR 2FEE  Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
RERES Investment funds 3,535,667 1,039,698 - 4,575,365
HAls Others - 472,217 - 472,217
3,535,667 1,511,915 - 5,047,582

192



TR JUELER o 7 ST () A RRA
Annual Report 2019 Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WE-E - NE+ A=+ —HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

4 W B B a0 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
46 SRVEEKABZATFEAE G 4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
JHETE 25T (7 (4#) Determination of fair value hierarchy (continued)
S SH— BH= A
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
T#x T T T
"R —-WETZAZET—H 31 December 2019 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000

A TEESHM 2T EAIRZ  Financial assets measured at fair value

SHWERE through other comprehensive income
fH5 Debt securities 103,604,177 46,299,566 - 149,903,743
R R 5 Equity securities - 232,626 2,237,985 2,470,611
103,604,177 46,532,192 2,237,985 152,374,354
SR E AR Total financial assets 107,632,328 72,152,149 2,237,985 182,022,462
A Financial liabilities
Mk i LA Derivative financial instruments
7 AN E A 4 Forward foreign exchange contracts - 2,654,006 - 2,654,006
R ST HE 4 £ Structured foreign exchange contracts - 668 - 668
SdicE e Currency swaps - 1,205,981 - 1,205,981
HMEE 1 EX options - 87,531 - 87,531
ESLE Interest rate swaps - 3,170,048 - 3,170,048
18 fi 722 01 Commodity forward - - - -
A2 & Interest rate futures - 577 - 577
B S 45 8 Equity swaps - 649,036 - 649,036
i S HE Equity options - 227 - 227
- 7,768,074 - 7,768,074
a8 LA B ER B R RARZ Financial liabilities designated at fair value
EMAE through profit or loss
C#iTfH Debt securities in issue - 8,425,301 - 8,425,301
- 8,425,301 - 8,425,301
B A A Total financial liabilities - 16,193,375 - 16,193,375
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46 SRVEEKABRZATFEE G 4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
JEE 25T (3 (4#) Determination of fair value hierarchy (continued)
Eif— L EH= HaEH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Tl Tt Tt Tt
— S Y 31 December 2018 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
SR PE AP A Recurring fair value measurements
A b Financial assets
fESmTE Derivative financial instruments
5 HA AN BE S &) Forward foreign exchange contracts - 3,338,499 - 3,338,499
A HETE SN E & 40 Structured foreign exchange contracts - 391 - 391
Jeqi N ] Currency swaps = 1,185,796 - 1,185,796
A1 HE A A FX options = 192,274 = 192,274
] 2 4 1 Interest rate swaps - 1,677,753 - 1,677,753
T i 4] Commodity forward - 3,889 - 3,889
F =M & Interest rate futures = 2,305 = 2,305
L8] Equity swaps - 2,743,970 - 2,743,970
Ji& S HE Equity options - = = _
- 9,144,877 - 9,144,877
DL - AE B A8 Ho At 4 T 0 2% Loans and advances to customers, banks
AREF - $R17IR 22 83K and trade bills measured at fair value
PERIN IS THE LR through other comprehensive income
HIFEH Advances to customers - 700,946 - 700,946
PSR Trade bills - 11,854,473 = 11,854,473
- 12,555,419 - 12,555,419
FrERE o G e M Financial assets held for trading
& ¢ Debts securities - - = =
il Equities - - - -
DAA-FEESHEGRARZ Financial assets at fair value through
45 il S profit or loss
BERE Investment funds = 139,622 = 139,622
HoAth Others = 386,067 = 386,067
- 525,689 - 525,689
DA 718 {5 #8 H fth 4 T Uk #8  Financial assets measured at fair value
AR 4l through other comprehensive income
&% Debt securities 86,951,383 9,579,376 = 96,530,759
i 5 55 Equity securities 790,024 882,954 2,862,173 4,535,151
87,741,407 10,462,330 2,862,173 101,065,910
A Il E AR AR Total financial assets 87,741,407 32,688,315 2,862,173 123,291,895
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4 B R B e 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
46 SRVEEKABRZATFEE G 4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
JEE 25T (3 (4#) Determination of fair value hierarchy (continued)
EH— E— £ A
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
TG Tt Tl Tt
—“F-NpFZA=+—H 31 December 2018 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$000
A AE Financial liabilities
A A= 4 il T H Derivative financial instruments
2 1A AP HE 5 4 Forward foreign exchange contracts - 3,356,026 - 3,356,026
#hEMEAMNE & £ Structured foreign exchange contracts - 391 - 391
B 4 ) Currency swaps = 1,356,306 = 1,356,306
S HEE 3 A FX options = 204,960 - 204,960
] 2 4 11 Interest rate swaps = 1,319,190 = 1,319,190
P i 72 3] Commodity forward - 4,077 - 4,077
B ES Interest rate futures - 6,669 - 6,669
J S 45 1A Equity swaps - 672,768 - 672,768
Ji S RE Equity options - = - _
- 6,920,387 - 6,920,387
6 7€ DL (6 848 45 R Financial liabilities designated at fair value
ABRZ 4Rl A R through profit or loss
EEBITES Debt securities in issue = 2,642,190 = 2,642,190
- 2,642,190 - 2,642,190

=
hiuny
zﬂﬁ}l‘

Total financial liabilities - 9,562,577 - 9,562,577
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4 E?J‘%EL Fﬁ%ﬁ (%) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

46 SRVEEKABRZATFEE G 4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

BAT-EHA 2 FH=2MTALE
TR 2T (51 0 2 5 = e
8 2 1 B LA A 2 SO

Movements in level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value
The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and
closing amounts of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities which are
recorded at fair value:

#=F AR TR 2 P 9 iR R
—H—H zWasE +-H=+—H
At WK () Total gains At
1 January Addition/ recorded 31 December
2019 (disposal) in equity 2019
T#T T#x T#xT T#x
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
£ b Financial assets
DA P18 (458 H At 4 T i 4 Financial investments measured
AIEZ 4Rk % at fair value through other
comprehensive income
i 5% Equities 2,862,173 (1,046,938) 422,750 2,237,985
S A = 4 A E AR Total level 3 financial assets 2,862,173 (1,046,938) 422,750 2,237,985
0w =F— )\ AHRE i 9 51 R it & — N4
—H—H ZEHMAE T+T-HA=+—H
At W/ (M) Total losses At
1 January Addition/ recorded 31 December
2018 (disposal) in equity 2018
T T T T T T T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
A ¥ Financial assets
DL S {8 {8 48 HoAth 42 T U 45 Financial investments measured
ANIRZ &R E at fair value through other
comprehensive income
M5 Equities 250,364 2,940,803 (328,994) 2,862,173
S A = 4 i AR Total level 3 financial assets 250,364 2,940,803 (328,994) 2,862,173
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Movements in level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value

(continued)

Gains/losses on Level 3 financial instruments included in the income

/SR statement for the year comprise:
& 8 3Ll 1 o 5 B 2
Unrealised Unrealised B
losses gains Total
T#IL T#L T#L
it 21K 3 2019 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEAAERE I tE F 2 Ukt Total gains/(losses) included in income
(s 48) 487 statement for the year - - -
7 5 Bl 4R R 5 BN A
Unrealised Unrealised RLE ]
losses gains Total
TH T T oo T T
T ) 2018 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
FEAAAEFE it R 2l ds Total gains/(losses) included in income
(5 15) K83 statement for the year = = =
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Significant transfers between Level 1 and 2

No financial assets were transferred from Level 1 to Level 2 as they
ceased to be actively traded during the year and fair values were
consequently obtained using valuation techniques using observable
market inputs.

S N LY % R 3 T
Transfers from Level 2 to Level 1
SR e A2
+TZA=Z+—H +-H=+—H
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
T#x T T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
DA SPAB(E A8 oA 4 Ui 45 A MR Financial investments measured at fair value through
Z R g other comprehensive income

i %5 Debt securities - 431,615

Lo R A B R
R EIRNAE LRG> B AT
(L 0 A 725 1) T L 0 i O i A S A
i E 7 5 UG o

A58~ (B 55 5 2 TR] 0 SRS At 2 T s o5 30
B RIRFBEAE o
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The above financial assets were transferred from Level 2 to Level
1 as they have been actively traded during the year and fair values
were no longer obtained using valuation techniques using observable
market inputs.

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to
occur at the end of the reporting period.
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LT LA TR (2 2 LA
S E R AR A EEMAFIT

(a)  7EERTT[A] 5 At 2 B 2 A7 AR R A7
/;l-m'/-r

T2 S5 A7 SRR B 0 A K T {5 £ B R

T B > [ 52 Pl 347 3R (AR D T —4F)

B At w1 R R - 2 2 A B B B e v

T AT 88 W T 35 ) 2 B R B AE I REAL o

PRI A > JHC A SP B R A 5 R H R T A

(b)) HHRAAIEA

AR A B 7 10 B B8R (L 485 465 4% 51
M o BR/NER 2> % P AT K S H A R T AL
HERERII DL B A 5t B o A4 BT A
& F RT3 2 SR R HABRIE 2 &
SR IRF 2% R A B 22 i 35 ) 3 2 4T B
WALHEA > S T T B 4 1 (2 AR B IR
AT A (Sl I K 2 -

(c) UUBEEE AR &
DA 88 B AR A IR B Y A BB TS 2 18
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are estimated as
follows:

(a)  Balances and placements with banks and other financial

institutions

The fair values of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits are their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest-bearing deposits, all of which are less than one
year, is based on the discounted cash flows using prevailing
money-market interest rates and the remaining maturity.
Therefore, the fair value is approximately equal to the carrying
value.

(b)  Advances and other accounts

Advances and other accounts are net of allowances for
impairment. All items, except a very insignificant portion of
loans and advances to customers, bear interest at a floating
rate. The Group has assessed the fair values of loans and
advances to customers and banks, after taking into account
the relevant market interest rates and net of allowances for
impairment. It is noted that the total fair value is not materially
different from the total carrying value.

(c) Investment measured at amortised cost
The fair value of investment measured at amortised cost
determined with reference to the available market value. If
quoted market prices are not available, then the fair value
is estimated on the basis of pricing models or using other
valuation techniques.

(d)  Deposits and balances from customers, banks and other
financial institutions
The estimated fair value of deposits and balances with no
stated maturity is the amount repayable on demand. The fair
value of those balances having an interest at a floating rate is
their carrying value.

The estimated fair values of the fixed interest-bearing deposits
of banks and deposits from customers without quoted market
prices is based on discounted cash flows using interest rates for
new debts with similar remaining maturity. As their maturity
is normally less than one year from the end of the reporting
period, their fair values are approximately equal to their
carrying values.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

(e)

Certificates of deposit issued

The Group has assessed the fair value of certificates of deposit
issued after taking into account the relevant yield curve and
noted that the total fair value is not materially different from
the total carrying value.

Other assets and other liabilities

The estimated fair value of the other assets and other liabilities,
which are normally non-interest-bearing, is their carrying
values.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
except for the following financial instruments, for which their
carrying amounts and fair value and the level of fair value
hierarchy are disclosed below:

M Wi L
Carrying 2R S S - FH=
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
T T T#1L T# T T
—F—JuE 2019 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
& A Financial liabilities
DL 85 A A A B 15 15 & R Subordinated debts measured at
amortised cost 3,889,974 3,977,856 3,977,856 - -
HR T A
Carrying NP FH— £ - L=
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AR P RSP AR AR AR
RN\ 2018 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
4l A Financial liabilities
DL B A A B AR M8 5 08 Subordinated debts measured at
amortised cost 7,825,543 8,013,697 4,021,200 3,992,497 -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.7 Fair values of non-financial assets and liabilities

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s bank
premises and properties and investment properties measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for
which market data are not available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs

Fair value at 31 December 2019

FH— HH B =
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
T#x T#x T#x T#x
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

SR PE A TR R Recurring fair value measurement
SRAT I B K ) 2 Bank premises and properties 607,192 - - 607,192
[sd-C/ES Investment properties 135,234 - - 135,234

MoF— NFE+ZH=+—HZAPEE

Fair value at 31 December 2018

E— £ - F=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
T T T T T
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

RN PEAER = Recurring fair value measurement
SRAT I K ) 2 Bank premises and properties 627,090 - - 627,090
G % Investment properties 140,135 - - 140,135

WME-E-NFF+ A=+ —HILFE F
Bo— KRR A MRS o N A B
WA =2 THH o AR H 2 BUR 7 i MR 8%
A 2 R 0 [H] A ORI 2 S 1B (S AR 2 [H]
R o

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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4 E?J‘%EL Fﬁ%ﬁ (%) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
47 FEEREEKARZ A TFEAAE 3D 4.7 Fair values of non-financial assets and liabilities (continued)
LS TAE (] (A1) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
AL T A 4R G W) 3 DA ERAT R EE SR All of the Group’s investment properties and bank premises and
CENEFT A=+ HEHAGE - AR properties were revalued as at 31 December 2019. The valuations on
TG W UL T RAT 5 B X 3 2 A E B the Banks’s investment properties and bank premises and properties
7 BRSE A RS A (L P R A s AR AT A BR A were carried out by an independent professionally qualified valuer,
FHEAT o AN SRAT B R 4 W B G W 3 LA SR AT A.G. Wilkinson & Associates. The investment properties and bank
5 B 2 2 A (A AR A 2 ST S premises and properties of the Bank’s subsidiary were carried out
A A (L R R 11 T B R B A E R M S M by an independent professionally qualified valuer in the Mainland
TR i 5 A A PR ) EAT o 0o S A BT Y R China, Shenzhen GuoZhongLian Asset and Real Estate Appraisal
A T i (EL 90 3 T 7 M 25 A0 9 SE 55 Rl 2 4 10 £y Consulting Co., Ltd. The valuers are with recent experience in
(B 48 B o A 45 |8 2 45 30 g B Y o gl A 4% the location and category of property being valued. The Group’s
w3 B A BE R H A AT Al (ELIE BT 22 A management has discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
B B Al (A 45 AT b o assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed
at each interim and annual reporting date.
B R =2 FEE T2 EF Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
475 8 A 81 5¢ i A\ AH
Valuation Unobservable i 1
techniques input Range
AWK
— T BE % T3 355 Wi 4
— 1 A Sl B0 B <6 Uik A L g R Y 3
T e R
TE A A
Investment properties
- Hong Kong Investment method Market yield 2.73% - 2.85%
- Mainland China Discount cash flow Risk adjusted discount rate 4.7%
Expected market rental growth 3% - 5%
Expected occupancy rate 95%

RITSZ ERY #
—&it
— 1 Ay s 7y A T
— H ] A7 s 7 72
Bank premises and properties

- Hong Kong
- Mainland China method 1

- Mainland China method 2

202

H B
it B B 4V

H 3% ik
Direct comparison approach

Discount cash flow

Direct comparison approach

YIS 2 M8 (P i)
JEL B i 2 it B %
T LA SR

e o AR R

T 35 15l 3 3

Premium/(discount) on
characteristic of the properties

6.72% to (19.17%)

Risk adjusted discount rate 4.5%
Expected market rental growth 5%
Expected occupancy rate 97%
Market value discount rate 6%
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.7 Fair values of non-financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)
For investment properties classified under level 3, the fair values are

valued by:

i)

investment method of valuation and have assessed the
contractual rental income and the expected future market
rental income after allowing for outgoings and maintenance
requirements at appropriate market yields as perceived in the
actual market; and

discounting a projected cash flow series associated with the
properties using risk adjusted discount rates. The valuation
takes into account expected market rental growth and
occupancy rate of the respective properties. The discount
rates used have been adjusted for the quality and location
of the buildings and the tenant credit quality. The fair
value measurement is positively correlated to the expected
market rental growth and the occupancy rate, and negatively
correlated to the risk adjusted discount rates.

For bank premises and properties classified under level 3, the fair

values are determined by:

i)

discounting a projected cash flow series associated with the
properties using risk adjusted discount rates. The valuation
takes into account expected market rental growth and
occupancy rate of the respective properties. The discount
rates used have been adjusted for the quality and location
of the buildings and the tenant credit quality. The fair
value measurement is positively correlated to the expected
market rental growth and the occupancy rate, and negatively
correlated to the risk-adjusted discount rates; and

using direct comparison approach to value properties in
their respective existing states and uses on the market basis
assuming sale with immediate vacant possession and by
making reference to comparable sales evidence. The valuations
take into account the characteristic of the properties which
included the location, size, shape, view, floor level, year of
completion and others factors collectively. Higher premium
for properties with higher characteristic will result in a higher
fair value measurement.
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4 E?J‘%EL Fﬁ%ﬁ (%) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
47 FEEREEKARZ A TFEAAE 3D 4.7 Fair values of non-financial assets and liabilities (continued)
B8 = SN T B (H 72 2 B (4) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)
S5 AR =001 R W A R 2 0 R 2 2 ) The movements during the period in the balance of these Level 3 fair
T value measurements are as follows:
T#L
AT ERDE Bank premises and properties: HK$°000
AZE—JE—H—H At 1 January 2019 627,090
GRWE N Addition for the year -
LN 'S 7/ E Transferred to investment properties -
T 3% 3 Exchange adjustment (1,184)
NI Depreciation charge for the year (17,240)
# (e 1H Loss on revaluation (1,474)
R-F—NE+A=Z+—H At 31 December 2019 607,192
T T
SRAT 5 B I3 Bank premises and properties: HK$°000
A E— NE—H—H At 1 January 2018 645,804
GRWEIN Addition for the year -
VNS <L7/E Transferred to investment properties (24,000)
T 232 3 Exchange adjustment 1,581
NI Depreciation charge for the year (17,253)
R PER S Surplus on revaluation 20,958
R _FE—NAFF_A=+—H At 31 December 2018 627,090
T#0
BeEWE - Investment properties: HK$°000
AE—NE—H—H At 1 January 2019 140,135
HERAT 5 2 S ) A Transferred from bank premises and properties -
N TAE (B R Fair value adjustment (4,200)
T 232 7 ¢ Exchange adjustment (701)
RA_E—JEFZA=+—H At 31 December 2019 135,234
T
&Y : Investment properties: HK$°000
HoFE—NE—H—H At 1 January 2018 117,407
HY SRAT 5 7 S ) S Transferred from bank premises and properties 24,000
N {3 A R R Fair value adjustment 700
T %2 3 Exchange adjustment (1,972)
REF—/N4E+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2018 140,135
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.8

Capital management

The Group’s objective for managing capital is to allocate capital
in an efficient and risk-based approach to optimise risk-adjusted
return to the shareholders. The Group periodically reviews its
capital structure and maintains a strong capital base to support the
development of its business. The privatisation of the Bank in 2010
facilitates greater responsiveness than before to the Group’s need
for capital injection from the Parent Bank as and when it arises. This
was evidenced by the various capital injections from the Parent Bank
thereafter.

The Group manages its capital to execute its strategic business
plans and support its growth and investments in an efficient way.
The Group adjusts its business and lending strategy from time to
time to optimise its risk-return profile. To ensure compliance with
regulatory requirements, detailed capital management and capital
adequacy ratio management policies have been drawn up by the
Bank.

The HKMA requires the Bank to maintain a prescribed ratio of
total regulatory capital to risk-weighted assets (the CAR). Certain
subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to statutory capital
requirements from other regulatory authorities, such as the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission. Capital adequacy and the
use of regulatory capital are closely monitored by the Management,
employing techniques based on the Capital Rules. The required
information is filed with the HKMA on a quarterly basis. The
disclosure of capital adequacy and capital base are shown in Note 1
of the Supplementary Financial Information.

During the two years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group

complied with all of the capital requirements externally imposed by
the HKMA.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.9

4.10

Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of unexpected financial losses resulting
from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems or
from external events. The Group follows the definition by BASEL
Committee which includes legal risk, but excludes strategic and
reputation risks. Operational Risk is inherent to every aspect of
daily business operations within an organization, which covers a
wide spectrum of issues and root causes. The Group adopts the
“Three Lines of Defence” approach to manage operational risk. The
Operational Risk Committee is established to provide adequate
oversight to ensure operational risks (including technology risk)
are identified, assessed, mitigated, and reported with adequate
control measures and procedures. Operational risk is also monitored
through the implementation of various management tools, including
key risk assessment, key risk indicators, operational loss data
collection and incident reporting, internal control checking, etc. The
Group will keep on pursuing proactively the effective operational
risk management practice in accordance with the relevant guidelines
and principles issued by the BASEL Committee and the HKMA
respectively.

Legal and compliance risk management

Legal risk is the risk arising from the potential that unenforceable
contracts, lawsuits or adverse judgments may disrupt or otherwise
negatively affect the operations or financial conditions of the Bank.
Compliance risk is the potential risk of compliance sanctions,
financial loss, or reputational loss that the Group may suffer as a
result of violations of, or non-compliance with, applicable laws and
regulations with respect to the conduct of business.

Legal and compliance staff members advise the management on
legal and regulatory developments and assist the management in
establishing policies, procedures and monitoring programmes to
ensure compliance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements.
Compliance staff conducts regular compliance checking so that the
Bank can identify potential non-compliance issues and take remedial
actions on a timely basis. Legal and compliance staff also arranges
regular training sessions to update staff members with relevant
legal and regulatory requirements. Regular reports on related legal
and compliance issues including non-compliance issues and legal
and regulatory developments are presented to various Board-level
Committees.
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING

5.1

Class of business

The Group comprises seven operating segments. Asia Pacific
Business represents the banking business in Asia Pacific Region.
Corporate and investment banking mainly comprises corporate
banking, the provision of debt capital market and investment
banking. Commercial banking represents commercial lending
and trade financing. Retail banking represents retail banking, hire
purchase and leasing, and credit card business. Global markets
and trading represents foreign exchange, money market and
capital market activities. Institutional banking represents financial
institution business. Chinese Mercantile Bank represents the
business of the Bank’s subsidiary in Mainland China. Unallocated
items mainly comprise the central management unit, bank premises,
inter-segment elimination entries and any items which cannot be
reasonably allocated to specific operating segments.
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5 EEE @ 5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
5.1 %%@ﬂ (%) 5.1 Class of business (continued)
el
¥
HREEE  Corporate LARWHH e

Asia- ad  WERT BEREG Global MY Chinese

Pacific  investment Commercial Retail markets  Institutional ~ Mercantile FYiE ) it

Business banking banking banking  and trading banking Bank  Unallocated Total

T Ti#x Ti#x Ti#x T Ti#x Ti#x Ti#x Ti#x
CRNEFSAZ R 31 December 2019 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
A SA Net interest income 395566 1539275 2091505 L6312 926,605 975151 2198893 2390207 12,155,334
B RS A Fee.and commission income 96,221 5474 497,958 863,240 6 234316 137,504 134974 2,535,693
OB Bt Fee and commission expense (1,588)  (16,541) (2,170)  (291,889) - (710) (18,619) M (331,518)
e YT ETIONGE | Net fee and commission income 94,633 554,933 495,788 571,351 6 233,606 118,885 134973 2204175
WRAMA/ L) Net trading income/ expense) 27,489 82,262 179,38 145746 901974 16977 (164883)  (491975) 696,828
WATREEREEAR Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilties
SRERERAR (B8 atfair value through profit or loss
Bl - - - - (7H98) 16817 4,846 9120 (506,198)
REARBEZRERA Dividend income from financial investments - - - - - - - 35,566 35,566
Kl BERA Other operating income - 123,395 30 255 - 6,113 AT 66T 393,037
-E LN Operating income SI7688 2099865 2766561 2355484 1092603 1338664 2195198 2393579 14,979,642
CES Operating expenses (108303)  (259089)  (709423)  (1510,932)  (357,838)  (280817)  (446345)  (34927)  (3,707,874)
AARAERL 2 BXA Operating profit before impairment losses 409185 2040776 2057138 844552 TMT65  LO7Z847 1748853 2338652 11271768
SREERERATH Net impairment losses on financial asset (1409)  (G21424)  (952941)  (61342)  (36737) 137,890 (47414)  (335410)  (1,831474)
TR BER %2 & ¥R Operating profit after impairment losses 395,080 1519352 1104197 783,210 698,028 1215737 1701439 2,023,240 9,440,294
BERENEER Revaluation loss on investment properties - - - - - - - (4,200) (4,200)
3 &gﬁfﬁ LERTE Net loss from property, plant and equipment - (6) (18) (643) (11) (5) - (269) (952)
HEUATRERLMAERE  Netgain on disposel fnancial asets at air value
NEEREEZ WG through other comprehensive income - - - - 518,443 - 31,376 - 549,819
BREA Operating profit 395089 1519346 1104179 782567 1216460 1205732 1732815 2018773 9984961
KA ATEE Share of loss of associates - - - - - - - (4,69) (4,696)
L i A1 Profit before tax 395,080 1519346 1104179 82567 1206460 1215732 1732815 2014077 9,980,265
HHEE Segment assets 3814397 99,630,126 119,089,674 89,288,575 183342102 27,289,779 141854879 261,083,980 953,393,512
REEAT R Interest in associates - - - - - - - 170,244 170,244
BgE Total assets 3814397 99,630,126 119,089,674 89288575 183,342,100 27289779 141854879 261254224 953,563,756
Haf Totallabilties 36,095,604 86055864 122300969 213347369 10,866,138 140364369 127,085,930 83,392,419 819,708,662
Bt Capital expenditure 56 107 255 134,544 6,415 194 18,861 142,138 302,570
HERBHER Depreciation and amortisation charge 5,505 7,97 27,069 307412 1294 6,180 54633 186,217 607,275
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5.1 %%@ﬂ (%) 5.1 Class of business (continued)
BEA
BER
EREEH  Corporate 3 it BRI
Asia- ad  WERG  BERG Global  HHERfT Chinese
Pacific ~ investment  Commercial Retail markets  Institutional  Mercantile £ At
Business banking banking banking  and trading banking Bank  Unallocated Total
Tt Titx T T Tt Titx T T Tt
ZE-\EFZAZT-H 31 December 2018 HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
A SIA Net interest income 305 L0219 2578720 1683366 995458 LTS 2399704 1297377 1162568
B R ES A Fee and commission income 94446 570,638 616,688 881,788 1 303,715 190,239 10849 768,364
e YTES T Fee and commission expense (303) (9,338) (1L665)  (343116) - (391) (7,823) - (e
e JUET NG Net fee and commission income 94,141 561,300 605,03 538,672 1 303,34 182,416 10849 2,395,726
BRAMA/ () Net trading income/(expense) 8,705 89,962 12971 167,274 (119,100) 60,591 7,044 (297,994) 129,453
WATERESRERAR Net gain on financial assets and liabiities
SREERARIE RS atfair value through profit or loss - - - - 307,742 - 6,613 - 314,35
REERBEZRERA Dividend income from financial investments - - - - - - - 8,835 8,835
FlEEmA Other operating income - - 86 203 - - 30,117 232,896 263,302
BERA Operating income 55378 L8281 3396800 2389515 LIS4IOL  LSILSO7 2625894 1351963 14736939
BELH Operating expenses O7817) QU765 (63656  (1443.985)  (354385)  (245395)  (430,749) (26968)  (3433,626)
ABHEREEERA Operating profit before impairment losses 37560 L603TIE 2760238 943,530 89716 1266412 215145 1324995 11283313
SHEERAERRTE Net impairment losses on financial asset (47,849) 67495 (410,123) (56,607) 2,135 88780 (401083)  (490539)  (1,228,791)
M e R 2 &R Operating profit after impairment losses 09712 L6709 2350105 888,923 850851 135519 1794062 834456 10,054,522
R EN LG Revaluation gain on investment properties = = = = = = = 700 700
¥R ERITE Net loss from property, plant and equipment - - (6) (2,003) - - (755) (2,104) (5,088)
HEDAFRESEMAENE  Net gain on disposal financial assets at fair value
MRS ERE 2 W through other comprehensive income - - - - 270,948 - 58,137 - 329,085
HERAEHMAMBEZUE  Netgain on disposal of held-to-maturity financial
B investments - - - - - - - - -
BEA Operating profit 09712 LETLA9 2350109 886,700 LI2LT99 135509 1851444 833052 10379219
FEit BB A miE Al Share of profit of associates - - - - - - - 12,390 12,390
L i A1 Profit before tax 09712 LETLA09 2,350,109 886,700  LL2LT9 135509 1851444 845440 10,391,609
AHEE Segment assets BAGNS 89963561 140884029 81489222  ISLIZ8733 34900014 44310151 227,375,665 893,520,403
REEATZER Interest in associates - - - - - - - 97,984 97,984
BEE Total assets BAGNS 89963561 140884029 81489222  ISLI2633 34900014 44310151 227473649 893,618,387
Bak Totallabilities 18680804 69394470 127992592 203407644 8975083 99346811 130599749  LI7.903745 776,300,898
N3 & Capital expenditure 44 116 864 45914 57 556 15,754 50,654 114429
il LA R Depreciation and amortisation charge ) 106 985 46,720 2,748 209 15813 42,59 109,261
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5.2 iR HuEE 4 5.2 Geographical area
AR E AT U SE EH EEEE N The Group operates predominantly in Hong Kong. The geographical
28 4y 2 HIEA AT analysis, which has been classified by the location of the principal
operations, is as follows:

FEUSHZ

K 3 I

Asia Pacific
Bk (excluding A
Hong Kong Hong Kong) Consolidated
T#x T ¥ T#x
“R—hig 2019 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
wERA Operating income 12,780,473 2,199,169 14,979,642
W Bt i v | Profit before tax 8,240,004 1,740,261 9,980,265
B A Total assets 811,717,287 141,846,469 953,563,756
=Kigk Total liabilities 692,627,830 127,080,832 819,708,662
R B BRI Contingent liabilities and commitments 201,585,614 31,784,545 233,370,159
FENEARME Capital expenditure during the year 283,709 18,861 302,570

s LA 2

R K [a8

Asia Pacific
i (excluding e
Hong Kong Hong Kong) Consolidated
T T T
e S AN S 2018 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
e ON Operating income 12,105,380 2,631,559 14,736,939
B A il vai A Profit before tax 8,530,163 1,861,446 10,391,609
 E AR A Total assets 749,313,796 144,304,591 893,618,387
A A Total liabilities 645,702,323 130,598,575 776,300,898
R A MRS Contingent liabilities and commitments 205,855,018 31,633,263 237,488,281
FENEARME Capital expenditure during the year 98,675 15,754 114,429

A E—JUF S F — AR S B — )
R B T 5 By 2 WA G AR 4R B AR A 10%

UL -
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No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or
counterparty amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue

in 2019 or 2018.
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6 | B A 6 NET INTEREST INCOME
2019 2018
T Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000
LA NIEH Z R B WA Interest income on:
B4 K Ar SR 47 [7] 3 K L A <6 Rl A% A Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions
Z AR 4,126,460 944,075
TE SR AT ] 2 B LAt 4 Rl R 22 A7 2K Placements with banks and other financial institutions 894,231 3,849,731
A R S HoAth BRI Advances and other accounts 17,158,787 17,819,770
DA S8 (1 58 Ath 4 17 i 4 A R Investment securities measured at fair value through other
Erd ieis comprehensive income 3,835,625 3,383,455
DA 85 AR A R4 ﬁ s Investment securities measured at amortised cost 1,686,605 1,774,294
27,701,708 27,771,325
DIFEHZ A B Interest expense on:
SRAT A 2 K HoAth 4 Bl A 22 A7 K Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 4,002,620 5,012,795
B Deposits from customers 10,296,424 8,989,459
AT A7 e Certificates of deposit issued 393,157 1,407,360
EETE S Debt securities in issue 538,161 141,643
DL B A AR 2 15 18 1 IR Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost 290,459 530,507
HoAt Others 25,553 64,293
15,546,374 16,146,057
AR e A Net interest income 12,155,334 11,625,268
PG < L B i 2 IR S £939,851,00005 76 (& — /\4F ¢ Note: Interest expense on lease liabilities is HK$39,851,000 (2018: Nil).
) o
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7 WoE R A W E 7  NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
2019 2018
T Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000
B S AR Loans, overdrafts and guarantees 1,252,279 1,421,050
TSR MR Securities and brokerage 358,897 368,754
B 5 & Trade finance 149,721 153,955
(RS Credit card 355,917 409,354
[T ¢ Remittance 116,674 92,920
TR B Insurance 118,662 80,817
HAth Z B K 7 S AR AT RS Other retail and commercial banking services 21,760 17,552
e P Securities arrangement fee 41,220 71,120
HoAth Others 120,563 152,842
(& 2 AN Fee and commission income 2,535,693 2,768,364
Wi R A 4 S Fee and commission expense (331,518) (372,638)
Wiz 25 R AR 4 i A T ER Net fee and commission income 2,204,175 2,395,726
Hodr e Of which:
i JEFEAE S 5 & s LA AP [E 58 Net fee income, other than amounts included in determining the
i 7 AR 4B B i L B RO effective interest rate, arising from financial assets or financial
A2 B A ORI liabilities that are not held for trading nor at fair value through
IR 7 5 8) profit or loss 1,402,000 1,575,005
AEMREHEF R EESIXE  Net fee income on trust and other fiduciary activities where the
2 A5 R S HA A2 5T N ZETS T A A 2 Group holds or invests on behalf of its customers
T A 42,666 34,560
2019 2018
T T T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
H e Of which:
FE AL AR 2 W 2 S XA A DA Fee and commission income by product line constitutes not less
& PR EA TN U= e than 10% of the total amount of fee and commission income, as
/(I follows:
— SR £ K - syndication loan 729,349 856,313
— W I KR H - securities and brokerage 358,897 368,754
—fEHF - credit card 355,917 409,354
— A A — term loan 248,273 321,358
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8 WRIABA 8 NET TRADING INCOME
2019 2018
T#L T¥E T
HK$°000 HKS$’000
JREHE & Equity investments - (8)
(e Debt securities
— FFEE 5 H b & g = - financial assets held for trading 76,541 57,807
— DA P8 {46 3 Ath 2 T Ui £ - investment securities at FVTOCI
AIRBCE IR (54,304) 85,086
TR Derivatives 542,180 (186,637)
S HE Foreign exchange 129,067 174,609
693,484 130,857
ERUTY DA € £ )] Gain/(loss) from hedging activities
NS S EEE=RLE Fair value hedges
— S SRR i I R i - Net gain on hedged items attributable to the hedged risk
i 834,986 89,217
— b TH G485 5 - Net loss on hedging instruments (831,642) (90,621)
3,344 (1,404)
352 5 W #R Total net trading income 696,828 129,453
TR JUAR Z T 58 By W R I A DB B AR A There is no gain or loss on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
MRz ARl s s (CF— /\4F - ) o which is included in total net trading income in 2019 (2018: Nil).
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9 VDA TEMERBEREARSHEE,A 9 NET (LOSS)/GAIN ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

=z E (EE) s LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS
2019 2018
T#x T
HK$°000 HK$’000
DI TFEEAR R R ABR Y & Bl &% Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 299,441 (79,819)
DIA-TEEALEG RARZ SR A Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (805,639) 394,174

PAAPAEE ARG RAMRZ GRUEE  Total net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value

K BB (es8) i as 4% through profit or loss (506,198) 314,355
10 &g B aBA 10 DIVIDEND INCOME FROM FINANCIAL
INVESTMENTS
2019 2018
Tt T
HK$’000 HK$’000

A A -FEERHAB 2 WY AR Dividend income from unlisted equity securities at fair value

JE b 2R R R 2 B B A through other comprehensive income 13,375 8,835
HE LA TEESIEGZAR LT Dividend income from listed financial assets at fair value through

& RV EE 2 BB IR profit or loss 22,191 -
AR &R E 2 BB A 4E%E Total dividend income from financial investments 35,566 8,835
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11 HAlE KA 11 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2019 2018
T#L T
HK$°000 HKS$’000
EHAILA Management fee income 247,698 247,769
A Rental income 13,873 303
BEYEZHE A Rental income from investment properties 3,922 2,832
Wk RN EAEF G Z R EW) L Less: Direct operating expenses arising from investment
HEEEXT properties that generated rental income during the year (104) (70)
Al Others 128,548 12,468
A g SE WA R Total other operating income 393,937 263,302
12 BEXH 12 OPERATING EXPENSES
2019 2018
T#T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
B3 Staff costs:
— 3 S HA S ~ Salaries and other costs 1,974,404 1,811,374
—IBIRE - Retirement benefit costs 104,549 84,831
2,078,953 1,896,205
J75 I B AR St (AN 045 7 85 1 Premises and equipment expenses, excluding depreciation and
) - amortisation:
—EEMS - Rental of premises 52,930 463,676
—H At - Others 198,301 224,183
251,231 687,859
8 KA 6 3 Depreciation and amortisation expenses
— RS A T - Depreciation of right-of-use assets 499,313 -
— H A [ 7 B A 8 S - Depreciation of other fixed assets and amortisation 107,962 109,896
607,275 109,896
B N Auditors’ remuneration 5,278 4,982
1T General administration expenses 102,080 116,052
HH: i 2 Business promotion expenses 184,188 204,306
78 5T\ 2 Communication expenses 105,616 94,848
Ho Al 7 3 S Other operating expenses 373,253 339,478
'&é’% o AR Total operating expenses 3,707,874 3,453,626
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13 IBIREZH 13 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS
B i R AT R 2 AR R4 Tl S AR AR AR R The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to the income statement
BRG] Koo A & at B ([ 5EsHE ) HIE L 2 4t represents contributions payable by the Group to the ORSO Scheme and
K e the MPF Scheme (the “Schemes”).
RAEFZ R AREE 2 B TR G G2 BIRG Under the Schemes, the Group’s contributions are reduced by
i A I AR R A R 0 A N T K A B A K contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the Schemes
7 A 42 8 22 A 0 A B 113 o 45 R 2 PR G s & 3 prior to the contributions vesting fully. Forfeited contributions totaling
4,500,000% G (& — /\4FE ¢ 9,800,000% 70) T FE K HK$4,500,000 (2018: HK$9,800,000) were utilised during the year leaving
B o A5 B BR4,396,0009 0 (= % — /U4E HK$4,396,000 (2018: HK$828,000) available at the year-end to reduce
828,000 75) B AE H & Hmi ik 32 1 - future contributions.
ARG I A AT T % S S 2 AR (2 — 4 No contributions were payable to the Schemes at the year-end (2018: Nil).
M) o SZAE B R AR LR B AR The assets of the Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
B 4y B A B o independently administered funds.
14 <5 il e kL 9L K ¥ 14 NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS
2019 2018
T#L T T
HK$°000 HK$’000
A TR e A I I ek (L 4B 2% S 8 Charge for impairment losses on loans and advances 1,861,245 1,136,273
A 4 Pl 7 (B4R 2% ([1438) 28l (Write-back-of)/Charge for impairment losses on other financial
assets (29,771) 92,518
4 T (E 1R O VR AR Net impairment losses on financial assets 1,831,474 1,228,791
15 5% Je B A < B 1R 15 NET LOSS FROM PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT
2019 2018
T#L T
HK$’000 HK$°000
HH 5 W) 3 B Rl 2 s 1 AR Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (979) (5,065)
SRAT I 2 A s Al 48 (S 8H) Write-back-of/(Charge for) revaluation deficits of bank premises 27 (23)
(952) (5,088)
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16 FiIH 16 TAX

B vt RSB TR EAS AR BE 2R B B v 2 A 51 HE B it
FIAL T 216.5% (& — /\4E : 16.5%) A o A B
AN AT T W6 Va8 2 i) s ik ) ) 0 DL 7 AN 42 [ 4%

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.
Taxes on profits assessable for overseas branches and subsidiaries have

P 7E [0 2% B BUAT B A /A o

T 6 WA A 2R ST S IO B I R 2

been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the

Group operates.

The amount of tax charged to the consolidated income statement

represents:

2019 2018

T AR

HK$’000 HK$’000

R AEBLIH Current tax

— 4 N 7 W R A B 4 A - Provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the year 1,247,893 1,532,922

— 4 [N ¥ 4/ TE 95 A - Provision for overseas tax for the year 546,104 457,793

fEAF GRRA M) A 2 (Over)/Under provision in respect of prior years (95,050) 218,089
A% SIE Bl AR Deferred taxation (21,280) (95,358)

1,677,667 2,113,446

AL A ] R 5 i i 1) 22 0 S S B R # BLAT AL
A A 2 Bl B A 2 2R

follows:

The difference between the tax expense for the Group’s profit before tax
and the theoretical amount that would arise using the current tax rate is as

2019 2018

Tt THs T

HK$’000 HK$’000

I B4 i i Profit before tax 9,980,265 10,391,609
B 216.5% (—F— /4 1 16.5%) Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%)

#HE 1,646,744 1,714,615
HAth B R AS R Bl R 2 5 28 Effect of different tax rates in other countries 211,102 169,137
A A AR 2 A Income not subject to tax (256,199) (37,248)
B I 5 AN AT 18 2 32 Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 170,295 50,897
380 A 400 ] o L ) o Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous periods (95,050) 218,089
43405 Y s W) B IE Share of tax of an associate 775 (2,044)
B IE XX Tax charge 1,677,667 2,113,446
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2019 2018
Tt Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000
Lk Fees 3,950 3,066

oA 45 Other emoluments:
3 < B R Salaries and allowances 3,687 3,673
i) 1% A€ 4L Discretionary bonuses 5,576 2,185
PR EE K G 38 WM EE13) Contribution to the Schemes (as defined in Note 13) 559 493
13,772 9,417

e I ] JEE Remuneration system
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It is the Bank’s policy to maintain a fair, equitable and market competitive
remuneration packages based on the Bank’s performance and industry
practice.

The level of fees paid to Non-executive Directors is determined by factors
such as fees paid by others institutions, and the Non- executive Directors’
scope of work and efforts.

In determining the remuneration packages of Executive Directors, the
following factors are considered:

. Business needs

. Business performance

. Economic and market situation

. Individual contributions to the Bank’s business in the past and
future

. Overall risk and non-financial factors of the Bank

To avoid conflict of interest, the Directors will not be involved in the
determination of his own remuneration.
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18 Ji & 18 DIVIDENDS
FEHEEEARMAEE - F—N4E+A=+—H The Board has not recommended the payment of dividend for the year
IR RS (. — 4 @ ) o ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

19 #lk&A 19 EARNINGS PER SHARE
A i R I L AR 2 R IO ) 4 AR SR AT I RE A 4 TR Basic earnings per share amount is calculated by dividing the profit for
i ) B DLAF 7R 2 AT 8 2 IR 2 i G the year attributable to equity holders of the Bank by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2019 2018

JE BRI 3 A (T o0) Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$’ 000) 8,302,598 8,278,163

O34T 28 e 2 I 2 8 (AR Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 2,665,121 2,577,000

R FE AR (5 0) Basic earnings per share (HK$) 3.12 3.21
ARAERREE " F—E T+ A=1T—HEK Diluted earnings per share amount for the year ended 31 December 2019
F—/)NFE+ H=+—H I-FE £ 3547 and 31 December 2018 were the same as basic earnings per share, as the
T I o WS AR 2 T R ) A LA Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during those

FEAR LRI o years.
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20 HEIAHE 20 ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS
DATR DATRH
ol (5 il BREK AR BEAAE DS
Lk i Measured at ez A JRA A
Held for Held for fair value through Measured at Measured at Hsit
Trading hedging profit or loss FVTOCI amortized cost Total
T T Tl Tl T T
REZ—RAEFZHZ+—~H  At31December2019 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000
i3 Assets
BeRERTAERL SR Cash and balances with banks and
A2 other financial institutions - - - - 138,338,758 138,338,758
TESRATRE RSB BB 2 F20  Placements with banks and other
financial institutions - - 1,117,999 - 103,833,873 104,951,872
MEEMTA Derivative financial instruments 10,034,718 155,941 - - - 10,190,659
SRR AR Advances and other accounts - - 4,258,209 8,541,175 462,187,092 474,986,476
SRTE Financial investments 492,484 - 5,047,582 152,374,354 46,598,631 204,513,051
HibgE Other assets - - - - 16,985,407 16,985,407
SREESH Total financial assets 10,527,202 155,941 10,423,790 160,915,529 767,943,761 949,966,223
FomERE Non-financial assets 3,597,533
S Total assets 953,563,756
A Liabilities
BEMERLMEREHZ A Deposits from banks and other
financial institutions - - - - 207,074,805 207,074,805
fit 2B TR Derivative financial instruments 6,759,521 1,008,553 - - - 7,768,074
RREH Deposits from customers - - - - 535,277,097 535,277,097
BRI E Certificates of deposit issued - - - - 8,645,518 8,045,518
S Debt securities in issue - - 8,425,301 - 20,447,468 30,872,769
DABESH R A A TR 2 4 (B B Subordinated debts measured
atamortised cost - - - - 3,889,974 3,889,974
A 5 Other liabilities - - - - 24,483,421 24,483,421
SRABRE Total financial liabilities 6,759,521 1,008,553 8,425,301 - 801,818,263 818,011,658
FeHAR Non-financial liabilities 1,697,004
ARAH Total liabilities 819,708,662
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20 EEEE @ 20 ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS (continued)
PIAYEE DA B
1 (e BREEAR HHRM2H D8
h % Eapllili Measured at e IN AR AR
Held for Heldfor  fair value through Measured at Measured at A5t
Trading hedging profit or loss FVTOCI amortized cost Total
T T T T T T
REZF-NETZH=1—H At31 December 2018 HKS’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS 000 HKS’ 000
{3 Assets
BeRERTRAERLLER Cash and balances with banks and other
14 ¥4t financial institutions - - - - 151,374,532 151,374,532
TESATIR £ KM R 27730 Placements with banks and other
financial institutions - - - - 74,217,313 74,217,313
MAELBTH Derivative financial instruments 8,834,108 310,769 = = = 9,144,877
B3 R A IRIE Advances and other accounts - = = 12,555,419 463,033,974 475,789,393
SHBE Financial investments = = 525,689 101,065,910 66,214,809 167,806,408
i EeE Other assets = = = = 12,378,929 12,378,929
SHEEAE Total financial assets 8,834,108 310,769 525,689 113,621,329 767,419,557 890,711,452
FemEE Non-financial assets 2,906,935
ik Total assets 893,618,387
A Liabilities
RATFERIUBERER 2 Deposits from banks and other
financial institutions - - - - 161,433,060 161,433,060
MEEMTA Derivative financial instruments 6,678,187 242,200 - - = 6,920,387
KF Deposits from customers - - - - 533,531,808 533,531,808
EEffE Certificates of deposit issued - - - - 24,948,381 24,948,381
E#TH% Debt securities in issue = = 2,642,190 = 20,266,180 22,908,370
DABEBH A AR 2 4 B (R Subordinated debts measured at
amortised cost - - - - 7,825,543 7,825,543
Hl s Other liabilities = = = = 18,070,159 18,070,159
SHARSE Total financial liabilities 6,678,187 242,200 2,642,190 = 766,075,131 775,637,708
FemAk Non-financial liabilities 663,190
AAH Total liabilities 776,300,898
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21 Bla R AESRAT ] 3 J H il 43 b B A 2 45 21 CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS AND OTHER

fig FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

2019 2018
THE 172
HK$’000 HK$000
B4 Cash on hand 538,255 542,862
h SR AT 2 &G iR Balances with central banks 12,779,157 11,269,602
HoAh SRAT K 4 Al A 2 &5 R Balances with other banks and financial institutions 46,460,271 38,440,397

A8 H LAN B 2 SR 17 [R] 3£ Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Al <5 Pl B A A7 maturing within one month 78,562,823 101,122,043

Uk V(R A Less: impairment allowance

—121f A PA R TE B 05 H E O - 12 month ECL (1,748) (372)
138,338,758 151,374,532
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21 Bl Jo A SRAT [) 38 B I At 5> B 2 A 21 CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS AND OTHER
ﬁ,% (41) FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)
VR B Rl T B AR B 2 R Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
TRIEAEHOMEGESE LN A EZ 2 4 The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
TR & R &2 58 - HHBMESEBE LN EE activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
TEAEAS B H 10 45 A B 4 T B SR TR 0 5 | Rl TS B from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or
A B 4 B A ER A v A AR R B o future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow
statement as cash flows from financing activities.
iieh Ui
URE AVREE e R
WANES  BEEARZ  REARZ  CEIRR Bl s
Uil CRI filiben g} Lip] 4 il 43 it
Debt
securities in issue Interest payable
Debtsecurities ~ designatedatfair ~ Subordinated Interest  on Subordinated Additional
inissueat  valuethrough  debtsmeasured  payableondebt  debts measured equity
amortisedcost ~~ profitorloss  atamortised cost  securitiesinissue  at amortised cost instraments~ Leaselfabiies ~~ Share Capital Total
TiL iz TiL T TiL T T T T
HKS000 HES'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
RoB-MEL2A 3‘|‘"‘ i At31 December 2018 20,266,180 164,190 7805543 5,145 13,056 17,835,107 1,040,071 36,379,331 95,867,023
W (AR SN F1658 258 Tmpacton niialapplicaton of HKERS 16 - - - - - - BL0% - B510%
ﬂiz”‘f‘hif”‘ﬁ =l At1 January 2019 20,266,180 1641190 7,825,543 55,145 13,056 27,635,707 1,291,124 36,379,331 9,118,276
ﬁﬁ_fﬁ!}z%ﬁiﬁ!& 8 Changes from financing cash flows:
ERitENAFEEARER Issuance of debt securities designated at
AEZIE firvale through proftorloss - 5489470 - - - - - - 5489470
BNBHRAARL 5 Issuance of bt securities measured at
‘ amortised cost 7,721,705 - - - - - - - 7,721,705
DERRA AR 53 Mature of debt scurites measured at
o amortised cost (5,489,470) - - - - - - - (5,489,470)
DATEREREFARES Matureof bt securites measured at far
oo value through profitor loss - (251,28) - - - - - - (251,283)
REU &R AR Redemption ofsubordinated debt
z/ %{Ela measured at amortised cost - - (3,892,875) - - - - - (3,892,875)
B MEE}L{IH Issuance of additional equity instruments - - - - - - - -
E%E%Z & iﬁﬂ 8 Interest paid on debt securities n issue - - - (512,135) - - - - (512,135)
DR ERER Interest paid on subordinated debs
EX R measured atamortsed cost - - 3,3 - (291,050) - - - (87914)
?&‘ﬁgﬁ i Issuance of share capital - - - - - - - 7,808,300 7,808,300
BAERTAZ RIS Distribution paid on additional equity
instruments - - - - - (1,307,313) - - (1,307,313)
FhiEEE Payment of easelailie - - - - - - (480,758) - (480,738)
223,35 5,238,187 (3,889,739) (512,1%) (291,00) (1,307,313) (480,758) 7,808,300 8,797,727
B Exchange adjustments - - (45,830) - - - - - (45,830)
Moﬁﬂ{ J ) Other changes:
WA AR 2% Amortsation of debt securifesinfsue
fé%ﬁ&iﬁ measured at amortised cost (50,947) - - - - - - - (50,947)
Eﬁﬁ%#ﬁ‘l%iﬁ Interestexpense on debt securiies inissue - - - 538,161 - - - - 538,161
DBHRAARZ K ER Interest expenses on subordinated debts
TR E A ) measured at amortised cost - - - - 290459 - - - 290459
DAFEEEREZAR Netloss on financialasets and ablities
iﬁ!ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ% B fair value through profitor oss - 544924 - - - - - - 544924
EE%%#FSHH } Netincrease in lease iabilities - - - - - - 199,705 - 199,705
BIMERTE MR Distribution on additional equity
instruments - - - - - 1,307,313 - - 1,307,313
HEARZ RS Interestexpense on lease labilites - - - - - - 39,851 - 39,851
HRaaE Totel other changes (350947) 544904 - 538,161 290459 1307313 139,556 - 2,869,466
e S . 3 B o | At31 December 2019 10,47468 8,425,301 3,889,974 81,171 1,465 27,635,707 1,049,922 4,187,031 107,739,639
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21 B4 M AESRAT [A] 3 J At 4 A A 2 45 21 CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS AND OTHER

ﬁ,% (41) FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)
D5 HEN D DA DS Gilies
BAARZ AFREESRER ARz ARZEER  ARZERER
BHfrfR ARZCERIE BEGEE  BERNHE EfHE  BAMEETA it
Debt securities
inissue
designated Interestpayable ~ Interest payable
Debt securities at fair value Subordinated  ondebt securities  on Subordinated Additional
inssue at through ~ debts measured inissueat  debts measured at equity
amortised cost profitorloss  atamortised cost amortised cost amortised cost instruments Total
Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=% M= At1 January 2018 1530692 6,385,182 11,698,483 4 62,575 7,738,332 27415312

BERHZHLHHSEH:  Changes from financing cash flows:
BAREDVAFRESBER Issuance of debt securities designated at

N2 fair value through profit or loss - - - - - - -
BITUBEAAARZES  Issuance of debt securities measured at
amortised cost 18,767,697 - - - - - 18,767,697
DB RAARZ EHFM  Mature of debt securities measured at
amortised cost (448,820) - - - - - (448,820)
WATEESRESABRES Mature of debt securities measured at fair value
) through profit or loss - (3,548,818) - - - - (3,548,818)
[ {EDE 5w IN Redemption of subordinated debt measured at
LR amortised cost - - (3918575) - - - (3918,575)
BAEMER TR Issuance of additional equity instruments - - - - - 19,897,375 19,897,375
BIMER TRZ MR Distribution paid on additional equity instruments - - - - - (818,259) (818,259)
DBRIBA AR Z DB TTE%  Interest paid on debt securities inissue at
BEEHFIE amortised cost - - - (86,546) - - (86,546)
DIBRAAARZ HBEE  Interest paid on subordinated debts measured at
BEXfHE amortised cost - - - - (570,026) = (570,026)
18,318,877 (3,548,818) (3,918,575) (86,546) (570,026) 19,079,116 29,274,028
JE St Exchange adjustments - - 34820 - - - 3480
JHu% : Other changes:
DBERAARZEHS  Amortisation of debt securities in issue
(63 4 measured at amortised cost 416,611 - - - - - 416,611
DB RAARZ REER  Amortisation of subordinated debt measured at
H amortised cost - - 10813 - - - 10813
DEHHANRZ LB Interest expense on debt securities in issue at
A M B Lt amortised cost - - - 141,643 - - 141,643
DESMAARZ Interest expenses on subordinated debts
EERE L measured at amortised cost - - - - 530,507 - 530,507
DATEESRGEEAR  Netlosson financial assets and liabilities
SHAERARRER atfair value through profit or loss - (394,174) - - - - (394,174)
BIMER TRZ MR Distribution on additional equity instruments - - - - - 818,259 818,259
Hignan Total other changes 416611 (394174) 10813 141,643 530,507 818,259 1,523,659
RZF—NEFZAZF—H At31December 2018 20,266,180 2,642,190 7,825,543 55,145 23,056 27,635,707 58,477,821
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22 A SRAT [ 5% B A 4 R 2 A7 Ak 22 PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
2019 2018
T#x T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
A — 2 A8 B 2 8RATIR 2 K Placements with banks and other financial institutions maturing
Ath, 4 Rl A4 9 7 2K between one and twelve months 104,984,921 74,242,932
ORI R I=ke £ Less: impairment allowance
— 1218 H PA A FALE I Rk - 12 month ECL (33,049) (25,619)
104,951,872 74,217,313
23 R GHEBEEMEE 23 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING
2019 2018
T#L T
HK$°000 HK$°000
S RE Financial investments
(e Debt securities:
— AU B - Listed in Hong Kong 210,124 -
— A s LA S b [ T - Listed outside Hong Kong 282,230 -
—k b - Unlisted 130 -
492,484 -
s AT Market value of listed securities 492,354 -
EHEEFUTHEA : Debt securities are comprised of the following items
— B - Treasury bills - -
— TR AR - Certificates of deposit held - -
— HAth &% - Other debt securities 492,484 -
492,484 -
45 BB HE B AT AU A A I R Financial investments are analysed by category of issuer as follows
— BT K SR AT - Central governments and central banks 130 -
— AN - Public sector entities - =
— SRAT [R] 2 B HoAth 4 7l 4 A - Banks and other financial institutions 296,204 -
— - Corporate entities 196,150 =
— HoAth - Others - -
492,484 -
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24 DAOP M B AR 4R 48 R AR S R R 24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS
2019 2018
T T3 5t
HK$’000 HK$°000
SR ) DA 2N S {58 (B AR 4 4 R Financial assets mandatorily measured at
ARl E fair value through profit or loss:
WEHSE Investments funds 4,575,365 139,622
HoAt Others 472,217 386,067
5,047,582 525,689
PLA PR 7 R ARG R A E  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
AT NBU AT R analysed by category of issuer as follows:
— $R 47 ] 2 T H: Ath 4 i BE R - Banks and other financial institutions 4,430,914 -
— > ZETTHE - Corporate entities 616,668 525,689
5,047,582 525,689
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group enters into the following equity, foreign exchange and
interest rate related derivative financial instruments for trading and risk
management purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign
currency on a future date.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of
cash flows for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies, interest
rates (for example, fixed rate for floating rate), or a combination of all these
(i.e., cross-currency interest rate swaps). Except for certain currency swap
contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency, interest rate and equity options are contractual
agreements under which the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder)
the rights, but not an obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put
option) at or by a set date or during a set period, a specific amount of the
financial instrument at a predetermined price. In consideration for the
assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the seller receives
a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated OTC between the
Group and its counterparty or traded through the stock exchange (for
example, exchange-traded stock option).
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The contractual/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial
instruments held by the Group are set out in the following tables. The
contractual/notional amounts of these instruments indicate the volume
of transactions outstanding at the end of reporting periods and certain
of them provide a basis for comparison with fair value instruments
recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position. However,
they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved
or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate
the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative financial
instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as
a result of fluctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates
and equity relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative
financial instruments (assets and liabilities) can fluctuate significantly
from time to time.

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded or OTC)
mainly for customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management
policies in providing derivative products to the customers and in trading
derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking
book. A derivative instrument must be included in the approved product
list before any transactions for that instrument can be made. There are
limits to control the notional amount of exposure arising from derivative
transactions and the maximum tenor of the deal and management alert
limit in profit or loss is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into
the relevant system for settlement, mark to market revaluation, reporting
and control.
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25 fAESBT A @) 25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FERAEMAESM LA D HHEEESR®+ A The following tables summaries the contractual/notional amounts of each
=+ —RZAEH ZEBEZME significant type of derivative financial instruments as at 31 December:
AREE GRS
HEEW
Group AP AP
Contractual/ ¥ £
notional Fair value Fair value
amount assets liabilities
T#x T#L T#L
ZE s 2019 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

1) FHERZ S B ZATETH 1) Derivatives held for trading

a) AhEERTA T H a) Foreign exchange derivatives
— i e B Ty A W A - Currency forwards and currency swaps 720,472,310 4,456,466 (3,859,987)
— AN A HIRE R A - OTC currency options purchased 50,140,941 92,000 -
— 3 A W I RE - OTC currency options written 53,646,349 - (87,531)
— &5 MM AN E TR - Structured foreign exchange instruments 344,668 667 (668)
HNERTAE T EL AR Total foreign exchange derivatives 4,549,133 (3,948,186)
b) FlRAT4 T H b) Interest rate derivatives
— M4 — Interest rate swaps 351,999,300 2,241,754 (2,161,495)
— MR — Interest rate futures 11,787,626 932 (577)
F R A7 A4 T B A% Total interest rate derivatives 2,242,686 (2,162,072)
o) AT E TR ¢) Equity derivatives
— I AR - Equity options 12,036 226 (227)
— IR - Equity swaps 7,993,151 3,242,673 (649,036)
WA fii A T H A5 Total equity derivatives 3,242,899 (649,263)
d) AL d) Commodity contract - - -
FefEZE 5 Rt d: LR & Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for trading
/(B ) 5 10,034,718 (6,759,521)
2) FEAEE P RS A T H 2) Derivatives held for hedging
a) HHE RN FEERHZ a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
itk TR
— R i — Interest rate swaps 26,538,871 78,024 (855,250)
b) $57E 2 Bl = H w2 b) Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
fid TH
— M — Interest rate swaps 13,911,480 43,312 (153,303)
— B - Currency swaps 3,282,743 34,605 -
77,917 (153,303)
FrES I i 2 A T H Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for hedging
G (A R 155,941 (1,008,553)
EERMmE T REE Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities)
(B fif) A% 10,190,659 (7,768,074)
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25 fiA 4l T H ) 25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

REEEGH
2 FE

Group I PEAE N PEAE

Contractual/ B s

notional Fair value Fair value

amount assets liabilities

T T T T R LY

—E— )\ 2018 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$’000

1) FrExc s Az iidh TR 1) Derivatives held for trading

a) AMMEAMTAETH a) Foreign exchange derivatives
— R - Currency forwards 603,137,209 4,524,295 (4,712,332)
— AN IRER A - OTC currency options purchased 43,378,407 192,274 (2)
— AN EARE S b — OTC currency options written 45,021,852 - (204,958)
— &M AN E LA - Structured foreign exchange instruments 84,577 391 (391)
HMREATAE T E 485 Total foreign exchange derivatives 4,716,960 (4,917,683)
b) FIEATAETH b) Interest rate derivatives
— | R — Interest rate swaps 223,789,703 1,366,984 (1,076,990)
—F R — Interest rate futures 12,500,097 2,305 (6,669)
| A7 A4 T H 4% Total interest rate derivatives 1,369,289 (1,083,659)
o) MEAfTA T A c) Equity derivatives
— SR - Equity options = -
— RS 4w - Equity swaps 14,195,256 2,743,970 (672,768)
M AT A TR A0 Total equity derivatives 2,743,970 (672,768)
d) MM AEH d) Commodity contract 1,142,380 3,889 (4,077)
FelEsc o st LR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for trading
HiE,/ (AR B 8,834,108 (6,678,187)
2) FEAEE PR AT A LH 2) Derivatives held for hedging
a) HBEMNFHEHERHZ a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
A TH
— 2 - Interest rate swaps 18,426,121 182,602 (207,952)
b) 4878 F B U i b) Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
it TR
— 2 i — Interest rate swaps 14,369,159 128,167 (34,248)
FREE B2 A TAE Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for hedging
B (B A 310,769 (242,200)

ERERATE THERE /(A  Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities)
K 9,144,877 (6,920,387)
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AT A A TR R 2 T IE H A R AR
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The contractual or notional amounts of contingent liabilities and
commitments and derivative financial instruments provide only an
indication of the volume of business outstanding at the end of the
reporting period and bear little relation to the underlying risks of the
exposures.

Among the above derivative financial instruments, certain of them were
designated as hedging instruments.

Fair value hedges are used by the Group to protect it against changes in
the fair value of financial assets due to movements in market interest rates.
The financial instruments hedged for interest rate risk mainly include debt
securities measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
The Bank uses interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate risk.

The effectiveness of the hedge based on changes in fair value of the
derivatives and the hedged items attributable to the hedged risk recognised
in the income statement during the year is presented as follows:

2019 2018

TH#L THIT

HK$’000 HK$’000

INEE S s 1) > 40k Gain/(loss) arising from fair value hedge, net:
PIFIEH -

— % TR - Hedging instruments (831,642) (90,621)

— 3 o JR B 2 A I 2 e 0 - Hedged items attributable to the hedged risk 834,986 89,217
3,344 (1,404)
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U BRI B AR R o AR TR
AR 43 1 AR 2 Wi Bl 18 5 B R A A 4 R AR,
AR Sl WA A SR A R TR B S v R
MERES 7 (% — N4 ) -

Cash flow hedge consists of interest rate swaps and currency swaps entered
into that are used to protect the Group against exposures to variability
of floating-rate assets and liabilities. Gains and losses on the effective
portion of the swaps are initially recognised directly in equity, in the cash
flow hedge reserve, and are transferred to the income statement when
the forecast cash flows affect the income statement. The gains and losses
on ineffective portions of such derivatives are recognised immediately
in the income statement. During the year, there was no ineffectiveness
recognised in the income statement that arose from cash flow hedges
(2018: Nil.)
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Below is a schedule indicating as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December

2018, the periods when the hedged cash flows are expected to occur and
when they are expected to affect profit or loss:

—4EN =t ZFENE MNEY L

“Z—hA 2019 Within 1 year 1-3 years 3-8 years Over 8 years
HEET HEE T HEEC H#EEC

HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million

BHamA CEE) Cash inflows (assets) 69 - - -
Bl th (B fH) Cash outflows (liabilities) (181) (269) (104) -
I 4 U AR Net cash flow (112) (269) (104) -
—4ER —F=4 =FENF JNAERL E

SR\ 2018 Within 1 year 1-3 years 3-8 years Over 8 years
HE T H I HE T H T

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

HERA (EE) Cash inflows (assets) 107 98 = =
HaEnd (A Cash outflows (liabilities) (259) (390) (289) =
B4 i i AH Net cash flow (152) (292) (289) =

FLE A (2 — /\4F © 43,950,000% 70) °

S 22 5y 22 B4 ik 3 e g IR A T AR & i B
S b AT T REIRAT 2 B Ui B T R R — LA A
1o

During the year, realised gain amounted to HK$24,046,000 previously
recognised in equity under the cash flow hedge reserve was transferred
to the income statement and included in the net interest income (2018:
HK$43,950,000)

There were no transactions for which cash flow hedge accounting had to be
ceased in 2019 as a result of the highly probable cash flows no longer being
expected to occur.
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25 fiE&m TH @ 25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

SRR SR A R AT AR S T L A RS
5 M E B I fE 58 A

The aggregate replacement costs and credit risk weighted amounts of
the contingent liabilities and commitments and derivative financial
instruments are:

2019 2018
155 T L B 15 R B
TR 4 7 ; ik
HE AR Credit risk A Credit risk
Replacement weighted Replacement weighted
cost amount cost amount
T#L T#L T 0 Tt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R A R GE Contingent liabilities and commitments - 34,845,644 - 31,943,840
&l‘ I@ Q ‘%/‘] Exchange rate contracts
— - Forwards 942,305 820,963 1,850,229 1,061,268
— i - Swaps 674,601 875,197 769,614 1,156,169
— I - Option purchased 17,712 26,424 66,819 56,859
— T AR - Option written 15,431 195,759 27,877 127,509
— S REYE S T - Structure FX 667 515,927 307 219,985
1,650,716 2,434,270 2,714,846 2,621,790
%IJ }3% ?‘] Interest rate contracts
—WoT & E - Eurodollar Futures Product 955 12,828 436 2,002
— i — Swaps 1,204,322 1,138,795 640,866 722,369
1,205,277 1,151,623 641,302 724,371
A& 4 Equity contracts
— Vi - Option written 226 117 - -
— i — Swaps 3,696,277 4,350,882 3,121,683 3,908,522
3,696,503 4,350,999 3,121,683 3,908,522
Ba)m > HEmRi Precious metal except Gold
— i § - Forward - 20 - -
. 20 - _
18 25 Bk Ho A 7 Debt securities or other commodities
— - Forward - - 3,889 123,105
— 3R B R O I B - US Treasury Futures Product - 1,557 1,869 56,769
- 1,557 5,758 179,874
BRSNS OTC with netting
— i - Forwards 463,467 612,934 76,612 364,614
— W E R - Option purchased 26,774 36,762 17,915 19,451
— T A - Option written 8,540 12,796 19,696 14,592
— A REYE S T - Structure FX - 50,553 84 11,461
— i — Swaps 146,972 217,905 47,304 191,029
645,753 930,950 161,611 601,147
st Total 7,198,249 43,715,063 6,645,200 39,979,544

ot J B JH 22 B A A TR g o A < A 462
AEBFEAG AL -
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The replacement costs and credit risk weighted amounts of the exposures
do not have the effects of bilateral netting arrangements.
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26 B R B H b HR I 26 ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
26.1 B ~ AT ¥ Bk N H AL IR IE 26.1 Loans and advances to customers, banks and other accounts

2019 2018

T WL Tt

HK$’000 HK$000

AHESE AR ABRZ P~ $R1TIRI2E 2 93K Loans and advances to customers, banks and other accounts

e oA F T measured at amortised cost

— K F &K - Advances to customers 437,910,469 453,051,639
— 84T [ 2K — Advances to banks 23,576,265 6,736,971
— MR — Trade bills 4,831,270 7,239,951

DIESE AR ABER T ~ $R47R 3£ 2 &3 Gross loans and advances to customers, banks and other

T HCAth R TH 48 %R accounts measured at amortised cost 466,318,004 467,028,561
JRES T FILE Accrued interest 1,416,614 1,281,341
467,734,618 468,309,902
TR 4 A Less: Impairment allowances
— 128 H PA A B R 2R - 12-month ECL (2,280,274) (2,279,440)
—EEEARMEAMANZ - Lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
T & (797,972) (667,189)
—HEARMEGHHAZ - Lifetime ECL credit-impaired
T K (2,469,280) (2,129,299)
462,187,092 463,233,974

DU B (E 28 Hofh 2 T U 65 ABR%F © Loans and advances to customers, banks and other accounts

SRATIR] 3 2 R B A R IA measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
— & F R - Advances to customers 1,091,074 700,946
mE Y — Trade bills 7,450,101 11,854,473
470,728,267 475,789,393
PAATEE B = £ ABREK T » 8117 Loans and advances to customers, banks and other accounts
2 AR S AR R IH measured at fair value through profit or loss
— K F A — Advances to customers 4,258,209 -
474,986,476 475,789,393
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26 H TA& {&EEIH (%) 26 ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)
26.1 B~ $RAT IF) 36 2 G ek K Al IR IE () 26.1 Loans and advances to customers, banks and other accounts
(continued)
2019 2018
T#L T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
(LB R S L Al B T A Gross impaired loans and advances 4,983,758 3,895,829
b A R 2 U A Impairment allowances made in respect of such loans 2,469,280 2,129,299
W B S A MR T A AL B % Gross impaired loans and advances as a percentage of total gross
HA R IEA 2 | o loans and advances 1.04% 0.81%
HEH T (E Market value of collateral 8,097,933 2,322,395
ﬁfﬁﬁ‘ K e HAh B TE 22 38 5 41 B 72 A7 AE &8 e Impaired loans and advances are defined as those loans which are
REPR B - LR R B A — TH B 2 TH 2 55 B individually determined to have objective evidence of impairment as
Z Al AR B 4 R AT A 5 A o a result of one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the

estimated future cash flows of the loans have occurred.

W E—NEF+_H=+—H > BEFEHRTHDH The impaired loan ratio of advances to customers was 1.12% as at 31
EERLEL1.12% (ZF—/\4F 1 0.86%) ° December 2019 (2018: 0.86%).
REFE—NETZH=Z1—H » AEESETHRITH There were no impaired advances to banks and trade bills as at 31
WK KRR AWM - R F— UL December 2019; nor were there any advances to banks and trade bills
TZHAZ=1—H o AREETRR A AT AT R 2E AR as at 31 December 2019 classified as stage 3.

Te T SE TR JR I o = PR B
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26 B M HABIR IH (a0 26 ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)
262 WMHIEP RBITHEEX (FEIEREE 26.2 Overdue advances to customers and banks (excluding trade
T8 % HE WOk ) bills and receivables)
REBMP-FE—NFER -F—NFEF+_H The gross amount of the Group’s advances to customers and banks
=tT—HZEe@mHEF LRITR SR (excluding trade bills and receivables) overdue as at 31 December
(R B35 7 2E 2298 I 3K JED) o dr i f 2019 and 2018 is analysed as follows:
% P
& i HEAR
Il 3% £ % 5 290 A
"4l R e 2 B
% of i am MR em #HX
£k M advances I # il il 4L Amount  Amount of Lifetime
Gross to customers Market value of secured unsecured  ECL credit-
advances and banks  of collateral balance balance impaired
T T TE THA Tk
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
“RB A 2019
i Overdue for:
INEETS Six months or less but over three
{E A8 = ] months 903,940 02 2,264,179 385,712 518,228 228,632
—AEE LR {HEEA S A Oneyear or less but over six months 2,347,641 0.5 3,653,073 1,824,961 522,680 819,365
4 Over one year 997,619 0.2 772,430 479,272 518,347 771,973
4,249,200 0.9 6,689,682 2,689,945 1,559,255 1,819,970
6% B
KA FERR
IF] 2 & 5 &4 BN
P4 A A L 2 EAME A
% of itk a o k| ES
P advancesto K T (H Amount Amount of Lifetime
Gross customers  Market value of secured unsecured  ECL credit-
advances  and banks  of collateral balance balance impaired
THETT T T THIT T
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
ZE— N\ 2018
i Overdue for:
I EETS Six months or less but over three
{E R 7t = ] months 438,878 0.1 526,304 420,449 18,429 7,294
—AEE LA R{HEEA S A Oneyear or less but over six months 1,597,447 0.4 1,420,429 1,186,771 410,675 547,006
i — 4 Over one year 1,426,355 03 31,717 9,133 1,417,222 1,387,525
3,462,680 0.8 1,978,450 1,616,353 1,846,326 1,941,825
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26 FEk S At BR IE (a)

26.2 HWI% P R SRAT IR 26 Bk (R BIE T R

I8 K E WK IE) (1)

B EAR IS AR

o AR T (EL B S R S AT A B e E S

B s

AT T > HA R B Tl
B R

AR GRAT WS ] 1541 g (39 B M) T AR 5 5 A 0
A7 AL AT A BEL#E 5 M

TR i 25 P RS B i > SR oy A B
TR - B SRAT AT e FL B R (o B o

) G EiRTER T E R  OL

ATE—JEFTFH=ZFT—H K EF—/\F
T H =+ —H o T RATIR R E
R A H B (OIS B 5 R 28 S 45 R
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ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)

26.2 Overdue advances to customers and banks (excluding trade
bills and receivables) (continued)

The criteria for eligible collateral are as follows:

. The market value of the collateral is readily determinable or
can be reasonably established and verified;

. The collateral is marketable and there exists a readily available
secondary market for disposing of the collateral;

. The Bank’s rights to repossess the collateral is legally
enforceable and without impediment; and

. If the collateral is a movable asset, it should be under the
Bank’s custody, or its whereabouts can be located by the Bank.

The eligible collateral is mainly properties, deposits and shares.
There were no advances to banks (excluding trade bills and

receivables) which were overdue for over 3 months as at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

26.3 Other overdue assets

2019 2019 2018 2018
/3 D5 b A JE S AR H Al ¥
Accrued Other Accrued Other
interest assets interest assets
T T#L T TT T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
W Overdue for:
N A 5L H R = H Six months or less but over three
months 5,930 - 234 -
s A E i N (D! One year or less but over six months 18,061 - 25,466 -
i — 4R Over one year 72,145 - 27,791 -
96,136 - 53,491 -
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Other assets refer to trade bills and receivables.
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26 ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)

26.4 HAHE R 26.4 Rescheduled advances
2019 2018
T#IL T T
HK$’000 HK$000
AR AR ( I‘@ i 780 1 6 AR Rescheduled advances (excluding overdue loans over three months)
=1EH 2 83 190,476 238,704
&P R AR AT IR S SR E A T As % of advances to customers and banks 0.04 0.05

26.5

26.6

AR R AE R AR ok L 0 e = 11 oy T 2
FEFRE b SC R R 26,238 1 H B K 23 M L o

B -NEF A= H R E N
+=H =+ —H > AT TR AT R A AL
B o

Wl

N E—NEF A=+ —H > AEEFEN
—H(ZFE—/E+ZH =+—H: WHE) ik
IR 5 7 A B AT T {E £521,670,00035 7T (& —/\
£+ H=+—H :18,780,000% JT) ° U [t &
JEE A2 0 J55 AN 4 B R0 4 TR G 0 R R A BN B
AT T A (g 388 12 47 38 =R R RN B DB
) B s RE 2 2 o

i Z7 A\ B A T e A B e A

MEELHINE R F—FE A=+
H oo Sl 40 b A 4 B 5 A Sl 288 v o 5 s K 4 119
WS (CE—NE+H=+—H: ) -
ARG H o S S5 [BE P b N A S
SR o HEAT 38 B 1) M6 3 TS S R e 1 VS B
H — i S 8 AR K o

26.5

26.6

Rescheduled advances which have been overdue for more than
three months under the revised repayment terms are included in the
analysis of overdue advances in Note 26.2 above.

There were no rescheduled advances to banks as at 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2018.

Repossessed assets

There is one repossessed asset of the Group as at 31 December
2019 (31 December 2018: two) with total current market value of
HK$21,670,000 (31 December 2018: HK$18,780,000). Repossessed
assets only comprise properties which the Group has acquired
access or control (e.g. through legal actions or voluntary actions
by the borrowers concerned) for releasing in full or in part on the
obligations of the borrowers.

Cash collateral on securities borrowed and reverse
repurchase agreements

In respect of reverse repurchase transactions, there were no
collateral held by the Group which were permitted to be sold or
pledged as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: Nil). No
collateral has been actually sold or pledged by the Group as at the
year end. The transactions are conducted on terms that are usual and
customary to standard lending activities.
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27 BEEF 27 INVESTMENT SECURITIES
31 Dec 2019
—Z—-hiE+—-H=+—H
Measured at Measured at
FVTOCI amortised cost Total
LA P
FE I b £ i V% 3]
L€ YN BEAS A MR B
T T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
4 R ﬁ Financial investments
% - Debt securities:
— R L - Listed in Hong Kong 45,785,877 9,203,464 54,989,341
— A s LA AN b I L i - Listed outside Hong Kong 44,107,006 21,682,573 65,789,579
— 3 ki — Unlisted 60,010,860 15,712,594 75,723,454
149,903,743 46,598,631 196,502,374
HE 45 76 77 Equity securities
— 3 ki — Unlisted 2,470,611 - 2,470,611
S TP HAAE Total financial investments 152,374,354 46,598,631 198,972,985
R Market value of listed securities 89,892,883 31,300,021 121,192,904
EHEERFEUTEA : Debt securities are comprised of the following items
— JE ~ Treasury bills 34,074,150 14,895,136 48,969,286
— TR R Z AR - Certificates of deposit held 147,606 1,498,097 1,645,703
— HAth & % - Other debt securities 115,681,987 30,205,398 145,887,385
149,903,743 46,598,631 196,502,374
A A B BT A Financial investments are analysed by category
BRI AR of issuer as follows
— W LU K R AT - Central governments and central banks 41,365,302 21,698,003 63,063,305
— N A - Public sector entities 780,149 947,049 1,727,198
— SRAT [R] 2 B o th <5 ol 4 A - Banks and other financial institutions 44,140,045 15,855,325 59,995,370
— A EEH - Corporate entities 66,088,858 8,098,254 74,187,112
152,374,354 46,598,631 198,972,985
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27 INVESTMENT SECURITIES (continued)

“EF - NF+_H=1+—H

Measured at

31 Dec 2018

Measured at

For the year ended 31 December 2019

FVTOCI amortised cost Total
PLA P8 (E
28 H At 2 Th] DE 3]
Wi g A M AR A B R
Tt R P R P
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
4 R % Financial investments
% - Debt securities:
— R L - Listed in Hong Kong 46,502,895 11,088,548 57,591,443
— A LA SR b R E T - Listed outside Hong Kong 40,735,516 24,603,957 65,339,473
—J b — Unlisted 9,292,348 30,522,304 39,814,652
96,530,759 66,214,809 162,745,568
HE 45 76 77 Equity securities
— A AU LA A I i - Listed outside Hong Kong - - -
—J kT — Unlisted 4,535,151 = 4,535,151
4,535,151 = 4,535,151
S il A Total financial investments 101,065,910 66,214,809 167,280,719
kTR R T Market value of listed securities 87,238,411 35,710,640 122,949,051
EHEAEURIER : Debt securities are comprised of the following items
— R ~ Treasury bills 7,732,620 20,039,985 27,772,605
— TR A - Certificates of deposit held 149,291 10,100,067 10,249,358
— HAth i % - Other debt securities 88,648,848 36,074,757 124,723,605
96,530,759 66,214,809 162,745,568
A A BB AT A Financial investments are analysed by category
B3 v N of issuer as follows
— L BURT K R AT - Central governments and central banks 12,621,679 31,334,258 43,955,937
— N g - Public sector entities 599,294 2,327,045 2,926,339
— SRAT[7] 2 R H A <5 Tl A% A - Banks and other financial institutions 40,304,845 25,463,660 65,768,505
— R EEH - Corporate entities 47,540,092 7,089,846 54,629,938
101,065,910 66,214,809 167,280,719
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28 REEAFZEE 28 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
2019 2018
T#L T¥E T
HK$°000 HKS$’000
JRE Ak v Share of net assets 170,244 97,984
i i Iy 7 2 22 T Goodwill on acquisition - -
170,244 97,984
DL ESE A S A IE EiT AT A S A E 25 The following list contains only the particulars of the associates which are
1 o HOI 4T S R o B 45 2 — 1 B 3t g AR A AR unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market prices are not available.
LA TR None are considered individually material to the Group:
EHRREA il R % B DR AR R
Form of business Place of incorporation Group’s FEEH
structure and business Issued shares effective interest Principal activity
IEC Investments Limited FE A A ik 100,000/ 2 5 fit 40% &R
IEC Investments Limited Incorporated Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares Investment Holding
AR EAE A R R BRI Fi 10,000,000/ Z & % RUEEEERRE
SINO-CEEF Capital Management Incorporated Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares Provision of asset
Company Limited management services
Infinium Holdings Limited ALY A & B 5 1,000/ 2 % 15% HEHR
Infinium Holdings Limited Incorporated Cayman Islands 1,000 ordinary shares Investment Holding

IEC Investments Limited ([ IEC ) 7£ 7 H& 7¢ 25 #% & #4¢
Ji o S 2 ] A L AR R BBIEC 2 409% 1 E - 1
T R o ASLE [ A4 N HE 7T 40,000 K TEC - 48
B o —F— N4+ H > IECIH 8 T/ R 47 (5 M)
R 38 TE H 5 A 0 18] JE Wi AL A1 (288,928,0009 7T) - if7
8 75 T 55k B SR AR (31,200,00095 78) © IECHG 76181
ABEMZ % (R FENA ) Bt A EE% >
FETE R TURAR LA S O M T o AR AR T
A BRA T (AR 1) 7 7 6 7% 25 e A IR S » A
T — 7N H AL A > AR B2 B3 AR 1 R R
100%7k 2 237% o 4F N > 2 4E 8 7 1 483,700,000

40 1 o Infinium Holdings Limited 2% — [H] 7E BH 2
BES G RSL AT > VBRI G BN Al A &
SRAT A FRZA 7 DATE 7 b B R IR R SR AT 2675 - AR
A ZF— U+ = A = — H+#fiInfinium Holdings
Limited 15%/B R o &%l B 2 ) 0 AR 22 15 AE 47
MBEHREANIIE -
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IEC Investments Limited (“IEC”) engages in investment holding in
Hong Kong. The Group acquired 40% stake of IEC in 2007 as a strategic
investment. The Group held 40,000 ordinary shares of IEC during the
year. In October 2018, IEC paid dividends (HK$288,928,000) to ICBCA
during the project holding period, and repaid the remaining shareholders’
loan (HK$31,200,000). After 18 months liability period, the company is
proposed to being voluntary liquidation since April 2020 and is expected
to be completed by the end of September 2020. SINO-CEEF Capital
Management Company Limited (“SCM”) engages in asset management
services in Hong Kong. The Group decreased its shareholding in SCM
from 100% to 37% as part of the Group’s restructuring plan in 2016. The
Group held 3,700,000 ordinary shares of SCM during the year. Infinium
Holdings Limited is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and as
the investment holding company which held Fusion Bank Limited to carry
out virtual banking operations in Hong Kong. The Group held 15% of
Infinium Holdings Limited as at 31 December 2019. The above associates
are accounted for using equity method in the consolidated financial
statements.
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28 I E A Z BEE a0 28 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
2019 2018
T#L T
HK$°000 HK$’000
A 1 AS SR B A% 2 ) 2 AR R Aggregate information of associates that are
not individually material
AR S R T A 4 R AR Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial associates in
S B T R R 22 AR R T L the consolidated financial statements 170,244 97,984
ALEEAE LA AR 2 M8 Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of those associates
TR EFEEE (R 1A (Loss)/Profit from continuing operations (4,696) 12,390
2 T Ui 2 AR Total comprehensive income (4,696) 12,390
I T (P BELAS 2 o) 2 g 8 A W) 1Y Reconciliation of carrying amounts to the Group’s
HATE 25 IR total interest in the associates
R B A W 2 AR T A Carrying amount of material associates - -
A 1 AS o R B A 2 ) 2 R T Carrying amount of individually immaterial associates 170,244 97,984
TE &7 A BE IS 3 2 B 8 N B RE 2 Interest in associates in the consolidated financial statements 170,244 97,984
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29 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

K 2 S i
[y Computer Trading ak
Goodwill software rights Total
T#L T# T#L T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
A Cost
W oE—NFE—H—H At 1 January 2019 999,715 278,572 1,895 1,280,182
NE Additions - 7,858 - 7,858
A Disposals - (872) - (872)
H Al 7 2B Other adjustments - 675 - 675
Wo_E—-NFE+_HA=+—H At 31 December 2019 999,715 286,233 1,895 1,287,843
25T 5 Accumulated amortisation
R_FE—ILE—H—H At 1 January 2019 - 262,385 - 262,385
4N 378 Charge for the year - 9,772 - 9,772
(5 Disposals - (817) - (817)
At o Other adjustments - 22 - 22
R_FE—NE+_H=1+—H At 31 December 2019 - 271,362 - 271,362
R oE—-NFET+_H=1+—H Net book value At 31 December 2019
IQREIEIE 999,715 14,871 1,895 1,016,481
o I 55 oy HE
[k Computer Trading B
Goodwill software rights Total
TH#sTT T 7T T# T TH#TT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
A Cost
hoE - NE—~H—H At 1 January 2018 999,715 268,044 1,895 1,269,654
wnE Additions - 12,244 - 12,244
fink:a Disposals - - - -
L Ath 37 e Other adjustments - (1,716) - (1,716)
AR AEFZA=+—H At 31 December 2018 999,715 278,572 1,895 1,280,182
EnE Accumulated amortisation
W oF—NE—H—H At 1 January 2018 - 252,372 252,372
N S5 Charge for the year = 10,795 - 10,795
& Disposals - - - -
At 37 Other adjustments - (782) - (782)
RoFE—NFE+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2018 - 262,385 262,385
AF— )+ ZH=+—H Net book value At 31 December 2018
R T 9 A 999,715 16,187 1,895 1,017,797
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29 T MOt ST ¥ E () 29 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(continued)
5k Notes:
(i) s TR PUAE 5 ARGRAT ) 4 SR T IIICBC Asia Wa i) In 2004, the Bank acquired all the issued share capital of ICBC Asia Wa Pei
Pei Limited4E B 2 2 FB 2L 2517 HEA o G IE e s 2 o 2 Limited group from Fortis Bank. The goodwill of the acquisition amounted to
$4322,317,000% TG ° HK$322,317,000.
(i) B2 PR 3 4 R B AT BB - (ii) Impairment tests are performed for cash-generating units containing
goodwill.
A B2 ) 4 SEH5 4 F8 43 T P AR T T A ) B 4 Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGU)
fzan T - identified according to business segment as follows:
2019 2018
T T
HK$’000 HK$000
{2 B E SR AT Corporate and Investment Banking 585,715 585,715
P 2ERAT Commercial Banking 230,450 230,450
T AT Retail Banking 142,386 142,386
HoAt Others 41,164 41,164
999,715 999,715

T 4 e 7 B 10 AT o e < AR R 6 R (E RO o R
S D7 3% 12 IR BT A o T 06 = T 4 J0 ] Y B 5 9
HHB SRR o —AFMB DR R SR EE T
2 A 5 AR BT o 0 — 47 TR S B L B A
T B R A R A R B 4 e BT RS T R R
B2 R R

PR 158 A (A A B BL R S5 7% 2 11% ©

T AR AR 1 A B YR T O e T A
RBL o INAEF-2 38 1= A4 Bl AT S 0 P AR TR 2 —
B -

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. Such calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the one-year period are extrapolated using the estimate rates stated
below. The growth rate which applies to the cashflow projections over the
one-year period does not exceed the long term average growth rate for the
business of which the CGU operates.

The discount rates used for value-in-use calculations are ranging from 7%
to 11%.

Management determined the budgeted financial performance based on
the past performance and its expectation for market development. The
weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts
included in industry reports.
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30 #BEWE 30 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2019 2018
T#x T
HK$°000 HK$’000
h—H—HZHRHE{E Carrying amount at 1 January 140,135 117,407
B SRAT 5 2 S 2 Transferred from bank premises and properties - 24,000
AL (EiH) ik ss 55 Net revaluation (loss)/gain (4,200) 700
8
ifE b, 75 %H Exchange difference (701) (1,972)
T H =+ —HZHREE Carrying amount at 31 December 135,234 140,135
A [ A 7 s S B 2 T SRR R The Group holds ownership interests in leasehold investment properties
WA HERE ST > RIBRAELIA 2 situated in Hong Kong and Mainland China with remaining lease term of:
2019 2018
T#L T#E T
HK$’000 HK$°000
TEH WA Held in Hong Kong
HhHAFE 5 (102504F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 65,700 68,300
b
R E (504F LA ) Long term leases (over 50 years) 32,900 34,500
8 M
TE 77 s LA S st I 15 A7 Held outside Hong Kong
T AE T (105 504F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 36,634 37,335
b
135,234 140,135
KRBT/ EYWENR —FE—NET+_HA=1+—HH The Bank’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2019
B ST BN 4 AR (T A BR (S 3 B I AT 4% 4N B T by A.G. Wilkinson & Associates, an independent professionally qualified
355 % 2 T FE 34 5 0 T 37 4 2 5 98,600,000 7T ( — % valuer, at HK$98,600,000 (2018: HK$102,800,000) on an open market,
— A £ 102,800,000 58 ) o *5&% I}ﬁ:%/& AR E existing use basis. The investment properties of the Bank’s subsidiary were

revalued on 31 December 2019 by Shenzhen GuoZhongLian Asset and

N — 2B -+ —H=4— 37 A
WA —TJUE A = Ha B S H Real Estate Appraisal Consulting Co., Ltd., an independent professionally

f%{ﬁ{ﬁﬂmﬁ%ﬂllﬁi@]%%ﬁﬁé%{ﬁiiﬁ%i&%ﬁ%% qualified valuer, at HK$36,634,000 (2018: HK$37,335,000) on an open
A PR 2 R 2 2 B i B R A Sk R R A (E 2 market, existing use basis.

36,634,000% JC (% — J\4E © 37,335,000% 7C) °
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30 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Particulars of investment properties
31 December 2019

AC AR P 2 155 ) ) 2
o & bk Attributable interest
Location Use Remaining lease term of the Group
7 5 Sl S 1 R - A 8 B b T BHE il [HESik:S R (504 A L) 100%
Shop B on the Ground Floor Office building Long term lease
No. 8 Causeway Road (over 50 years)
Hong Kong
JURETBL Yl e 8 A 58 5% T S [ 4k [HESik:S AL R (102 504F) 100%
Ground Floor and cockloft Office building Medium term lease
No. 58 Hong Ning Road (10-50 years)
Kwun Tong Kowloon
7 VG B S FE B 195 ~ 197 ~ 199 [ ik R E (504E U 1) 100%
R 201557 & & K T AR & Office building Long term lease
Shop A on Ground Floor (over 50 years)
Capital Mansion
Nos. 195, 197, 199 and 201 Shau Kei Wan Road
Shau Kei Wan, Hong Kong
TR T 4 T [ I L i 2 A 2 T 2 [ [EEiike T E (102 504F) 100%

DUt —HEA - BIE

Unit A&B, 2/F, 4 Blocks,
SEG Technology Park,
Zhenxing Road,

Futian District, Shenzhen

Office building Medium term lease
(10-50 years)
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31 MRk 31 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(a) METH{E Z ¥R (a) Reconciliation of carrying amount
BT By
yLIES REWE
Bank b33 00 e i Al 0 i
premises Leasehold Furniture Right-of- AES
and properties  improvements and equipment use asset Total
T#L T T#L T#x T#x
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
REZF—=NEFTZH=1T—HK
ZE-JFE—A—H: At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019:
AR B A 1 Cost or valuation 818,178 446,927 457,419 - 1,722,524
28 R Accumulated depreciation and impairment (191,088) (292,077) (338,108) - (821,273)
RZF—=NEF+ZA=1+—HZ
HR T E Net book value at 31 December 2018 627,090 154,850 119,311 - 901,251
A6 T R G s o 5 £ e ) Impact on initial application of
1652 %2 (H5E) HKERS 16 (Note) - - - 1,309,616 1,309,616
RZFE—NE—H—H At 1 January 2019 627,090 154,850 119,311 1,309,616 2,210,867
WA Additions - 28,900 54,183 211,633 294,716
A/ () Transfer in/(out) - 77 (77) - -
i Disposals - (7,286) (9,240) (188) (16,714)
EA (HHEx) Revaluation (Note(i)) (1,474) - - - (1,474)
R FHE Depreciation provided during the year (17,240) (39,353) (41,597) (499,313) (597,503)
[ 5 B H At 7 % Exchange rate and other adjustments (1,184) - 7,086 273 6,175
RZE—-NEFZA=Z+—H
Z R A Net book value at 31 December 2019 607,192 137,188 129,666 1,022,021 1,896,067
R-ZF—RE+ZA=+—H: At 31 December 2019:
JEA S Cost or valuation 870,872 420,743 470,926 1,521,014 3,283,555
25T R Accumulated depreciation and impairment (263,680) (283,555) (341,260) (498,993) (1,387,488)
RoF—hLE+-H=+—HZ
R T Net book value at 31 December 2019 607,192 137,188 129,666 1,022,021 1,896,067
L E 2 BABAEEM T The analysis of cost or valuation
of the above assets is as follows:
RE-F—NFEF_HA=+—H: At 31 December 2019:
i A At cost - 420,743 470,926 1,521,014 2,412,683
e At valuation 607,192 - - - 607,192
607,192 420,743 470,926 1,521,014 3,019,875
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31 W3 Rttt am

31 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) BRI E Z R (40 (a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)
AT E HEWE
YLE #1 R Bt
Bank premises Leasehold Furniture and Mt
and properties improvements equipment Total
TH#T T T T
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
REF-LHE+ZA=F+—HE At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018:
“E-NE-F—R
JRA B £l Cost or valuation 827,563 410,947 436,593 1,675,103
25 R Accumulated depreciation and impairment (181,759) (261,455) (326,121) (769,335)
RZF—tHE+ZA=Z+—HRK Net book value at 31 December 2017 and
ZF—\F—H—H ZHRiH i E 1 January 2018 645,804 149,492 110,472 905,768
iNE Additions - 48,032 54,153 102,185
& Disposals - (3,051) (7,363) (10,414)
AR B Transferred to investment property (24,000) - - (24,000)
A (HE3E() Revaluation (Note (i)) 20,958 - = 20,958
FRFHE T Depreciation provided during the year (17,253) (39,623) (41,590) (98,466)
EE B J% H A 7 %% Exchange rate and other adjustments 1,581 = 3,639 5,220
REFE— A=+~ HZIRHEFE  Netbook value at 31 December 2018 627,090 154,850 119,311 901,251
R-F—AE+ZH=+—H At31 December 2018
AR Bl Cost or valuation 818,178 446,927 457,419 1,722,524
ZHHTE R Accumulated depreciation and impairment (191,088) (292,077) (338,108) (821,273)
REFE— T =+—HZIRHEFE  Netbook value at 31 December 2018 627,090 154,850 119,311 901,251
LA A A AT The analysis of cost or valuation of the
above assets is as follows:
MZF—NEFZH=+—H At 31 December 2018
TRA At cost - 446,927 457,419 904,346
FAh Atvaluation 627,090 - - 627,090
627,090 446,927 457,419 1,531,436
Ff 5 Note:
(i) WHEENR_Z—NLE+ A =+—BHBEH B i) The bank premises were revalued at 31 December 2019 based on the open
B £ G AT (B £ B A 0 R B AT T4 Hh 2 2 B market value by A.G. Wilkinson & Associates, an independent professionally
Bl EEITEA - B AR ZFEEC R —F—JLE qualified valuer. The subsidiary’s premises were revalued at 31 December
T A = FARER d b B o 8 L B AR A 2019 based on the open market value by Shenzhen GuoZhongLian Asset and
(BBl 8 9011 T B R B O R M S A S A Real Estate Appraisal Consulting Co., Ltd, an independent professionally
PR &) B4 H 2 28 B T 35 1k (R AT Al - EEAG AL AR qualified valuer in the Mainland China. The revaluation surplus net of
(119 88 ) A A BT A5 E) T3 5t AR ROME 45 rp 2 SRAT applicable deferred income taxes was credited to bank premises revaluation
T AG A I o N AN SR T 2 SRAT I 2 R SR LA reserve in shareholders’ equity. The carrying amount of the bank premises
kR FHTEE AR - BI85 2 BRTE (B 1% £448,172,000 9% and properties of the Group would have been HK$48,172,000 (2018:
I (ZF— \4F : 49,737,000 7€) ° HK$49,737,000) had they been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
(i) ALEER ZF—ILFE—H— H A EERTE L (ii)  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective

0 46 R D R 4 B 5 i 45 4 FD) 5 1690 SIE ) 2 0
% LAt R S AR 4 4 o ¥ D) S8 179 0 8T 46
B 2 AR < (A E - L aE2.2(b) -

method and adjusted the opening balance at 1 January 2019 to recognize right-
of-use assets relating to leases which were previously classified as operating
lease under HKAS 17. See note 2.2(b).
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31 W3 Sttt s 31 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
(a) MR Z ¥R () (a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)
A5 [ 22 W) 2 0 A 7 e B o B A 4 DL A The Group’s properties are situated in Hong Kong and Mainland
LUER R China under the following lease terms:
2019 2018
T#L T
HK$’000 HK$°000
EFWRA Held in Hong Kong
R E (504F LA k) Long term leases (over 50 years) 337,862 377,846
rR AR (102504F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 123,768 100,220
TE A5 ¥ D Ah i [ 457 Held outside Hong Kong
rR A (102504F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 145,562 149,024
607,192 627,090
(b) fE I REEE (b) Right-of-use assets
e R ARE Y R T (N R S G S 0 AT A The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of
o underlying asset is as follows:

R4 BT

+=H=+—H —H—H
At 31 December At 1 January
2019 2019
T#x T
HK$’000 HK$°000
EPNE/EVE 1K Included in “Property, plant and equipment”:
RS E— 5 E > FIRHAENA Right-of-use assets - Premises, with remaining lease term of:
— NN ~ Not later than 1 year 68,397 7,789
— BN RO 24 - Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years 198,206 278,100
— BR24E R AR 54 - Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years 741,274 344,278
— 54Dk — More than 5 years - 678,586
1,007,877 1,308,753
o FRRE 3 7 — HL A Al Right-of-use assets - Other equipment 420 863
1 FHRE 2 — HoAh Right-of-use assets - Others 13,724 -
1,022,021 1,309,616
32 HAhEE 32 OTHER ASSETS
2019 2018
T#L T T
HK$°000 HK$’000
JE W 1) B Interest receivable 5,046,169 3,599,468
TEAT Prepayments 204,261 231,854
AR Settlement accounts 4,052,529 2,190,106
B AT PR 4 Margin deposit paid 5,361,635 4,064,303
(73 Factoring 1,879,622 1,349,260
HoAth Others 473,010 966,385
17,017,226 12,401,376
oA 2 2 Uk A Impairment allowances for other assets
— 1248 A LA FE W5 3R R - 12-month ECL (28,639) (22,447)
—BERARMELHHANZ - Lifetime ECL credit-impaired
U ENEEEES (3,180) -
16,985,407 12,378,929
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The following list contains only the particulars of principal subsidiaries of

the Group:
k2 b
R4 s I 4 2 TR CHAT R TSR Interest held
Name Place of incorporation Principal activities Issued and paid-up capital 2019 2018
AT HEARSAE RATHT A 4,150,000,0007
Chinese Mercantile Bank People’s Republic of China Banking business RMB4,150,000,000 100% 100%
TREHEFHRA &b R e RS 6,000,007 1T
ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited Hong Kong Provision of bullion business HK$6,000,000 100% 100%
T R A it PR S 26,000,000 72
ICBC (Asia) Futures Company Limited Hong Kong Provision of futures business HK$26,000,000 100% 100%
TREE (&%) R &b REEEERRE 258,828,870 7C
ICBC Asset Management (Global) Company Limited Hong Kong Provision of asset management services HK$258,828,870 100% 100%
THRuHREAFRAH Eit SRR AR 10,0004 ¢
ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited Hong Kong Provision of nominee services HK$10,000 100% 100%
TRETW T S5 A &g TRk o7 S 100,000,000/ ¢
ICBC (Asia) Securities Limited Hong Kong Provision of securities brokerage services  HK$100,000,000 100% 100%
TR R A RA R Fit A RFER T 3,000,000 72
ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited Hong Kong Provision of trustee services HK$3,000,000 100% 100%
TR A PR A ) ik RN b 10017t
ICBC (Asia) Financial Services Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Provision of trustee and company services  HK$100 100% 100%
ICBCA (CL) Limited WS TS Bfrnaind B
ICBCA (C.I) Limited Cayman Islands Being a special-purpose vehicle USS1 100% 100%
for bond issuance
TSRS RS R (R AR AR AR RERESRE 4,000,0005 7¢
TS BB B (R Y A RA A People’s Republic of China Provision of equity investment US$4,000,000 100% 100%
o — o R R AT TR 2 7 Fi SRR 247,578, 18380
SINO-CEEF Holding Company Limited Hong Kong Investment holding company EUR247,578,183 100% 100%
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34 GRAT I 38 B HCAth 45 B A 2 A7 K 34 DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS
2019 2018
T#xL Tt
HK$’000 HKS$’000
SRAT 7] 3 K A <5 ol AR A 2 A7 K Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 207,074,805 161,433,060
MEEsE S S R FE—NEF A =+—H > In respect of repurchase transactions, the fair value of collateral
7 A5 B4 ok SO B AT A A PR E A which were permitted to be sold or repledged from the Group was
17,337,047,000%% 7C (— & — J\4E : 27,253,616,000%% HK$17,337,047,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$27,253,616,000).
Jo) °©
HEAT 3 T 1A 30 a8 A A8 Ve 5 8 1% B8l 1) — M B A Ak The transactions are conducted on terms that are usual and customary to
K e standard lending activities.
35 BPEEHK 35 DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
2019 2018
T#L THs T
HK$’000 HK$000
WA R R O Demand deposits and current accounts 37,037,350 43,480,452
& 12 Savings deposits 114,496,475 91,244,639
7E A B AT R Time, call and notice deposits 383,743,272 398,806,717
535,277,097 533,531,808

WA LSS R B+ A=+ —H
% e 0 6 4 AR S (R — /A
HE) o T 50 5 10 Mg 2 D 1 A e 5 1 81 1 — i
B B -
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In respect of repurchase transactions, there was no collateral which were
permitted to be sold or repledged from the Group as at 31 December 2019
(2018: Nil). The transactions are conducted on terms that are usual and
customary to standard lending activities.
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36 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

EREBIEEE /(B RHZ 28T - The movement on the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) account is as follows:
2019 2018
T#x TH#s T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
w—H—H At 1 January 749,768 320,505
TR s v o 755 e o5 o HI) ) Opening adjustment in accordance with HKFRS 9
SR95R Z M) i 1 - 48,867
749,768 369,372
TE i fi R i R Credited to income statement 21,280 95,358
TERE AR (SZHR) /iR (Debited)/Credited to equity (387,495) 298,616
[T b, S H Ath, 3 % Exchange and other adjustments (4,046) (13,578)
wWr=ZH=+—H At 31 December 379,507 749,768
WA B o T S - AR A ) 2R S B TE &5 iR 4 AT The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for
o financial reporting purposes:
2019 2018
T#x T
HK$’000 HKS$’000

T B IR UL 3R it 5
A 4 JIT 15 7 T
AR B IR DL R AR 2
R S T A5 B B A

Net deferred income tax assets recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position 379,507 749,768
Net deferred income tax liabilities recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position - -

BT+ZA=+—H At 31 December 379,507 749,768
ERRERE (GZRR) TERR 2B AE T BL AN R - The deferred income tax (debited)/credited to equity during the year is as
follows:
2019 2018
T#T T T
HK$°000 HK$000

B SROME i 2 18 {ELfok

AT

AR~ DU B (B AL CH Al 2 T i i
AR e A E f B 4 i H
4 77 Az < T

Fair value reserves in shareholder’s equity
Bank premises 1,240 (4,691)
Loans, FVTOCI investments and derivative
financial instruments designated as cash flow hedge
(388,735) 303,307

(387,495) 298,616
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36 MEIE P BL () 36 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
A A A S T 150 B B MR (B[R — BEHS A B 2 & The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to
BRACEHAT) Z BB T offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the

year are as follows:

Y& 92 i 13 BE % Deferred income tax assets
FREARBE % PR (T8 ) AFREG R R ]
Fair value reserves Fair value reserves Accelerated tax
Not credit-impaired ECL (recycling) (non-recycling) depreciation Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

T T T T T T T T T T
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

i At1 January 493,960 303816 370,39 184366 50,290 - 398 672 915,43 488,854
R (R
) Hos2 Opening adjustment in accordance
Wk with HKERS 9 - 104850 - (55,989) - - - = - 43,467
493,960 408,666 370,39 128383 50,290 . 398 672 915,43 53771
Tl /(IR Creditedi(charged) to income satement 16,203 9,864 - - - - 191 (249) 16,394 9615
fEBRRE/ oK) Credited(debited) o equity - - (305,330) IAL (50,290) 50290 - - (335,620) 297485
ELEH Exchange difference (2989) (8570) (1,073) (4983) - - (10) (25) (4,068) (1357)
REZHZF=H At31 December 507,178 493,960 64,192 370,595 - 50290 579 398 571,949 915,43
3B %€ P 25 Bt £1 4% Deferred income tax liabilities
AT ] PRI () AR CRo i) A 1
Premises revaluation Fair value reserves Fair value reserves Accelerated tax
reserves (recycling) (non-recycling) depreciation Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 018 2019 018 2019 018

Tz T Tz T Tz T T T T T
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

i At January 128,360 123,669 15,613 21,435 - - 21,502 8245 165,475 168,349
Tk / (00K) Credited!(charged) to income statement - - - - - - (4,886) (1,743) (4,886) (1,743)
FEBRAIR /(LK) Debited(credited) to equity (1,240) 4691 B (562) - = - = 31875 (1,131)
B SN Exchange difference - - - - - - ) - ) =
REZHZ4=H At31 December 127,120 128,360 48728 15,613 - - 16,594 21,502 192,442 165475
7 AR [ A vk E AR 2 B IR  HH 1,442,676 T (ZF The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$1,442,676 (2018
— )\4E : 1,547,975%70) > AJ 4 RE HA ) DA SR 72 4F w4 HK$1,547,975) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
EWEIR 2 AN F 2 R A ERRAL G A o BN eZ & kR Ty taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
A H HR R fd 2 BB A R - S K AT e A E R R assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have
Yis A AT ARG 3R B 5% 2 B TE s 1R o WOl e e 1 A arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for sometime and it is not
5 1 R AR S T o considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which the

tax losses can be utilised.

AEZEFE—NFETHA=1T—H > HRAAREERLETH At 31 December 2019, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax
JE N T Z RAREFI E B A 5 [F IR e AE S RE AT 22 liability (2018: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the future earnings
T JE B > WA 4R N I AT 2 R A R T R A0 A of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to
HAM(ZF—/E M| - additional tax should such amounts be received.

AR GRAT ) e BRI AS 2 BB NI S B A AT ] T 15 B AR There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
R dividends by the Bank to its shareholders.
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37 VIEESH AR A Z B & TE 37 SUBORDINATED DEBTS MEASURED AT AMORTISED
COST
2019 2018
bR ¥ it %
HK$°000 Interest rate% HK$°000 Interest rate%
BEE R Subordinated fixed rate notes
— R FEFE A= HEM - with a final maturity on 30 November 2020 3,889,974 5.125% 3,909,718 5.125%
AR ZEZIEFZH =+ HEM - witha final maturity on 30 December 2024
(AR ZF—JUFETH =T HEE)  (callable on 30 December 2019) - - 3,915,825 4.5%
3,889,974 7,825,543
BEEE D BABTEEFET RN ® o € B & Subordinated debts were raised by the Bank for the development and
ORI A T RGN - 2SS BRI expansion of business. Fixed rate debts have been fully subscribed by the
B 3% G A KR B B A AR AT 2Z [ E AR o ultimate holding company. These notes have been qualified and included

as the Bank’s supplementary capital in accordance with the Capital Rules.

ANFE—JLEANH T NH > RRITREE i On 28 June 2019, the Bank repurchased in full the subordinated notes with
H A2 1  ) [8] 1 T 4F500,000,0005% 7T 2 15 6 22 4% nominal amount of US$500,000,000 at a fixed rate of 4.5% per annum
HE AN F45% > FIH B - F U4E+—H with maturity date due on 30 December 2024 from its ultimate holding
=1+H- company.

AR GRAT A A 47 B A R A 4~ RS At B 5 R The Bank has not had any default of principal or interest or other breaches
HABRMWELEI (ZF— /E - #) o with respect to the subordinated debts during the year (2018: Nil).
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38 Al fE 38 OTHER LIABILITIES
2019 2018
T Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000
JRE A 1L, Interest payable 5,478,744 5,876,389
JE At 387 4 KA A Salaries and welfare payable 687,629 679,312
HEARFE Settlement accounts 12,608,374 5,896,924
B S R 7S 4 Margin deposit received 1,449,786 881,542
(L] Factoring 1,879,622 1,349,260
L% B R (B 5E38.1) Lease liabilities (Note 38.1) 1,049,922 =
HoAly Others 1,254,157 3,250,247
24,408,234 17,933,674
B OR Rt B 4 T3 AR 22 W (E A Impairment allowances for loan commitment
and financial guarantees
— 121 A BA A FE 45 A O - 12-month ECL 71,675 133,889
—EEEA RN E LN BIIE
(EES - Lifetime ECL not credit-impaired 3,512 2,596
24,483,421 18,070,159

A SR T T A GRAT A AR TR At L B A S A ] o R A
G~ FLE SRR A (T — 4 ) .

38.1 MlE& A1E

SEAR TS Mk W AR 2 R AR F

The Group and the Bank have not had any defaults of principal, interest or

other breaches with respect to their liabilities during the year (2018: nil).

38.1 LEASE LIABILITIES

The maturity profile for lease liabilities associated with leased

BRI R premises and equipment assets is as follows:
—ERUT  EERSE BERNE ARk At
Between Between
Oneyear  oneyearand two yearsand More than
R T-H=+—H At31December 2019 or less two years five years five years Total
T#x T#x TH# T#x T#n
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
HoAl £ 6 — T AR Other liabilities - lease liabilities 74,962 185,455 789,505 - 1,049,922
—AEHEUT  AERERE WERELE ARk At
Between Between
Oneyear  oneyearand two yearsand More than
R 4E—~H—H At 1January 2019 or less two years five years five years Total
T T#n TH# T T#n
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Hib g -HEAR Other liabilities - lease liabilities - 182,376 1,019,592 89,156 1,291,124
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39 A 39 SHARE CAPITAL
By ¥ H e B
Number of Ordinary
shares shares
T T#L
in thousands HK$’000
AT —fLE—H—H At 1 January 2019 2,577,000 36,379,331
i %% 587 A% 1> Allotment of new shares 172,000 7,808,300
W_F—NE+_H=+—H At 31 December 2019 2,749,000 44,187,631
AZE— ) FE—H—H & =F—/\UF At1January 2018 & 31 December 2018
+—-_HA=+—H 2,577,000 36,379,331

SRR > ANERTTLL7,808,300,00095 7T A ACAE - 1) HEE AL
2N A BE AT B E #5172,000,000 % ¥ 4 % > T 45 4
DL FE AR SRAT B S R o

R A i 2 WA 91 2 13540 > AR SRAT Y 3 28 iR i 4
T {H

208 A R A A RSOOSR B IR A I - S A
AR AR IR A SRAT IR R & £ = — S
HE o JIT A1 5 28 JRTE A AR SRAT 1) F0) 6% 28 O D Moz
HASE o

During the year, 172,000,000 ordinary shares at a consideration of
HK$7,808.3 million were issued and allotted to the holding company of the
Bank with an intention of supporting the business growth of the Bank.

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
the ordinary shares of the Bank do not have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared
from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Bank’s residual
assets.
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40 #WAMERR TR 40 ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
2019 2018
T THs T
HK$’000 HK$000
10£i 25 oo 1A BR IF 2 A 4% (A 40 US$1 billion undated non-cumulative subordinated
— BRI additional tier 1 capital securities 7,738,332 7,738,332
25.360% 32 L MEWI R JE A A H AN US$2.536 billion undated non-cumulative subordinated
— BRI additional tier 1 capital securities 19,897,375 19,897,375
27,635,707 27,635,707
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fEE LI —REARB S ]) > BB H10EEIT (M
L #7738 W T > 0 KR AE B 2 AT A o B
Ah— G AT SR WA S R 4250 19 TR > AMIRELE
SR LA HZ BB E B - nEEsh
— R A AT S WA WU ] > %SRS AR AR R
i IRE AT 1) 55 ) [ R 2 L R — 1 [ 2 2 28 R
# (3.135)E 4 B R) FLIER -

PR AR ST — > BRI A A —F—t
F S B oo AREAT A RERGHE 2 IR AR (10
TSR TTHIIN — AR B AT I 2 Mk S A0 ) i s 4
PR B HOH 2 0 TR AR T R o Mesh s 2R
(a) "% 73 IR BLAS SRAT 5 IR A BICAR R A - HOAh = A5 [ 4
4 2855 1 70 IR — b ST IR S BOAR SR AT R T
Oy LAt AR > B (b) 8 R A 4 AR SRAT U 2 0 TR )
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IR K (321015 2 LR A — 5 A 78 0% 2 M sk B A
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AMITER —EHBEEE T _F _—4FtAH
o B ST AT AR 2 4 IR S AT B A ] A R
M 0] 2 1005 55 e RSN — SR E AR T TR -

RoFE—/NEFE=ZH_+—H,> AT THEE
EMEAM T =2 F AWMBEFI—PEAFH S
([25.36ME I —MEARR IR ) » HF /5253608
FI0 (MHEE R 491989718 W 7T > TN BRAH B 2 3517 Ak
A) o 253615 5 TR AP — B AN 5B R A B 284,90
AR pIREE - FE =HF=H " +—HzZH
B [ H 3 o WNBRAN— 8 & AN RS S R A B ] > 5%
S R 51 A AT AR I A ) S5 I [ R R 2 R
n—1EE E 2 04 B2 (225 4E B R) TLIERT -

On 21 July 2016, the Bank issued Basel III-compliant Non-Cumulative
Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities (the “US$1 billion
Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities”) in the aggregate amount of US$1
billion (equivalent to approximately HK$7,738 million net of related
issuance costs). The Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities bear a 4.250%
distribution until the first call date on 21 July 2021. If the Additional Tier
1 Capital Securities are not called, the distribution will be reset based on
the then-prevailing 5-year US Treasury yield plus a fixed initial spread
(3.135% per annum) every 5 years.

The distribution shall be payable semi-annually, with the first distribution
payment date being 21 January 2017. The Bank has the right to cancel
distribution payment (subject to the requirement as set out in the terms
and conditions of the US$1 billion Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities)
and the distribution cancelled shall not be cumulative. In addition, the
Bank must cancel distribution payment (subject to the requirements set
out in the terms and conditions of the US$1 billion Additional Tier 1
Capital Securities) if (a) the distribution scheduled to be paid together
with other distributions scheduled to be paid on any parity obligations
during the Bank’s then current fiscal year would cause the Bank to exceed
its distributable reserves; or (b) the HKMA directs the Bank to cancel such
distribution, or an applicable Hong Kong banking regulation or other
requirement of the HKMA prevents the payment in full of dividends or
other distributions when due on any other parity obligation.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding US$1 billion
Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities from 21 July 2021 or any subsequent
distribution payment date thereafter.

On 21 March 2018, the Bank issued Basel III-compliant Non-Cumulative
Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities (the “US$2.536 billion
Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities”) in the aggregate amount of US$2.536
billion (equivalent to approximately HK$19,897 million net of related
issuance costs). The US$2.536 billion Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities
bear a 4.90% distribution until the first call date on 21 March 2023. If the
Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities are not called, the distribution will be
reset based on the then-prevailing 5-year US Treasury yield plus a fixed
initial spread (2.25% per annum) every 5 years.
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ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The distribution shall be payable semi-annually, with the first distribution
payment date being 21 September 2018. The Bank has the right to cancel
distribution payment (subject to the requirements set out in the terms and
conditions of the US$2.536 billion Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities)
and the distribution cancelled shall not be cumulative. In addition, the
Bank must cancel distribution payment (subject to the requirements set
out in the terms and conditions of the US$2.536 billion Additional Tier
1 Capital Securities) if (a) the distribution scheduled to be paid together
with other distributions scheduled to be paid on any parity obligations
during the Bank’s then current fiscal year would cause the Bank to exceed
its distributable reserves; or (b) the HKMA directs the Bank to cancel such
distribution, or an applicable Hong Kong banking regulation or other
requirement of the HKMA prevents the payment in full of dividends or
other distributions when due on any other parity obligation.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding US$2.536
billion Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities from 21 March 2023 or any
subsequent distribution payment date thereafter.

The principal of the Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities will be written
off up to the amount as directed by the HKMA if the HKMA notifies the
Bank that in the opinion of the HKMA or a relevant government body, the
Bank would become non-viable if there is no written off of the principal.
The Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities also contain Hong Kong Bail-
in Power. Each holder of the Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities shall be
subject to the exercise by the Hong Kong Resolution Authority to any or a
combination of the following:

(a) reduction or cancellation of all or a part of the principal and/or
distribution of the Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities;

(b) the conversion of all or a part of the principal and/or distribution of
the Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities into shares of the Bank or

another person; and/or

(c) the amendment of the maturity, distribution payment date and/or
the distribution amount of the Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities.
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41 fitifh
41.1 A4EHEH

(1) RITGEE
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(i)  LFEE
/N [N RV ol D /A o = O 1
s AR Z B SR A G EE %
G A AR RR R 1k 2 B A TR (E
SEE AR > SRR 2.7 (b) BT R 2 Er Rt
H I o

(iii) #2071
B 4 U0 o o ol 5 L A 42 B 2.7 (b) T
FLHEL 4 R B TR 2 e ROk o R
A 5 BB B 4 B A R 2 W A
A B4 T 2 B 2 ek THE 5 A E
(R 53 ) Y R 2 A R A e

(iv) B
EE 5, i A7 6 355 DR 60 5 1 I3 25 1 B 5 i
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RESERVES

41.1 Group

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Bank premises reserve

The property revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for
land and buildings in note 2.13.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of debt securities and loan measured at FVTOCI
until the financial assets are derecognized and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies in note 2.7(b).

Cash flow hedge reserve

The cash flow hedge reserve comprises the effective portion
of the cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging
instruments used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent
recognition of the hedged cash flow in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for cash flow hedges in note 2.7(b).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 2.12(c).

General reserve
The general reserve of the Group is comprised of:

. the transfer of retained earnings which is distributable to
the shareholders of the Group; and

. a statutory surplus reserve of a subsidiary represents
10% of the profit after tax appropriation and 1% of
the book value of risk assets as required by law and
regulation in the PRC. This reserve is used to offset
accumulated losses or increase in capital.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has earmarked
a “Regulatory Reserve” of HK$1,332,243,000 (2018:
HK$2,185,982,000) from the retained earnings. The regulatory
reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong
Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision purpose.
Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained
earnings and in consultation with the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority.

The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of
the Group includes a profit of HK$6,734,430,000 (2018:
HK$7,024,364,000) which has been dealt with in the accounts
of the Bank.
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41 ﬁ?&% (%) 41 RESERVES (continued)
41.2 ARRAT 41.2 Bank
BATRE ARG AT BTG B4 it
4K (Tim)  (FW#m) WA HWEE  —REE REEA it
Bank
premises Fair value Fair value Cash flow
revaluation reserve reserve Exchange hedge General Retained
reserve (recycling)  (non-recycling) reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
T Ti#x T T T T T T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
REZF-NE—-J—H At 1 January 2019 473,428 (1,354,657) (26,844) 85,836 79,009 219,200 43,885,714 43,361,686
DVAFEESHMARRE  Changein fair value of financial assets
MNEEREEL measured at fair value through
ATEEES other comprehensive income - 1,686,832 6,908 - - - - 1,693,740
B DA A A Reserve realised on disposal of
A AR E A investment securities measured
LEEBE at fair value through other
comprehensive income - 326,092 - - - - - 326,092
Henadine Change in fair value of cash flow
ATEEZS hedge - - - - (204,770) - - (204,770)
RTEEEMER Revaluation surplus on bank premises (4,254) - - - - - - (4,254)
S A Profit for the year - - - - - - 6,734,430 6,734,430
SN B Foreign investment hedging reserve 97,574 - - - 97,574
IR RS Change in deferred tax 702 (332,133) - - 33,786 - - (297,645)
btk P v 1) Change in provision for ECL - 39,129 - - - - - 39,129
HibA%EA Other adjustments - - - - - - (1307313)  (1,307,313)
REZFE-JEFZHZF—H At31December 2019 469,876 365,263 (19,936) 183,410 (91,975) 219,200 49,312,831 50,438,669
RAFEE ATEERE ATEERE Hens
EffRfh () CRATHE) Eifh  HHEG b REER st
Bank
premises Fair value Fair value Cash flow
revaluation reserve reserve Exchange hedge General Retained
reserve (recycling)  (non-recycling) reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
T T T Tk T T T T
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=F—N\F—A—H At 1January 2018 455,928 (345,179) 87,747 (69,928) 108,473 219,200 37,831,819 38,288,060
R (REEHIRAEEA)  Impact of adopting HKFRSY
(e - 339,132 (78,141) - - - (152211) 108,780
455,928 (6,047) 9,606 (69,928) 108,473 219,200 37,679,608 38,396,840
DVAFRESHMATNE  Changein fair value of financial assets
ANEEREEZ measured at fair value through
ATEESS other comprehensive income = (1,544,424) (36,450) - - - - (1,580,874)
HENATEEEL Reserve realised on disposal of
R AR B investment securities measured
Z BB at fair value through other
comprehensive income - (103,602) - - - - - (103,602)
Renene Change in fair value of cash flow
AFEEZS hedge - - - - (35,286) - - (35,286)
ROREEENRS Revaluation surplus on bank premises 20,958 - - - - - - 20,958
WA Profit for the year - - - - - - 7,024,365 7,024,365
ML E B G Foreign investment hedging reserve 155,764 - - - 155,764
REREEH Change in deferred tax (3,458) 271,925 - - 5,822 - - 274,289
B AR R 5 Change in provision for ECL - 27,491 - - - - - 27,491
HibAEEA Other adjustments - - - - - - (818,259) (818,259)
REZF=NEFZH=1—H At31 December 2018 473,428 (1,354,657) (26,844) 85,836 79,009 219,200 43,885,714 43,361,686
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Listed out below is a summary of the balances and transactions entered
into during the ordinary course of business with the ultimate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries and associate, including the acceptance of
placement of interbank deposits, corresponding banking transactions and
off-balance sheet transactions. The activities were priced at the relevant
market rates at the time of transactions.

42.1 Ultimate holding company

2019 2018
T T ¥ 70
HKS$’000 HK$’000
FLE WA Interest income 2,724,447 2,825,382
) B S Interest expense 1,464,150 2,505,683
CEUNE Operating income'? 1,302,704 684,698
(- SEES Operating expense>* 645,724 360,032
JHE i 4> %H Amounts due from 127,137,580 96,349,522
JREAS) 4 %A Amounts due to 105,111,323 137,712,471
1. WPE-_F—bHFESH - +HE -FE— ) 1. Inaccordance with the agreements dated 20 June 2017 and

AT B F R e o AR SRAT R
Bt BT - N EREE AL - TG R AR
B 1 0 T & 545 5 T 1 o [ T SR AT
AT ([0 47 ) BBV BB I -

2. MFEZFTELFEIAMHET L ZFEE R
B R —EENERLATNH Y
EENFE+H=+—HE - F—HF
— H T JLH B 2 Al R s AR bk o
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17 December 2018, management fee income was received
from the Hong Kong Branch of ICBC (the “Branch”) for
the provision of services such as accounting and budgeting,
internal audit, marketing and back office settlement and
clearing,

2. In accordance with the custodian and trustee services
agreement dated 4 September 2007 and the supplemental
custodian and trustee services agreements dated 16 May
2008, 31 December 2009 and 19 January 2015, services fees
were paid by the ultimate holding company to the Bank
for providing custodian, settlement and clearing services
in relation to the investments outside the PRC in certain
investment products by the customers of the ultimate
holding company in connection with the Qualified Domestic
Institutional Investor Scheme of the PRC.

3. Inaccordance with the service level agreements with the Bank
dated 28 August 2019 (as amended and supplemented by
supplemental agreements), and the service levels agreement
with a subsidiary of the Bank dated 21 January 2019, service
fee expense was paid to the ultimate holding company for
the provision of data processing services to the Bank and its
subsidiary.

4. Inaccordance with the tenancy agreement dated 20 February
2019, rental expense was paid to the ultimate holding company
for the leasing of property located in Hong Kong.
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42 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

42.1 Ultimate holding company (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Certificate of deposit issued

Transactions with ultimate holding company included
the issuance of floating rate certificates of deposit and
subordinated floating rate notes, which were both fully
subscribed by the ultimate holding company and its branches.
As at 31 December 2019, all certificates of deposit issued to the
Branch of ultimate holding company had been repaid (2018:
Nil).

Committed facilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Bank has committed facilities
to the ultimate holding company in the amount of
RMB700,000,000 (2018: RMB700,000,000). The Bank also
received conglomerate guarantee on loan from the ultimate
holding company in the amount of HK$9,254,815,000 (2018:
HK$17,996,654,000).

Undertaking from the ultimate holding company

To demonstrate its support to the Bank, a letter of comfort
dated 3 July 2001 was executed by the ultimate holding
company, pursuant to which it will provide the Bank with such
funding as may be required by the Bank to ensure that it will
maintain sufficient capital and liquidity levels.

Simultaneously on 3 July 2001, the ultimate holding company
and the Bank entered into a guarantee agreement whereby
the ultimate holding company agreed to guarantee to the
extent of HK$9,000,000,000 the payment obligations of
certain customers whose “large exposures” were transferred
to the Bank pursuant to a business transfer agreement and to
indemnify the Bank in respect of any losses incurred if any
obligation of such customers becomes unenforceable. There
was no such on-balance sheet large exposures of the Bank
covered by this guarantee as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

Sub-participation of loans

The Bank entered into various capital markets transactions
with the Branch, which include arranging participation/sub-
participation in loans, acquiring and disposing of interests
in syndicated or individual loans, subscribing to and/or
issuing of debt securities and tax efficient financing. These
transactions included sub-participation in loans of the Bank by
the ultimate holding company and/or the Branch for a total of
HK$5,530,925,000 (2018: HK$11,894,030,000). There was no
sub-participation in loans of the Branch by the Bank in 2019
(2018: Nil). The total fee attributable to the above transactions
of approximately HK$10,942,000 was paid by the Bank to the
Branch in 2019 (2018: HK$10,412,000). These transactions
were priced based either on the terms of the underlying loan
agreement, if applicable, or prevailing market rates if such
comparable rates were available, or on terms that were no
less favorable than those available to other independent loan
members.
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42 BHHER G ) 42 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

42.2 [d) Z Kt &g A w)

42.2 Fellow subsidiaries

2019 2018
T#L THs T
HK$’000 HK$000
FlR WA Interest income 333,148 328,355
F 2 3t Interest expense 38,195 17,025
BEIA Operating income 614,517 119,270
'&Ef’% B Operating expense 388,468 303,667
JRE Wi <2 8 Amounts due from 9,261,923 9,176,945
JREAS 5 B Amounts due to 13,536,780 1,866,661
42.3 W& N ) 42.3 Associates
2019 2018
T#x TH#s 7T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FILE A Interest income 212 270
FE 3 Interest expense 512 779
JRE i 4 %E Amounts due from - 37,083
JE A} 4 %R Amounts due to 1,118 12,897
42.4 B A [ o7 R B R R R B 2 AR 5 42.4 Transactions with other state controlled entities and
government authority
Bl LR B R 2 o BT B R A R 1Y 28 ) R Transactions with the following state-controlled entities and
3 A 45 ] A S T I A b B 1 32 5 s 3L [R] government authority are considered as individually significant or
WEENLY - collectively significant to the Group:
U e g «  The Ministry of Finance of the PRC
o HRESBERMEEAE (TS . Central Huijin Investment Limited (“Huijin”)
o ESWEAMAREG Z ZPREBUNIERZ . Other banks and financial institutions under the direction of
oA SR AT S 4 i B A the PRC government in which Huijin has equity interests
2019 2018
Tt T 7%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE A Interest income 2,232,104 1,988,535
S S Interest expense 100,864 88,783
wERA Operating income 69,306 71,373
(e S Operating expense 62,568 90,315
JRE Wi <5 % Amounts due from 63,999,857 63,764,386
JEARt < %8 Amounts due to 6,084,639 1,909,014
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BEAN o A S H 7 AT A B R At R 5% £ ) R A
B #E B HEAT 2 5 > BLAR R R A7 B $2
Hh4 e BT o IR Ay o B K
A5 T R R IR B R AT R 22 B R I S
5 SR8 (88 A0 AR 8 O R R B A A1 DA S A T 3
FGERT o B BEIEA B 20 5 Bl 1y JE 1 ]
HEWA G

In addition, the Group may also enter into transactions with other

state-controlled entities and government authority, including but
not limited to lending, deposit taking and the provision of financial

products or services. In the opinion of management, transactions

with these state-controlled entities and government authority

were conducted in the ordinary course of business under normal

terms and conditions and at market rates. As a result, none of these

transactions are considered individually significant.
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42 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

42.5 Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel, including the Bank’s

T directors’ emoluments, is as follows:
2019 2018
T#xL THsTT
HK$’000 HKS$’000
i 5 48 A Employee benefits 24,838 23,941

426 HEBETBARZERRS

BN A BB N LA IE ST
HEAT 2 SRAT A5 - S R S HABRTA - A7 3K
Lo LAty 5 AR B 22 5 o BN L B A AR SR AT
ZEEATHN B - KR AR B 52 HAE )
HREBZNF o

42.6 Material transactions with key management personnel

During the year, the Group entered into certain banking transactions
consisting of loans and advances, deposits and other financial
related transactions with related parties in the normal course of
business. The related parties include key management personnel of

the Bank, their close family members and companies controlled or

significantly influenced by them.

2019 2018

T#L T

HK$’000 HK$000
F B U A Interest income 178 47
F 2 3 Interest expense 2,600 830
AR S H A R TE Loans and advances 18,386 3,500
AE K Deposits 163,904 90,744

D7 RTEEMEEREAFRBEHE SR 42.7 Loans to directors and entities connected with directors

R4 5 Hk N w) e 1) 565383 (1) (d) M 2 2 ) (4 %
I 25 B R AR 9] 55 330 43 B 5R 1) AR SR AT Y

A 0B LA 1 34 A R R K

W

Loans to directors of the Bank, including loans to bodies corporate
controlled by them, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation

are as follows:

BT=HA=1+—H2Z
AR AR B

Balance outstanding

A N 35 1 A5 B

Maximum balance

at 31 December during the year
2019 2018 2019 2018
T T#5E T i 7%
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
A A B R AR Aggregate amount outstanding in
respect of principal and interest 200 365 447 522
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TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into transactions in the normal course of business by
which it transfers recognised financial assets to third parties. In some cases
these transfers may give rise to full or partial derecognition of the financial
assets concerned. In other cases where the transferred assets do not qualify
for derecognition as the Group has retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of these assets, the Group continued to recognise the transferred
assets.

Repurchase transactions and securities lending transactions

Transferred financial assets that do not qualify for derecognition
mainly include debt securities held by counterparties as collateral under
repurchase agreements and debt securities lent to counterparties under
securities lending agreements. The counterparties are allowed to sell
or repledge those securities sold under agreements to repurchase in
the absence of default by the Group, but has an obligation to return the
securities at the maturity of the contract. If the securities increase or
decrease in value, the Group may in certain circumstances require or be
required to pay additional cash collateral. The Group has determined that
it retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these securities and
therefore has not derecognised them. In addition, it recognises a financial
liability for cash received as collateral.

The following table analyses the carrying amount of the abovementioned
financial assets transferred to third parties that did not qualify for
derecognition and their associated financial liabilities:

22—+ HA=1+—H
31 December 2019

Tl ¥ A B £ 1
I M 1 L 1 Y i L
Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of
transferred associated
assets liabilities
T T#L
HK$’000 HK$’000
[=] B T e Repurchase agreements 7,899,200 4,800,100
& 75 55 Wh ol Securities lending agreements 12,569,282 11,451,058
- )EFZH=Z+—H
31 December 2018
S T AH B £
14 H T {E 114 i T {6
Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of
transferred associated
assets liabilities
T T TH#sTT
HK$’000 HKS$’000
ﬁﬁ%’]% Repurchase agreements 3,273,892 3,345,308
& 75 5 Wh o Securities lending agreements 23,954,810 22,010,401
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TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)
Discounted bills transactions

The Group enters into discounted bills transactions in the normal course
of business by which it transfers discounted bills to third parties in the
PRC with recourse term which would give rise to the Group’s continuing
involvement in the transferred assets. As at 31 December 2019, the Group

retain obligation on those PRC discounted bills transferred but not
matured with a carrying amount of HK$1,232,108 (2018: HK$1,765,770).

OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES
44.1 Contingent liabilities and commitments

The following are summaries of the contractual amounts of each

# 4 BE A significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:

2019 2018

2019 1+ I B 2018 {5 AR B

THEH T4 7 BHER JinHE

Contractual Credit risk Contractual Credit risk

amount weighted amount weighted

T#xT T#T R T

HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000

B HAe BEAURS il Direct credit substitutes 4,723,364 3,474,610 11,175,509 6,241,122

HLAZ 5 A B 2 sk SR S IH Transaction-related contingencies 99,907 46,397 101,163 47,032

BLEE by A bR 2 SR S IH Trade-related contingencies 7,759,587 1,513,245 9,296,278 1,789,909

i AT AR Forward deposit placed 4,000,000 800,000 = =
JEEN ) H A 2 HABRYE © Other commitments with an original

maturity of:

CIEIEFSER T Unconditionally cancellable 157,913,997 - 168,190,251 =

JEE 1 H Dk —4F With original maturity of less than one year - - 4,376 875

JRE A — 4Rk With original maturity of over one year 58,873,304 29,011,392 48,720,704 23,864,902

233,370,159 34,845,644 237,488,281 31,943,840

g R B TR M A 1 v B O i LA
PR Bk 2 Bty B i o KA 2 e A
WAAE R~ BB I 2 B G R s A AT 5 > A
L fF SEA B TR - ALHEfE I ~ SRR
B2 RYE o ISR S AR B T H BT I 2 R B
KB L B i) B 5 45 K B e 2 R
R B AR TR o < 4 < 20 i 40 4 R 2 R
W B 2 5 4t R A8 T 7R 368 JEU B < % o e R
AT REAE R AR IUT JE N - 5 A SRS
MEIRAB W -

w5 AE A JE B RE 4 8 B A 2 JE B LG & A R
0%%100% °

Contingent liabilities and commitments arise from forward asset
purchases, amounts owing on partly paid-up shares and securities,
forward deposits placed, asset sales or other transactions with
recourse, as well as credit-related instruments which include letters
of credit, guarantees and commitments to extend credit. The risk
involved in these credit-related instruments is essentially the same
as the credit risk involved in extending loan facilities to customers.
The contractual amounts represent the amounts at risk should the
contract be fully drawn upon and the client default. As the facilities
may expire without being drawn upon, the contract amounts do not
represent expected future cash flows.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted
amounts range from 0% to 100%.
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (continued)
44.2 Capital commitments
Capital commitments for property, plant and equipment

outstanding as at 31 December 2019 not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

ACSE

Group
2019 2018
T#T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
EHFOL N Expenditure contracted but not provided for 4,718 6,914
ERMEM R Z Expenditure authorised but not contracted for 9,336 29,683
14,054 36,597

443 B A RSE

N_F—E+_H=+—H AEE KA
SRAT AR RS VT 8BS 1Y A8 /5 AL A0 1A oK 2R R AT A

44.3 Operating lease commitments

At 31 December 2019, the Group and the Bank had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as

o R A B AR BH T follows:
2019 2018
T#L T
HK$°000 HK$’000

o+l e AT Land and buildings

——F A - Not later than one year 8,664 529,687
—— 4 EREFEEN — Later than one year and not later than five years 41 506,259
— AR E — More than five years 8 4,125
8,713 1,040,071

A 4 W] 75 S AR R A v 8w E U AR 17 5% 40 A
HEREHBZHEE FRANAETYWEUK
W J e o BN R TE H 2 RN o A
£E [0 {5 AR 6 5T 48 0 05 0 4 B P A5 s B
RIS 1695 o IR > AL D T
A F—JUE— A — H 2 ) &5 8 DA TR
BMZEHEzHEAMS (RKE22) - A%
— U —H — H > KA 8 AT O 5
B k2,212 BUR Y B IR LR fEsR A B &
B o A R A 5 B R 2 AR 6 A K 2 RS A BT R E
3819 % o
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The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties and
items of plant and machinery and office equipment held under
leases which were previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17. The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the Group
adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease
liabilities relating to these leases (see note 2.2). From 1 January 2019
onwards, future lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities in
the statement of financial position in accordance with the policies set
out in note 2.21, and the details regarding the Group’s future lease
payments are disclosed in note 38.1.
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44 B R EARSMNEBR () 44 OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (continued)
44.4 REBMA L 44.4 Operating lease arrangements
AR AR ACE A PR B F I A W & The Group leases its investment properties (Note 30 to the financial
JNAR Z LAY i FHLEC B ) 28 (L B B i 2 I statements) under operating lease arrangements, with leases
30) o FH & e K — MR AE AR A N2 S A 4R A negotiated for terms ranging from two to eight years. The terms of
e o M T BA 2 AR B IRE T U AR AE the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits
W o and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then

prevailing market conditions.

MoZ—RETHA=Z+—H » REHHEL At as 31 December 2019, the Group had total future minimum lease
2 9 1A PR AR 5 A AT SRS Y A8 A5 R A R R Ak receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
JRE S AR AR A B B AR B AR AR AN falling due as follows:
2019 2018
T#xL Tt
HK$’000 HKS$’000
—4ER Within one year 4,939 2,094
BB RE (B BWAE) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 12,291 =
17,230 2,094
RN > ASSE R R FE G U B R A (O F During the year, the Group had no unrecognised contingent rentals
— N4 ) o receivable (2018: Nil).
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45 LG E KA A A Z 45 OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
S RV E 2 BRPSHE Y ~ nT o AT R AR R A AL Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
P BT ) arrangements and similar agreements
R 7 LR KA 2 2
Amounts not offset in the balance sheet
R
B g T T F
WM ffiER ARERS
Gross a2 H ZHH B4
amounts of Gross  Netamounts iz
recognised amounts presented SRR Cash
financial offset in the in the Financial collateral B
assets  balancesheet  balance sheet instruments received Net amount
Ti#x T#x T#x T#x Ti#x Ti#x
BER-WEF AR At 31 December 2019 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
itk EmMEE Derivative financial assets 8,853,510 - 8,853,510 (2,024,400) (869,435) 5,959,675
HibgE Other assets 452,683 - 452,683 (344,528) - 108,155
9,306,193 - 9,306,193 (2,368,928) (869,435) 6,067,830
40 6 7 £ 05 K 2
Amounts not offset in the balance sheet
[ 3 T F R
AWAR wEE ARERN
2B AEEN Z i
Gross  KBZM%  Netamounts Ckn B 4
amounts of Gross presented i
recognised amounts in the EBTH Cash
financial offset in the balance Financial collateral HH
liabilities  balance sheet sheet instruments pledged Net amount
Ti#x T#x T#x Tidx Ti#x Ti#x
BEZ-WEFZAZ+—H  At31December 2019 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
e & Derivative financial liabilities 3,521,168 - 3,521,168 (2,024,400) (785,223) 711,545
Hib &R Other liabilities 520,574 - 520,574 (344,528) - 176,046
4,041,742 - 4,041,742 (2,368,928) (785,223) 887,591
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45 ARG E A Rl E 2 JREE 45 OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

S R R A 2

Amounts not offset in the balance sheet

CER
GREE W B
bt AfREAN  ABEREZS
Gross Eii% sk ZE e s 4
amounts of Gross Net amounts Eii il
recognised amounts presented EHITA Cash
financial offset in the in the Financial collateral T
assets balance sheet balance sheet instruments received Net amount
Tk T T T T T
MEF—/EFZA=1—H  At31December 2018 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M emesE Derivative financial assets 5,600,032 - 5,600,032 (2,301,106) (212,473) 3,086,453
Hibg i Other assets 437,968 - 437,968 (376,203) - 61,765
6,038,000 - 6,038,000 (2,677,309) (212,473) 3,148,218
W R E B ER MRS 2
Amounts not offset in the balance sheet
R
SRAE T % TG
X | RN BEEES
Gross  fkéHZ M ZHHE g 2
amounts of Gross Net amounts il
recognised amounts presented SRR Cash
financial offset in the in the Financial collateral FH
liabilities  balance sheet ~ balance sheet instruments pledged Net amount
Tk Tkt Tkt Tt Tt T
REFE-NEFZH=E+—H At 31 December 2018 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
kS A & Derivative financial liabilities 4,366,962 = 4,366,962 (2,301,106) (1,810,689) 255,167
Hopth F Other liabilities 461,767 = 461,767 (376,202) - 85,565
4,828,729 - 4,828,729 (2,677,308) (1,810,689) 340,732
WA AL A AT REA IS O R WA S Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
AL AT 4 B e R R A PR R R R A reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
L EEE e A IS ET I RN E E A EER offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
WIFEER Y o basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Bl SN A 1 B AR R AT IR AN 2 S BN 2 A L Derivatives and reverse repurchase/repurchase agreements included in
RN ] B R DL R AR S A B amounts not offset in the balance sheet relate to transactions where:
. HF B AL AR I E N H 2 o the counterparty has an offsetting exposure with the Group and a
TE HER R 45 S B 0L e BE > (H A R A A R master netting or similar arrangement is in place with a right of set
EAEM S BAIRESWEBN T T off only in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy, or the
HCEY 2 HEA] > 75 BIIRES I R BEE R 5 & offset criteria are otherwise not satisfied; and
. Bt Bk 22 5 Bk, BRI 2 B A R o o cash collateral received/pledged in respect of the transactions

described above.
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OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

The tables below reconcile the “net amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position”, as set out above, to the derivative assets, other assets, derivative
liabilities and other liabilities presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

2 AEFZAZt - SE - AEF A=+ —H

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Ak TR fid TH
¢ Il ¥t 732 B HAb g =
Derivative Other Derivative Other
assets assets assets assets
T#x T#x T T T# T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AR KR 2 G AR Net amount of financial assets after offsetting
as stated above 8,853,510 452,683 5,600,032 437,968
T IS5 0 8 S8 [ Financial assets not in scope of offsetting
Z 4 disclosure 1,337,149 16,532,724 3,544,845 11,940,961
10,190,659 16,985,407 9,144,877 12,378,929

ZZ—hAEFZA=ZtF—HE —EF - NAFE+_H=1+—H

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
fiZk TR fitE TH
£ oAb £1 4% i=Kid HoAth & 5
Derivative Other Derivative Other
liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities
T Tl Tl Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
LA HE SR 2 Al A R4 Net amount of financial liabilities after
offsetting as stated above 3,521,168 520,574 4,366,962 461,767
AN AE 1K B B R I A Financial liabilities not in scope of offsetting
2 4 A K disclosure 4,246,906 23,962,847 2,553,425 17,608,392
7,768,074 24,483,421 6,920,387 18,070,159
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46 BANKLEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

“R U T A
+ZH=+—H +ZA=+—H
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
TH#x T
HK$’000 HK$’000
¥ e Assets
4 T AE SRAT F) 25 S HoAth 4 A 4G 2 45 8% Cash and balances with banks and
other financial institutions 125,804,576 144,687,989
TESRAT [ 25 Ko HoAth 4 il A% A 2 A7 2K Placements with banks and other financial institutions 116,457,034 92,859,061
FFE 22 5 P o <l Financial assets held for trading 492,484 -
DL -1 {1 268 48 4 3R A MR 4 il 5 8 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 453,604 386,067
i AE < fl T B Derivative financial instruments 10,156,054 9,116,251
R B H A BRI Advances and other accounts 381,145,564 372,118,128
SRBE Financial investments: 165,390,314 136,603,151
— DA S (B A A 2 T Wi A AR - Measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income 138,090,971 90,146,841
— DA B R AR AR — Measured at amortised cost 27,299,343 46,456,310
N 7 2 B Investments in associates 76,955 75,674
R B A2 E Investments in subsidiaries 12,048,873 7,790,302
P % H A e T W Goodwill and other intangible assets 948,767 950,771
id-¢/ES Investment properties 98,600 102,800
LEN &L Property, plant and equipment 1,654,414 719,020
U SiE BT 45 B0 Deferred income tax assets 215,625 489,431
H A B Other assets 16,912,254 12,476,478
¥ M Total assets 831,855,118 778,375,123
114 Liabilities
SRAT [F] 2 Ko HoAth 4 Rl A% R 2 77 3K Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 158,752,110 120,622,925
A4/ T A Derivative financial instruments 7,761,619 6,869,667
P A7 Deposits from customers 488,288,271 478,477,616
AT A7 R Certificates of deposit issued 8,368,974 24,948,381
EBITES Debt securities in issue 17,465,027 17,215,886
— 18 %€ DA B (B AR HH 47 R AR — Designated at fair value through profit or loss 8,425,301 2,642,190
— DL 8 B A AR — Measured at amortised cost 9,039,726 14,573,696
BAT IS BL & fR Current income tax liabilities 1,562,075 426,991
DU B AR AR 2 R B R IR Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost 3,889,974 7,825,543
HoAtn & 5 Other liabilities 23,505,061 14,611,390
115 44 %81 Total liabilities 709,593,111 670,998,399
L E Equity
A Share capital 44,187,631 36,379,331
&8 T A Retained earnings 49,312,831 43,885,714
Ho Al i e Other reserves 1,125,838 (524,028)
S B T 7S R AT B ROHE £ AR AH Total equity attributable to shareholders of the Bank 94,626,300 79,741,017
FHAMEL TH Additional equity instruments 27,635,707 27,635,707
i 22 4 781 Total equity 122,262,007 107,376,724
i 2 % 1 A0 Total equity and liabilities 831,855,118 778,375,123
L] i Gao Ming Wu Long
TR B > BT Chairman Vice Chairman,
HATH#H FETT B & Executive Executive Director &
Director Chief Executive Officer
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THE ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of the Bank
is Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, which is established
in the PRC and produces financial statements available for public use.

INVOLVEMENT WITH UNCONSOLIDATED
STRUCTURED ENTITIES

The Group holds an interest in some structured entities sponsored by
third party institutions through investments in the notes issued by these
structured entities. Such structured entities include investment funds and
segregated asset management plans and the Group does not consolidate
these structured entities. The nature and purpose of these structured
entities are to generate fees from managing assets on behalf of investors
and are financed through the issue of notes to investors.

The following table sets out an analysis of the carrying amounts of interests
held by the Group in the structured entities sponsored by third party
institutions:

—Z—-higt+ - A=+—H
31 December 2019

Wi Bk E KM
Carrying Maximum
amount exposure
T#T T#T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Vg Investment funds 7,954,486 7,954,486
LT B A B Segregated asset management plans 163,064 163,064
8,117,550 8,117,550

—ZF-N\FE+_H=+—H

31 December 2018

WRm(H  HoOREKMA
Carrying Maximum
amount exposure
T T#T
HK$’000 HK$°000
B4 Investment funds 7,568,844 7,568,844
LI G AR Segregated asset management plans 139,622 139,622
7,708,466 7,708,466
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WE-E - NE+ A=+ —HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

48 INVOLVEMENT WITH UNCONSOLIDATED
STRUCTURED ENTITIES (continued)

The following table sets out an analysis of the line items in the statement
of financial position as in which assets were recognised relating to the
Group’s interests in structured entities sponsored by third parties:

“R—hiET-H=1T—H
31 December 2019

PLAF R

B K
AR&wEr Ak epeiE
Financial Derivative
3% assets financial
Loans at FVTPL assets
T T Tl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
fid =g S Investment funds 4,258,209 453,604 3,242,673
T A A B Segregated asset management plans - 163,064 -
4,258,209 616,668 3,242,673

—E =) EF+ZA=+—H
31 December 2018

PLAEEE

KA R
AMREGREE TSR EE
Financial Derivative
B assets financial
Loans at FVTPL assets
RR T T THs T
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
BB Investment funds 4,438,807 386,067 2,743,970
BT B I Segregated asset management plans - 139,622 -
4,438,807 525,689 2,743,970

273



o R R SRAT () A R4

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WE=F—UEF A = B L

For the year ended 31 December 2019

49 HEBERBEMEE

HLAR G MBS IR DL R 2 B -

R NLEFER
Annual Report 2019

49 NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS

Reconciliation with the consolidated statement of financial position:

- 2y (103 —E— )\ 4
+=H +=H
=+—H =3—[
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
T#xL THsTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
B i T AE SR AT [ 36 S H: A 6 il i A Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions
Z & AT 138,338,758 151,374,532
TESRAT ] 2 Ko Hofh 4 Rl AR A 2 A7 2K Placements with banks and other financial institutions 104,951,872 74,217,313
AR BEES IR DL3R N BUR 2 48 Amounts shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position 243,290,630 225,591,845
Wk JEEIHIH B =R DL L2 4% Less: amounts with original maturity of beyond three months 102,524,561 46,339,328
GRS ERNZ BB K Cash and cash equivalents in the condensed consolidated
S [a) B H H cash flow statement 140,766,069 179,252,517

50

He i H AR Ik oA B =

FUBT b Al 98 B — % “RAEYEAREE > SAK
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BE o

AR — B ) B A R R AR AR M 2 B
R > M O BRIBURE S il > AN = A
HE R B P18 IR 04T > DAPR RS B B T2 fat e B

Fa o

7 A1 T ol £ Y R e e i 35 JR g R AT JBE ) R
AT Al A ] 365 4% 452 [ S5 55 R L A JBE ) 2 Y TE B

SR A EOR AL o R B BORE LA A R A
HE > AR BN I SR < SR

274

50

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
DATE

The novel coronavirus outbreak since early 2020 has brought about
additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment and has
impacted the Group’s operations.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact of the developments
on the Group’s businesses and has put in place contingency measures,
such as temporary closure of 18 branches in January 2020 for the sake of
protecting health and safety of customers and staff members.

The Group performs regular stress tests on credit risk and market risk, to
assess any potential impact of stressed business condition on the Group.
While the circumstances of the outbreak is evolving rapidly, the Group will
closely monitor the development of the coronavirus outbreak situation, an
estimate of its financial impact to the Group at the current stage may not be
appropriate as it will be subject to material change.
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B on B BB E B (R EEZE &)

Supplementary Financial Information (unaudited)

T B A A B B R M R 2 R SIS A
RETR AL B R AT AT 5 <

The following information is disclosed as part of the accompanying
information to the financial statements and does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

BEA TR B AT

FEAS AU B AR T AR A Y < L LR P A A 9 SR AT
2 (EA) BT (TEABAND) R o 325 R TIR R
) B i L 26 T A T =T AR AE TSI — % — =
A — F AR A B AR S o A A R AR A
Rl bR A [ (fF P RUBR) w035 ) 545 R R B
Z B FBEMRE I - PR [ AR ARSI | RO
AR I B B bR A TR e (T35 B ) w1 L RHE
5 JE By o

IF 00 B 5 i 3R B G2 B At - TS B it Y A 2
e T 5 B8 e o o 4 S (G s B 5 i o
B 1) i A ) o AR B AR BRI S 3C (e ot B E T
B AR M S F o S B AE A O S
BB o

MRAFEARI > FHE G A B 2 £ S YE T B BE B
Bty 2 ARG R e (HLMBR B A KT R 38 5 [ 2
BT (R KRR A ) Z M A A o
U W RAR A M R 2 BB RS G A B AR
BREFHATIRR o 5255 AR A 5 B 2 A ML AT o B B A 5

CAPITAL ADEQUACY AND CAPITAL BASE

Capital adequacy ratios were compiled in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules (the “Capital Rules”) issued by the HKMA. The ratios were
compiled in accordance with the amended Capital Rules effective from
Ist January 2013 for the implementation of the “Basel III” capital accord.
In view of the Capital Rules, the Group has adopted the “standardised
(credit risk) approach” for the calculation of the risk-weighted assets for
credit risk, “basic indictor approach” for the calculation of the operational
risk and the “standardised (market risk) approach” for the calculation of
market risk.

The basis of consolidation for financial accounting purposes is in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”), as
described in Note 2 on the notes to the financial statements. Subsidiaries
included in the consolidation for regulatory purposes are specified in a
notice from the HKMA in accordance with section 3C(1) of the Capital
Rules.

Under the Capital Rules, the basis of consolidation in calculating the
capital ratios follows that of the financial reporting with the exclusion
of subsidiaries which are “regulated financial entities” (e.g., Insurance
and securities companies) as defined by the Capital Rules. Accordingly,
the investment costs of these unconsolidated subsidiaries are deducted
from the capital base. There is no capital shortfall of these unconsolidated
subsidiaries.
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1 CAPITAL ADEQUACY AND CAPITAL BASE (continued)

A list of these unconsolidated subsidiaries is shown below:

HREF—EFZH =T

At 31 December 2019
e HbE 2
Total assets Total equity
T#T T#T
J2 B W) Principal activities HKS$’000 HKS$’000
TEREEY A R A R PR 2E
ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited Provision of bullion business 7,264 7,255
TR EEN I B A PR A 7 PR & 25
ICBC (Asia) Futures Company Limited Provision of futures business 103,053 103,013
THREE (BB HRAE A B A B IS
ICBC Asset Management (Global) Company Limited* Provision of asset management services 404,056 374,914
TSR B RE I A B PO S 8 AR B
ICBC (Asia) Securities Limited Provision of securities brokerage services 1,543,730 1,040,382
TEREEYNAE SCA FRA R PRAEAE FEMR TS
ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited Provision of trustee services 87,919 79,608
TR oA <5 R S A R PR FE B w] RS
ICBC (Asia) Financial Services Company Limited Provision of trustee and company services - -
PNGEE 2 5 REFEE
Greater China Fund Trust fund 4,934,049 4,929,223
* B4 F TR T R I E S B B () AR A AW * Included a consolidated subsidiary in the name of ICBC (Asia) Investment

e 5 WY o 2 W

RoF—JUET T H =+ —H o BB R B
5 B & TEAR A IR A~ BERS I A Rl Z K
JB& ) o 7S MR A A R R 2 A2 B Al R T
O f e SR R A o TS R TE L D R AR S

A o
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Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

As at 31 December 2019, there are no subsidiaries which are included
within both the accounting scope of consolidation and the regulatory
scope of consolidation but the method of consolidation differs. There
are also no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory scope

of consolidation but not included within the accounting scope of

consolidation.
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1 EARFER G AT (50 1 CAPITAL ADEQUACY AND CAPITAL BASE (continued)
A LGSO L e 2l A 0 o 2 Capital 5 borerned by Tocal rules and there may be restrictions on the
S e P LB T B R S A R B A transfer of regulatory capital and funds between members of the Group.

EN5 =N Pl i e
—Z—Juip )\ 4E
F—H F=EA=1f—H

+T=A=
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Wt T
HK$°000 HK$°000
e 288 JBOHE — A% EZIK Common Equity Tier 1 (“CET1”) Capital
A R — A A T CET1 capital instruments 44,187,631 36,379,331
o R HE— SR A L H AR i {8 Share premium arising from CET1 capital instruments - =
B v ) Retained earnings 56,716,165 50,113,313
Hrp AR ﬁ/j AR R A8 5 A% 1 45 1 B of which: unaudited profit or loss of the current
WHTIE R E— ﬁﬁﬂﬂzrj’ financial year and profit or loss of the
immediately preceding financial year
pending audit completion 8,030,034 8,415,000
15 5% 5 Disclosed reserves 3,735,870 1,908,483
Hodr s B /\EFFE KHAL W5 AR of which: fair value through other comprehensive
— G R E income - financial assets 129,234 (1,995,499)
0 E— SR A (H CET]1 Capital before deductions 104,639,666 88,401,127
i Deduct:
B <> il 5L 3 9 A I L AE Cumulative cash flow hedge reserves that relate
G AR TR IE DL ®$1§ 1H to the hedging of financial instruments that
NG ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%?ﬁ‘{q’ G are not fair valued on the balance sheet 137,771 (79,010)
DA PE(E AR B R A & 2 Cumulative fair value gains or losses on liabilities
'f;:u Ja 5 5 ) ﬁ'ﬁﬁ A 2 B AR of the institution that are fair-valued and
EHEA \9115 HH % result from changes in the own credit risk - -
P 5. Cumulative fair value gains arising from the
ii&&%%i{ﬁ@ﬂg L Rt A PR revaluation of land and buildings (654,494) (627,637)
— R AR AT B Y B A A A Regulatory reserve for general banking risk (1,332,243) (2,185,982)
PR (1 I A [ 0 A o JE 4 i) Goodwill (net of related deferred tax liability) (980,154) (980,154)
R A - JEGEF ) Other intangible assets (net of related
ARG K GUBRMBIRERAAR) ™ od Gx liability) (14,872) (17,155)
7 L R 0 o T £ 5 ) A0 O A T Deferred tax assets in excess of deferred tax liabilities (379,507) (749,768)
- A Cumulative losses below depreciated cost
%giﬁgéﬁg%gig% H A arising from the Institution’s holdings of land and
H building (286) (290)
pa Debit valuation adjustments in t
: B4 j respec
GLICE S e S of derivative contracts (4,078) (3,462)
W RRE— A A (1R CET1 Capital after deductions 101,411,803 83,757,669
wl Add:
O —EAR (AR Additional Tier 1 Capital after deductions 27,518,149 27,680,380
—HEA (i) Tier 1 Capital after deductions 128,929,952 111,438,049
L@ IR A E A Common Equity Tier 2 (“CET2”) Capital
AT T ACE A T H KR i Tier 2 capital instruments issued and share premium 774,581 5,474,120
Hep o R aH of which: amount that is subject to phase out 774,581 1,558,295
AR 3t e i A AP E (E Reserve attributable to fair value gains on
I i ,jﬁ; Tk 1 ot fhi revaluation of holdings of land and buildings 294,522 282,437
— MR SR AT R B 2 B A fa A S B A Regulatory reserve for general banking risks and
AR A collective provisions included in Tier 2 Capital
(R A 1.259% B4 gt i HEE <2 %) (limited to 1.25% of risk-weighted amount) 4,705,055 5,452,006
:,& B (F3CHT) Tier 2 Capital before deductions 5,774,158 11,208,563
I Deductions - -
#Z& A (dnEE) Tier 2 Capital after deductions 5,774,158 11,208,563
HIR AR B AL B AR A Total capital base after deductions 134,704,110 122,646,612
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1 CAPITAL ADEQUACY AND CAPITAL BASE (continued)

R TR\
+=HA=+—H +ZA=+—H
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
T#x T#IT
HK$’000 HK$’000
JER s o Risk-weighted assets
5 Ji LB Credit risk 605,601,243 576,730,100
T 55 LB Market risk 22,935,450 19,733,863
A e Operational risk 26,478,438 24,984,000
R - — AR ERAT HE R BR 2 B Deduct:  Portion of regulatory reserve for general
R Bl AL A AL AE AR N banking risks and collective provisions
4 A B which is not included in Tier 2 capital - -
NELFEAE ZHRCE A A Y i R Portion of cumulative fair value gains
B v 5 oAk BT S AR Y 2R R arising from the revaluation of land and
D8P (i 2 A ) buildings which is not included in
Tier 2 capital (359,972) (345,200)
JE\ B o HE S E AR(E Total risk-weighted assets 654,655,159 621,102,763
SR JUE e SVAN
+=HA=+—H TZHA=+—H

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

2 B E— AE A R

— A R
WA %
Bl o 0 10 2 A L e

CET] capital ratio
Tier 1 capital ratio
Total capital ratio
Capital conservation buffer ratio

15.49% 13.49%
19.69% 17.94%
20.58% 19.75%

2.50% 1.88%
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— AEEMZLERE-REAR B RER
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EA DR SR R

— RS R T R R 2 A 5 A A
B B s R (R o 2 2 O o

To comply with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules, the Group has established
a new section “Regulatory Capital Disclosure” on its website to house all
the information relating to the disclosure of regulatory capital instruments
and the reconciliation to the Group’s published annual financial disclosure
statements.

The disclosure has been published on its website (www.icbcasia.com)
according to the Banking (Disclosure) Rules and included the following
information:

- A description of the main features and the full terms and conditions
of the Group’s CET1 capital, Additional Tier 1 capital, Tier 2 capital.

- A detailed breakdown of the Group’s CET1 capital, Additional Tier 1
capital, Tier 2 capital and regulatory deductions, using the standard
template as specified by the HKMA.

- A full reconciliation between the Group’s accounting and regulatory
balance sheets, using the standard template as specified by the
HKMA.
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO

The Group complies with the minimum requirement of 60% of Liquidity
Coverage Ratio (“LCR”) on a daily basis with effective from 1 January 2017

onwards, in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules issued by the

3R o HKMA.
2019 2018
TR e R Average liquidity coverage ratio
— %% - First quarter 184.02% 167.17%
— - Second quarter 210.62% 150.74%
—B=2 - Third quarter 182.72% 162.07%
— % - Fourth quarter 191.29% 185.90%

SRATE () B 2530 B 30 A5 K AE 1Y It ) 1 43¢ %
R > A B AR SR AT A S www.icbcasia.com [ B & 4
7 —fi o

Liquidity disclosures as required by section 30 and 30A of the Banking
(Disclosure) Rules are available in the section of Regulatory Disclosures of

our website www.icbcasia.com.
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CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL
AND MARKET RISKS

3.1

Credit risk

(1)

The Group uses the following external credit assessment
institutions (“ECAIs”) to calculate its capital adequacy
requirements under the standardized (credit risk) approach
prescribed in the Capital Rules:

. Moody’s Investors Service
. S&P’s Ratings Services
. Fitch Ratings

The capital requirements on each class of exposures under the
standardized (credit risk) approach as at the end of reporting

T period is summarised as follows:

2019 2018
Tl Fib T
HK$’000 HK$’000

HEANKEH On-balance sheet
F R Sovereign exposures 22,934 15,008
BT E B Public sector entity exposures 154,134 75,204
SRAT R B Bank exposures 9,648,753 8,632,198
75 75 7 JEL Securities firm exposures - 17,033
4> 2 B Corporate exposures 28,319,152 29,073,316
A G B R R Collective investment scheme exposures 549,877 344,157
Bl Cash items 48,754 110,869
P RER e S oy Regulatory retail exposures 1,292,237 1,112,154
1EE 1R Residential mortgage loans 2,081,228 1,654,005
HoAth 3 I 76 3 2 Ja B Other exposures which are not past due exposures 1,953,670 1,130,958
70 37 Jal B Past due exposures 220,198 165,202
EARAMREGEH 2 EAME L 1A% Total capital charge for on-balance sheet exposures 44,290,937 42,330,104

% ARRIEH Off-balance sheet
HERE NS Direct credit substitutes 277,969 499,290
HLZE 5 A B 2 s R i IH Transaction-related contingencies 3,712 3,763
B 5 A5 B 2 Bk = IE Trade-related contingencies 121,060 143,193
At 7 4 Other commitments 2,320,911 1,909,192
HNRE & £ Exchange rate contracts 194,742 209,743
IR E# Interest rate contracts 92,130 57,950
BEEEH Precious metal contracts 2 -

3 BRSSO e HE Derivatives contracts subject to valid bilateral netting

AT AE T HEEG4 agreements 74,476 48,092
JBAHE 45 B # Equity contracts 348,080 312,682
525 & & SO AR R a5 4 Debt Security contracts or other commodity contracts 125 14,390
B RE R S Securities financing transaction 134,019 118,018
& AR INE R 2 A M S AR Total capital charge for off-balance sheet exposures 3,567,226 3,316,313
15 F R B 2 A M 5 AR Total capital charge for credit risk 47,858,163 45,646,417
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

3 CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL
AND MARKET RISKS (continued)

3.1

3.2

Credit risk (continued)

(i)  The capital requirement is made by multiplying the Group’s
risk-weighted amount derived from the relevant calculation
approach by 8%. It does not reflect the Group’s actual
regulatory capital.

(i) Where exposures have been rated by the above-mentioned
ECAIs, they are categorised under the following class of

exposures:
. Sovereign exposures

. Public sector entity exposures

. Multilateral development bank exposures
. Bank exposures

. Securities firm exposures

. Corporate exposures

. Collective investment scheme exposures

(iii) The process used to map ECAIs issuer ratings or ECAIs issue
specific ratings in the Group’s banking book is consistent with
those prescribed in the Capital Rules.

Operational risk

HKMA has granted approval under section 24(1)(a) of the Capital
Rules for the Group to use the updated Basel Basic Indicator
Approach to calculate its operational risk. The Group thus applies
this approach in managing operational risk, but is simultaneously
adopting the relevant supervising guidelines of the HKMA. As at 31
December 2019, the capital charge for operational risk amounted to
HK$2,118,275,000 (2018: HK$1,998,720,000).
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3 A5 TR R - B0 B AR B K i 5 L B2 3 CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL
A 32 ) AND MARKET RISKS (continued)
3.3 T 5 JEL R 3.3 Market risk
EI A H AR SR AT AT 2 T 3 L B 1 3 R R el Market risk activities currently undertaken by the Bank can basically
# A RIE R FER G MRIE] - be divided into “Trading Book” and “Non-Trading Book”.
2 G MR Trading Book:
38 5 W TE AL 455 A A A4 P B S s B B 2y B It consists of proprietary positions in financial instruments and
T K B TEL A 3 £5 s ) 6 4 ) v 4 £ derivatives which are held for re-sale or which are taken on with the
Mgz &M TR EMAETRZ AR % - trading intention of benefiting from actual and/or expected short-
term price or interest rate movements.
7 45 (3] i A E R o T B L g bR R TR v The Group applies the “standardised approach” for its market risk
FHEE] cRZE-NFETZH=1T—HZE&E in the Capital Rules. The capital charge as at 31 December 2019
AL S Y /%1,834,836,0000 7T (& — VAR is HK$1,834,836,000 (2018: HK$1,578,709,000). The market risk
1,578,709,000% JC) ° i —FE—JUF K —FE— )\ capital requirement as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are:
T = — B A B 5 R AR A E N
Ko
117 355 W, B A b 5%
Market risk capital charge
2019 2018
T#n T T
J, gt 29 7% Risk type HKS$’000 HK$°000
) 23 JRU B — — Jik T 355 JRL e Interest rate exposure - general market risk 402,790 399,321
A1 FE JEL B Foreign exchange exposures 1,055,208 1,110,541
TR it L e Commodity exposures 6,026 64,300
R M L o Option exposures 6,473 4,547
sat Total 1,470,497 1,578,709
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3. fa FH R\ B - 2% A I B & i 35 R B =2 3 CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL
B A S H AND MARKET RISKS (continued)

3.3 ﬁi%’ﬂ« FXAR' (#) 3.3 Market risk (continued)
PUR AR B R 2 =T — N+ H =1+ — The following histograms show the frequency distribution of daily

HE -F—NLE+_H=+—HIFFEELE revenues related to market risk activities of the Group for years
9] 2 7 3 R i B A B 2 g H AR A ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019.

BEZZUET A=+ HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
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CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL

AND MARKET RISKS (continued)
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3.3 Market risk (continued)

3.3 i B R BE (a0

+—H L4

BREZ-N\E+_H=
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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00S°€T ~ 000°€T
000°€T ~ 00STT
00S°CT ~ 000°C1
000°ZT = 00STT
00S'TT = 000°TT
000°TT ~ 00501
00S°0T = 000°0T
000°0T ~ 0056
0056 ~ 0006
0006 ~ 0058
0058 ~ 0008
0008 ~ 005~
00S°Z = 000°Z
000°Z ~ 0059
0059 = 000°9
0009 ~ 005°S
00S°S ~ 000°S
000°S ~ 00S%
005 ~ 000%
000 ~ 00S°€
00S°€ ~ 000°€
000°€ ~ 005
00ST = 000°'C
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00S‘T ~ 000°T
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005 - 0

0 - (00S)
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WA T
Revenue HK$’000

284



SEJUEER
Annual Report 2019

3

1 PRV ~ SE 75 A L B K i 3 T B =2
A 3 )

3.3 i B R BE (a0

BE_Z-NWF+H=1+—HILFEE &
A5 U A T R B A B 2 o B H L
A £51,567,00045 76 (—ZF — J\4FE : 1,775,000%5
Je) o 1 SR H YA 2 A YE F 25 551,506,000
JC (& — U4 ¢ 2,015,000 70) © £ 4 7 &
HUCA Z BRI W 72 = F — JLAF 2 246
225 H > 27 H B EHE (& — /4
2461838 5% B934 H) > iz — H R A
3,208,000% 7 (- — J/\4E : 4,318,000 70) ©
B 2 — H A B £48,352,0009 76 (& — /A
F 1 10,849,000%70) » BEEH A HE MEF 2 H
AT 5 - A 48 190519 128 25 388 Jn L o 5 o % IR
5 o [ o DA A — DA AR AR B R EE A AR
ZA o TATZARFE > A [ 54 2% U R R R
Bz R~ BT R - s A e
KMEARR R -

2 WA

KRG RHCAREME - BB ESEH - 8
Fe 1 FF 05 AH B SE B 2 T AR B T
A B 45 A9 P A B e M) 3 Sl gy e 1 ol L TR
By AT 2 A 05 1 B K MR AR A R B
EEHEME -

3

o T SRAT (W) AR

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL
AND MARKET RISKS (continued)

3.3 Market risk (continued)

The average daily revenue earned from the Group’s market risk
related activities during the year ended 31 December 2019 was
HK$1,567,000 (2018: HK$1,775,000) and the standard deviation
for such daily revenue was HK$1,506,000 (2018: HK$2,015,000).
An analysis of the frequency distribution of daily revenue showed
that losses were recorded on 27 days out of 246 trading days for the
year 2019 (2018: 34 days out of 246 trading days). The maximum
daily loss was HK$3,208,000(2018: HK$4,318,000). The highest
daily revenue was HK$8,352,000 (2018: HK$10,849,000). In respect
of proprietary trading and customers’ expectation, the Group will
gradually expand the scope of treasury products and services to
complement its conventional reliance on loan assets for revenue. In
the process, the Group will watch out for the resulting market risk,
and counterparty credit risk, liquidity and capital implications.

Non-Trading Book:

It consists of structured foreign exchange and interest rate risk
positions arising from funding and liquidity management as well as
investment and balance sheet activities from non-treasury related
business. Debt securities activities undertaken by Global Markets
& Trading Department are largely for investment and liquidity
management purpose.
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4 HEHF 4  ASSET SECURITISATION
RN > ZAAE ER A B R L B R E B IR - During the year, the Group only acted as an investor in related
o B R - e 3 T S R T AR 1 T AR O TR securitisation exposure. Ratings from Moody’s Investors Service, S&P’s
TRAN I T2 w8 2 AL R o R R A B T T B 2R AL and Fitch Ratings are adopted in assessing securitisation exposures.
JE g 2 £l A HI 6 T 19 58 AT SRR T SR R A Since the securitisation exposures held by the Group are all rated by
TTREAS > A 4L [ B A e (RS AL ST VAR i recognised ECAIs designated by the Capital Rules, the Group uses the
15 R R B A< SR AT %5 D) s #5540 B R R o standardized (securitisation) approach to calculate the weighted credit risk
for these exposures. The Bank closely monitors the risk arising from these
exposures.
TRIRR -FE—NEL F—/\F+_HA=+— The following table indicates the securitisation exposures as at 31
H 2wt 7 AL B AR 3 December 2019 and 2018:
€5 0 B i
— B A
Z BB R AR
fE EBombEER HAHLE BbEA Exposures
Outstanding Risk-weighted Capital Core deducted from
it Sy 2 2019 amounts amounts requirements capital CET1 Capital
T#x T#xT T#x T#x TH#
i 27 A ML g 7R 3 Securitisation exposures HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
e 7R 1L 7 Traditional securitisations
debt securities - - - - -
e 2 AR
— B AN
Z JA B AR I
BREEJE B EARLE b E A Exposures
Outstanding ~ Risk-weighted Capital Core  deducted from
—F— N\ 2018 amounts amounts requirements capital CET1 Capital
it it Fitx Fib Fib
a6 77 AL SR B R 4 Securitisation exposures HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
s L g Traditional securitisations

debt securities
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Capital requirement of securitisation exposures under the standardized
(securitisation) approach at 31 December 2019 was nil (2018: Nil). The
deductible items from CET1 capital under asset securitisation at 31
December 2019 was nil (2018: Nil).

There are no securitisation exposures booked in trading book as at 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil).
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

COUNTERPARTY CREDIT RISK-RELATED
EXPOSURE

The Group has adopted the current exposure method (the “CEM”) to
determine the exposure amount for inter bank counterparty credit risk
which arises from OTC derivative transactions in banking and trading
books. As at 31 December 2019, there are no credit derivative contracts in
the Bank (2018: Nil). No recognised collateral including recognised credit
derivative contracts is held as credit protection for counterparty credit
risk-related exposure as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

Under the terms of our current collateral obligations under derivative
contracts, we estimate based on the positions as at 31 December 2019 that
the Bank would not be required to post additional collateral in the event
of one or two notch downgrade in the Bank’s credit ratings (2018: one or
two).

Wrong-way risk is an aggravated form of concentration risk and arises
when there is a strong correlation between the counterparty’s PD and the
mark-to-market value of the underlying transaction. The Group uses a
range of procedures to monitor and control wrong-way risk, including
requiring front offices to obtain prior approval before undertaking wrong
way risk transactions outside pre-agreed guidelines.

The following table indicates the information of counterparty credit risk-
related exposures under the standardized approach:

AIE A PR
Gross total s B4 Rl 8% Jn B 78
Positive Credit Risk-weighted
Fair value equivalent amount
TH#n T Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
e S K 3 2019
RO RAETRRY - OTC derivative transactions:
RAT Bank 2,672,547 8,425,122 2,278,357
HoAth Others 4,525,702 6,884,752 6,591,062
7,198,249 15,309,874 8,869,419
—E— )4 2018
THGIMIE T RS OTC derivative transactions:
RAT Bank 3,522,512 9,368,426 2,936,124
HAth Others 3,122,688 5,362,967 5,099,580
6,645,200 14,731,393 8,035,704

TR VI R 46 5 42 R AT AR R A8 5 15 B AR (H ORI

WA amounts of the derivative transactions.

There is no effect of bilateral netting agreement on the credit equivalent
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6 IRAKAE R B 6 CREDIT RISK MITIGATION
6.1 5 BT e R VAR A P L Bl = 7R R 6.1 Process of managing and recognising credit risk mitigation
A 4 (9] ) S e A e T O VR O 0 B BRI A The Group has established policies on managing and recognizing
FRBR AR (4538 535 AMit A LR 38 5 i A credit risk mitigation, which are approved by the Credit Committee,
1 B3 F 5 {5 R B B AR 8 il 2 IE R R A for all types of credit exposure under the standardized approach
B it o 2 Il RR UK A R Y BUR - including counterparty credit risk-related exposure which arises
A% 2 (9] 9 AR B A I O R S AT A A I HE from OTC derivative transactions. The Group applies prudent
oo Al AN RS R Pk EEE R assessments of eligibility and quality of collateral. Acceptable credit
& I ok B A BT L E o A BE B R A I risk mitigations are as defined by the Credit Committee and/or
AR E TR AR Y T N > M E W) T T AR AL A regulatory authorities. The Group also adheres to safe custodian
VI REE o A (RS0 H i (a8 > kgt of collateral, regular revaluation and close monitoring. Marketable
T4 B Rk i E R B H — securities are marked to market on a daily basis or, if daily
YOEAT AL > T4 05 IR E A - revaluation/marked to market is unavailable, a minimum of once a
month, whilst properties are revalued periodically.
MEEEARWFEMS - RA G AAE For regulatory capital calculation, only recognised collateral and
) 8 e GRS PP A% AR O T AR A A RR A guarantee defined in the Capital Rules are considered as recognised
JE B AR i o AN SRAT A FE A A T LR B AT credit risk mitigations. The Bank applies the simple approach
IR I ] 74 A B AR = 190 i AT 9 o criteria as stipulated in the Capital Rules in ascertaining credit risk
mitigation.
R AR B A AR R - BLEAEE - B Recognised collateral includes eligible guarantees, cash deposits,
&~ By~ (SR Ko R R RS o B gold, shares, debt securities and collective investments in
EARBE - AT E IR Rk o WK% transferable securities, commercial real estate, residential real estate,
F L g 7 A R LA IR A o B T A R R E Y vehicles and equipment. The exposure amount after mitigation is
o 4 BB IR Y B (B o MRS AR A determined by applying the standard supervisory haircut laid down
7y JEL By M TG A 1 T O AT ] 3 A A A A by the Capital Rules to the current collateral value. Recognised
WA ~ BRAT I 2 BLAS 78 I3 20 | s L A B R guarantor is any sovereign entity, public sector entity, bank and
BRI 45 ) i A FR EE AR A — B 2L B A A o regulated securities firm with a lower risk weight than the borrower,
or company that is internally rated with a rating equivalent to
external rating of A- or better.
MNEE—NER _—FE—NFE+_H=+—H > The main types of guarantors and their external ratings as at 31
W R N ERIR T FOANER R AR A AT an T December 2019 and 2018 are analysed as follows:
R
Guaranteed amount
2019 2018
HR AR B T Y S B T#T T
Class of guarantors S&P’ s equivalent HK$’000 HK$°000
Bank $R 1T AAA/AA- 9,358 -
A+/A- 22,077,585 46,576,708
Sovereign - HE 1 1 AAA/AA- 21,017,672 370,841
PSE 4 B 1A A+ 2,303,284 1,509,967
Corporate 1> 2 A+/A- 492,396 =
45,900,295 48,457,516
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There are limited credit and market risk concentrations within the
credit risk mitigants (recognised collateral and guarantees) used by
the Group, except for real estate which is extensively relied on for
risk mitigation in lending to non-bank corporate and non-corporate
customers.
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6 AKAR R B (s 6  CREDIT RISK MITIGATION (continued)
6.2 1% F B I Rk 3 6.2 Credit risk exposures
A U S U AR B~ R RO O B S&P’s Ratings Services, Moody’s Investors Service and Fitch Ratings
T AR A B [ DA 25 0 B BT A R R B 7R are the ECATs that the Group uses in relation to each and all classes
I8 09 S0 IS B R AR MR o D DA T S A of exposures below. The process it used to map ECAI issuer ratings
P AT R T AR A AT N T A B R AR AT A to exposures booked in its banking book is a process as prescribed in
O B 7R 385 R A I ) B 4 43 BT Part 4 of the Capital Rules.
E RSP o
S 5 Y O A3
LR
Exposures after recognized W
“ER0k 2019 credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts
Bl WWRTEE  BRTEE
RE%E BE O BERRE  MRRAR
g Total Exposure Exposure
Total [ Kt e o4 Kil#he  risk-weighted covered by covered by
Bk Class of exposures exposures* Rated Unrated® Rated’ Unrated® amounts collateral guarantees
Ti#x T#x T T T T#x T#x T#x
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B ALEEH On-balance sheet
B Sovereign 70,632,165 59,333,794 32,308,007 104,563 182,108 286,671 - -
INA T Public sector entity 7,330,095 7,330,095 2,303,284 1,466,019 460,657 1,926,676 - -
ZBERRT Multilateral development bank 2,613,923 2,418,923 195,000 - - - - -
#17 Bank 313,998,797 81,455,113 254,630,347 32,757,685 87,851,728 120,609,413 - -
BT Securities firm - - - - - - - -
i£3 Corporate 430,385,713 71,483,859 303,475,028 50,705,271 303,284,127 353,989,398 12,384,862 43,423,353
EikE e | Collective investment scheme 6,873,463 - 6,873,463 - 6,873,463 6,873,463 - -
HERH Cash items 539,552 941,773 12,249,854 24,480 584,947 609,427 - -
THETEER Regulatory retail 21,700,486 - 21,537,277 - 16,152,958 16,152,958 98,205 65,004
EERBEN Residential mortgage loans 57,169,946 - 54,873,759 - 26,015,958 26,015,346 3,571 2,292,616
ol 3 6 Other exposures which are not 23,733,152 3,800,054 19,767,862 3,800,054 20,620,816 24,420,870 165,436 -
f B 4 past due exposures
B ek 1 Past due exposures 2,650,359 - 2,630,359 - 2,752,475 2,752,475 2,315,492 117,570
B RN Off-balance Sheet
B35 50t TR A5 55 Off-balance sheet exposures other than
B TARALISMY  OTC derivative transactions or credit
BEBRRIMERESE  derivative contracts 39,761,887 6878743 32,883,144 4613545 3023099 34,845,644 1,374,104 1752
M TR OTC derivative transactions 29,499,282 4,529,647 24,969,635 910,142 9,634,517 10,544,659 4,319,317 -

REMETARH Credit derivative contracts -
A AR T Other off-balance sheet exposures
I EE A BE  not elsewhere specified

SRRt

AEAERME T Exposures deducted from capital base

RERE
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6 CREDIT RISK MITIGATION (continued)

6.2 Credit risk exposures (continued)

TR (5 B L e

b
Exposures after recognized SR I
ZE-NE 2018 credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts
BBME EMSTHE  BERTEE
A s &% mERKE  RERRE
bt Total Exposure Exposure
Total BEEY Aitde B Kibde  risk-weighted covered by covered by
JRR SRR Class of exposures exposures*® Rated’ Unrated® Rated® Unrated® amounts collateral guarantees
T T T T T T T T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$000 HK$000
B ARREH On-balance sheet
TH Sovereign 54,254,049 54,254049 361,988 187,600 - 187,600 - -
Nt Public sector entity 4,344,682 4,344,682 1,509,966 638,062 301,993 940,055 - -
SRBRRT Multilateral development bank 3,941,251 3,747,518 193,733 - - - - -
#1 Bank 292,874,600 STAL644 281,898,077 20437810 87464664 107,902,474 - 1,332
fRN Securities firm 425,826 = 425,826 = 212913 212913 - =
i Corporate 442,614,339 63,186,313 320,100,655 B0 320100655 363416455 12,541,207 46,786,164
AnR & Collective investment scheme 4,301,967 - 4,301,967 = 4,301,967 4,301,967 - =
HeEH Cash items 544,25 111,968 13,042,970 - 1,385,366 1,385,366 - -
IHETELR Regulatory retail 18,725,563 - 18,535,903 - 13901927 13901927 141,871 47,789
EERBEHK Residential mortgage loans 45,834,018 = 44,324,083 = 20,675,061 20,675,061 6,312 1,503,124
FAME 8 M Other exposures which are not past due
il exposures 13,813,199 - 13,692,404 - 14136970 14,136,970 120,79 -
ke Past due exposures 1,836,427 - 1,836,427 - 2,065,031 2,065,031 1,334,215 28,935
B RERAMEH Off-balance Sheet
B35 5Mit A LR A5 35 Off-balance sheet exposures other
SR THALLIMY  than OTC derivative transactions or
B ABRIVEBAE  credit derivative contracts 37,446,574 3,313,045 34,133,529 2,592,636 29,351,184 31,943,840 4,873,830 111,072
SoMiE TR OTC derivative transactions 40957,274 25,890,436 15,066,838 1,734,492 7,776,431 9,510,923 20901,334 -
REMETAAH Credit derivative contracts - - - - = - = =
AEHEHMHAERT  Other off-balance sheet exposures not
Bl EE B (5% elsewhere specified
SNB B A - - - - - - - -
B A SRR 1) Exposures deducted from capital base
AL -

* AR A8 1 30 (1 1 A < R A 46 (L SRR (gl
A

‘ ELAE LA S B A5 BT AR 5 AT 5 R AT ARG S B R
8 Fo B A 1 52 T A% B0 JRUBR AR (B ST 408 96 A7 45 2 W
A > AEL LB 0 AR B £ AR 4 A BB 78 R A JE B R
¥ > 278 50 A5 T AR R RO P8 45 T8 A
FR B AT N ST A0 R A 8 17 B T A 5 A A9 A ]
H Al J B R 5 A e f) BE AT R AR

@  fRKRBLAERSN RS B0 5T A S5 AT 45 1 BT AR D e TR
AR F) JE B AR
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Representing principal amount or credit equivalent amount, as
applicable, net of individual impairments

including exposures with ECAI issue specific rating and exposures
which have an inferred rating (i.e. exposures which do not have an
issue-specific rating but whose risk-weights are determined under
the Capital Rules by reference to an ECAI issuer rating assigned to
the obligor of the exposure or to an ECAI issue rating of any other
exposures of the obligor)

Representing exposures which do not have the ECAI issue specific
rating nor inferred rating
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7 SEER 7  SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
7.1 %5 Bk T il HE I 7.1 Loans and advances to customers
() FZ B — i # 7 (i) Advances to customers — by geographical areas
A A ) A8 5t A A e o S R 3R A 42 IR The Group’s gross advances to customers by country or
Y b [ ) 20 1 R P SR AR R geographical area after taking into account any risk transfers
are as follows:
WH=MA REARME
UR:E ARG gL P FERARZ
% PR Overdue R LEACERPS BN %
Gross advances advances for Impaired loans Lifetime ECL Non-credit
tocustomers  over three months and advances credit impaired impaired ECL
T#x T T T T
“EMEFSAZ N 31 December 2019 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
i Hong Kong 267,462,868 2,665,856 3,385,343 1,823,017 1,353,348
g} Mainland China 147,962,934 1,582,957 1,598,415 646,263 1,412,156
W Macau 2,372,812 - - - 20,539
BRE (REFERE  WREM) Asia Pacific Region (excluding Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Macau) 12,983,184 - - - 175,218
Hite Others 12,477,954 387 - - 94,628
et Total 443,059,752 4,249,200 4,983,758 2,469,280 3,057,889
wi=fA FERRM
DA E B WEEHK BRIl FRERRZ
EFEHAH Overdue SR BHERER BHERER
Gross advances advances for Impaired loans Lifetime ECL Non-credit
tocustomers  over three months and advances credit impaired impaired ECL
T T T T T
“E-NEFZAZ+—H 31 December 2018 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
i Hong Kong 252,074,237 1,822,609 2,068,694 469,774 1,423,929
! Mainland China 177,867,503 1,640,071 1,827,135 1,659,525 1,348,097
i Macau 2,998,144 - - - -
KR (REFEEE  MABRIAM)  Asia Pacific Region (excluding Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Macau) 10,008,905 - - - 97,686
Hi Others 10,803,796 - - - 76917
g Total 453,752,585 3,462,680 3,895,829 2,129,099 2,946,629

T PR BRI A 19 AN [+l TR 3 - T 19

Risk transfers are only made if the claims are guaranteed
N AR - s 2R T 1) H AR AR AL 55 —
ZFHRAT ST RE W T
T7 RS Je i o

by a party in a country which is different from that of the
counterparty or if the claims are on an overseas branch of a
bank whose head office is located in another country.
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7 HEER @ 7  SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
7.1 % PR M H A BRI (40) 7.1 Loans and advances to customers (continued)
(il)  F)7Z B Rl IE 3 A — 15 (ii)  Gross loans and advances to customers - by industry sectors
&
it S K3 it Sy RS ZE-N\E “F—0\5
+ZAZ+—=0 A FZHET-H FZAZTH
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2018
A4 % v e:N i) HALH AR
FEak B HAk SRR A% R
Gross % of secured Gross loans % of secured
advances advances and advances advances
T#x Tt
HK$'000 HK$°000
EREL T2 8% Loans for use in Hong Kong
ANVEA Industrial, commercial and financial
L E - Property development 43,147,921 35.32% 37,218,684 32.63%
B /ESi3 - Property investment 30,942,860 47.88% 28,778,438 58.69%
(o - Financial concerns 29,131,995 3.34% 42,185,479 0.03%
— AR - Stockbrokers 3,425,817 0.00% 4,036,352 1.24%
~HERTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 10,944,231 60.24% 13,777,536 50.97%
—TATE - Civil engineering works 1,476,834 52.72% 2,000,929 20.07%
— R - Manufacturing 9,256,494 19.01% 8,062,904 18.03%
— M RO A - Transport and transport equipment 21,649,344 77.03% 25,811,920 48.40%
— B RIR - Electricity and gas 1,474,176 0.00% 687,512 0.00%
— Ell R - Information technology 4,998,704 1.54% 4,204,464 2.78%
—E - NE R - Hotels, boarding houses and catering 2,178,796 55.41% 1,705,762 53.23%
— R4 ) - Recreational activities 550,073 5.89% 59,157 98.14%
—JL A - Others 26,597,425 20.35% 32,968,958 28.06%
R Individuals
~WETEEALE] [AZH#E - Loans for the purchase of flats in Home Ownership Scheme,
Eat# | R [ B | B A Private Sector Participation Scheme and
ZEH Tenants Purchase Scheme 345,337 97.82% 353,557 97.56%
- WEHMEEDE L &R - Loans for the purchase of other residential properties 46,832,765 98.62% 40,016,667 98.56%
—FHRER - Credit card advances 477,515 0.00% 446,718 0.00%
— HAth - Others 18,997,634 35.24% 13,517,549 87.43%
UL Trade finance 11,936,557 42.34% 14,393,505 23.46%
TERIESEME 2 B 3K Loans for use outside Hong Kong 178,895,274 32.02% 183,526,494 34.62%
443,259,752 40.41% 453,752,585 39.52%
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

7.1 %% 5 8K R HABIR I (s0) 7.1 Loans and advances to customers (continued)
(i)  F)7Z B Rl IE A A (ii)  Gross loans and advances to customers - by industry sectors
— T [E () (continued)
TG P 2 83k S EH10%3 LA b 19 28 75 i Individually impaired loans, overdue loans and advances over
T2 ) A ) ek (B Bk~ =@ A DA b 2z s three months, impairment allowances and impaired loans
B H A R TE ~ 134 S A% B W and advances written off in respect of industry sectors that
R S H A AR IE AN R ¢ constitute 10% or more of the total advances to customers are
as follows:
R R4 —E )N\
+ZHAZ+—H +ZHA=+—H
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEF Wik DASMEE ) 2 2K Loans for use outside Hong Kong
A8 ek (B B K Individually impaired loans 3,093,776 2,060,024
A=A D k2 S Rk H AR Overdue loans and advances over three months 2,832,439 1,640,059
{5 R R & A R 2 TS Lifetime ECL credit-impaired 1,397,065 1,829,945
F A5 B B A 2 2 B A # K Lifetime ECL not credit-impaired 330,583 205,543
1218 H BLR B % 12-month ECL 1,288,699 1,356,619
T M i 3R S8 22 A A New impairment allowances charged to income statement (375,760) 187,156
A PR A% 1 U B L A R IR Impaired loans and advances written off during the year 1,138,452 -
7.2 BIBEHZE 7.2 International claims

I 5% 2R R g O 22 ) T LB R
TR PR TE L 1238 50 B T AR AR - S
C B R ARTRE A E P M E R« — RS - A
I JEL e R % 2 119 T 2 2 R S R AR A0 JF
22 Ty T T AE B B R — DT AR B
AR 1) B AT 3 B B SR AT B0 it Ah A0 AT T A%
SRAT Y MR B T — A B R o KL AT T
T B B A% o g ARG % 46 I PR R AR
f10%k DA L #Y [ 77 7 L4 5R

The information on international claims discloses exposures to
foreign counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived
according to the location of the counterparties after taking into
account any recognised risk transfer. In general, such transfer of risk
takes place if the claims are guaranteed by a party in a country which
is different from that of the counterparty or if the claims are on an
oversea branch of a bank whose head office is located in another
country. Only regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate
international claims after taking into account any recognised risk
transfer are disclosed.
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7 SEER @ 7 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
7.2 BBEH R @) 7.2 International claims (continued)
AR GRAT 2 120 % FR 3R e b B % 3 T 05 I 43 B Analysis of the Bank’s international claims by location and by type of
BN counterparty is as follows:
Fe AT A BB
Non-bank private sector
FhAr
SRR
911 Non-bank  JE4 i #h 2 BE Bk
FSTTE S Official financial Non-financial Bk
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
WG L AL HH#E L HEEL
HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million

ZZ R4+ ZH=+—H 31December 2019

BERK Developed countries 44,581 12,121 1,918 34,896 93,516
BER D Offshore centres 14,471 31,985 7,192 313,612 367,260
B Y BOM B R Developing Europe 132 - - - 132
BRPWALT R R Developing Latin America and Caribbean
i Mo e B 10 - - - 10
BRAPAIEM R P HREE  Developing Africa and Middle East 351 - - 1,174 1,525
R REEK > Hh Developing Asia-Pacific, of which 218,707 33,449 40,953 154,544 447,653
— -China 217,854 33,449 40,953 148,282 440,538
—HA -Others 853 - - 6,262 7,115
B International organisations - 2,614 - - 2,614
278,252 80,169 50,063 504,226 912,710
TR E R
Non-bank private sector
FaAT
SRR
Non-bank 742 il AL B

RATI 3¢ BB financial Non-financial At

Banks Official sector institutions private sector Total

H E T T E T T E T i T T

HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million

ZEZ—=NFE+ZA=1—H 31December 2018

HEBEK Developed countries 54,209 17,348 3,879 12,237 87,673
B AL Offshore centres 12,201 15,908 7,699 295,772 331,580
B I A M B R Developing Europe 29 - = = 29
BERAIELT E W K Developing Latin America and Caribbean
i b i B 14 - - 12 26
R EM R P REZ  Developing Africa and Middle East 317 - - - 317
BERPERREK > HP Developing Asia-Pacific, of which 194,885 22,813 44,949 170,173 432,820
il -China 194,469 22,813 44,949 165,596 427,827
— iy ~Others 416 - - 4,577 4,993
I S International organisations = 3,941 = = 3,941
261,655 60,010 56,527 478,194 856,386
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7 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

7.3

Hp A JE BR AT R AR o % SR AT B
J5 BRI B A B 7 s 4 A B SR BR AT 26 (R %)
HA A5 E 0 B R RSB 82 % [
138 A0 i oL gz i 6 — MLAL(BS)20 ) £F = #4347 4
BT > LFE AR SR AT B it A1 B g > 7 K 44T

R A 2R A B AR A o

Mainland activities

The analysis of non-bank Mainland China exposures is based on

the categories of non-bank counterparties and the types of direct
exposures defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules with reference to Part 3 of the “Return of Mainland China
exposures - MA(BS) 20”, which includes the Mainland China
exposures extended by the Bank and its overseas subsidiary and

branch.
YR AR AbE K
L 7 A MAETHAH
On-balance B FXand BRI AL %0
sheet Contingent derivatives Total
exposure Liabilities contract exposures
TH#x T#x T#x T#x
“EUETFSAZ 31 December 2019 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BT Type of counterparties
(a)  PRET - FRBUFHEA ME () Central government, central government owned
B DL A I A F K entities and their subsidiaries and JVs
BEAH 118,717,148 1,340,637 94,507 120,152,292
(b)  HITEN - M BUNBEE R (b)  Local government, local government owned
B LB A B8 A R entities and their subsidiaries and JVs
Lagam 30,864,499 2,780,727 26,803 33,672,029
(0 MAEFMEEHFEER ()  PRCnationals residing in Mainland China or
EY e B R A other entities incorporated in Mainland China
HAEE > DR AR and their subsidiaries and JVs
W 2 7] e A A 113,748,747 5,615,693 121,512 119,485,952
(0 @()HEA - RAEFMEENS () (i) Of which, PRC nationals residing in
1 R %l R 3 0 1 2 5 Mainland China or entities beneficially owned
i BEA 1 TS by Mainland interest 97,548,903 5,220,710 121,512 102,891,125
(d) MR B (EARER R (d)  Other entities of central government not reported
R HEA 1Y A BB in item (a) above 15,421,384 - - 15,421,384
(&) AR LEXO)ERBAERM S (e)  Other entities of local government not reported
BURHER 1 oA S 1 in item (b) above 3,474,974 51,837 9,249 3,536,060
(B AR A DA A £ ) (f)  PRC nationals residing outside Mainland China
B B7E A B 7 i DA A A ST or entities incorporated outside Mainland China
MEHE > {5 EER AR o where the credit is granted for use in Mainland
i P52 L China 13,451,349 2,781 26,306 13,480,436
(g) A BEAR TR B FE P B R s AR (g)  Other counterparties where the exposures are
17 JEBR 19 FE A 2E 5 3 F considered by the reporting institution to be
non-bank Mainland China exposures 17,640,861 1,228,789 13,118 18,882,768
313,318,962 11,020,464 291,495 324,630,921
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7 SEER @ 7 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
7.3 WHLTE B (80) 7.3 Mainland activities (continued)
BB % SN K
B 7R A METHAEH
On-balance HAARK FXand JEUBG AR A 4
sheet Contingent derivatives Total
exposure Liabilities contract exposures
it i ikt ikt
“FZ M ZA=Et—H 31 December 2018 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
5080 Type of counterparties
(a) TR~ FRBUFHEARIE (2)  Central government, central government owned
> DA S AR o B R R entities and their subsidiaries and JVs
=N 107,092,534 1,555,824 49,640 108,697,998
(b)  HTEF - FBINHAME (b)  Local government, local government owned
B DA R A A 1 B A R KA entities and their subsidiaries and JV's
BT 26,214,213 4,071,354 18,424 30,303,991
() MHEAMBEEHYTBEBERE ()  PRCnationals residing in Mainland China or
T o R A A S A other entities incorporated in Mainland China
> DR AR f B F R and their subsidiaries and JV's
B 116,235,038 10,191,914 43,482 126,470,434
(¢ @S AHEAMLEENF () (i) Of which, PRC nationals residing in
I 0 Rk o A 1 Mainland China or entities beneficially owned by
HEANER Mainland interest 83,884,664 5,294,514 1,853 89,181,031
(d) MR EL(EARERFR (d)  Other entities of central government not reported
B A Y R E e in item (a) above 13,733,369 1,502 - 13,734,871
(&) MR EXOb)HEARERMT (e)  Other entities of local government not reported
BURHEA Y A BB in item (b) above 3,100,389 392,950 496 3,493,835
(f) T A SN E R R (f) PRC nationals residing outside Mainland China
FRESCAE 2 A DA S A S or entities incorporated outside Mainland China
MEH (5 SR A B A where the credit is granted for use in
i T 4% Mainland China 19,937,356 602,835 10,240 20,550,431
(9 H&EREBAAEETBEAME (g  Other counterparties where the exposures are
i B ) oA 2 5 3 considered by the reporting institution to be
non-bank Mainland China exposures 28,452,577 1,563,499 24,044 30,040,120
314,765,476 18,379,878 146,326 333,291,680
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

The table below summarises the net foreign currency positions of the
Group and the Bank. The net positions in foreign currency is disclosed
when the currency constitutes 10% or more of the total net position
of all foreign currencies. A sensitivity analysis calculates the effect of a
reasonably possible movement in a currency rate against the Hong Kong
dollar, with all other variables in the income statement and equity held

constant.

HAb AW
EH AR¥r  Other foreign Bt
US$ RMB currencies Total
TH#L Tt Tt T
e Sy I 3 2019 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
I 45 W A 0 Non-structural position
BB Spot assets 372,604,147 180,622,530 52,395,600 605,622,277
B A fH Spot liabilities (333,897,135)  (171,979,487) (49,343,513)  (555,220,135)
B A Forward purchases 267,405,021 113,978,724 86,886,933 468,270,678
i B Forward sales (336,579,081)  (121,202,393) (90,293,706)  (548,075,180)
R A Net option position 291,024 (496,142) 337,216 132,098
B (JE ) F5E Net long/(short) position (30,176,024) 923,232 (17,470) (29,270,262)
AR 5 20 ¥ 2 Net structural position 213,618 11,832,338 - 12,045,956
oA 41
Ew AR Other foreign Mt
US$ RMB currencies Total
T# I T #5 o0 T # o0 T
ZF— \4E 2018 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000
EiS=Y y:8 1 Non-structural position
B & Spot assets 357,846,235 187,367,371 46,548,962 591,762,568
Bl AR Spot liabilities (354,743,734) (170,001,278) (27,814,538) (552,559,550)
EWE A Forward purchases 234,399,727 112,525,197 37,734,250 384,659,174
= Forward sales (266,760,554) (126,243,308) (55,673,937) (448,677,799)
S B A R R Net option position (301,036) (1,167,090) (474,739) (1,942,865)
Mg 7 (G ig) iF 5 Net long/(short) position (29,559,362) 2,480,892 319,998 (26,758,472)
AR A Net structural position 214,878 10,762,811 - 10,977,689

G TR B L4 [R5 B 7 8 e A 2 Jm B o IR R T A
JIIRIEHARES #) 2 15 T 35 I RE R SR RT3 o AR 4R
VB 2 25 R R A 4 A 7 SRATT A 1 S JE 2 ) 2
SRAT I B A BB I AN A

Foreign currency exposures include those arising from trading position.
The net option position is calculated on the basis of the delta-weighted
position of option contracts. The net structural position of the Group is the
structural positions of the Bank’s capital investment in overseas subsidiary
Chinese Mercantile Bank.
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9 HERHEX 9 LEVERAGE RATIO
RZE—JUET A = — H R R RS The leverage ratio as at 31 December 2019 was compiled in accordance
A7 LR 2 Y A AR L R B A R with the Leverage Ratio Framework issued by the HKMA.
e 2y (¥ —E— )\ 4E
+=ZHA=+—H1 +-H=+—H
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
AR & Leverage ratio 12.69% 11.68%
SRATE (PE&E) #1 RIS 16 FHAGHT 2 i FeRE b 2R e o 22 Leverage ratio disclosures as required by section 16FH of the Banking
SR AT 8] B A 68 47 49 v www.icbcasia.com [ B & 4 7% | (Disclosure) Rule are available in the section of Regulatory Disclosures
— i o Rules of our website www.icbcasia.com.
10 7 J&) ] 4% fli G A Hp R 10 COUNTERCYCLICAL CAPITAL BUFFER RATIO
it 2y 1K 3 —FE N\
+=HA=Z+—H +-H=+—H
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
5 TR 1) 4% 18 G A bR Countercyclical Capital Buffer Ratio 1.18% 1.11%
SRATEE (P ER) BB EE 16 FGIEH E A B % s 225k A] The relevant disclosures pursuant to section 16FG of the Banking
B A SR T 4 vl www.icbcasia.com [ B B B 7% | —fi » (Disclosure) Rules are available in the section of Regulatory Disclosures of
our website www.icbcasia.com.
11 FRERSLR 11 NET STABLE FUNDING RATIO
SR JUE ZE— \E
+=HA=Z+—H +-HZ=+—H
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
FREESLR Net Stable Funding Ratio 119.84% 118.56%

SRATIE (B E) ML 25103 ABMRIE 1Y A BH 3 £ 205K
T B A SR AT Al [ R | —
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The relevant disclosures pursuant to section 103AB of the Banking

(Disclosure) Rules are available in the section of Regulatory Disclosures of
our website.
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

T MERBEE QA

Branches, SubS|d|ar|es and Associates

HEADQUARTER

33/F., ICBC Tower,

3 Garden Road,

Central, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 3510 8888
Facsimile: (852) 2805 1166

Post Box: GPO Box 872 Hong Kong
SWIFT: UBHKHKHH

Website: http://www.icbcasia.com

BRANCHES - HONG KONG ISLAND

West Point Branch
242-244 Queen’s Road West,
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588
Facsimile: (852) 2559 8442

West Point Personal Banking Centre (No teller service)
Shop 2, G/F, 345-345A Des Voeux Road West,

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2547 9728

Sheung Wan Branch

Shop F, G/F, Kai Tak Commercial Building,
317-319 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2545 7458

Queen’s Road Central Branch

Basement, Ground Floor and First Floor of 122 QRC,
Nos. 122-126 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2805 1187

Central Branch

Shop A1, 1/F, 9 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2525 3848

Admiralty Branch

Shop 1013-1014, 1/F, United Centre,
95 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2529 0669

Admiralty Personal Banking Centre (No teller service)
Shop 1019-1020, 1/F, United Centre,

95 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2324 6400

Caine Road Branch

G/F, Caine Building, 22 Caine Road,
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588
Facsimile: (852) 2526 8478

Wanchai Branch

117-123 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588
Facsimile: (852) 2865 0251
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Wanchai Road Branch

G/F, Times Media Centre, No.133 Wan Chai Road,
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2838 1817

Wanchai Personal Banking Centre (No teller service)
Shop 101, 1/F, China Resources Building,

26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2455 3612

Causeway Bay Branch

Shop A on G/F, 1/F, Hennessy Apartments,
488 & 490 Hennessy Road,

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2808 1331

Happy Valley Branch

23 King Kwong Street, Happy Valley,
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588
Facsimile: (852) 2834 3075

Aberdeen Branch

Shop 7A, G/F, Site 1, Aberdeen Centre,
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2518 7007

Electric Road Branch

113-115 Electric Road, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588
Facsimile: (852) 2807 1697

Fortress Hill Branch

Shop A-C, G/F, Kwong Chiu Terrace,
272-276 King’s Road, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588
Facsimile: (852) 2887 7094

City Garden Personal Banking Centre (No teller service)
Shop Unit 23, G/F, Maximall, City Garden,

233 Electric Road, North Point,

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2570 7366

North Point Branch

G/F, 436-438 King’s Road, North Point,
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2510 9902

Quarry Bay Branch

Shop SLG1, Sub-Lower Ground Floor,
Westlands Gardens, Nos. 2-12, Westlands Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2565 5541
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Sai Wan Ho Branch

Shop G10, G/F, Tai On Building,
57-87 Shau Kei Wan Road, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2569 6142

Siu Sai Wan Branch

Shop Nos 17-19, Ground Floor, Harmony Garden,
No.9 Siu Sai Wan Road, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2898 3077

BRANCHES - KOWLOON

West Kowloon Station Personal Banking Centre (No teller service)
Shop No. L1-1, Hong Kong West Kowloon Station,

3 Austin Road West, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2880 0290

Tsimshatsui East Branch

Shop B, G/F, Railway Plaza, 39 Chatham Road South,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2311 2810

Tsim Sha Tsui Branch

Shop 1-2, G/F, 35-37 Hankow Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588
Facsimile: (852) 2724 4846

China Hong Kong City Branch

Shop No. 55, UG/F & Shop Nos. 15, 16 & 17B,
1/F, China Hong Kong City, 33 Canton Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2375 6935

Yaumatei Branch

542 Nathan Road, Yaumatei, Kowloon
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588
Facsimile: (852) 2770 9837

Mongkok Branch

G/F, Belgian Bank Building,

721-725 Nathan Road, Mongkok, Kowloon
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2390 9073

Prince Edward Branch

777 Nathan Road, Mongkok, Kowloon
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2380 3887

Shamshuipo Branch

G/F, 290 Lai Chi Kok Road, Shamshuipo, Kowloon
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2387 5533
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Lai Chi Kok Branch

Shop G06, G/F, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza,

833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2785 5566

Mei Foo Branch

R NLEFER
Annual Report 2019

Shop N95A, 1/F, Mount Sterling Mall, Mei Foo Sun Chuen, Kowloon

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588
Facsimile: (852) 2307 1811

Ho Man Tin Branch

G/F, Tsan Yung Mansion, No. 70 Waterloo Road,
Ho Man Tin, Kowloon

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2769 7083

Oi Man Branch

Shop F18 & F19, Oi Man Plaza,

Oi Man Estate, Homantin, Kowloon
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588
Facsimile: (852) 2760 4309

Hung Hom Branch

Shop 2A, G/F, Hung Hom Shopping Mall,
2-34E Tak Man Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2365 2182

Mok Cheong Street Branch

12-14 Mok Cheong Street, Tokwawan, Kowloon
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2761 0935

Wong Tai Sin Branch

Shop 128, Level 1, Temple Mall South, Wong Tai Sin Plaza,

103 Ching Tak Street, Wong Tai Sin, Kowloon
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588
Facsimile: (852) 2267 7782

Telford Branch

Shop Units P19-P20, Telford Plaza, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588
Facsimile: (852) 2797 8984

Kwun Tong Branch

Shop 5 & 6, 1/F, Crocodile Center, 79 Hoi Yuen Road,

Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588
Facsimile: (852) 2357 5825

BRANCHES - NEW TERRITORIES

Tseung Kwan O Branch

Shop 1025A, Level 1, Metro City Phase II,

8 Yan King Road, Tseung Kwan O, New Territories
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 3194 3829

Tsui Lam Branch

Shop No. 135, 5/F,

Tsui Lam Square,

Tsui Lam Estate,

No. 11 Tsui Lam Road,

Tseung Kwan O, New Territories
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588
Facsimile: (852) 2656 5172
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Tseung Kwan O Personal Banking Centre (No teller service)
Shop 1025B, Level 1, Metro City Phase II,

8 Yan King Road, Tseung Kwan O, New Territories

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 3194 3829

Kwai Fong Branch

C63A-C66, 2/F, Kwai Chung Plaza, Kwai Fong, New Territories
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2480 0210

Kwai Chung Branch

Unit G02, Tower A, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2420 9883

Tsuen Wan Castle Peak Road Branch

G/F, 423-427 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2412 1080

Sha Tsui Road Branch

Shop 4, G/F, Chung On Building, 297-313 Sha Tsui Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2439 0076

Sha Tsui Road Personal Banking Centre (No teller service)
Shop 4, G/F, Kwong Yick Building, 315-323 Sha Tsui Road,

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2455 3592

Tuen Mun Branch

217 A-F Central Services Building, Nan Fung Industrial City,
18 Tin Hau Road, Tuen Mun, New Territories

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2466 6245

Yan Ching Street Branch

Shops 4-5, G/F, Tuen Mun Centre,

11 Yan Ching Street, Tuen Mun, New Territories
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2427 2117

Tai Hing Branch

Shop 21-23 Tai Hing Commercial Complex, Tai Hing Estate,
Tuen Mun, New Territories

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2456 3200

Yuen Long Branch

G/F, 197-199 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long,
New Territories

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2442 5448

Kau Yuk Road Personal Banking Centre (No teller service)
Shop 3-4, G/F, Ying Cheong Building, 21 Kau Yuk Road,

Yuen Long, New Territories

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2613 5099
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Tai Wai Branch

Shop No. 5, G/F, Kam Shan Building, Tai Wai Road,
Tai Wai, New Territories

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2405 6669

Shatin Branch

Shop 22J, Level 3, Shatin Centre, New Territories
Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2695 7399

Shatin Personal Banking Centre (No teller service)

R NLEFER
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Shop No.185, Level 3, Shatin Lucky Plaza, Shatin, New Territories

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588
Facsimile: (852) 2772 2560

Tai Po Branch

Shop F, G/F, Mee Fat Building, No. 34-38 Tai Wing Lane,
Tai Po, New Territories

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2638 8738

Tai Wo Branch

Shop 216, 2/F, Tai Wo Plaza, Tai Wo Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2650 2982

Sheung Shui Branch

Shop 2, G/F, San Fung Building, No.33 San Fung Avenue,
Shek Wu Hui, Sheung Shui, New Territories

Telephone: (852) 2189 5588

Facsimile: (852) 2639 0500

OVERSEAS BRANCH

Cayman Islands Branch
P.O. 1353

Harbour Place

5th Floor

103 Church Street

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

SUBSIDIARIES

Chinese Mercantile Bank

ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited

ICBC (Asia) Futures Company Limited

ICBC Asset Management (Global) Company Limited
ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited

ICBC (Asia) Securities Limited

ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited

ICBC (Asia) Financial Services Company Limited
ICBCA (C.I.) Limited

TR R R BORE £ L (PRI A PR
SINO-CEEF Holding Company Limited

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

IEC Investments Limited
SINO-CEEF Capital Management Company Limited
Infinium Holdings Limited
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33/F, ICBC Tower, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong

B EE Tel (852) 3510 8888

{EE Fax (852) 2805 1166

www.icbcasia.com
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